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We live by his values
Integrity, Commitment, Passion, Seamlessness and Speed



CHAIRMAN'S LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

GLOBAL ECONOMY

The global economy recorded a healthy
growth of 3.6% in CY 2018. During the second
half of the year, however, the global economy
lost some momentum, mainly on account of
the increased trade frictions between the US
and China, and the tightening of financial
conditions. The International Monetary Fund
(IMF) expects growth to decelerate to 3.3% in
CY 2019 and its projections suggest that all
three major engines of the global economy,
the US, China and the Eurozone are likely to
decelerate in CY 2019. On the positive side,
however, the IMF expects world economic
output to recover and grow at 3.6% in

CY 2020.

Of late, there have been a few
growth-supportive factors such as the
announcement of economic stimulus in

China and halt to monetary policy tightening

in developed countries. But the business
sentiment has become somewhat clouded

with the apparent setback in the US-China
trade talks, the spread of trade frictions

to technology sector and the increased
intermingling of economic policies.

These challenges signal that global commodity
prices could be under pressure. F

INDIAN ECONOMY

Indian economy exhibited mixed record in the
just concluded fiscal. Gross Domestic Product
(GDP) growth slowed from 7.2% in FY 2017-18
to 6.8% in FY 2018-19. Below-normal rainfall in
CY 2018, tight financial conditions faced by the
non-banking financial sector and moderation
of external demand were the key challenges
faced by the economy. Consumption growth
declined during the second half of the year,
but there were some signs of revival in the
investment cycle, as gross fixed capital
formation improved from 31.4% of GDP in

FY 2017-18 to 32.3% in FY 2018-19.

Macroeconomic indicators broadly remained
stable. Low inflation has created the space
for monetary policy easing, which will also
help support growth revival. The fiscal
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deficit target for FY 2018-19 was adhered to, despite

a shortfall in tax revenues. While the current account
deficit was high at 2.6% of GDP during the first three
quarters of FY 2018-19, the softness in international oil
prices portends its narrowing in the coming quarters.
Following the resounding political mandate for the ruling
Government, expectations of further economic reforms
and impetus to large infrastructure investments have
been reinforced. These are reflected in strong inflows in
the capital market, taking equity indices to record levels
in the weeks following the general elections.

India's medium-term growth prospects continue to be
robust. Significant reforms undertaken in the recent
years such as Goods and Services Tax and insolvency
code would raise India's growth potential in the coming
years, amplifying the long-term structural strengths of the
India growth story. In the near term, however, uncertainty
over the monsoon season and the heightened global
risks present headwinds for FY 2019-20. Accordingly, the
outlook for the Indian economy in FY 2019-20 is one of
cautious optimism at this juncture.

THE METALS SECTOR: IN BRIEF

It was a volatile year for aluminium and copper.

The macroeconomic scenario emerging from the
US-China trade dispute and the moderation of economic
activities in Europe and China resulted in the lacklustre
growth of the aluminium and copper sectors in CY 2018.

Production disruption at one of the world’s largest
alumina refineries in Brazil pushed alumina prices to

an all-time high of $700/tonne in CY 2018. The levying
of 10% import tariff on all aluminium products and
imposition of sanctions on UC Rusal by the US were the
key highlights of the aluminium industry in the first half of
CY 2018.

In the domestic market, aluminium
continued to grow at over 9% for
the second year in arow.

The amplification of the trade war and lifting of sanctions
on UC Rusal by the US were the most significant events
for the aluminium industry in the second half of CY 2018.
These events led to a sharp fall in global aluminium
prices to below $1,900 tonne by end of the second half
of CY 2018 from the peak of $2,700 tonne in the first half
of CY 2018.

The growth in consumption of aluminium in regions
excluding China, was at ~2% in CY 2018, compared to
a growth of around 3% in CY 2017, owing to subdued
demand from the construction, electrical, machinery
& equipment and transportation sectors. China too
recorded a significant fall in demand — from the robust
8% growth in CY 2017 to 3% in CY 2018 on account of
the trade war and economic slowdown.

In the copper market, there were fears of major supply
disruptions owing to key labour negotiations due in

CY 2018. However, the smooth conclusion of wage
negotiations assuaged fears. In CY 2018, benchmark
TC/RC recorded a moderation from 23.7 c/Ib in

CY 2017 to 21.1 ¢/lb due to supply constraints from
major mines. The demand growth for refined copper

in regions excluding China, continued to be modest at
around 1% in CY 2018 as compared to 0.3% in CY 2017.
Copper demand growth in China slipped marginally

to 4.5% in CY 2018 from 5% in CY 2017. The ban on
grade 7 scrap imports by China supported demand for
refined copper in CY 2018.

In the domestic market, aluminium continued to grow

at over 9% for the second year in a row. The 9.5%
growth in FY 2018-19 was driven by the transportation,
construction and consumer durables sectors.

Copper demand was robust at 10% in FY 2018-19, as
compared with a modest 2% growth in the year earlier.
Going forward, demand for aluminium and copper in
India is expected to surge driven by the growing needs
of the power and renewables sectors, as well as the
construction (including housing) and consumer durables
segments. However, rising imports remain a key concern
for domestic aluminium and copper producers.



YOUR COMPANY’S PERFORMANCE

Your Company registered yet another record
consolidated performance in FY 2018-19, despite a
challenging business environment. This resilient show
was driven by a record performance from Novelis, the
Indian aluminium business and a sustained performance
by the copper business.

Your Company registered its highest ever consolidated
EBITDA of ¥16,627 Crore on a turnover of

31,30,542 Crore. Your Company’s aluminium and copper
business in India and Novelis continued to deliver
exceptional operational and financial performance.

The major enablers were stable operations, better
efficiencies and realisations and supportive macros in
the first half of FY 2018-19.

Your Company (including Utkal) continued to achieve
record aluminium and alumina production levels at
1.295 Mt and 2.893 Mt, respectively. All the plants
operated at their designed capacities. Production of
aluminium value-added products (excluding wire rods)
stood at 321 Kt in FY 2018-19 reflecting, a growth of
5% y-0-y.

In the copper business, cathode production was 347 Kt,
lower compared to the year earlier due to the planned
maintenance shutdown. Continuous Cast Rod production
was at 245 Kt, up 47% on account of ramp-up of the
new CCR#3 plant at Dahej which was commissioned a
year before.

Novelis reported yet another remarkable performance
this year with a record shipment of 3.274 Mt, up 3%

over the previous year, and an adjusted EBITDA of
$1.368 Billion, up 13%. The adjusted EBITDA/tonne of
$418 was the highest ever. Novelis continues to improve
its product mix with the share of the automotive sector
at 20% and beverage can sheet at 63%. Your Company
reported an increase in the share of recycled contents to
61% in FY 2018-19, from 57% a year earlier. During the
year, your Company announced the acquisition of Aleris

Highest-ever consolidated revenue

?130542 Crore

at an enterprise value of $2.58 Billion including the
assumption of debt. This will accelerate your Company’s
growth and put it on the path to become the leading
aluminium value-added player in the world.

DELEVERAGING

Your Company, with its continuous focus on
strengthening the balance sheet, prepaid 21,575 Crore
of long-term project loans in India in FY 2018-19. This led
to a noteworthy improvement in consolidated net debt to
EBITDA at 2.48x at the end of March 2019.

THE ADITYA BIRLA GROUP: IN PERSPECTIVE

The Aditya Birla Group in many ways is a proxy for a rising
India, given the diversified nature of our businesses.

The year 2018-19 was been one of strategic decisions
and partnerships; with many transformational business
transactions: Vodafone-ldea merger, purchase of
Binani Cement, acquisition of Soktas in textiles

and the on-going acquisition of Aleris in metals.

We demonstrated the courage to think mega scale, to
act decisively and to be calm in a volatile and dynamic
environment. We reaffirmed the commitment and trust
that we can reinvent ourselves and be game changers
in the industry. Consequently, we are globally the third
largest cement Company (outside of China) and among
the top 3 telecom players in the world. We closed

the year with revenues of $48.3 Billion and EBITDA of
$6.1 Billion.

We believe our people and people processes give us a
definitive edge to manage scale and yet remain nimble to
embrace change proactively.

| am delighted to share that our robust people
processes, that have been the bedrock of our
success over the years, continue to evolve and stay
contemporary. Let me give you a flavour of what we
have accomplished and how it is making a difference.

As a Group, we continue to be deeply invested in

our talent pipeline across levels. At one level, we

have on-boarded over 200 fresh recruits from top
engineering and management institutes for premier
trainee programmes, and at the other, we are actively
building an internal talent pipeline. Our Employee Value
Proposition of 'A World Of Opportunities' is truly coming
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alive with this eclectic mix of experienced and young
leaders. We have developed a robust leadership pipeline
with a healthy ratio of 1:1 identified successors for more
than 300 leadership roles across the Group.

Gyanodaya, the Aditya Birla Group Centre for Leadership
Development, continues to build curiosity for new
learning, self-reflection and coaching in existing and
future leaders. Broad-based leadership programmes like
the Chairman Series brought 300 top leaders across the
globe together on marketing, finance and strategy and
built cohesion and cross-functional appreciation.

Functional Academies have been established in

5 distinct areas: Human Resources, Manufacturing,
Sales/Marketing, Customer Centricity, Information
Technology and Finance to develop cutting-edge
functional capabilities in these areas. Over the past three
years, over 5,000 employees have refreshed their skills,
thereby enhancing the functional design and experience
across the Group.

ABG Core Conclave, of middle managers across
businesses, enabled 3,000 managers and business
leaders to share nuances and have candid conversations
on missed opportunities and challenges ahead.

This unique platform reinforced the OneABG connect,
brought new perspectives and gave me a first-hand

feel of the excitement, passion and commitment of our
vibrant next generation leaders.

Businesses have adopted new areas like Robotic
Process Automation, Artificial Intelligence,

Machine Learning, Analytics and Design Thinking.
They are experimenting with the same in manufacturing
processes, servicing customers and logistics, thus
enhancing the agility of the business and turnaround
times, dramatically.

| believe the real test of HR processes lies in advancing
business outcomes, and we have demonstrated a track

Over the past three years, over 5,000
employees have refreshed their skills,
enhancing the functional design and
experience across the Group.

record of doing just that. Greenfield projects were
commissioned ahead of schedule, and at a lower cost,
acquired units were rebranded and recommissioned

in days instead of months. While saving precious

capital and related resources, these initiatives inspire
confidence within the organisation and in the ecosystem.

The Aditya Birla Group, over the years, has
institutionalised best practices that have led to efficiency,
safety, sustainability, and stronger businesses. We have
systematically brought the customer to the centre of

our business discussions. As we continue to strive on
this front, we need to get closer to the end consumer
and innovate continuously to ensure a faster growth
trajectory. With this in mind, we have constituted the
Central Innovation Team. This team will not only build
the innovation framework and pipeline but also bring an
outside-in perspective to our businesses. This team will
work closely with business R&D and marketing teams,
technology talent, and a strong team of data scientists.
We are also in the process of evaluating partnerships
with global universities and start-ups relevant to the
sectors in which we operate. The intent is to shift the
centre of gravity of the Company closer to the consumer.

We are determined to innovate. We are determined
to grow.

| am excited with the speed and precision with which
we are transforming ourselves to be future-focused
while remaining steadfast to our time-tested values.
We move into FY 2019-20 with the confidence that we
have the right capabilities to seize every opportunity
that comes our way.

The best is yet to come. Thank you for your
continuing support.

Yours sincerely,

Kumar Mangalam Birla
Chairman
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HINDALCO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

MESSAGE FROM THE MANAGING DIRECTOR

Dear Stakeholders,

Fiscal 2019 was a landmark year for Hindalco.
We delivered peak performance despite
volatile market conditions and global economic
headwinds. It was a clear demonstration of
how Hindalco’s core attribute of resilience has
served to keep us strong and steady.

We delivered our best-ever financial results
with record levels of profitability and EBITDA.
Our performance was based on the highest
ever production and shipments in aluminium
(upstream and downstream), copper rods,
and Flat Rolled Products (FRP) in Novelis.
Guided by our purpose of ‘manufacturing
materials that make the world greener stronger
smarter’, we made solid progress towards
expanding our portfolio of value-added
products, focused obsessively on quality,
improved efficiencies at all our plants and
vigorously drove innovation and sustainability
across locations. Additionally, we continued
to further strengthen our balance sheet by
bringing down our consolidated net debt to
EBITDA to 2.48 times in FY 2018-19 from 2.82
times in FY 2017-18.

We are proud of this performance, as it
shows the extent of Hindalco’s resilience.

We remained steady when under pressure
from volatile conditions generated by global
uncertainties such as the US-China trade war
and global aluminium price movements.

Our performance not only validated our
strategies and objectives, but also testified to
the merits of our de-risked, integrated business
model, our operational excellence and our
commitment to creating long-term value for all
our stakeholders.

We made solid progress towards expanding

our portfolio of value-added products, focused
obsessively on quality, improved efficiencies at
all our plants and vigorously drove innovation
and sustainability across locations.



CREATING VALUE, SUSTAINABLY

FY 2018-19 was a noteworthy year for all our businesses.
Novelis and domestic aluminium business achieved
record-breaking results, and the copper business put up
a sustained performance.

We registered our highest ever:

Consolidated PBT (before exceptional item)
of ¥8,083 Crore

Consolidated PAT of ¥5,495 Crore
Consolidated EBITDA of 316,627 Crore
Adjusted EBITDA/tonne of $418 at Novelis

The past year can be summed up as one of ‘value
creation’. Our downstream strategy of increasing the
share of value-added products across businesses to
insulate us from global aluminium price fluctuations

is playing out. As a result, in FY 2018-19, ~70% of
Hindalco’s consolidated EBITDA was non-LME linked,
reflecting a sustainable business model.

The domestic aluminium business recorded a 13% y-0-y
growth in revenues to 323,775 Crore. EBITDA grew 9%
to ¥5,202 Crore as rising input costs were partially offset
by our focus on higher efficiencies and seamless plant
operations. We have steadily scaled up production of
downstream products to achieve robust sales volumes
for value-added products.

In the copper business, the shift towards value-added
products like copper rods bolstered overall profitability,
helping achieve stable revenues of 322,155 Crore.

The production of copper rods was at an all-time high
with the continuous ramp-up of the Continuous Cast
Copper Rod-3 (CCR-3) facility. However, production of
copper cathodes fell 15% due to a planned maintenance
shutdown. Production of Di-Ammonium Phosphate (DAP)
fertiliser soared 48% due to resolution of its operational
issues in the previous year.

Novelis delivered its best performance to date, driven
by its focus on providing best-in-class products that
cater to the evolving needs of customers for sustainable
materials. Beverage can sheet shipments increased
from 60% of its total shipments in FY 2017-18 to 63%

CORPORATE
OVERVIEW

STATUTORY
REPORTS

FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

in FY 2018-19. The rising contribution of value-added
products to overall volumes, record shipments and
higher aluminium prices, pushed revenue up by 8%

to $12.3 Billion. Adjusted EBITDA grew 13% to $1.368
Billion. Novelis continued to grow the share of recycled
contents from 57% in FY 2017-18 to 61% in FY 2018-19,
in alignment with its focus on sustainability and
recyclability. Novelis’ expansion projects - in the US,
China, and Brazil - are on track; these will help meet the
fast growing demand for strong, lightweight automotive
body sheets, and for sustainable packaging.

BIG STRIDES TOWARDS A BRIGHTER
TOMORROW

We want to further fortify our leadership position across
existing businesses by focusing on innovation and
enriching our product mix. We aim to double the share
of value-added products in the domestic aluminium
business over the next 5-6 years. We plan to invest
around $1.0-1.2 Billion in India to grow our downstream
business. In upstream business, the Company will
expand its capacity at Utkal Alumina by 500 Kt.

In copper, we will continue to focus on value-added
products to meet the growing demand from the domestic
industry, particularly the power, consumer durables and
households segments. Over time, we aim to achieve a
balanced sustainable growth across our upstream and
downstream businesses.

Hindalco has a proven track record of successful
strategic M&As. This year we announced a deal through
Novelis to acquire Aleris. This buyout will mark our
entry into the high-value, high-potential aerospace

and building & construction segments and enable us

to further diversify Novelis’ product mix. It will also

allow us to ramp up capacity in value-added products.
This acquisition is subject to customary closing
conditions and regulatory approvals.

Novelis delivered its best performance to date,
driven by its focus on providing best-in-class
products that cater to the evolving needs of
customers for sustainable materials.

Greener. Stronger. Smarter &



HINDALCO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

MESSAGE FROM THE MANAGING DIRECTOR

A GREENER, STRONGER, SMARTER WORLD

Hindalco is guided by its purpose and many of our
products are already working to support a greener
planet. One example of this is the manufacture and

sale this year of India’s first indigenously designed,
lightweight, eco-friendly aluminium bulker. This bulker
saves up to 13,000 litres of fuel, generates 20 tonnes
lower GHGs and is BS-VI compliant. Going forward, we
aspire to make aluminium the ‘smart metal of choice’ for
our customers by showcasing it as a supermaterial, with
innate properties of strength, light weight, anti-corrosion
and 100% recyclability.

Sustainability is integral to our business and we
continue to empower our communities and nurture
our environment. We have made steady progress in
our targets of promoting sustainable mining practices,
driving energy and water conservation, using more
renewable energy and recycling, among others.

Ensuring safety of our employees, associates,
communities and other stakeholders is at the core of our
business and integrated into everything we do. It was,
therefore, distressing that there were four fatalities in the
year. Safety is a top priority for us. To continuously drive
our safety performance, the onus of safe operations has
been shifted to line managers from safety professionals.
With massive work underway, we are confident of
strengthening our safety performance and culture.

OUR PEOPLE, OUR PRIDE

Hindalco is nothing without the people who steer us

and | am proud of the steps we are taking to promote
diversity in our workforce. As a measure of our
commitment, we hired 27% women engineers at the
entry level. Our 'dual career' option for both spouses at
our plants, apart from other family friendly policies, bear
testimony to our intentions. We are always keen to hear
from our women colleagues and a significant step in this
direction was the hosting of the first Women’s Conclave
for Hindalco (WAH) in March 2019.

We hired 27% women engineers at the entry
level and are offering 'dual career' for both
spouses at our plants, apart from other family
friendly policies.

Our commitment to enhancing the functional
competencies of our people was demonstrated through
the launch of Hindalco Technical University (HTU)

in CY 2017. Today, HTU has introduced VR, AR, Al,
Animation, 3D and Robotics to equip our people for the
future.

The culture of recognition is growing stronger every

year. The PRIDE scheme, PRAISE platform and other
processes continue to motivate and encourage teams
and individuals. Our holistic employee wellness initiatives
are tailored to build awareness and create supportive
environments to improve the lifestyle of our people.

We have great opportunities in front of us and | am
confident that remaining committed to our purpose will
help us to build a greener, stronger, smarter future for all.
| would like to express my gratitude to our stakeholders
for their belief in us and | seek your continued support.

Yours sincerely,

//“
Satish Pai
Managing Director
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HINDALCO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Hindalco Industries Limited (HIL), the metals flagship company of the Aditya

Birla Group, is a global leader in aluminium and copper. Hindalco is the world’s
largest aluminium rolling and recycling company and one of Asia’s leading
producers of primary aluminium. In India, the company’s aluminium business
encompasses the entire gamut of operations from bauxite mining, alumina refining,
coal mining, captive power plants and aluminium smelting to downstream rolling,
extrusions and foils.

Hindalco's wide spectrum of
value-added products serves key
industry sectors such as building
and  construction,  automotive,
packaging, electrical, defence,
aerospace, telecom, consumer
durables, among others.

Novelis Inc., Hindalco’s
wholly-owned subsidiary, is the
leading producer of flat-rolled
aluminium products and the world’s
largest recycler of aluminium.
It leverages its global manufacturing
and recycling footprint to deliver
consistent, high-quality products
around the world. Novelis provides
innovative solutions to its customers
in the beverage cans, automobile
and speciality Flat Rolled Product
(FRP) segments. It operates an
integrated network of technically
advanced rolling and recycling
facilities across North America,
South America, Europe and Asia.

Hindalco’s state-of-the-art copper
facility is one of the world’s largest
single-location custom smelters
with  downstream facilities, a
fertiliser plant and a captive jetty.
It produces copper cathodes and
continuous cast copper rods (CCR)
along with other by-products such
as sulphuric acid and Di-Ammonium
Phosphate (DAP).

FY 2018-19 was a record year for
Hindalco in terms of operational

Birla Centurion, Hindalco's corporate office in Mumbai
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and financial performance, despite macroeconomic
challenges and global uncertainties. Novelis reported its
highest-ever shipments and adjusted EBITDA, primary
aluminium registered its highest-ever metal production
and EBITDA, and copper clocked its highest-ever
domestic rod sales. Hindalco continued to deleverage
its balance sheet by prepaying long-term loans of around
%1,575 Crore in FY 2018-19, leading to a consolidated net
debt to EBITDA of 2.48 times in FY 2018-19 versus 2.82
times in the previous year.

KEY INITIATIVES DURING THE YEAR

CORPORATE
OVERVIEW

STATUTORY
REPORTS

FY 2018-19: A YEAR OF MILESTONES

FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Achieved highest-ever

Aluminium metal production
1,295 ki

Alumina production

Utkal Alumina's brownfield capacity expansion, by 500 Kt,
is expected to be completed in FY 2020-21 with a capital
outlay of around %1,300 Crore. This will further strengthen
the Company’s integration and boost the availability of
best-in-class alumina to its aluminium smelters in India.

In the copper business, the newly commissioned
continuous cast rod plant (CCR#3) at Dahej, Guijarat is
ramping up well and achieved a production of 117 K,
taking total CCR production in FY 2018-19 to 245 Kt.

Novelis, signed a definitive agreement to purchase
Aleris Corp for $2.6 Billion in July 2018. This will help
broaden Novelis' automotive business, meet growing
demand, diversify its global footprint and customer base,
and enhance its Asia operations with full metal chain
integration in China. The deal will help diversify Novelis’
product portfolio further by providing entry into the
aerospace segment.

Novelis announced expansion plans of 200 Kt automotive
finishing facility in Guthrie, Kentucky in the US, and an
additional 100 Kt of automotive finishing line in China, are
expected to be commissioned in FY 2020-21. Further, the
plan to expand its rolling, casting and recycling capacity
in Pinda, Brazil to meet growing customer demand is also
expected to be commissioned by FY 2021-22.

Novelis will also supply premium aluminium automotive
body sheets for new vehicle designs, including the all-new
Toyota RAV4 and NIO ES6 models in the US and China.
In CY 2019, Novelis has partnered with Volvo Car Group
to establish an automotive closed-loop recycling system
in Europe to reduce CO, emissions, decrease waste and
increase recyclability of aluminium.

2,893 kt*

Aluminium VAP production in India
(excluding wire rods)

321 ki

Copper rods production

245 ki

Overall shipments in Novelis
3,274 ki

Consolidated revenue
?130542 Crore
Consolidated EBITDA
?16627 Crore

Consolidated PAT

%5495 Crore

*including Utkal, the wholly-owned subsidiary

Greener. Stronger. Smarter



HINDALCO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

1. INDUSTRY ANALYSIS

1.1 Aluminium Segment and Industry Review
CY 2018 was a highly volatile year for the aluminium
industry with the US being a pivot for major events.
The first half of the year was completely dominated by
the US sanctions on UC Rusal and the imposition of
Section 232, i.e., import tariffs of 10% on all aluminium
products. The second half was impacted by the eruption
of trade war between the US and China. Alumina supply
was also impacted during the year due to disruptions
at one of the world’s biggest refineries outside
China, pushing alumina prices to an all-time high of
$700/tonne in CY 2018.

The US-China trade war dampened the global economic
environment with most of the major economies
experiencing a slowdown in growth, which in turn
impacted aluminium consumption. In CY 2018, primary
aluminium consumption growth moderated to 3% y-o-y
from 6% y-o0-y in CY 2017. The world, excluding China,
reported aggregate consumption growth of around 2%
in CY 2018, down from 3% in CY 2017, owing to subdued
demand in Japan, the Middle East, Brazil, and Europe,
while demand growth in North America remained flat at
2% y-0-y. Among user industries, only the packaging
sector witnessed growth in CY 2018 versus CY 2017.
However, consumption growth moderated in the
construction, electrical, machinery, equipment and the
transportation sectors.

Aluminium FRP plant in Hirakud, Odisha
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China in CY 2018 struggled on two fronts — the trade
with the US and moderation in the domestic economy.
Consequently, consumption growth slowed significantly
to around 3% in the year from around 8% in CY 2017,
owing to a sharp decline in demand from the transport,
construction and electrical sectors.

Global aluminium production excluding China grew
around 2% y-o-y in CY 2018 versus around 1% y-o0-y a
year ago; production growth in China slipped to around
1% y-0-y from 13% y-o-y in CY 2017. A surge in input
costs, coupled with environmental regulations, made a
majority of the smelters in China unviable. As a result,
overall global production marginally grew by 0.5% y-o0-y
in CY 2018, around 8% y-o-y growth in CY 2017.

Primary Consumption of Aluminium (Kt)
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The events in CY 2018 fuelled significant volatility in
global aluminium prices. In the first half, prices peaked
at $2,700/tonne owing to the sanctions on UC Rusal and
the imposition of Section 232, i.e., 10% import tariff on all
aluminium products to the US. The disruption of alumina
supply also fuelled volatility in global aluminium prices.

By the end of the second half, prices plunged to below
$1,900/tonne due to the US-China trade war and the
removal of sanctions on US Rusal. A significant surge
in input costs, along with a market deficit of around
2 Mt, restricted global aluminium prices to around
$1,900/tonne by the end of the year.

Average value of premiums at Main Japanese Port
(MJP), European Rotterdam Premium and US Midwest
premium in CY 2018 was $117/tonne, $165/tonne and
19 Cents/lb, versus $109/tonne, $147/tonne and 9
Cents/lb, respectively, in CY 2017.

In the domestic market, aluminium production
maintained a strong growth of 9% in FY 2018-19 while
domestic consumption remained robust at around 9.5%.
User industries like transportation, construction and
consumer durables were the major demand drivers.

A significant surge in input costs, coupled with ~2 Mt
global market deficit, restricted global aluminium prices
to around $1,900/tonne.
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Imports continued to be a concern for domestic players,
which accounted for nearly 60% of the market in FY
2018-19. Overall imports including scrap touched ~2.3
Mt in FY 2018-19 from ~2 Mt in FY 2017-18.

1.1.1 Outlook

In CY 2019, the global macroeconomic environment is
likely to remain highly volatile due to increased trade
tensions between the US and China and uncertainty
around Brexit. Central banks of major economies
are taking an accommodative policy stance to aid
economic growth.

According to the International Monetary Fund (IMF),
global economic growth is expected to moderate further
to 3.3% in CY 2019 from 3.6% in CY 2018.

As aluminium consumption is correlated with economic
growth, global aluminium consumption growth may
moderate to ~2% in CY 2019. Among the user industries,
transportation, machinery and equipment are expected
to face moderation while construction and electrical are
likely to be supportive. China is expected to maintain a
steady growth at 2% to 3% on the back of government
stimulus. The world excluding China is expected to
see aluminium consumption growth of around 1%
in CY 2019 from around 2% in CY 2018 due to likely
moderation in demand from North America and Europe.
India and the Middle East, on the other hand, could
witness some increase.

Global aluminium supply is likely to be flat at 64-65 Mt.
Production in the world excluding China is expected to
be around 28 Mt, driven by production from line 6 at
Alba. Primary aluminium supply in China is likely to grow
marginally in the 36-36.5 Mt range, on the back of ramp-ups
at state-owned enterprises (SOEs).

Global aluminium supply is likely to be at
64-65 Mt in CY 2019.

In CY 2019, global aluminium production is unlikely to
witness significant growth. This, coupled with inventories
below 1 Mt leading to overall market deficit, are the factors
that will support global prices of aluminium. Any easing
of global trade tensions could provide additional positive
support to aluminium prices.

Domestic demand is likely to remain robust at 7% in
FY 2019-20, driven by construction and packaging.
The increasing share of imports of aluminium products,

Greener. Stronger. Smarter 9



HINDALCO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Copper coils at Hindalco’s Dahej plant in Gujarat

including scrap, will continue to be a major concern for
domestic aluminium producers.

1.2 Copper Segment and Industry Review

The copper market was also impacted by global
uncertainties, trade disputes, slowing Chinese
economy (constitutes 50% of global consumption) and
strengthening US dollar. In addition, there were fears of
major supply disruptions as labour contracts at many
major mines, especially in Chile and Peru, were up for
renewal during the year. However, all the negotiations
were concluded without any disruptions.

In CY 2018, concentrate production grew around 3.5%,
with a majority of the production coming in the second
half. However, concentrate output from the world's
two biggest mines, Escondida in Chile and Grasberg
in Indonesia fell, as the latter shifted from open cast
to underground mining. The expectation of a likely
disruption in CY 2018 led to a moderation in benchmark
TC/RC to 21.1 ¢/Ib from 23.7 ¢/lb in CY 2017.
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Global consumption of refined copper grew 2.8% y-o0-y
in CY 2018 versus 2.7% y-o-y in CY 2017; the world
excluding China grew around 1% y-0-y versus around
0.3% y-o0-y. Demand in Japan, North America and
Europe (majorly driven by Germany) grew while that in
South Korea and Taiwan witnessed a sharp decline.

Refined Copper Production (K1)
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Growth in Chinese demand was at 4.5% in CY 2018,
down from 5% in CY 2017, due to its economic slowdown
and the trade dispute with the US in the second half of
CY 2018. However, the ban on grade 7 scrap imports
supported primary copper consumption. Building &
construction, machinery and consumer durables were
the leading demand drivers.

In the domestic market, demand surged to 10% in
FY 2018-19 as compared with 2% in FY 2017-18. This was
largely driven by growth in electrical and electronics and
consumer durables sectors. However, slowing industrial
growth was a concern during the year. Imports from
ASEAN and FTA countries continued to put pressure
on the domestic market. During FY 2018-19, imports
recorded an increase of 20% as against a growth of
7% in the previous year. As a result, the overall share
of imports in the domestic market increased from 37%
in FY 2017-18 to 42% in FY 2018-19. The majority of the
imports were in the categories of rods and wires.

Slowdown in Chinese economy and trade dispute with
the US restricted the consumption growth in the second
half of CY 2018.

1.2.1 Outlook

As mentioned in the aluminium segment outlook,
uncertainty in  the macroeconomic environment
is expected to continue in CY 2019; this will likely
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impact copper consumption as well. However, any
moderation in the global trade war scenario and Chinese
stimulus are expected to support the overall copper
demand in CY 2019.

Globally, demand for refined copper is likely to be
around 24 Mt in CY 2019, up 2% to 2.5%. By region,
demand in the world excluding China is likely to grow by
around 2%, primarily driven by North East Asia, ASEAN
and the European region, while North America could
witness some moderation.

Demand in China is expected to grow around 3% in
CY 2019, down from 4.5% in CY 2018 due to the ongoing
uncertainty. However, easing of trade tensions with the
US, scrap restriction and investments in infrastructure
are likely to support growth in refined copper
consumption globally.

The copper concentrate market is likely to be in a deficit
of around 200 Kt in CY 2019, due to lower production from
Grasberg and Escondida mines. Production in Africa is
also expected to withess some moderation. The reduction
in concentrate output and the surge in demand from
Chinese smelters could adversely impact Tc/Rc in CY
2019 and beyond.

Robust demand from the power sector, Government
thrust on renewable energy, rising demand from the
housing segment (urbanisation) and the consumer
durables industry are likely to drive copper

demand in India.

In the domestic market, demand for refined copper in
FY 2019-20is likely to grow at FY 2018-19 levels of ~10%,
driven by the robust power sector, the Government’s
thrust on renewable energy, rising demand from the
housing segment (urbanisation) and the consumer
durables industry. However, low-cost imports are a
major concern for domestic producers.

1.3 Novelis — Industry Review and Business
Overview

Economic growth and material substitution continue to
drive increasing global demand for aluminium and rolled
products. With the exception of China, where can sheet
overcapacity and high competition remain, favourable
market conditions and increasing customer preference
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for sustainable packaging are driving demand for
recyclable aluminium beverage cans.

Meanwhile, demand for aluminium in the automotive
industry continues to grow, justifying the investments
made by Novelis in its automotive sheet finishing
capacity in North America, Europe and Asia in recent
years. The robust demand environment is also fuelling
additional investments in Guthrie, Kentucky (US) and
Changzhou, China.

This growing demand is primarily areflection of automotive
companies’ preference for lightweight aluminium in
vehicle structures and components, as they respond to
stricter emissions and fuel economy regulations, while
improving vehicle safety and performance.

In FY 2018-19, Novelis announced its plans to expand
rolling, casting and recycling capability in Pinda, Brazil.
The company also signed a definitive agreement to

2. BUSINESS SEGMENT REVIEW

acquire Aleris, pending regulatory approvals, which will
further diversify Novelis’ global footprint and portfolio.

Note: For a region wise detailed business overview, please refer to
the 10K filed by Novelis Inc. dated May 08, 2019 for the year ended
March 31, 2019.

1.3.1 Outlook

Global FRP demand, excluding China, grew by 4-5%.
The beverage can market is witnessing growth in the
emerging markets of Asia and South America. Also, new
end-use segments like sparkling water and the global
shift from glass to aluminium are fuelling beverage
can demand. The adoption of strong, lightweight and
formable aluminium sheets in vehicle parts and structures
is driving growth in the automotive body sheet segment.
This market is expected to record a CAGR of 12% to 15%
between CY 2018 and CY 2025, despite some recent
softening in European and Chinese demand.

2.1 Hindalco — SWOT Analysis

Strengths

+ Integrated business model generating healthy cash flow

+ Dominant player in India across upstream and
downstream

+ Utkal - among the most economical and efficient
alumina producers; capacity expansion of 500 Kt
in progress

+ Increased focus on value-added products (VAP)

Weakness

+ Commodity product with smaller share of value-
added products currently

INDIA

ALUMINIUM

Threats

+ Global prices of aluminium, forex and raw material
price volatility

+ Competition from China

+ Threat of imports of scrap and other VAP

+ Domestic availability/shortage of coal and bauxite
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Opportunities

+ Immense headroom for growing market in India;
aluminium consumption at 1/121" of global average

+ Increasing aluminium penetration in building &
construction, automotive, and packaging bodes
well for growing VAP demand

+ Substitution opportunity versus steel, uPVC,
wood, among others



CORPORATE STATUTORY FINANCIAL

OVERVIEW REPORTS STATEMENTS
Strengths Weakness
+ Global presence - across 9 countries, enabling + Lack of access to Shanghai Futures Exchange
global play with marquee customers (SHFE) metal in China
+ Market leader in can and automotive FRP products
+ 61% share of recycling in Novelis portfolio leading
to high cost competitiveness
Threats Opportunities
+ Increasing tariffs and protectionist measures + Growing penetration of aluminium cans due to
« LME-SHFE gap, leading to competitiveness emerging market growth and growing consumer
in China preference for sustainable beverage packaging
+ Price erosion on account of growing competition options

+ Growing automotive market driven by EVs, energy
efficiency and light-weighting focus across the

globe
Strengths Weakness
- Balanced portfolio of revenue streams to tide - Import dependence for copper concentrate
through volatile market supplies

+ Secured concentrate supply via long-term
contracts with miners
+ Increased focus on VAP in copper

COPPER
Threats Opportunities
+ Mine disruptions + Immense headroom for growth due to lower
* Duties & FTAs owing to rising trade politics consumption versus global average
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2.2 Operational Performance and Financial Review
Financial Table — Hindalco Standalone and Consolidated

(% in Crore)
o Standalone Consolidated
Description
FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18
Revenue from Operations 45,749 43,446 1,30,542 1,15,820
Earnings Before Interest, Tax and Depreciation (EBITDA)
Aluminium 2,885 3,708 5,107 4,692
Copper 1,469 1,539 1,516 1,594
Novelis = = 9,194 7,903
Others (including other income) 833 825 810 836
Total EBITDA 5,187 6,072 16,627 15,025
Depreciation 1,693 1,617 4,766 4,606
Finance Cost 1,683 1,901 3,778 3,911
Associate Profit /(Loss) - = = (125)
Earnings before Exceptional Iltems and Tax 1,810 2,554 8,083 6,383
Exceptional Income/ (Expenses) (Net) - (325) - 1,774
Profit Before Tax (After Exceptional Iltems) 1,810 2,229 8,083 8,157
Taxes Paid 605 792 2,588 2,074
Profit/ (Loss) After Tax 1,205 1,437 5,495 6,083

Aditya Aluminium plant in Odisha
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2.2.1 Hindalco Aluminium Business (excluding Novelis)
Revenue for Hindalco’s aluminium business (excluding
Novelis) touched ¥24,160* Crore in FY 2018-19, from
%21,396* Crore in FY 2017-18, up by 13%. EBITDA was
higher by 9% at 5,107 Crore versus 34,692 Crore a year
earlier, backed by higher realisations and supporting
macros. (*The above numbers are without elimination of
Inter-segment revenue)

In the consolidated financial statements, within the
aluminium segment, the significant entities are Hindalco
and Utkal Alumina International Ltd. Since Utkal Alumina
is a wholly owned subsidiary of Hindalco and supplies
substantial quantity of its production to Hindalco, the
Company has analysed the combined performance of
Hindalco’s aluminium business along with Utkal Alumina.

2.2.2 Operational Overview — HIL Aluminium

(Including Utkal)

The Company achieved record performance in its
aluminium business in FY 2018-19, despite challenges
and volatility. This was supported by stable operations at
all its manufacturing units in India with record production
of aluminium at 1.295 Mt and alumina at 2.893 Mt.
Overall metal sales in all forms stood at 1.274 Mt versus
1.281 Mt in FY 2017-18. Utkal Alumina continues to be
the most economical and efficient alumina producer
globally, running at maximum capacity to produce
1.5 Mt of world-class alumina and providing strong
support to most of HILUs smelting facilities, leading to
better cost optimisation and quality input. Production of
VAP excluding wire rods was higher by 5% at 321 Kt.

Alumina Production (Hydrate as Alumina) (Mt)
FY 2018-19 2.9
FY 2017-18 1.4 Oas T 2.9
FY 2016-17 1.4 05 ] 2.7
FY 2015-16 1.3 I 2.3
FY 2014-15 1.2 10 1.6

® Other Refineries of Hindalco @ Utkal Alumina Total
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Aluminium Metal Production (Mt)

Fy 2018-10 | (D 13
FY 2017-18 1.3
FY 2016-17 1.3
FY 2015-16 1.1
FY 2014-15 0.8
Aluminium Metal Sales in All Forms* (Mt)

Fy 2018-10 | (D 13
FY 2017-18 1.3
FY 2016-17 1.2
FY 2015-16 1.1
FY 2014-15 0.8

*including Wire rods and other Value-added Products.

On the coal side, the Company won back the entire quantity
of Krishnashila coal linkage of 3.1 Mt in the auction conducted
in September 2018, securing its overall linkages. The total
quantity secured through coal linkages stands at 12.2 Mt,
translating to about 73% of annual coal requirements of
Hindalco. Overall, 96% (including Dahej plant) of annual
coal requirement is secured through long-term linkages and
captive mines. Currently, three captive mines — Gare Palma
IV/4, Gare Palma IV/5 and Kathautia — are fully operational.
The captive mine at Dumri is in the process of obtaining
necessary statutory clearances and is expected to be
operational in FY 2019-20.

Currently 96% of annual coal requirement is secured
through long-term linkages and captive mines.
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Aluminium ingots manufactured at Aditya and Mahan smelters

2.2.3 Financial Overview
HIL Aluminium (Including Utkal)

Aluminium revenue including Utkal for FY 2018-19 rose
13%, on higher sales of aluminium metal, better realisations
and supportive macros. EBITDA increased 9% on stable
operations with supporting macros, despite cost increases
of major inputs such as coal and furnace oil.

(X in Crore)

. % Change

Description FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18 over FY 2017-18
Revenue 23,775 21,089 13
EBITDA 5,202 4,790 9

2.3 Copper Business Review

2.3.1 Operational Overview

The copper business continued to deliver consistent
performance in FY 2018-19 in terms of revenue and
EBITDA, despite production disruptions due to planned
maintenance and related issues. Cathode production fell
15% from FY 2017-18 on account of planned maintenance
shutdown in FY 2018-19. Copper rod production was
the highest-ever at 245 Kt, up 47% in FY 2018-19, due
to the ramp-up of the new CCR#3 adding 117 Kt to the
total copper rod production. Production of DAP increased
to 303 Kt from 205 Kt due to operational issues getting
resolved in April-May 2018.
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Total copper metal sales were at 359 Kt in FY 2018-19 down
by 12% compared to prior year due to lower production.
Sales of copper VAP (copper rods) were up by 48% at 243
Ktin FY 2018-19.

Copper Production (Kt)
Fy 2016-19 | (D 347
FY 2017-18 410
FY 2016-17 376
FY 2015-16 388
FY 2014-15 386
Copper Metal Sales in All Forms (Kt)
Fy 2018-19 | (D 359
FY 2017-18 407
FY 2016-17 375
FY 2015-16 386
FY 2014-15 384




2.3.2 Financial Overview

Copper revenue for FY 2018-19 remained stable at
322,155 Crore (versus 22,382 Crore in FY 2017-18),
despite lower volumes. EBITDA fell 5% to 31,469 Crore
(versus 21,539 Crore in FY 2017-18) on account of lower
volumes and lower Tc/Rc during the year, partially offset
by higher by-products realisations.

(X in Crore)

. % Change
Description FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18 over FY 2017-18
Revenue 22,155 22,382 (1)
EBITDA 1,469 1,539 (5)

2.4 Novelis Business Review

2.4.1 Operational Overview

Novelis Inc., the world’s leading aluminium rolling and
recycling facility, reported yet another year of record
performance with a significant increase in net sales,
shipments and adjusted EBITDA. The performance
was mainly driven by its focus on improving
efficiencies, favourable product mix, innovations and
customer centricity.

The company launched three customer solution centres
to accelerate collaborative innovation between Novelis
and automakers for the next generation of vehicle
design. Novelis has developed innovative products
and processes to accelerate the adoption of lightweight
aluminium across end markets, including the first
aluminium sheet battery enclosure for electric vehicles.
Novelis is supplying premium aluminium automotive
body sheet for new vehicle designs, including the
Toyota RAV4 and NIO ES6. It collaborated with Volvo Car
Group to establish an automotive closed-loop recycling
system in Europe to reduce CO, emissions, decrease
waste and increase the recyclability of aluminium.
Novelis leveraged its extensive recycling footprint and
favourable market conditions to increase recycled
content in its shipments from 57% in FY 2017-18 to
61% in FY 2018-19.

Total shipments of Flat Rolled Product increased around
3% to 3.274 Mt on account of higher overall shipments.
The Beverage can sheet shipments increased from
60% of total shipments in FY 2017-18 to 63% in FY
2018-19, and the automotive body sheet shipment
share of total shipments was maintained at 20% in
FY 2018-19. Beverage can shipments grew by 7%
y-0-y and automotive body sheet shipments grew by
2% y-0-y, despite challenges in some regions mainly
Europe and China.

CORPORATE
OVERVIEW

STATUTORY
REPORTS

FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Novelis operatesin four key geographies: North America,
Europe, Asia and South America. In North America, in
FY 2018-19, total shipments were 1,142 Kt, up from 1,083
Ktin FY 2017-18, due to strong growth in the US market.
Novelis announced plans to set up a 200 Kt automotive
finishing facility in Guthrie, Kentucky in the US, to cater
to the growing automotive demand in this region. This is
expected to be operational in FY 2020-21.

In Europe, Novelis shipped 896 Kt across product
categories in FY 2018-19. In Asia, Novelis shipped
710 Kt of rolled products in FY 2018-19 versus 696 Kt
in FY 2017-18. Its automotive finishing line expansion
project of 100 Kt is expected to be operational in
FY 2020-21. In South America, Novelis shipped 526 Kt
in FY 2018-19, up from 495 Kt in the previous year.

In FY 2018-19, the company reported a record overall
adjusted EBITDA/tonne of $418, up from $381, reflecting
strong and consistent performance year after year.

Shipments (Kt) and EBITDA $/tonne

o, | G274
¥ S °
3,188

FY 2017-18
oy 381
FY 2016-17 S0
S 354
3,128

FY 2015-16
oy 308
3,050

FY 2014-15
o 204

® Shipments (Kt) @ cBITDA $/tonne

The Beverage can sheet shipments increased from 60%
of total shipments in FY 2017-18 to 63% in FY 2018-19,
and the automotive body sheet shipment share of total
shipments was maintained at 20% in FY 2018-19.

Greener. Stronger. Smarter 17



HINDALCO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

With Novelis’ thrust on sustainability and recycled
aluminium, the share of recycled inputs increased from
57% a year ago to 61% in FY 2018-19. The company
has invested significantly in recycling initiatives and
developed high-tech recycling capabilities over the
years. Its new rolling, casting and recycling expansion
in Brazil is expected to be commissioned in FY 2021-22.

Recycling (%)
Fv 2013-10 | (D 61
FY 2017-18 57
FY 2016-17 55
FY 2015-16 53
FY 2014-15 49

2.4.2 Financial Overview

Novelis’ net sales increased 8% to $12.3 Billion in
FY 2018-19 driven by higher average aluminium price
realisations and increased shipments. Adjusted EBITDA
stood at $1.368 Billion, up 13%, on the back of higher
shipments, operating efficiencies, favourable product
mix and metal costs, partially offset by lower can prices.
Novelis reported free cash flow of $408 Million driven
by stronger adjusted EBITDA and lower interest, despite
significant pressures from higher aluminium prices.
Net income (without exceptional items) stood at $468
Million in FY 2018-19 versus $420 Million in FY 2017-18.

($ in Million)

. % Change
Description FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18 over FY 2017-18
Net Sales 12,326 11,462 8
Adjusted EBITDA 1,368 1,215 13
Net Income/(loss)
w/o Exceptional 468 420 11
ltem™

*Tax-effected special items may include restructuring & impairment,
metal price lag, gain/loss on assets held for sale, loss on extinguishment
of debt, loss/gain on sale of business

3. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 Revenue
Hindalco’s consolidated revenue grew to31,30,542 Crore
in FY 2018-19 from %1,15,820 Crore in FY 2017-18 as a
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result of excellent operating and financial performance
of all the businesses and better realisations.

Revenue Mix: FY 2018-19 (%)

18 Aluminium

17 Copper

65 Novelis

Revenue (% in Crore)

Fy 201-10 | (D 130542
FY 2017-18 1,15,820
FY 2016-17 1,02,631
FY 2015-16 1,01,202
FY 2014-15 1,06,696
3.2 EBITDA

FY 2018-19 consolidated EBITDA grew 11% to 316,627
Crore from 15,025 Crore in FY 2017-18. This record
performance was on the back of strong traction in
aluminium and copper businesses in India and the
best-ever results by Novelis Inc. EBITDA margin was
maintained at 13% in FY 2018-19.

EBITDA Mix: FY 2018-19 (%)

5 Others ———

31 Aluminium

9 Copper

55 Novelis




EBITDA (X in Crore)

Fy201e-10 | (D 16627
FY 2017-18 15,025
FY 2016-17 13,558
FY 2015-16 10,004
FY 2014-15 10,049

3.3 Finance Cost

Finance cost reduced by 3% at ¥3,778 Crore in
FY 2018-19 from 3,911 Crore in FY 2017-18 on account
of 31,575 Crore prepayment of project loans in India.
The Company in the last 3 years has prepaid over
10,500 Crore of long-term domestic loans.

Long-Term Loans Prepaid (% in Crore)
Fy 201819 | (D) 1,575
FY 2017-18 7,966
FY 2016-17 1,031

3.4 Depreciation (including impairment)
Depreciation and amortisation increased to 34,766 Crore
in FY 2018-19 from 4,607 Crore in FY 2017-18 mainly
on account of progressive capitalisation and certain
reclassifications as per the accounting standards.

3.5 Exceptional Income/(Expense)

There was no exceptional income in FY 2018-19.
FY 2017-18 had an exceptional income of 31,774 Crore
mainly on account of pre-tax gain due to Novelis selling
approximately 50% ownership of its Ulsan facility in
South Korea to Kobe Steel for $314 Million.
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3.6 Taxes

Provision for tax was at 32,588 Crore in FY 2018-19 as
against ¥2,074 Crore in FY 2017-18. This increase in
taxes was due to improvement in overall profitability of
the Company in FY 2018-19.

3.7 Profit/(Loss) After Tax

Profit After Tax (PAT) in FY 2018-19 was at 35,495
Crore compared with 6,083 Crore in FY 2017-18.
The FY 2017-18 number includes an exceptional gain
(before tax) of 1,774 Crore mainly on account of the sale
of approximately 50% stake of the Ulsan, South Korea
facility under Novelis Inc. Adjusting for tax effected
exceptional item in FY 2017-18, PAT grew by 22% in
FY 2018-19 vs FY 2017-18 (34,518 Crore). Net margin in
FY 2018-19 stands at 4.2% versus 5.3% in FY 2017-18.

Profit After Tax (% in Crore)

Freote-1o | (D 5405

FY 2017-18 4,518*
FY 2016-17 1,900

FY 2015-16 (251)

FY 2014-15 854

*After adjusting for tax effected exceptional item

3.8 Consolidated Net Debt to EBITDA
To further bolster the balance sheet, the Company
prepaid ¥1,575 Crore of long-term project loans in India.
This has led to a noteworthy improvement in consolidated
net debtto EBITDA to 2.48 times at the end of March 2019
versus 2.82 times at the end of March 2018.

Highest-ever Adjusted EBITDA of Novelis

$1.368 Bilion
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3.9 Key Financial Ratios (Consolidated)

(i) Debtor Turnover (days)

Consolidated Debtors Turnover DaysasonMarch 31,2019
stood at 30 days versus 29 days at the end of March 31,
2018. This shows consistency in managing its credit
with the customers and this also reflects strong financial
position of most of its customers. Debtor Turnover (days)
is calculated as Average Debtors/Total Consolidated
Sales multiplied by 365.

(ii) Inventory Turnover (days)

Consolidated Inventory Turnover Days as on March 31,
2019 was at67 days versus 68 days atthe end of March 31,
2018. This shows how well the Company managed its
inventory levels during the year. Inventory (days) is
calculated as Average Inventory/Cost of Goods Sold
(Cost of Sales + Depreciation) multiplied by 365.

(iii) Interest Coverage Ratio :

Consolidated Net Interest Coverage Ratio as on
March 31, 2019 stood at 4.40 times versus 3.84 times
at the end of March 31, 2018. This improved over the
previous year because of better earnings (EBITDA) and
lower interest cost due to prepayments and re-pricing of
the long-term loans in India. This shows the Company’s
ability and strength to meet its interest obligations.

(iv) Current Ratio

Consolidated Current/Liquidity Ratio as on March 31,
2019 stood at 1.60 times versus 1.53 times at the end
of March 31, 2018. This reflects a strong liquidity or
solvency of the Company.

(v) Debt to Equity Ratio

Consolidated debt to equity ratio as on March 31, 2019
stood at 0.91 times versus 0.95 times as on March 31,
2018. This reflects the Company’s strong balance sheet
to meet its current short-term obligations.

(vi) Return On Net Worth (RONW)

Consolidated Return on Net Worth for FY 2018-19 stood
at 9.56% versus 8.24% in FY 2017-18 (after adjusting for
tax effected exceptional items in FY 2017-18). This shows
the Company’s strength in generating higher profits in
FY 2018-19 on the shareholders' equity.

Adjusted EBITDA/tonne in Novelis

$418

Novelis' Hot rolling plant at Oswego, New York
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CashfromoperationsforHindalco Consolidated stands at311,980 CroreinFY 2018-19versus¥10,898 Crorein FY 2017-18.

The Table below shows the comparative movement of cash flows:

(X in Crore)
Consolidated
Particulars Year ended

31/03/2019 31/03/2018

A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Operating Cashflow before working capital changes 15,554 14,092
Changes in working capital (1,687) (1,272)
Cash generated from operations before Tax 13,868 12,821
(Payment)/Refund of Direct Taxes (1,888) (1,923)
Net Cash generated/ (used) -Operating Activities (a) 11,980 10,898

B. Cash Flow From Investment Activities

Net Capital Expenditure (5,972) (2,956)
Disposal of Investments in Subsidiaries (Net) - 2,053
(Purchase) / Sale of treasury instrument (Net) (308) 5,658
Investment in equity accounted investees (6) -
Loans & Deposits (given) / received back (Net) 94 (133)
Interest and dividends received 540 503
Net Cash generated/ (Used) - Investing Activities (b) (5,652) 5,026

C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Equity Raised 6 16
Treasury shares acquired by ESOP Trust (124) -
Net Debt outflows (1,444) (12,286)
Interest & Finance Charges paid (3,577) (3,849)
Dividend Paid (including Dividend Distribution Tax) (323) (294)
Net Cash generated/ (Used) - Financing Activities (c) (5,461) (16,412)
Net Increase/(decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (a) +(b) + (c) 867 (489)

4. BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Hindalco showed strong resilience in the challenging
business environment, global uncertainties and delivered
its best-ever performance in FY 2018-19.

The Company will remain focused on strengthening
its balance sheet, allocating capex towards growth
strategies and generating positive free cash flows.

As adownstream strategy, share of VAP in Hindalco's total
sales will continue to grow with focus on higher-margin
products. Its integrated business approach with
increasing emphasis on downstream value-added
products including those by Novelis is leading to a
more sustainable and resilient business model. This is
continuously reducing the impact from volatility arising
out of global aluminium price movements. As a result, in
FY 2018-19, ~70% of Hindalco’s consolidated EBITDA

including Novelis, Aluminium downstream and copper
business was non-LME linked, reflecting a sustainable
business model.

The newly commissioned copper CCR#3 mill is ramping
up well, taking rod capacity to ~70% of cathode
production, from 40% earlier. This VAP capacity will help
the Company meet the growing demand for copper in
the domestic market.

Hindalco will continue to keep a close watch on input
prices, including coal, which affect the overall cost of
production. The Company plans to mitigate this impact by
utilising its resources well, with better efficiencies across
all products and plant locations, including Novelis.

With the acquisition of Aleris, pending regulatory
approvals, Novelis will cater to newer customers and
products in the aerospace and truck & trailer businesses,
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which will enhance its existing product portfolio. This will
help Novelis to further solidify its leadership position as
the global aluminium value-added player.

Hindalco is also focusing on enriching its product mix
and is evaluating investments in aluminium downstream
facilities towards newer products and its existing product
lines to cater to this demand. However, concerns over
low-cost aluminium and copper imports continue to hurt
the domestic players in these industries.

Novelis’ organic and inorganic expansions will drive
overall business to the next level and enhance
product diversity. It will continue to take a balanced
approach with focus on operational improvements and
innovations that will drive profitable volume growth in its
current product lines and other core end-markets. It is
maintaining disciplined decision-making in each of its
product categories.

5. PRICE RISK MANAGEMENT

Hindalco’s financial performance was significantly
impacted by fluctuations in aluminium prices, exchange
rates and interest rates. The Company takes a structured
approach to the identification, quantification and
hedging of such risks by using commodity and currency
derivatives and interest rate swaps which is driven by a
comprehensive risk management policy.

6. SUSTAINABILITY

As stakeholder expectations are evolving and resources
are becoming scarce, the Company is moving towards
sustainable operating models of growth. It ensures
that its transformation is for a resilient, responsible and
reliable future. The Company strives to remain a leading
metals company while ensuring that its operations are
environmentally conscious and socially responsible.
Keeping in view the changing business requirements of
its customers, the Company has focused on developing
products that are resource efficient for production as
well as during their use across lifecycle. In order to
reduce its carbon footprint, the Company is focusing
on renewable energy generation. Hindalco has adopted
the sustainability technical standards released by the
Group's Sustainability Cell. The Company's sustainability
committee which is chaired by the Managing Director
reviews progress on various sustainability interventions
on a regular basis. The focus is on improving health and
safety performance of the Company.
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The Company is aware of the impact that supply chainhas on
the environment and society and accordingly it has started
involving its supply chain partners for various sustainability
initiatives. The Company believes in propagating a culture
of shared growth and is dedicated to the creation of
community infrastructure. It is working towards developing
applications and products which maximise recycling and
minimise resource extraction in India.

7. SAFETY

Hindalco is committed to ensuring the well-being and
safety of its employees, associates and the society.
Safety is considered a core value across Hindalco,
and the Company’s plants and mines follow the
environmental, health and safety management standards
that integrate environment and safety responsibilities
into everyday business. Hindalco continues its focused
efforts to ensure ‘zero harm’ to its employees, the
community and the environment. Initiatives that were
rolled out to help achieve these objectives and to be a
benchmark within the industry are in advanced stages
of maturity. Extensive work is in progress to ensure risk
controls in important areas such as human behaviour,
mining activities, road traffic management, contractor
management and crisis management. In order to build a
sustainable and safe work environment, a common health
and safety management system has been implemented
across the Company. This system is in sync with
world-class safety standards, provides organisational
safety competency and capability improvement, safety
leadership development, a cross auditing activity
to enhance sharing experiences and best practices
across Hindalco. To implement world class safety, the
Company also provided, on an average, 4 man-days of
safety training based on identified safety needs to all its
permanent and contractual employees.

8. HUMAN CAPITAL

With around 25,000 direct employees in India and
~11,000 outside India, people are at the centre of
driving excellence at Hindalco. The Aditya Birla Group
is one of the most preferred employers in the country.
This enables Hindalco to attract the required talent and
retain them. The Company is investing more than 4
days/employee per annum on need-based training and
development inputs on both behavioural/leadership
and functional/technical aspects. The Company has
also also stepped up internal movements with a view to



RSN

Hindalco has a range of programmes to build functional and behavioural competencies

give new experiences to its employees. The Company
has made its performance management process
more robust and transparent, with increased focus on
goal setting, regular feedback and calibration, as well
as linking the Company's rewards to performance
and market trends and practices. HR shared service
has recently been set up to enhance and provide
consistent employee experience on HR processes and
systems. The Company has been closely working on
increasing employee engagement and building an open,
transparent and inclusive culture by working extensively
on action plans based on the results of its employee
engagement survey.
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9. INTERNAL CONTROLS

A strong internal control culture is pervasive throughout
the Group. Regular internal audits at all locations are
undertaken to ensure that the highest standards of
internal control are maintained. The effectiveness of a
business’ internal control environment is a component
of senior management performance appraisals.
The principal aim of the internal control system is the
management of business risks, with a view to enhance
shareholder value and safeguard the Group’s assets.
It provides reasonable assurance on the internal control
environment and against material misstatement or loss.

Statements in this “Management Discussion and Analysis” describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates, expectations or
predictions may be “forward looking statements” within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results could
differ materially from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a difference to the Company'’s operations include
global and Indian demand supply conditions, finished goods prices, feedstock availability and prices, cyclical demand and pricing in the
Company'’s principal markets, changes in the government regulations, tax regimes, economic developments within India and the countries
within which the Company conducts business and other factors such as litigation and labour negotiations. The Company assumes no
responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any forward looking statements, on the basis of any subsequent development, information

events or otherwise.
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% in Crore
2018-19¢ 2018-192 2017-18@ 2016-17® 2015-16@ 2014-15 2013-14 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11 2009-10
PROFITABILITY vssin
Sales and Operating Revenues 6,546 45,749 43,446 39,383 36,713 36,869 30,101 28,070 28,297 25,348 20,570
Less: Cost of Sales 5938 41,503 38,322 34,569 33,367 33,453 27,609 25,866 25,192 22,193 17,620
Operating Profit 608 4,246 5,124 4814 3,346 3,417 2,492 2,204 3,105 3,155 2,950
Other Income 134 940 948 1,005 979 882 1,124 983 616 347 260
Less: Depreciation, 242 1,693 1,617 1,428 1,282 837 823 704 690 687 667
Amortization and Impairment
Less: Interest and Finance 241 1,683 1,901 2,323 2,390 1,637 712 436 294 220 278
Charges
Profit before Exceptional ltems 259 1,810 2,554 2,068 653 1,825 2,081 2,047 2,737 2,595 2,265
and Tax
Exceptional Income/ - - (325) 85 - (5678)  (396) - - - -
(Expenses) (Net)
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax from 259 1,810 2,229 2,153 653 1,247 1,685 2,047 2,737 2,595 2,265
Continuing Operations
Less: Tax Expenses 87 605 793 596 99 322 272 347 500 458 349
Profit/ (Loss) from Continuing 172 1,205 1,436 1,557 554 925 1,413 1,699 2,237 2,137 1,916
Operations
Profit/ (Loss) from Discontinued - - - - (2) - - - - - -
Operations (Net of Tax)
Profit/ (Loss) for the Period 172 1,205 1,436 1,557 552 925 1,413 1,699 2,237 2,137 1,916
Business Reconstruction
Reserve (BRR) #
Expenses adjusted against - - - - 682 97 86 - - - -
BRR (Net of Tax)
Profit/ (Loss) for the Period 172 1,205 1,436 1,557 (130) 828 1,327 1,699 2,237 2,137 1,916
had the expenses not adjusted
against BRR
FINANCIAL POSITION

Gross Fixed Assets (excluding 7,068 48,898 48,264 46,742 43,316 35,434 26,804 15,073 14,478 14,287 13,793
CWIP)
Capital Work-in-Progress 142 982 737 712 3,079 10,744 17,277 23,605 16,257 6,030 3,703
(CWIP)**
Less: Accumulated 2,222 15,376 13,900 12,358 11,063 9,374 8,749 7,975 7,328 6,703 6,059
Depreciation, Amortization and
Impairment
Net Fixed Assets 4,987 34,504 35,101 35,096 35,332 36,804 35,332 30,703 23,407 13,615 11,438
Investments 3,685 25,495 27,025 29,332 27,311 21,251 21,907 20,482 18,087 18,247 21,481
Other Non-Current Assets / (226) (1,565) (708) 516 (1,038) (1,193) (1,174) (751) (207) 2,096 (1,367)
(Liabilities) (Net)
Net Current Assets 1,396 9,658 8,330 9,539 9,230 9,400 8,339 8409 5319 4,782 2,716
Capital Employed 9,842 68,092 69,748 74,483 70,835 66,262 64,404 58,843 46,606 38,740 34,268
Less: Loan Funds 2,823 19,634 20,297 27,150 28,676 29,007 27,672 24,871 14,574 9,040 6,357
Net Worth 7,019 48,558 49,451 47,333 42,159 37,255 36,732 33,972 32,032 29,700 27,911
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% in Crore
2018-199 2018-199 2017-18° 2016-17¢ 2015-16° 2014-15 2013-14 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11 2009-10
US$in
Mn*
Net Worth represented by :
Equity Share Capital 32 222 223 223 205 207 206 191 191 191 191
Other Equity:
Share Warrants - - - - - - - 541 541 - -
Reserves and Surplus 6,256 43,285 42,497 41,235 36,568 37,049 36,526 33,240 31,300 29,509 27,720
Other Comprehensive 730 5051 6,731 5875 5386 - - - - - -
Income
7,019 48,558 49,451 47,333 42,159 37,255 36,732 33,972 32,032 29,700 27,911
RATIOS AND STATISTICS
Unit  2018-19¢ 2017-18® 2016-17@ 2015-16© 2014-15 2013-14 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11 2009-10
Operating Margin % 9.28 11.79 12.22 9.11 9.27 8.28 785 1097 1245 1434
Net Margin % 2.63 3.31 3.95 1.50 2.51 4.70 6.05 7.91 8.43 9.31
Gross Interest Cover Times 3.08 3.18 1.73 1.81 1.75 1.50 1.61 3.62 5.74 5.23
Net Interest Cover Times 3.08 3.19 2.51 1.81 2.63 5.08 731 1267 1592 1155
ROCE % 5.13 6.39 5.90 4.30 5.22 4.34 4.22 6.50 7.27 7.42
ROE % 2.48 2.90 3.29 1.31 2.48 3.85 5.00 6.98 7.20 6.86
Basic EPS 4 5.41 6.45 7.56 (0.64) 4.48 7.09 888 11.69 11.17 10.82
Diluted EPS 3 5.41 6.45 7.55 (0.64) 4.48 7.09 887 1168 1116 10.81
Cash EPS 3 13.01 13.70 14.49 8.95 853 1122 1255 1529 1476 14.58
Dividend per Share®* 3 1.20 1.20 1.10 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.40 1.55 1.50 1.35
Capital Expenditure % Crore 1,263 1,178 1,041 1,399 2,073 3,458 5531 7,168 5,749 2,642
(Cash outflow)
Debt Equity Ratio Times 0.40 0.41 0.57 0.68 0.78 0.75 0.73 0.45 0.30 0.23
Book value per Share® 3 216.24 220.28 211.00 204.16 180.41 17792 177.44 167.31 155.14 145.87
Market Capitalisation® ICrore 46,145 48,166 43,756 18,162 26,638 29,266 17,538 24,774 40,040 34,682
Number of Equity Shareholders Nos. 304,345 299,521 319,783 392,888 338,655 361,686 441,166 383,724 320,965 339,281
Number of Employees Nos. 22,865 23,555 23,679 24,118 21,976 20,902 20,238 19,975 19,341 19,539
Average Cash LME US$ 2,035 2,046 1,688 1,592 1,888 1,773 1976 2,317 2,257 1,868
(Aluminium)
Average Cash LME (Copper) US$ 6,337 6,451 5,152 4,852 6,556 7,108 7,855 8,485 8,140 6,112

* Balance Sheet items are translated at closing exchange rate and Profit and Loss items are translated at average exchange rate.
**Including Intangible assets under development.

#Financial restructuring scheme formulated by the Company under the provisions of the Companies Act, approved by the Bombay High Court, to

deal with various costs associated with its organic and inorganic growth plan.

# Proposed/Interim Dividend for the Period.

@ Figures for FY 2018-19, FY 2017-18, FY 2016-17 and FY 2015-16 are as per Ind AS compliant financial statements. Previous periods figures are as
per Previous GAAP financial statements.

% Including Treasury shares held by the Company.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS - CONSOLIDATED

% in Crore
2018-19@ 2018-19© 2017-18° 2016-17@ 2015-16© 2014-15 2013-14 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11 2009-10
PROFITABILITY ussn
Sales and Operating Revenues 18,678 130,542 115,820 102,631 101,202 106,696 90,007 82,243 82,549 73,703 61,762
Less: Cost of Sales 16,460 115,042 101,899 90,183 92,387 97,751 81,721 74,406 74,365 65,775 52,017
Operating Profit 2,218 15,500 13,921 12,448 8,815 8,944 8,286 7,837 8,184 7,929 9,746
Other Income 161 1,127 1,105 1,111 1,189 1,105 1,017 1,012 783 513 323
Less: Depreciation, Amortization 682 4,766 4,607 4,469 4507 3591 3553 2,861 2,864 2,759 2,784
and Impairment
Less: Interest and Finance 541 3,778 3,911 5742 5134 4178 2,702 2,079 1,758 1,839 1,104
Charges
Profit before Share in Equity 1,156 8,083 6,508 3,348 362 2,280 3,049 3,909 4,345 3,843 6,181
Accounted Investments,
Exceptional Items and Tax
Share in Profit/ (Loss) in Equity - - (125) (25) 172 175 67 (16) 50 (57) (3)
Accounted Investments
(Net of Tax)
Profit before Tax and Exceptional 1,156 8,083 6,383 3,323 534 2,455 3,116 3,893 4,395 3,786 6,178
ltems
Exceptional Income/ - - 1,774 (8) (577) (1,940)  (396) - - - -
(Expenses) (Net)
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax from 1,156 8,083 8,157 3,315 (43) 515 2,720 3,893 4,395 3,786 6,178
Continuing Operations
Less: Tax Expenses 370 2588 2,074 1,433 498 256 525 886 786 964 1,829
Profit/ (Loss) from Continuing 786 5,495 6,083 1,882 (541) 258 2,195 3,007 3,608 2,822 4,349
Operations
Profit/ (Loss) from Discontinued - - - - (161) - - - - - -
Operations (Net of Tax)
Profit/ (Loss) before 786 5,495 6,083 1,882 (702) 258 2,195 3,007 3,608 2,822 4,349
Non-Controlling Interest
Less: Non-Controlling Interest in - (1) - (18) (451) (596) 20 (20) 211 366 424
Profit/ (Loss)
Net Profit/ (Loss) for the Period 786 5,496 6,083 1,900 (251) 854 2,175 3,027 3,397 2,456 3,925
Business Reconstruction
Reserve (BRR)*
Expenses adjusted against BRR - - - - 682 97 86 - 500 (3,439) 304
(Net of Tax)
Profit/ (Loss) for the Period 786 5,496 6,083 1,900 (933) 757 2,089 3,027 2,896 5,896 3,621
had the expenses not adjusted
against BRR
FINANCIAL POSITION
Gross Fixed Assets 18,811 130,142 125,094 121,186 123,522 101,940 87,914 60,054 53,961 48,207 45,622
(excluding CWIP)
Capital Work-in-Progress 592 4,097 2,063 1,814 4,214 14,111 23,059 33,834 22,798 9,253 5,801
(CWIP)**
Less: Accumulated Depreciation, 6,401 44,283 40,006 36,499 37,849 29,981 26,750 22,126 18,661 15,802 16,622
Amortization and Impairment
Net Fixed Assets 13,002 89,956 87,151 86,501 89,887 86,070 84,223 71,763 58,098 41,657 34,801
Investments 1,308 9,012 10,781 15157 12,438 12,346 12,961 12,601 10,551 10,855 11,246
Other Non-Current Assets / (1,420) (9,825) (8,497) (6,737) (8,859) (7,235) (6,924) (6,573) (5,758) (3,142) (3,938)
(Liabilities) (Net)
Net Current Assets 3,004 20,783 17,499 14961 15074 16,571 18,289 16,901 11,771 11,330 5,172
Capital Employed 15,889 109,926 106,934 109,882 108,540 107,752 108,549 94,692 74,662 60,700 47,281
Less: Loan Funds 7,676 52415 52,074 63,817 67,552 68,467 66,163 57,603 41,042 29,460 23,999
Less: Non-Controlling Interest 1 9 9 6 381 956 1,781 1,759 1,709 2217 1,737
Net Worth 8,312 57,502 54,852 46,059 40,607 38,329 40,605 35,330 31,911 29,023 21,545
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% in Crore
2018-19© 2018-19¢ 2017-18@ 2016-17© 2015-16©@ 2014-15 2013-14 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11 2009-10
US$in
Mn*
Net Worth represented by :
Equity Share Capital 32 222 223 223 205 207 206 191 191 191 191
Other Equity:
Share Warrants - - - - - - 6 541 541 - -
Equity Component of 1 4 4 4 3 - - - - - -
Compound Financial
Instruments
Reserves and Surplus 7,603 52,600 47,645 41,770 36,443 38,122 40,393 34,597 31,179 28,832 21,353
Other Comprehensive Income 676 4,676 6,980 4,062 3,956 - - - - - -
8,312 57,502 54,852 46,059 40,607 38,329 40,605 35,330 31,911 29,023 21,545
RATIOS AND STATISTICS
Unit  2018-192 2017-18¢ 2016-17¢ 2015-16@ 2014-15 2013-14 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11 2009-10
Operating Margin % 11.87 12.02 12.13 8.71 8.38 9.21 9.53 991 10.76 15.78
Net Margin % 4.21 5.25 1.85 (0.25) 0.80 2.42 3.68 4.12 3.33 6.36
Gross Interest Cover Times 4.43 3.86 2.36 1.91 1.95 1.85 2.04 3.16 3.56 6.99
Net Interest Cover Times 4.40 3.84 2.36 1.95 2.41 3.44 4.26 5.10 4.59 9.12
ROCE % 10.79 9.74 8.27 5.06 5.99 5.30 6.32 8.17 9.36 1541
ROE % 9.56 11.09 413 (0.62) 2.23 5.36 857 10.64 8.46 18.22
Basic EPS 3 2467  27.30 9.22 (4.55) 414 1091 1581 17.74 1284 2217
Diluted EPS g 24.66 27.29 9.22 (4.55) 413 10.91 1581 17.74 1283 22.16
Cash EPS 3 46.07 4798 3091 2078 2153 2873 30.75 3270 2725 37.88
Capital Expenditure % Crore 6,005 3,001 2938 4,245 5978 9424 11,871 12,512 7,909 4,276
(Cash outflow)
Debt Equity Ratio Times 0.91 0.95 1.39 1.66 1.79 1.63 1.63 1.29 1.02 1.1
Book value per Share 3 256.08 24433 20532 196.64 18561 196.67 18453 166.68 151.61 112.60

* Balance Sheet items are translated at closing exchange rate and Profit and Loss items are translated at average exchange rate.

**Including Intangible assets under development.

# Financial restructuring scheme formulated by the Company under the provisions of the Companies Act, approved by the Bombay High Court, to

deal with various costs associated with its organic and inorganic growth plan.

@ Figures for FY 2018-19, FY 2017-18, FY 2016-17 and FY 2015-16 are as per Ind AS compliant financial statements. Previous periods figures are as
per Previous GAAP financial statements.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 60" Annual Report and the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial
Statements of your Company for the year ended 315 March, 2019.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

% in Crore
Standalone Consolidated
2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18
Revenue from Operations 45,749 43,446 130,542 115,820
Other Income 940 948 1,127 1,105
Profit Before Interest, Tax and Depreciation (PBITDA) 5,187 6,072 16,627 15,025
Depreciation, Amortization and Impairment Loss/(Reversal)(Net) 1,693 1617 4,766 4,606
Finance Costs 1,683 1,901 3,778 3,911
Proflt before Exceptional Items, Tax & Share in Profit / (Loss) in 1,810 2,554 8,083 6,508
Equity Accounted Investments
Share of Equity Accounted Investments - - - (125)
Profit before Exceptional Items and Tax 1,810 2,554 8,083 6,383
Exceptional ltems - (325) - 1,774
Profit before Tax 1,810 2,229 8,083 8,157
Tax Expenses 605 792 2,688 2,074
Profit/ (Loss) for the period 1,205 1,437 5,495 6,083
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) (1,681) 957 (2,466) 2,991
Total Comprehensive Income (476) 2,394 3,029 9,074
Basic EPS 541 6.45 24.67 27.3

Appropriations to Reserves:

% in Crore
Appropriations 2018-19 2017-18
Opening Balance in
Retained Earnings and Other 10,800 8,847
Comprehensive Income
Total Comprehensive Income for
the Current Year “77) 2,394
Dividends paid (307) (291)
Transferred to Debenture
Redemption Fund (150) (150)
Closing Balance in Retained
Earnings and Other 9,866 10,800

Comprehensive Income

Dividend:

For the year ended 31t March, 2019, the Board of Directors
of your Company has recommended dividend of ¥ 1.20
per share (Previous year ¥ 1.20 per share) to equity
shareholders.

Equity shares that may be allotted upon exercise of options
granted under the Employee Stock Option Scheme and out
of the Share Capital Suspense Account before the book
closure for payment of dividend, will rank pari passu with
the existing shares and shall also be entitled to receive the
aforesaid dividend.
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In terms of provisions of Regulation 43A of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, herein after referred
to as “Listing Regulations” your Company has formulated
a Dividend Distribution Policy. The Policy is given in
Annexure | to the Full Annual Report and is also accessible
from your Company’s website www.hindalco.com.

OVERVIEW AND STATE OF THE COMPANY’S
AFFAIRS

Standalone full year highlights

Hindalco Industries Limited registered a revenue of
% 45,749 crore for the fiscal year 2019 vs ¥ 43,446 crore
in the previous year. EBITDA (Earnings before Interest, Tax,
Depreciation and Amortisation) stood at ¥ 5,187 crore, down
15 percent compared to the previous year, due to lower
realisations in Aluminium on account of lower LME and
high input costs and also due to lower Copper EBITDA on
account of lower volumes, impacted by planned maintenance
shut down in FY19. Depreciation was higher by 5 percent
due to progressive capitalization in FY19. The Finance
Cost was down by 11 percent at ¥ 1,683 crore on account
of prepayment of long term loans of ¥ 1,575 crore in FY19
and also some reduction in pricing of the project loans.
Profit before Tax (and Before Exceptional Items) stood at
¥ 1,810 crore, down by 19 percent compared to the previous
year due to lower EBITDA. Net Profit for FY19 stood at ¥ 1,205
crore in FY19 as compared to % 1,436 crore in the previous year.



Consolidated Full Year Highlights

Hindalco’s Consolidated Revenue stood at ¥ 130,542 crore
for FY19 compared to ¥ 115,820 crore in the previous year.
This was on the back of record performance in all the
businesses including best ever performance by Novelis
Inc. The Company recorded best ever consolidated PBITDA
(Profit before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation)
of ¥ 16,627 crore, up by 10.98 percent supported by stable
operations and improving efficiencies and supporting
macros. Consolidated Profit before Tax (and Before
Exceptional Items) reached % 8,083 crore, up by 26.70
percent compared to the previous year on account of strong
overall business performance and savings in interest outgo.
Net Profit in FY19, stood at ¥ 5,495 crore compared to
% 6,083 crore in the previous year. For detailed analysis, refer
to the Management Discussion and Analysis section of the
Full and Abridged Annual Report.

Highlights of the Company’s Subsidiaries:
(a) Utkal Alumina International Limited.

Utkal Alumina revenues has grown to ¥ 4,073 crore in
FY 19 compared to X 2,863 crore in FY 18 up 42 percent
as a result of excellent operating performance.

The EBITDA for FY 19 stood at ¥ 2,355 crore up
98 percent compared to ¥ 1,187 crore in FY 18. The
Profit After Tax in FY 19 was ¥ 1,425 crore v/s I 561
crore in FY18 up 154 percent YoY.

% in Crore
Particulars FY 19 FY 18 Growth
Revenue 4,073 2,863 42%
EBITDA 2,355 1,187 98%
PAT 1,425 561 154%

(b) Novelis Inc.

Performance highlights of Novelis Inc. are provided in
the Management Discussion and Analysis Section.

Key Initiatives

Utkal Alumina’s brownfield capacity expansion of 500 Kt,
is expected to be completed in FY21 with an capital outlay
of around ¥ 1,300 crore. This will further strengthen the
Company’s integration and boost availability of best-in-class
alumina to the Company'’s aluminium smelters in India. In the
Copper business, newly commissioned Continuous Copper
Cast Rod Plant (CCR#3) at Dahej, Gujarat is ramping up well
and did a production of 117 Kt in FY19 taking the total CCR
production to 245 Kt. Novelis announced other expansion
plans of a 200 Kt automotive finishing facility in Guthrie,
Kentucky inthe US and additionally the 100 Kt of Auto finishing
line in China is expected to be commissioned in FY21. The
recently announced plans to expand rolling, casting and
recycling capacity in Pinda, Brazil to meet growing customer
demand is also expected to be commissioned by FY22.
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Novelis signed a definitive agreement to purchase Aleris
Corp for US $2.6 billion in July 2018. This will strengthen
its leadership position in the fastest growing automotive
segment, thereby enhancing its Asia operations with full
metal chain integration in China, further diversifying its
portfolio with its entry into the aerospace segment. This
transaction is expected to close in FY20 post all the pending
regulatory approvals.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Several innovative people-focused initiatives have been
instituted at the Group level, and these are translated
into action at all of the Group Companies. Our basic
objective is to ensure that a robust talent pipeline and a
high-performance culture centred around accountability
is in place. We feel this is critical to enable us retain our
competitive edge.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Your Company’s Research & Development (R&D) activities
are focused on providing innovative, cost-effective and
sustainable solutions to support consistent growth of
business. The R&D activities of your Company include
process, product and application development, to develop
short term as well as long term solutions to the issues
faced by non-ferrous sector, such as raw material quality,
new product development, cost effective management of
waste generated during processing, recovery of values
from by products as well as any waste products, developing
better understanding of the science of processes, reducing
the specific energy consumption and carbon footprint
etc. Specific programs have also been initiated to foster
better understanding of the requirement of existing and
prospective customers, and to provide a better service
through application development, so as to increase your
Company’'s market share in the chosen market space.
Technical competencies developed by your Company will
go a long way in terms of quick absorption of technologies,
enabling pushing boundaries of our processes, so as to
increase the economic performance and improve our new
product / new application pipeline to address the impending
market opportunities.

Your Company already operates three Hindalco Innovation
Centres (HIC), one HIC-Alumina at Belagavi, Karnataka
working on R&D of bauxite ore, alumina refining and
specialty alumina, hydrate products; as well as waste
management; one HIC-SemiFab located at Taloja, near
Mumbai, Maharashtra working in the area of tribology,
Metallurgy related to aluminium fabricated products and
new applications and Modelling. Third Innovation Centre
at HIC-Copper at Birla Copper, Dahej, is focusing on
maximisation of copper recovery as well recovery of various
metal values, such as, Selenium, Tellurium, Nickel, Bismuth,
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etc., from the effluent generated in the plant. Further,
Hindalco Technology Team is also engaged with energy
and environment management including increased use of
renewable energy in the plants. In addition, your Company
engages the Aditya Birla Group’s corporate research and
development centre, Aditya Birla Science and Technology
Company Private Limited (“ABSTCPL"), for conducting R&D
in select areas of work, through chartered R&D projects.
These are based on the domain expertise and R&D facilities
available in ABSTCPL. The engagement has resulted
into patent applications, out of which some have already
been granted and balance will be assigned to your Company.
ABSTCPL's forte of having multidisciplinary teams of technical
experts, scientists and engineers, enables your Company
to develop building competencies in select areas, as a
long term value to business. Both the HICs at Belagavi
and Taloja as well as ABSTCPL are DSIR, GOI, recognised
R&D Centres. Besides, HIC — SemiFab is accredited to ISO
17025 : 2017 and ISO 9001 : 2015 Quality Management
Systems.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
31t March, 2019 have been prepared by your Company in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
(“the Act”) read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, applicable Accounting Standards and the provisions
of Listing Regulations and forms part of the Full Annual
Report.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEMES

ESOS — 2006:

During the year ended 31t March, 2019, the Company has
allotted 52,330 fully paid-up equity share of ¥ 1/- each of
the Company (Previous year 133,438) on exercise of options
under ESOS 2006.

ESOS - 2013:

During the year ended 31t March, 2019, the Company has
allotted 515,013 fully paid-up equity share of ¥ 1/- each
of the Company (Previous year 1,575,374) on exercise of
options under ESOS 2013.

The details of Stock Options and Restricted Stock Units
granted under the above mentioned Schemes are available
on your Company’s website viz. www.hindalco.com.

A certificate from the statutory auditor on the implementation
of your Company’s Employees Stock Option Schemes
will be placed at the ensuing Annual General Meeting for
inspection by the members.

There is no material change in the Schemes and the
aforementioned schemes are in compliance with SEBI
(Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014.
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ESOS - 2018:

The Board of Directors of your Company have, based on
the recommendation of the NRC Committee, approved
formulation of a new scheme viz. ‘Hindalco Industries
Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme 2018 (“ESOS
- 2018") in terms of the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014 (“the SEBI SBEB Regulations”). ESOS-2018 will be
administered by the NRC Committee through a trust, viz.
the Hindalco Employee Welfare Trust. Shareholders of your
Company have by resolution dated 21¢ September, 2018
approved ESOS-2018. The NRC Committee has on 11" July,
2018 formulated ESOS-2018 and granted 5,575,700 Stock
Options during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Directors reaffirm their continued commitment to good
corporate governance practices. Your Company fully adheres
to the standards set out by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India for Corporate Governance practices.

The entire report on Corporate Governance forms part of
Full Annual Report.

ABRIDGED ANNUAL REPORT

In terms of the provision of Section 136(1) of the Act, Rule
10 of Companies (Accounts of Companies) Rules, 2014
and Regulation 36 of the Listing Regulations, the Board of
Directors has decided to circulate the Abridged Annual
Report containing salient features of the Balance Sheet
and Statement of Profit and Loss and other documents to
the shareholders for the Financial Year 2018-19, under the
relevant laws.

The Abridged Annual Report is being circulated to the
members excluding Dividend Policy, ‘Remuneration
Philosophy / Policy’, Secretarial Audit Report’, ‘Annual Report
on CSR Activities’, ‘Full Report on Corporate Governance
and Shareholders’ Information’.

Members who desire to obtain the Full version of the Annual
Report may write to the Company Secretary at the registered
office. Full version of the Annual Report is also available on
the Company’s website www.hindalco.com.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As stipulated in Section 134(3)(c) of the Act, your Directors
subscribe to the “Directors’ Responsibility Statement” and
confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, applicable
Accounting Standards have been followed along
with  proper explanations relating to material
departures;



b) the Accounting Policies selected have been applied
consistently and judgments and estimates have been
made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
as at 31s'March, 2019 and of the profit of your Company
for that period;

c) proper and sufficient care has been taken for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of your Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the annual accounts of your Company have been
prepared on a going concern basis;

e) your Company had laid down internal financial controls
and that such internal financial controls are adequate
and were operating effectively;

f)  your Company has devised proper system to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE

The information on conservation of Energy, Technology
Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act,
2013, read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is
set out in Annexure Il to the Full and Abridged Annual
Report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

In accordance with the provisions of Section 197(12)
of the Act, read with the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the
names and other particulars of employees are to be set out
in the Directors’ Report, as an addendum thereto. However,
in line with the provisions of Section 136(1) of the Act, the
Report and Accounts as set out therein, are being sent to
all Members of your Company excluding the aforesaid
information about the employees. Any Member, who is
interested in obtaining these particulars about employees,
may write to the Company Secretary at the Registered Office
of your Company.

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details
as required under section 197(12) read with Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 are attached as Annexure Il to the Full and
Abridged Annual Report.
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DIRECTORS
Board constitution and changes:

Mrs. Rajashree Birla (DIN: 00022995) will retire from office
by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, and
being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

Mrs. Rajashree Birla has given required declaration under
the Act and Listing Regulations.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the Shareholders in
Fifty — Fifth Annual General Meeting of your Company
held on 24" September, 2014 appointed Mr. M. M. Bhagat
(DIN: 00006245), Mr. Ram Charan (DIN: 03464530) &
Mr. K. N. Bhandari (DIN: 00026078) as Non-Executive
Independent Director of the Company to hold office for the
period of five consecutive years from the date of Annual
General Meeting held on 24" September 2014 till the
conclusion of ensuing Annual General Meeting to be held in
calendar year 2019.

Mr. M. M. Bhagat has concluded his 5 (five) year tenure
as Independent Director. He does not offer himself for
re-appointment for a second term, due to his personal
commitments.

Mr. Ram Charan and Mr. K. N. Bhandari are eligible
to be reappointed as Non-Executive Independent
Directors for a second term of a further period of five
years, subject to approval of Shareholders at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. They have respectively given
the required declarations under the Act and the Listing
Regulations.

Dr. Vikas Balia (DIN: 00424524) is appointed as Independent
Director on the Board of the Company w.e.f. 19" July,
2019, subject to Shareholder approval at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. Dr. Balia has given the required
declarations under the Act and the Listing Regulations.

Brief resume of the Director being re-appointed form part of
the Notice of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Board recommends the re-appointment of
Mrs. Rajashree Birla, Mr. Ram Charan and Mr. K. N.
Bhandari; and appointment of Dr. Vikas Balia. Resolutions
seeking your approval are included in the Notice convening
the Annual General Meeting.

Independent Directors Statement:

Independent Directors on your Company’s Board have
submitted declarations of independence to the effect that
they meet the criteria of independence as provided in
Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the
Listing Regulations.
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Policy on appointment and remuneration of Directors
and Key Managerial Personnel:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has
formulated the remuneration policy of your Company which
is attached as Annexure IV to the Full Annual Report.

Meetings of the Board:

The Board of Directors of your Company met seven
times during the year, details of which are given in the
Corporate Governance Report forming part of the Full
Annual Report.

Annual Evaluation:

The Board carried out an annual performance evaluation of
its own performance, the Directors individually as well as
evaluation of the working of the Committees of the Board
as mandated under the Act and Listing Regulations, as
amended from time to time.

The evaluation exercise has been carried out by the Board
members on the basis of structured questionnaire prepared
for Board, Independent Directors, Non-Executive Directors,
Executive Directors, Committees of the Board and Chairman
of the Board. The questionnaire focussed on various aspects
such as receipt of timely information from management,
execution of duties and obligation. The Consolidated
Evaluation Report of the Board was than discussed at the
meeting of the Board.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee evaluated
the performance of Individual Directors. Similarly, the
Independent Directors evaluated the performance of Non
Independent Directors, Chairman and assessed the quality,
quantity and flow of information between the Management
and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively
and reasonably perform its duties.

The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation
process.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises of Mr. M. M. Bhagat,
Mr. K. N. Bhandari and Mr. Y. P. Dandiwala: Independent
Directors of your Company. Mr. Satish Pai: Managing
Director and Mr. Praveen Kumar Maheshwari: Chief Financial
Officer and Whole-Time Director, are the permanent invitees.
Further details relating to the Audit Committee are provided
in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of the Full
Annual Report.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In terms of provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act,
2013, Mr. Satish Pai: Managing Director, Mr. Praveen Kumar
Maheshwari: Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Anil Malik:
Company Secretary are the Key Managerial Personnel of
your Company.
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VIGIL MECHANISM

Your Company has in place a vigil mechanism for directors
and employees to report concerns about unethical
behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of your
Company’s Code of Conduct. Adequate safeguards
are provided against victimisation to those who avail of
the mechanism and direct access to the Chairman of
the Audit Committee in exceptional cases is provided to
them.

The vigil mechanism is available on your Company’s website
viz. www.hindalco.com.

AUDITORS

Statutory Auditors

M/s. Price Waterhouse & Co. Chartered Accountants LLP
(Registration No. 304026E / E-300009), are the Statutory
Auditors of the Company who are appointed for a period
of five years i.e., to hold office from the conclusion of the
Fifty Eighth Annual General Meeting held in 2017 till the
conclusion of the Sixty third Annual General Meeting of the
Company, to be held in the calendar year 2022.

The observation made in the Auditor's Report are self
explanatory and therefore, do not call for any further
comments under Section 134(3)(f) of the Act.

During the Financial Year 2018-2019, the Auditors have
not reported any matter under section 143(12) of the Act,
therefore no details is required to be disclosed under Section
134(3)(ca) of the Act.

Cost Accounts & Cost Auditors

In terms of the Section 148 of the Act read with Rule 8 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, it is stated that the
cost accounts and records are made and maintained by the
Company as specified by the Central Government under
sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act.

In terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read
with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Amendment
Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of your Company have
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, appointed
M/s. R. Nanabhoy & Co., Cost Accountants, Mumbai as Cost
Auditors, to conduct the cost audit of your Company for the
financial year ending 31t March, 2020, at a remuneration
as mentioned in the Notice convening the Annual General
Meeting. As required under the Act, the remuneration
payable to the cost auditor is required to be placed before
the Members in a General Meeting for their ratification.
Accordingly, a resolution seeking Member's ratification for
the remuneration payable to Cost Auditors forms part of the
Notice of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

During the Financial Year 2018-2019, the Auditors has
not reported any matter under section 143(12) of the Act,



therefore no details is required to be disclosed under Section
134(3)(ca) of the Act.

Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to provisions of Section 204 of the Act read
with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company
has appointed BNP & Associates, Company Secretaries,
Mumbai as Secretarial Auditor for conducting the
Secretarial Audit of your Company for the Financial
Year ended 31t March, 2019. The Report of the Secretarial
Auditors is annexed herewith as Annexure VA to the Full
Annual Report.

As per Regulation 24A of the Listing Regulations, material
unlisted subsidiaries of a Listed Entity incorporated in India
is required to annex a Secretarial Audit Report issued by a
Company Secretary in practice.

In compliance with the above requirement, the Secretarial
Audit Report of Utkal Alumina International Limited,
a material subsidiary of your Company, is given in Annexure
VB to the Full Annual Report.

The Secretarial Audit Reports do not contain any qualification,
reservation or adverse remark.

ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION AND POLLUTION
CONTROL

Your Company is committed to sustainable development. A
detailed report of the Company’s initiatives and commitment
to environment conservation is part of Sustainability &
Business Responsibility Report forming part of the Full and
Abridged Annual Report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND
INVESTMENTS

Details of Loans, Guarantee and Investments covered
under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act read with
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014
are given in the notes to Financial Statements of the Full
Annual Report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In terms of the provisions of Section 135 of the Act read with
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014, the Board of Directors of your Company has constituted
a Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) Committee which is
chaired by Mrs. Rajashree Birla: Non-Executive Director. The
other Members of the Committee for the Financial Year ending
31t March, 2019 were Mr. Y. P. Dandiwala: Independent
Director, Mr. A. K. Agarwala: Non-Executive Director,
Mr. Satish Pai: Managing Director and Mr. D. Bhattacharya:
Non-Executive Director. Dr. Pragnya Ram: Group Executive
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President, Corporate Communication & CSR, is a permanent
invitee to the Committee.

Your Company also has in place a CSR Policy and the same is
available on your Company’s website viz. www.hindalco.com.
The Committee recommends to the Board activities to be
undertaken during the year.

Your Company is a caring corporate citizen and lays
significant emphasis on development of the communities
around which it operates. Your Company has identified
several projects relating to Social Empowerment & Welfare,
Infrastructure Development, Sustainable Livelihood, Health
Care and Education during the year and initiated various
activities in neighbouring villages around plant locations.
During the financial Year 2018-19 the Company has spent
% 34.14 crore under Section 135 of the Act on CSR activities,
which represent 2.28% of average net profits of the Company
for last three financial years.

The Annual Report on CSR activities is attached as
Annexure VI to the Full Annual Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement of Listing Regulations the
Company has constituted Risk Management Committee,
which is mandated to review the risk management plan /
process of your Company.

Risk evaluation and management is an ongoing process
within the Organization. Your Company has comprehensive
risk management policy which is periodically reviewed by
the Risk Management Committee.

CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH
RELATED PARTIES

During the financial year, your Company entered into related
party transactions which were on arm’s length basis and
in the ordinary course of business. There are no material
transactions with any related party as defined under Section
188 of the Act read with Companies (Meetings of Board
and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Listing Regulations. All
related party transactions have been approved by the Audit
Committee of your Company.

The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by
the Audit Committee and the Board is available on your
Company'’s website viz. www.hindalco.com.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

In terms of the provisions of Section 92(3) of the Act read with
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,
2014, an extract of the Annual Return of your Company
for the Financial Year ended 31t March, 2019 is given in
Annexure VII to the Full Annual Report.
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BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

As per Listing Regulations, a separate section of Business
Responsibility Report forms part of the Full and Abridged
Annual Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR
ADEQUACY

Your Company has an Internal Control System (IFC),
commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its
operations. The scope and authority of the Internal Audit (1A)
function is defined by the Audit Committee.

The Internal Audit Department monitors and evaluates
the efficacy and adequacy of internal control system in
the Company, its compliance with operating systems,
accounting procedures and policies at all locations of the
Company.

Based on the report of internal auditors, the process
owners undertake corrective action in their respective
areas and thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit
observations and corrective actions thereon are presented
to the Audit Committee of the Board.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

Your directors confirm having laid down internal financial
controls and that such internal financial controls are
adequate and were operating effectively.

SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE
COMPANIES

The financial statements of your Company’s subsidiaries
and related information have been placed on the website of
your Company viz. www.hindalco.com and also available for
inspection during business hours at the registered office of
your Company. Any Member, who is interested in obtaining a
copy of financial statements of your Company’s subsidiaries,
may write to the Company Secretary at the registered office
of your Company.

In accordance with the provisions of the section 129(3)
of the Act, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, areport on the performance and financial position of each
of the subsidiaries, associates and Joint Venture is attached as
Annexure VIII to the Full and Abridged Annual Report.

The names of Companies which have become or ceased
to be Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates are also
provided in the aforesaid statement.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

e There were no material changes and commitments
affecting the financial position of your Company
between end of financial year and the date of report.
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e Your Company has not issued any shares with
differential voting rights.

e There was no revision in the financial statements.
e Your Company has not issued any sweat equity shares.

o Mr. Satish Pai is a director on the Board of Novelis Inc,
wholly owned subsidiary. He is in receipt of annual fee
of US$ 1, 50,000 in the calendar year 2018. Mr. Praveen
Kumar Maheshwari: Whole Time Director and Chief
Financial Officer has not received any commission /
Remuneration from your Company’s subsidiaries.

e  There is no change in the nature of business.

e During the year under review, your Company has not
accepted any fixed deposits from the public falling
under Section 73 of the Act read with the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. Thus, as on
31st March 2019, there were no deposits which were
unpaid or unclaimed and due for repayment.

e There are no significant and material orders passed
by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the
going concern status and Company'’s operations in future.

e As per the requirement of the Sexual Harassment of
Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013, your Company has complied
with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal
Complaint Committee under POSH.

e Directors of your Company hereby state and confirm
that the Company has complied with all the applicable
Secretarial Standards.

APPRECIATION

Your Directors place on record their sincere appreciation
for the assistance and guidance provided by the Honorable
Ministers, Secretaries and other officials of the Ministry of
Mines, Ministry of Coal, the Ministry of Chemicals and
Fertilizers and various State Governments. Your Directors
thank the Financial Institutions and Banks associated with
your Company for their support as well.

Your Company’s employees are instrumental in your
Company scaling new heights, year after year. Their
commitment and contribution is deeply acknowledged.

Your involvement as Shareholders is greatly valued. Your
Directors look forward to your continuing support.

For and on behalf of the Board

Satish Pai
Managing Director
DIN:06646758

M.M. Bhagat
Independent Director
DIN:00006245

Mumbai
Dated : July 19, 2019
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Disclosure of particulars with respect to Conservation of Energy, Technology
Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo as prescribed under
rule 8(3) of the companies (accounts) rules, 2014

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

STEPS TAKEN ON CONSERVATION OF
ENERGY

a.

Vi.

Vii.

viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

Mandatory Energy Audit is conducted in all
units.

In addition to the existing Energy Managers/
Auditors across all units, additional 12
professionals qualified in the Energy
Manager/ Auditor examination conducted by
BEE in 2018-19.

Reduction in steam consumption in
Aluminium Refinery units through process
optimization and loss reduction.

Reduction in Aluminium Smelter energy
consumption through various initiatives like
new design / copper insert collector bar,
bus bar / riser design change, Step stub
Anode, Anode Current density equalization,
Magnetic Compensation Busbaretc.

Efficiency improvement in Boilers by
minimising Radiation / Convection / leakage
Losses and through process optimization.

Revamping of Turbo Generator.
Revamping of Anode Baking Furnace.
Regenerative burner in Cast House.

Auxiliary power reduction through automation
& process optimization.

Replacement of Metallic Fan blade of Cooling
Towers with FRP blades.

Rationalization of motor, pump & fan
capacities and replacement of inefficient
pumps & motors with high efficiency pumps
& motors.

Energy efficient & corrosion resistant coating
in pumps.

Revamping / replacement of Annealing
&Homogenizing Furnaces.

Reduction in lighting consumption by
installing translucent roofing sheet / sun pipe,
replacement of conventional light with energy
efficient LED Light.

Installation of VFD in variable load application,

XVi.

Compressed Air system efficiency
improvement  through  replacement  of
inefficient compressors, arresting leakages,
process optimization etc.

xvii. Power Factor improvement

b. STEPS TAKEN BY THE COMPANY FOR
UTILISING ALTERNATE SOURCES OF
ENERGY.

Vi.

Vii.

viii.

Use of biomass as a supplementary fuel in
our boilers.

Use of translucent roofing sheet / Sun light
pipe for more use of Natural light.

Use of turbine ventilators
conventional exhaust system.

in place of

Installation of Solar water & solar emulsion
heaters.

30 MWp Solar PV Power plant for captive
consumption has been  successfully
commissioned during the year at Aditya
Aluminium, Odisha.

During the vyear, 2 locations (Taloja &
Belagavi) obtained Renewable Power (Solar
& Wind) under open access.

Contract has been finalized and project
initiated for Solar project at 2 locations
totaling 5.0 MWp.

Contract finalization of solar project at 2
locations totaling 14 MWp are in advanced
stage and feasibility study has been
completed at 3 location with solar project
totaling 40 MWp.

Feasibility study is underway for 200 MW
Renewable Hybrid Power.

c. CAPITAL INVESTMENT ON ENERGY
CONSERVATION EQUIPMENT& PROJECTS.

The Capital investment on Energy conservation
equipment & projects for the year was ¥ 153 crore.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

a) Efforts made towards technology absorption:

Grinding aid trials were taken and the
technology adopted in the Bauxite grinding
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mills at Belgaum to realise increased grinding
rate thus removing the constraint in grinding
rate capacity for meeting plant production
rate.

Trials were conducted at Renukoot to identify
fuels with high calorific values and utilise
heat value optimally without affecting plant
equipment in long run and at the same time
be compliant to environmental concerns.

Attempts continued at Renukoot towards use
of Red Mud into building material compound
with different mixes along with its application
into construction sites.

Following were the areas of Technology
Absorption at Aditya Smelter:

e \Virtual Reality (VR) based training
Module in Pot Room.

e [nstallation of Weigh bridge for Hot metal
transfer.

e Al based DGA analysis Rectifier
Transformer.

e  KPI digitization.

e Installation of ATS for Power Redundancy
of Pot Micro.

e GPS installation in all technological
vehicle.

e New XRD (D8-endeavor-German)
commissioned in LAB.

At HIC Alumina, Belagavi, R&D in following
Bauxite & Alumina areas were carried out

° Development of high purity alumina
(3N) for electronic / electrical ceramics
applications.

e  Development of different types of
low / ultra low soda alumina for wear
ceramics, spark plug and technical
ceramics applications.

e  Development of dispersible low soda
alumina for refractory and environmental
ceramics applications.

e  Development of high density
precipitated superfine hydrate for high
voltage cable application.

e Quality improvement of selected
alumina and hydrates for both domestic
and export markets.
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b)

o Process improvement made in Bayer
plant, in order to improve process
efficiency.

e Research for the usage of bauxite
residue in roofing sheet application.

vi. The following were the areas of Technology
absorption at Dahej Copper Unit:

e CONTIRODTechnologyfromSMS Group,
Germany for Continuous Cast Copper
Rod - IlI.

e Dilute Oxygen Combustion Technology -
Fuel Burner in Anode.

° Tail Gas Scrubber at SAP3.

vii. Efforts were made towards technology
developments / absorption in the following
areas at Mahan / Aditya / Hirakud Smelters:

° Cast House Server Virtualization for
enhanced reliability and efficiency.

e Trending and analysis of process
parameters in Ingot & Sow Casting line
through EBA Software.

e  Digitization of raw material management
system of carbon plant.

e QR code based equipment checklist
mobile application.

e GAP - MES Replication of Amillios
software.

e Mobile App for critical parameters of PTM.

e  Copper insert collector bar technology
developed for higher amperage cells.

Benefits derived like product improvement,
cost reduction, product development or import
substitution

i.  Several new products were developed at
Renukoot. These include the following:

e Fan blade supply, Cable wrap via
Tension Leveller for bucking free
material.

e  Special alloy and temper Circles for
Storage containers, Sheets for doors
and windows.

e  Coil in 0.73 mm gauge as Transformer
Stock.

e Wind Mill chequered sheets, Rice
Cooker Stock,Colour coated Panels



for Export, Circles for Cookware in
European Market as well as Indian
Market.

High Strength Roofing, Alloy for
Transport (Pump Housing), Battery
Case of Auto Rickshaw, building and
construction materialetc.

Benefits derived as a result of R&D at HIC
Belagavi include:

Increase in sales volume / realization
in value added products leading to
higher revenue for Specialty Chemicals
Business.

Improved plant operation and capacity
utilization.

Increase in market share and profitability
Enhancement of customer satisfaction.

Utilization of waste / generation of wealth
from wastes.

Energy reduction.

Benefits derived related to technology related
efforts at Dahej include:

Increased production of Continuous
Cast Copper Rod.

Increase in Production of Anode.
Reduction in SO2 emission from stack.

Advancement of basic skill and
knowledge in production of high
products.

Conservation of natural resources and
environment — water, energy and basic
raw material.

Continue to maintain cost of production
to remain economically viable.

Improvement of Quality and increase in
volume of Continuous cast rod.

CORPORATE STATUTORY FINANCIAL
OVERVIEW REPORTS STATEMENTS

c) In case of imported technology (imported
during the last three years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year)

If not fully absorbed,

Has areas where this has
Technology Year of Technology not taken place, reason
Imported for Import been fully thereof and futL]Jre lan

absorbed of action P
Flash Smelter
upgradation 2016-17 Yes NA
at Dahej
CONTIROD
Technology at  2017-18 Yes NA
Dahej
Dilute Oxygen
Combustion o515 19 Yes NA
Technology
Dahej
Upgrade of
Anode baking PG parameters
furnace-5 at 2017-18 In fine-tuning in
Renukoot using progress  consultation with
Riedhammer, Tech supplier
Germany

d) Expenditure Incurred on Research &
Development (R&D)

The Company has spent¥ 26.83 crore for Research
and Development during the Financial Year 2018-
2019.
C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUT GO.
a) Activities related to exports.

Exports (FOB) during the year were
¥13,463.17 crore.

b) Total Foreign Exchange used and earned.
(1) Foreign Exchange used % 20,318.81 crore.
(2) Foreign Exchange Earned % 13,468.98 crore.

For and on behalf of the Board

Satish Pai M.M. Bhagat
Managing Director Independent Director
DIN:06646758 DIN:00006245
Mumbai

Dated : July 19, 2019
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Details pertaining to remuneration as required under Section 197(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

38

The percentage increase / decrease in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
during the Financial year 2018-19, ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the
employees of the Company for the Financial year 2018-19 are as under:

Sr.  Name of Director/KMP Remuneration* of Director/KMP % increase / decrease in Ratio of remuneration of
No. for financial year 2018-19 Remuneration in the each Director/ to median
(X in Lakhs) Financial Year 2018-19 remuneration of employees

1 Kumar Mangalam Birla 360.60 -30.25% 64.28

2 Rajashree Birla 12.00 94.81% 214

3 A K. Agarwala 8.84 0.80% 1.58

4 M. M. Bhagat 14.35 0.21% 2.56

5 Y. P Dandiwala 12.23 0.91% 2.18

6 K. N. Bhandari 15.98 6.18% 2.85

7 Alka Bharucha 5.23 > o

8 Ram Charan 6.29 -6.54% 1.12

9 D. Bhattacharya” 7.58 0.93% 1.35

10 Girish Dave 6.90 0.88% 1.23

11 Satish Pai 2871.50 36.92% 511.85

12 Praveen Kumar Maheshwari 427.38 4.63% 76.18

13 Anil Malik 137.01 6.21% 24.42

“Remuneration includes commission payable to Non-Executive Directors for the year ended 31t March, 2019 which is subject to the approval of the
members of the Company. Sitting fees paid to Directors is excluded.

" Mr. D. Bhattacharya was Managing Director till 31t July, 2016 and than was inducted as Non-Executive Director. In addition to the above, his
remuneration for the year 2018-19 includes % 2.56 crore as perquisites on stock options exercised and ¥ 0.02 crore as medical reimbursement. At the
time of retirement, Board had approved pension of ¥ 0.335 crore per month, hence he has been paid ¥ 4.02 crore as a pension for his past services as
the Managing Director.

“Was appointed as Independent Director w.e.f. 11" July 2018.

i The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year was ¥ 5.61 Lacs.
ii In the financial year, there was an increase of 3.70% in the median remuneration of employees.

i There were 22,865 permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on 31s March, 2019.

iv Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last
financial year i.e. 2018-19 was 3.7% whereas the increase in the managerial remuneration for the same financial
year was 31.65%. For the purpose of managerial remuneration, Mr. Satish Pai: Managing Director and Mr. Praveen
Maheshwari: Whole time Director, are considered.

v ltis hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Philosophy / Policy of the Company.

vi. Remuneration excludes amortization of fair value of employee share based payments under IndAs 102 and
provision for gratuity and leave encashment recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation as separate figures are
not available.

vii. During the current Financial Year, Mr. Satish Pai has been granted 1,985,292 Stock Options and 466,805 Restricted
Stock Options (RSU’s); and Mr. Praveen Kumar Maheshwari has been granted 119,116 Stock Options and 28,008

RSU’s.
For and on behalf of the Board
Satish Pai M.M. Bhagat
Managing Director Independent Director
DIN:06646758 DIN:00006245
Mumbai

Dated : July 19, 2019
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SUSTAINABILITY & BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

Building Sustainable Businesses at the Aditya
Birla Group:

At the Aditya Birla Group, we endeavour to become the
leading Indian conglomerate for sustainable business
practices across our global operations. We define a
“Sustainable Business” as one that can continue to survive
and thrive within the growing needs and tightening legal
and resource constraints of a “Sustainable World”. We
believe that this means that as we go forward towards the
constrained operating environments of 2030 and 2050 that
for a continued “Sustainable World” it can increasingly only
contain “Sustainable Businesses”.

To achieve our Group vision, we are innovating away from
the traditional sustainability models to one consistent with
our vision to build sustainable businesses capable of
operating in the next three decades. It is in our own interests
to mitigate our own impact in every way we can as this is
a direct assistance to creating a sustainable planet. It also
prepares us for further mitigation and the need to adapt to
a world that is a full two degrees or even three or four hotter
than today.

We began our quest with the question, “If everyone and
every business followed the law as written today, is the
planet sustainable?” We quickly concluded that around
the year 2050, when the Earth’s population reaches an
estimated 9 billion, climate change, water scarcity, pollution,
biodiversity loss and an overload of waste, if left unchecked,
would set the planet on a possibly irreversible unsustainable
course. It is therefore intuitive that leaders must find ways
to transform industries such that international bodies can
codify and governments can legislate over time to reduce
the damage and it is imperative that the Aditya Birla Group
remains ahead of the curve.

The first step of our programme to build sustainable
businesses is focused on increasing the capability of our
business management systems. Under this programme
called “Responsible Stewardship” we try to move from
merely complying with current legal standards to conforming
to the international standards set by the global bodies of the
International Finance Corporation (IFC), the Organisation
for Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD), the
International Standards Organisation (ISO), Occupational
Health and Safety Advisory Services (OHSAS), the Global
Reporting Initiative (GRI), the Forestry Stewardship Council
and others. To support our businesses in this endeavour, we
have created the Aditya Birla Group’s Sustainable Business
Framework of Policies, Technical Standards, and Guidance
Notes to give our leaders, managers, employees and
contract employees the chance to train, learn, understand,

and apply improvement techniques to help our businesses
reach higher standards of performance. Our Group
Sustainable Business Framework is currently certified to
14 international standards (http://sustainability.adityabirla.
com/) So far, we have had much success with respect to
reductions in accidents, energy use, water use, and have
implemented our first Biodiversity plans. Our programme
to achieve the World Business Council for Sustainable
Development’s Water and Sanitation and Hygiene pledge
(WASH) to ensure that we provide safe drinking water,
sanitation and hygiene in all our operations has resulted
in our building over 600 new bathrooms, many for women
and differently abled people. Each of these achievements
helps reduce and mitigate our impact on the planet and are
imperative to building the sustainable business platform for
our future.

If we are to create fully sustainable business models and
systems for the future then “Responsible Stewardship” by
itself is not enough. We need other components to help us
with a greater transformation. We need to understand the
global mega-trends and their effect on us; geographically,
physically, technologically and how the legal system
(including regulations and tax) will need to change in
order to motivate business to create a sustainable world.
Our performance will need to be improved further to
meet the changes needed to mitigate and adapt to these
External Factors. By talking to our Strategic Stakeholders
knowledgeable in these issues, we can scan the horizon to
better understand their likely risk to our business. With this
information, we enhance our business models, strategies
and risk profiles in order to “Future Proof” them and our value
chains in the medium to long term. Since only “Sustainable”
business can exist in a Sustainable World then a Sustainable
Value Chain can also only contain these businesses and so
it becomes imperative to map our value chains to look for
vulnerabilities. Our goal is to create not only Sustainable
Businesses but also Sustainable Value Chains of which
we can be a key member. We are helping our leaders to
understand which external changes might heavily influence
our value chains and business models in the future and what
might be expected of our products and brands. For example,
the world will need businesses that are able to mitigate and
adapt to climate change, with robust and sustainable supply
chains that are also impervious to all external forces that will
inevitably begin to affect us in the future. To build sustainable
businesses will take time, particularly when we consider
some of our very complex value chains but by pushing to
be a leader today, we are giving our businesses the best
possible chance of achieving long-term success not only for
ourselves but also for our value chains and hence for our
planet.
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Hindalco Sustainability Vision

Hindalco endeavours to become the leading Indian conglomerate for sustainable business practices
across our global operations. We believe that this means that as we go forward towards the
constrained operating environments of 2030 and 2050 that for a continued “Sustainable World”
it can increasingly only contain “Sustainable Businesses”.

Hindalco has been publishing Sustainability Report since FY
11 using the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) Framework.
The report for 2017-18 titled ‘Create — Conserve — Enhance -
Repeat’ has been assured to the Comprehensive Option of GRI
standard by DNV (External independent assessing agency).

Section A: General Information about the Company

The Company will also publish Sustainability Report for FY
2018-19 and it will be hosted on its website www.hindalco.
com. Any shareholder interested in obtaining a physical
copy of the same may write to the Company Secretary at the
Registered Office of your Company.

Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company

L27020MH1958PLC011238

Name of the Company

Hindalco Industries Limited

3. Registered address

Ahura Centre, 1%t Floor, B Wing, Mahakali Caves Road,
Andheri (East), Mumbai: 400093

4. Website www.hindalco.com

5. E-mail id anil.malik@adityabirla.com

6. Financial Year reported 18t April, 2018 to 31t March,2019

7 Segtgr(s) that the Company is engaged in (industrial ITC Product Description

activity code-wise) Code

7601 Aluminium Ingots
7606  Aluminium Rolled Products
7605 Aluminium Redraw Rods
740311 Copper Cathodes
740710 Continuous Cast Copper Rods

s List three key products/services that the Company ((ili)) éloug;)lglru(r:namggtess/ Rolled Products

manufactures/provides (as in balance sheet):

(iif)

Concast Copper Rods

9.  Total number of locations where business activity is
undertaken by the Company

Major International Locations

USA

Germany

United Kingdom

Brazil

South Korea

Number of National Locations:

° 4 Aluminium;

e 1 Copper Unit

e 4 Chemical Units

(including one unit of Utkal Alumina International
Limited, wholly owned subsidiary of the Company)
4 Power Units

5 Rolled FRP

2 Extrusions

1 Foil

Registered Office and Zonal Marketing Offices
Bauxite and Coal Mines in the state of Jharkhand,
Chhattisgarh, Maharashtra and Orissa.

10. Markets served by the Company

Local State National International

v Vv Vv Vv
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Section B: Financial Details of the Company (Standalone)

1. Paid-up Capital (INR) ¥ 222.39 crores
2. Total Turnover (INR) % 45,749.16 crores
3. Total Profits after taxes (INR) % 1205.43 crores
4. Total Spending on Corporate Social Responsibility The Company’s total spending on CSR was % 34.14 crores
(CSR) as percentage of profit after tax (%) which is 2.28% of the average net profit for the previous three
financial years.
5. List of activities in which expenditure in 4 above has a. Education
been incurred b. Health Care
c. Women empowerment
d. Sustainable Livelihood
e. Infrastructure Development
Section C: Other Details b. Details of the BR head
1. Does the Company have any Subsidiary Company/ I barticulars Details
Companies? No.
1 DIN Number NA
Yes, as on 318t March, 2019, the Company has 45 " (ifapplicable) "
subsidiaries-10 domestic and 34 foreign . 2. Name Mr. Anil Malik
2. Do the Subsidiary Company/Companies participate 2' ?eels;g‘ganon g;(ezs_|g§g;§6%gmpanySecretary
in the BR Initiatives of the parent company? If 5  E-mailid anil.malik@adityabirla.com
yes, then indicate the number of such subsidiary - T )
. 2. The National Voluntary Guidelines on Social,
company(s): . . o
Environmental and Economic Responsibilities of
Hindalco’s Sustainability Report covers only the India Business released by the Ministry of Corporate
Operations. Further, Novelis Inc., also publishes Affairs has adopted nine areas of Business
Sustainability Report based of Global Reporting Responsibility. These briefly are as follows:
Initiative (GRI) framework.
. . ) P1 Businesses should conduct and govern themselves
3. Do any other entity/entities (e.g. suppliers, with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability

distributors etc.) that the Company does business
participate in the BR initiatives of the Company?
If yes, then indicate the percentage of such entity/
entities?

At present, suppliers and distributors with whom the
Company does business, do not participate in the
Business Responsibility initiatives of the Company
directly.

Section D: BR Information

1.

Details of Director/Directors responsible for BR

a. Details of the Director/Director responsible for
implementation of the BR policy/policies

DIN Number 01055000
Name Mr. Y.P.Dandiwala
Designation Independent Director

P2 Businesses should provide goods and services that are
safe and contribute to sustainability throughout their life
cycle

P3 Businesses should promote the well being of all
employees

P4 Businesses should respect the interests of, and be
responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those
who are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized.

P5 Businesses should respect and promote human rights

P6 Business should respect, protect, and make efforts to
restore the environment

P7 Businesses, when engaged in influencing public and
regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner

P8 Businesses should support inclusive growth and
equitable development

P9 Businesses should engage with and provide value
to their customers and consumers in a responsible
manner

The mapping of the aforesaid principles to the disclosures shall
be made in the Sustainability Report 2018-19 will be available
on our website www.hindalco.com.
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GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY

The Aditya Birla Group is committed to the adoption of
best governance practices and its adherence in the true
spirit, at all times. Our governance practices are a product
of self desire reflecting the culture of the trusteeship i.e.,
deeply ingrained in our value system and reflected in our
strategic thought process. At a macro level, our governance
philosophy rests onfive basic tenets viz., Board accountability
to the Company and the shareholders, strategic guidance
and effective monitoring by the Board, protection of
minority interests and rights, equitable treatment of all
shareholders as well as superior transparency and timely
disclosures.

Inline with this philosophy, HINDALCO, the flagship Company
of the Aditya Birla Group, is striving for excellence through
adoption of best governance and disclosure practices. The
Company, as a continuous process, strengthens the quality
of disclosures, on the Board composition and its functioning,
remunerations paid and level of compliance with various
Corporate Governance Codes.

Compliance with Corporate Governance Guidelines

The Company is fully compliant with the requirements
under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015,
and amendment thereto hereinafter referred to the “Listing
Regulations”. Your Company’s compliance with these
requirements is presented in the Full Annual Report.

The entire Corporate Governance Report forms part of the Full Annual Report. The Full Annual Report of the Company is

available on our website: www.hindalco.com.

Any member who is interested in obtaining the physical copy of the Full Annual Report may write to the Company Secretary

at the Registered Office of your Company.

The Auditors’ certificate on Corporate Governance is annexed as below:

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To the Members of Hindalco Industries Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of
Corporate Governance by Hindalco Industries Limited (“the
Company”), for the year ended March 31, 2019 as stipulated
in Regulations 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 24A, 25, 26, 27
and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46
and para C , D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended) (collectively
referred to as “SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015”).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance
is the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our examination was carried out in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance,
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and was limited to procedures and implementation thereof,
adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the
conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit
nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of
the Company.
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In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, we certify that
the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations,
2015.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as
to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration No. 304026E/E-300009

Sumit Seth

Partner

Membership No:105869

UDIN :19105869AAAAAG3592

Place : Mumbai
Date : July 19, 2019



SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

1. Annual General Meeting
- Date and Time

- Venue

2. Financial Year
- Financial reporting for the quarter ending June 30, 2019
- Financial reporting for the half year ending September 30, 2019
- Financial reporting for the quarter ending December 31, 2019
- Financial reporting for the year ending March 31, 2020 (Audited)
- Annual General Meeting for the year ended March 31, 2020

3. Date of Book Closure

4. Dividend Payment Date

5. Registered Office/lnvestors Service Department

6. ISIN

7. Stock Code

CORPORATE STATUTORY FINANCIAL
OVERVIEW REPORTS STATEMENTS

30" August, 2019 at 03:00 p.m.

Nehru Centre, Dr Annie Besant Rd,
Lotus Colony, Worli,
Mumbai- 400018.

On or before 14" August, 2019
On or before 14" November, 2019
On or before 14" February, 2020
On or before 30" May, 2020

On or before 31t August, 2020

17" August, 2019 to 30" August, 2019
(both days inclusive)

On or After 30" August, 2019

Ahura Centre, 1¢ Floor,

B Wing, Mahakali Caves Road
Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400 093.
Tel: (91-22) 66917000

Fax: (91-22) 66917001

E-Mail:  hilinvestors@adityabirla.com
Website: www.adityabirla.com

CIN No. L27020MH1958PLC011238

. Fully paid up equity share: ISIN INEO38A01020

GDR: ISIN US4330641022
CUSIP No. 433064300

Stock Code: Scrip Code
Bombay Stock Exchange 500440
National Stock Exchange HINDALCO
Stock Exchange Reuters Bloomberg
Bombay Stock Exchange HALC.BO HNDL IN
National Stock Exchange HALC.NS NHNDL IN
Luxembourg Stock Exchange (GDRs) HALCg.LU HDCD LI
Name and Address of Debenture Trustee . IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited

Asian Building, Ground Floor, 17 R. Kamani Marg
Ballard Estate, Mumbai: 400 001

8. Registrar and Transfer Agents

The Company has In-House Investors Service Department registered with SEBI as Category Il Share Transfer Agent

vide Registration no INR 000003910.
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Other Useful Information for Shareholders

Shareholders who have not yet encashed their dividend warrants for the years 2011-2012 to 2017-2018 may approach
to the Company with a request letter quoting their Ledger Folio numbers / DP & Client ID along with dividend warrant(s)

(if any) and a cancelled cheque leaf for revalidation/claim.

The details of dividend paid by the Company and the respective due dates of transfer of unclaimed/un-encashed
dividend to the designated fund of the Central Government is given as below:

Date of Declaration Financial Year of Dividend Due date of transfer to the Government Amountin?3
September 11, 2012 2011-12 October 10, 2019 7,372,057.30
September 10, 2013 2012-13 October 10, 2020 6,736,023.00
September 24, 2014 2013-14 October 24, 2021 5,000,286.00
September 16, 2015 2014-15 October 16, 2022 6,013,285.49
September 14, 2016 2015-16 October 14, 2023 6,060,955.00
September 13, 2017 2016-17 October 13, 2024 7,141,911.90
September 21, 2018 2017-18 October 21, 2025 7,593,450.00

Pursuant to the provisions of Investor Education and
Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer
and Refund) Rules 2016 read with Investor Education
and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit,
Transfer and Refund) Amendment 2017, the Company
is mandated to transfer all such shares to Investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) in respect
of which dividend has not been claimed for seven
consecutive years or more.

The unclaimed dividend amount for the financial
year 2010-11 and 280,856 Equity Shares related to
unclaimed dividend for the financial year 2010-11 have
been credited to Investor Education and Protection
Fund (IEPF).

Shareholder can claim the unclaimed dividend
amounts and shares credited to IEPF with a separate
application made to the IEPF Authority, in Form IEPF-
5, as prescribed under the Rules and are available at
IEPF website i.e. www.iepf.gov.in.

In case of any query contact —

Hindalco Industries limited

Ahura Centre, 1t floor, B Wing
Mahakali Caves Road

Andheri (East), Mumbai-400 093.

Tel: (91-22) 6691 7000

Fax: (91-22) 6691 7001

Email ID: hilinvestors@adityabirla.com

Green Initiative in Corporate Governance — Service
of Documents in Electronic Form

As per Regulation 36 of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 136 of
the Companies Act 2013:
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(a) Soft copies of full Annual Report are sent to
those shareholder(s) who have registered their
email address with the Company or with any
depository;

(b) Hard copy of statement containing the salient
features of all the documents, as prescribed
in Section 136 of Companies Act, 2013 or rules
made thereunder to those shareholder(s) who
have not so registered;

(c) Hard copies of full Annual Reports to those
shareholders, who have requested for the same.

Unclaimed Shares in Physical Form

Regulation 39(4) of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 provides the manner
of dealing with shares issued in physical form pursuant
to public issue or any other issue which remains
unclaimed with the Company. In compliance with the
provisions of Listing Regulations, the Company has
sent three reminders to the shareholders whose share
certificates are lying unclaimed.

Disclosures pursuant to Regulation 39(4) of Listing
Regulation are as below:

e Aggregate number of shareholders and
outstanding shares lying in Unclaimed Suspense
account lying as at 01 April, 2018:

1,087 shareholders holding 555,896 equity shares
of the Company.

e  Number of shareholders who approached the
issuer for transfer of shares from Unclaimed
Suspense Account during the year.



29 shareholders 19,275 equity shares of the
Company.

e Number of shareholders to whom shares were
transferred from Unclaimed Suspense Account
during the year.

29 shareholders 19,275 equity shares of the
Company.

e Aggregate number of shareholders and outstanding
shares lying in Unclaimed Suspense Account as at
31stMarch, 2019.

1,054 shareholders holding 536,621 equity shares
of the Company.

INVESTOR SERVICES

Equity Shares of the Company are under compulsory
demat trading by all investors, with effect from 5th
April, 1999. Considering the advantages of scrip
less trading, shareholders are requested to consider
dematerialization of their shareholding so as to avoid
inconvenience in future, No physical transfers pursuant
to SEBI- LODR notification- Pursuant to SEBI LODR
Amendment Regulations, effective 5" December, 2018,
and BSE Circulars to Listed Companies — Amendment
to Regulation 40 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.
(Cir.No. LIST/COMP/15/2018 dated July 05, 2018).

BSE has issued a Circular to Listed Companies on July
05, 2018 informing about amendment to Regulation
40 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 vide Gazette notification dated June 8, 2018 has
mandated that transfer of securities would be carried
out in dematerialized form only. This restriction shall
not be applicable to the request received for Deletion,
Transmission or Transposition of physical shares.

Shareholders/Beneficial Owners are requested to
quote their Folio No./DP & Client ID Nos., as the case
may be, in all correspondence with the Company. All
correspondences regarding shares & debentures of
the Company should be addressed to the Investor
Service Department of the Company at Ahura Centre,
1st Floor, ‘B’ Wing, Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri
(East), Mumbai - 400 093 and not to any other office(s)
of the Company.

Vi.

Vii.

viii.

X.
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Shareholders holding shares in physical form are
requested to notify to the Company, change in their
address/Pin Code number and Bank Account details
promptly by written request under the signatures of sole
/ first joint holder. Beneficial Owners of shares in demat
form are requested to send their instructions regarding
change of name, change of address, bank details,
nomination, power of attorney, etc. directly to their DP.

To prevent fraudulent encashment of dividend warrants,
members are requested to provide their Bank Account
Details (if not provided earlier) to the Company (if
shares are held in physical form) or to DP (if shares are
held in demat form), as the case may be, for printing of
the same on their dividend warrants.

Non-resident members are requested to immediately
notify:-

0  change in their residential status on return to India
for permanent settlement;

o) Particulars of their NRE Bank Account with a bank
in India, if not furnished earlier.

In case of loss/misplacement of share certificate,
investors should immediately lodge a FIR/Complaint
with the police and inform to Company along with
original or certified copy of FIR/acknowledged copy of
the complaint.

Shareholders are requested to keep record of their
specimen signature before lodgment of shares with
the Company to obviate possibility of difference in
signature at a later date.

Shareholders(s) of the Company who have multiple
accounts in identical name(s) or holding more than one
Share Certificates in the same name under different
Ledger Folio(s) are requested to apply for consolidation
of such Folio(s) and send the relevant Share Certificates
to the Company.

Shareholders are requested to give us their valuable
suggestions for improvement of our investor services.

Shareholders are requested to quote their E-mail
Ids, Telephone/Fax numbers for prompt reply to their
communication.

The entire Shareholder’s Information forms part of the Full Annual Report. The Full Annual Report of the Company is available on our
website: www.hindalco.com.

Any member who is interested in obtaining the physical copy of the Full Annual Report may write to the Company Secretary at the
Registered Office of your Company.
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“No one’, said Mahatma Gandhiji, ‘is free, until everyone, regardless of caste, and creed, is rid of not only
discrimination, but also deprivation’. On this 150" Birth Anniversary of the Father of Nation, we reaffirm our
pledge to inclusive growth.

As inclusive growth is our overall vision, we feel it is worthwhile to link our community engagement with the UN
Sustainability Development Goals (SDGS).

We have set expectations in line with these goals.The SDGs, are a bold universal agreement, to end poverty,
every which way. Its laudable vision, is also to craft an equal, fair and secure world for people, the planet, and
prosperity, by 2030. These, were adopted by 193 member states, at the UN General Assembly Summit. The
SDGs, came into effect, on January 1st, 2016.

The SDGs outlines 17 clear goals, all of which are universally relevant. They have also given 169 targets,
specific to the different goals. Our Government, has accepted the goals, and based the structure, and focus of
our nation’s social investment, on the SDG goals as well.

India has made huge strides. Poverty, in India is down to 21%, according to the Government estimates. In a
highly laudatory article on India recently in the New York Times, it mentioned that “A booming economy is lifting
40 million, out of poverty and is expected to have the majority of its population in the middle-class, already
equal to the entire US population, 2025".

As a point in reference, let's take the year 1947, when we became an independent country. In 1947, life
expectancy was 32 years. Today, it is nearly 69 years. Infant mortality, is down from 161, for every thousand
births, to 40 now. Access to quality maternal health services, has more than tripled as have institutional
deliveries, which now stand at over 80% according to the WHO Report. The overall death rate, which was at
25.5 per thousand, has fallen to 7 per thousand. So, we see a phenomenal improvement.

Even as the struggle for equality, for dignity and for raising the quality of life of, each and every person in
1.2 billion cohort is still on, every effort is being made to mitigate this issue. The Government, has done
enormous work and continues to focus on poverty alleviation but we have to do more. Fortunately, social
investment, is gaining traction. There is the eco-system of investors, entrepreneurs, and enablers, all of whom
are significantly engaged, in social impact initiatives. India, is in the midst, of a historic transformation. There
is the promise, of the end to poverty by 2022. A decent roof, over every individual's head, and a life of dignity,
through sustainable livelihood.

Pursuing the SDGs, | strongly believe is, one of the ways to fast forward inclusive growth, and our social
progress. In this context, | am very pleased to share with you, that in our CSR engagement, we are totally in
sync with the first 8 goals. The remaining 9 goals pertain to sustainability, responsible industrialization and
geopolitical issues. On sustainable development, climate change, ecosystems, among others, our Group is in
line with them”.

— Mrs. Rajashree Birla
Chairperson, Aditya Birla Centre for Community Initiatives and Rural Development

On Track With SDGs

Our community engagement in our five focus areas viz.
education, healthcare, sustainable livelihood, infrastructure
development and social reform, have been linked with the
key nine SDGs. A number of SDGs flow into each other and
hence have been clubbed. For instance, SDG-1, which is to
end poverty is an overarching goal that connects to all the
other goals. Collectively our programmes aim at this very
objective.
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We are spread across 10 States, spanning 626 villages,
reaching out to 10 lakh people. Over decades of unrelentingly
battling with poverty, in collaboration with the District Authorities
and leveraging Government Schemes, collectively we have
been able to lift the burden of poverty from the shoulders of
nearly 80% of the people. With Government initiatives, in full
throttle, it should seem possible, to cut the poverty levels even
further in the ensuing years.



The second SDG, is to end hunger, achieve food security,
and improved nutrition and promote sustainable agriculture.
Hunger issues are inextricably linked with poverty alleviation
where water and agriculture play a major part. In the villages
where we work, the malnutrition rate is minimal, in the range
of approximately 4% to 5%. We have set for ourselves the
target to lower it to 1% to 2% in the next 2-3 years, through
our projects and taking Government Schemes forward as
catalysts.

Water positivity, within the fence and beyond, is one of
the most important tasks before us. It includes water
conservation, and water harvesting structures. Water is the
lifeline for agriculture. The farm based interventions, farmer
training programmes, farmer producer groups, improved
agriculture techniques, and animal husbandry management,
take us close to the goal, of sustainable agriculture.

Our farmer meetings aimed at knowledge sharing on farm
related activities, boosting agriculture and horticulture
and training programmes that profess the best-in-class
agricultural practices and mechanism, have touched the
lives of over 16,705 farmers.

Furthermore, farmers are taken to the Krishi Vigyan Kendrasin
Uttar Pradesh, Madhya Pradesh and Chhattisgarh to attune
them to the latest cropping patterns, which they can apply
to their field. Small farmers are helped through exposure to
demonstration plots in waste lands where the farming inputs
are minimal. More than 4,464 farmers were provided with
agricultural tools, seeds, fertilisers and other crop protection
agents.

We developed 99 vermin compost tanks at Renukoot,
Lohardaga and Singrauli to encourage farmers to adopt
organic farming methods.

We constructed 26 check dams at Singrauli, Madhya
Pradesh to provide assured irrigation facility. This enhances
cash crop production over more than 1,600 acres of land.

Thisyear 43,295 animals were immunized at veterinary camps
and a large number were artificially inseminated for better
breed. This has raised the milk output and consequently
there has been a surge in the income of the farmers. Aditya
Birla Technology Park is successfully implementing the
cattle breeding project(Godhan) at Muirpur, Uttar Pradesh.
Over 1,000 cattle received artificial insemination, benefitting
4000 farm families.

The third SDG, pertains to ensuring, healthy lives and
promoting well-being for all, at all ages. Here what we do
is indeed impressive. Nearly 7 lakh people across our units,
have been the beneficiaries of our projects.

In over 1,528 rural medical and awareness camps and
47specialty camps, 1,37,662 people were examined. Health
check-ups were conducted for ailments such as malaria,
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diarrhea, diabetes, hepatitis, arthritis, skin diseases,
gynecological disorders and cardiac related issues. Our
rural mobile medical van services complemented these
efforts.

One of the major concern issues is that even where we are
working more than 70% of women, including adolescent girls
are anemic. In the near future, our aim is to bring it down to
less than 20%, with the support of the District Authorities.

Splendid patient care is accorded at our Company’s
3 hospitals, 21 dispensaries/ clinics located at Renukoot
and Renusagar (Uttar Pradesh), Belagavi (Karnataka),
Muri, Lohardaga & Kathautia (Jharkhand), Balrampur &
Raigad (Chhattisgarh), Dahej (Gujarat) and Durgamwadi
(Maharashtra). More than 1,35558 patients were
treated. We would also like to mention that our units at
Kathautia, Maliparbat, Dumri, Durgamwadi and Taloja have
extended support to 12 Government/ Charity run primary
health centers, where 5,382 patients’ recourse to these
facilities.

In our Surgical Camps 45 patients underwent surgeries at
Renukoot, Belagavi and Durgamwadi.

At eye camps, we treated 2,149 people, performed 90
intraocular operations and distributed 771 spectacles.

At 73 dental check camps at Dahej, Renukoot, Renusagar,
Singrauli, Belur and Kathautia 6,230 persons were treated.

Over 364 patients were diagnosed with Tuberculosis and
registered under the directly observed treatment (DOT)
programme at 10 designated microscopic centers (DMC).
These are at Hindalco family welfare center Renukoot,
Renusagar and Lohardaga and the Aditya Birla Rural
Technology Park, Muirpur.

Under preventive measures, we organised 18 seasonal
disease camps on Malaria and Diarrhoea at Lohardaga
and Samri Mines, where 4,125 people attended the camps.
Furthermore, we distributed mosquito nets to 4,779 people
at Renusagar, Singrauli, Lohardaga, Muri and Taloja.

Health check- up camps are carried out regularly in schools
at our units. These include Lohardaga and Kathautia
(Jharkhand), Renukoot (Uttar Pradesh),Belur (West Bengal),
Taloja, Durgamwadi (Maharashtra), Singrauli (Madhya
Pradesh) and Belagavi (Karnataka). Our medical teams
examined 6,012 students on their general health, dental
hygiene and eye care. At the same time, they also conducted
blood grouping.

In collaboration with the District Health Department, our 19
Family Welfare Centers served 50,626 women (antenatal,
post-natal care, mass immunization, nutrition and escort
services for institutional delivery). Over 1,70,180 children
were immunized against polio, BCG, DPT and Hepatitis-B
across the Company'’s Units.
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Our focused programme on adolescent health care covered,
4,023 girls at the Government's Girls High Schools and 9
Kasturba Gandhi Balika Vidyalayas.

In addition,to address issues related to menstrual health and
hygiene of school going adolescent girls, we have installed
5 sanitary napkin vending machines and incinerators at
Dahej (Gujarat) and Taloja (Maharashtra).

Our intensive motivational drive towards responsible family
raising led to 333 villagers opting for planned parenthood
across 4 locations.

Inclusive and equitable quality education, and in the larger
context, promoting lifelong learning opportunities, for all is
the pivot of the fourth SDG. HG Wells, the renowned, (early
20" Century) historian in his voluminous work “The Outline of
History”, wrote “Human history becomes more and more, a
race between education and catastrophe”.

Our proactive initiatives to foster education in the villages
have vyielded encouraging results. We would like to
particularly mention our enrolment campaign titled “Shala
Praveshotsav”. This was popularized at Dahej (Gujarat). The
campaign was successful. It not only got 100% students in
schools but also stemmed the dropout rate. Under its aegis
we also distributed education material including notebooks,
school bags and uniforms to over 13,622 children. We
leveraged the Sarva Shiksha Abhiyan. We align very well
with the Kasturba Gandhi Balika Vidyalayasat Renukoot,
Lohardaga, Muri and Samrien couraging girls to pursue
education. Through the talent search programmes, we
recognized 666 bright students, giving them scholarships.

Over 1,775 students from the hinterland attended the
6-month computer literacy programmes conducted by us.

At the 30 Balwadis, 1,522 pre-schoolers have taken their first
steps towards informal learning processes. These centres
are running at Renukoot, Lohardaga, Samri, Belagavi and
Singrauli.

Over, 4,990 children are enrolled at 76 Anganwadis that we
support at Renukoot, Singrauli, Samri, Belur, Lohardaga,
Renusagar, Kathautia, Durgamwadi and Belagavi. Among
these, we are working with 318 malnourished children
and creating awareness besides health check-ups under
the Integrated Child Development Scheme (ICDS) at
Renukoot.

At our 10 Aditya Birla Public Schools (Renukoot, Renusagar,
Dahej and Muri), we have enrolled 6,633 rural students.
Additionally, 1,614 students have been enlisted in our
8 Aditya Birla Vidya Mandirs at Renukoot, Lohardaga,
Kathautia and Samri.

In bridging the gap between pupil and teacher, more than
65 teachers have been supporting primary and secondary
schools in Dumri, Garepalma, Lohardaga, Kathautia,
Durgamwadi and Dahej.
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In providing basic infrastructure, we constructed 9 additional
class rooms at Belagavi, Durgamwadi, Garepalma and
Dahej and repaired 15 school buildings each at Singrauli,
Belur, Lohardaga, Samri, Belagavi, Talojaand Durgamwadi.
We have also provided furniture to 15 schools at Renukoot,
Singrauli, Lohardaga, Durgamwadi and Taloja.

We built 4 New school toilets at Lohardaga and Durgamwadi
and repaired 3 school toilets at Samri, Kathautia and
Durgamwadi to make them functional.

We are setting up a centralised kitchen at Chiri Village of
Kuru Block of Lohardaga District of Jharkhand State to give
nutritious food to 40,000 students of 250 schools within a
radius of 40 kms from the kitchen in partnership with the
Govt. of Jharkhand and ISKCON Food Relief Foundation
(IFRF). The setting up of Mid-day meal Centralised kitchen
has been recommended by the Government of Jharkand.

The cost of the project is ¥ 5.07 Crores. It includes the
construction of the kitchen building (prefabricated structure),
setting up the kitchen equipment, customised vehicle to
supply food, office, Quarters for workers, etc.

Women empowerment and gender equality, is the focus
of the fifth SDG. We already have 1,450 self-help groups
comprising of 19,328 women. We are working to broaden
the base, and provide the last mile linkage.

The sixth, seventh and eighth SDGs, can be bunched
together, as they are interlinked. These SDGs call for, water
and sanitation, reliable, sustainable and modern energy and
decent work and economic growth.

Towards providing accessibility to safe drinking water, we
have installed 7 Reverse Osmosis (RO) plants, 36 hand
pumps, repaired 240 hand pumps and dug wells. Pipelines
and bore wells provide access to water, benefiting more
than 50,265 villagers.

Additionally, 777 individual toilets and sanitation facilities
were set-up at various locations. In the villages that we
operate in andb55villages have been declared ODF.

Imparting vocational training, skills training, coupled with
our farm / non-farm based programmes and SHGs, meet
with these goals. Collectively we have touched the lives of
nearly 10,000 people.

At the Aditya Birla Rural Technology Park, more than 27
training batches were organised. The thrust continues on
computer literacy, training in cosmetology, repair of electric
and electronic goods, handicrafts, bag making, soft toys,
tailoring and knitting, ways to enhance agricultural output,
and veterinary science. This year 250 aspirants were trained.
On capacity building training 16 additional programmes
were held for 679 participants. Veterinary services offered
to 466 farmers.



SDG-9: Build resilient infrastructure

Towards better infrastructure, we are engaged in the
connecting/repairing of roads, community halls and assets,
rest places, installation of solar lights, construction of water
tanks and installation of piped water supply. These activities
have aided 88,556 people.

Finally, on model villages

Of the 626 villages that we work in, we have zeroed in on
98 villages for a transformative process that raises them to
become model villages. So far in a 7-year time frame, we
have been able to morph 55 villages into model villages.

Our CSR spends

All'in all, our spends on community engagement for the year
2018-19 to taled ¥ 56.62 crores (Hindalco Industries Limited
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% 34.14 crores, Enterprise Social Commitment (ESC): ¥ 4.65
crores, Utkal Alumina International Limited ¥ 9.13 crores,
Utkal ESC: % 6.39 crores, Dahej Harbour & Infrastructure
Ltd.: ¥ 1.44 crores). As catalysts, we mobilised close to
¥ 100 crores, leveragingdiverse Government Schemes.

In sum

With all of us working so wholeheartedly, and the Government
also fully committed, to inclusive growth, transparency and
good governance, we can hope for a holistic transformation
of our country. Very soon, in the next 5 years, India will be an
even more resplendent nation. By then the word poverty will
be struck off the lexicon and no mention of it will be made in
relation to India.

Our Board of Directors, our Management and our colleagues
across the Company are committed to inclusive growth.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT ON THE
ABRIDGED STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Members of Hindalco Industries Limited

Report on the abridged standalone financial statements

1.

The accompanying abridged standalone financial
statements of Hindalco Industries Limited (the
“Company”), which comprise the abridged balance
sheet as at March 31, 2019, the abridged statement of
profit and loss,the abridged statement of changes in
equity and the abridged statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, together with the related notes, which
we have signed under reference to this report.

These abridged standalone financial statements are
derived from the statutory audited standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended March
31, 2019 prepared by the Company’s Management in
accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards specified in the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended)
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the
“Act”),covered by our attached report of even date to
the Members of the Company pursuant to section 143
of the Act, in which we have expressed an unmodified
audit opinion.

The abridged standalone financial statements do
not contain all the disclosures required by the Indian
Accounting Standards specified in the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended) under section 133 of the Act and Schedule Il
to the Act, applied in the preparation and presentation
of the audited standalone financial statements of the
Company. Reading the abridged standalone financial
statements, therefore, is not a substitute for reading
the audited standalone financial statements of the
Company.

Management’s responsibility for the abridged standalone
financial statements

4.
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The Company’s Management is responsible for the
preparation of the abridged standalone financial
statements in accordance with Section 136 of
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the Act. The Company’s Management (including
Directors) are ultimately responsible for the designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the abridged
standalone financial statements that are consistent with
the audited standalone financial statements and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; and also includes appropriate interpretation
and application of the relevant provisions of the Act.

The Company’s Management (including Directors)
are also responsible for ensuring that the Company
complies with the requirements of Section 136 of the
Act.

Auditor’s responsibility

6.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
abridged standalone financial statements based on
our procedures, which were conducted in accordance
with Standard on Auditing (SA) 810, ‘Engagements to
Report on Summary Financial Statements’, issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Opinion

7.

In our opinion, the accompanying abridged standalone
financial statements,are consistent, in all material
respects, with the audited statutory standalone financial
statements of the Company as at and for the year ended
March 31, 2019 prepared in accordance with Division
Il to Schedule Il to the Act, covered by our attached
report of even date to the Members of the Company
pursuant to Section 143 of the Act, in accordance with
Section 136 of the Act.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/ E-300009

Sumit Seth
Partner
Membership Number: 105869

Mumbai
May 16, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis for opinion

To the Members of Hindalco Industries Limited

Reporton the audit of the standalone financial statements

Opinion

1.

We have audited the standalone financial statements
of Hindalco Industries Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the balance sheet as at March
31, 2019, the statement of profit and loss, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
standalone financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2019, and total comprehensive
loss (comprising of profit and other comprehensive
loss), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
then ended.

3.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the
audit of the standalone financial statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the standalone financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

4.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the standalone financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the standalone financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

A.

Measurement of inventory quantities of coal, bauxite and
work in progress consisting of precious metals

Refer Notes1D (j) and 11 (d) to the standalone financial
statements.

Of the Company’s ¥ 11,394.46 crores of inventory as at
March 31, 2019, ¥ 1,730 crores of inventory comprised
of coal, bauxite and work in progress consisting of
precious metals.

This was determined a key audit matter, as the
measurement of these inventory quantities lying at the
Company’s yards, smelter and refinery is complex and
involves significant judgement and estimate resulting
from measuring the surface area, dip measurement of
materials in tanks/silos, etc.

The Company uses internal and external experts,as
applicable to perform volumetric surveys and
assessments, basis which the quantity for these
inventories is estimated.

Our audit procedures relating to the measurement of
inventory quantities of coal, bauxite and work in progress of
precious metals included the following:

Understanding and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of controls over physical count
and measurement of such inventory;

Evaluation of competency and
management’s experts;

capabilities  of

Physically observing inventory measurement and count
procedures carried out by management using experts,to
ensure its appropriateness and completeness; and

Obtaining and inspecting,inventory measurement and
physical count results for such inventories, including
assessing and evaluating the results of analysis
performed by management in respect of differences
between book and physical quantities.

Based on the above procedures performed, we did not
identify any material exceptions in the measurement of
inventory quantities of coal, bauxite and work in progress
inventories consisting of precious metals.
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

B.

Provisions recognised and contingencies disclosed
with regard to certain legal and tax matters

Refer Notes1D (i), 10, 21, 25, 45 and 46 to the
standalone financial statements.

As at March 31, 2019, the Company has paid deposits
under protest, recognised provisions and disclosed
contingent liabilities towards various legal and
tax matters. There are number of legal, direct and
indirect tax cases against the Company, including
environmental, mining, local and state levies, income
tax holidays, availing of input tax credits etc.

This is a key audit matter, as evaluation of these
matters requires management judgement and
estimation, interpretation of laws and regulations and
application of relevant judicial precedents to determine
the probability of outflow of economic resources for
recognising provisions and making related disclosures
in the standalone financial statements.

Our audit procedures relating to provisions recognised and
contingencies disclosed regarding certain legal and tax
matters included the following:

Understanding and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of controls over the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosures made in
the standalone financial statements in respect of these
matters;

Obtaining details of legal and tax matters, inspecting
the supporting documents to evaluate management’s
assessment of probability of outcome and the magnitude
of potential loss, and testing related provisions and
disclosures in the standalone financial statements;

Reviewing orders and other communication from
regulatory authorities and management responses
thereto;

Reviewing management expert’s legal advice and
opinion as applicable, obtained by the Company’s
management for evaluating certain legal matters and
evaluating competence and capabilities of the experts;
and

Using auditor’s experts for assistance in evaluating
certain significant and complex direct and indirect tax
matters.

Based on the above procedures performed, we did not
identify any material exceptions in the provision recognised
and contingent liabilities disclosed in the standalone financial
statements with regard to such legal and tax matters.

Accounting of derivatives and hedging transactions

(Refer Notes 1B (P), 9, 20, and 52 to the standalone
financial statements.)

Company’s financial performance is significantly
impacted by fluctuations in prices of aluminium, copper,
gold, silver, furnace ail, coal, foreign exchange rates
and interest rates. The Company takes a structured
approach to the identification, quantification and
hedging of such risks by using various derivatives (e.g.
forwards, swaps, futures and embedded derivatives) in
commodities and / or foreign currencies. These hedges
are designated as either cashflow or fair value hedges,
and in certain cases remains non-designated.

As at March 31, 2019, the carrying value of the
Company’s derivatives included derivative assets
amounting to ¥ 935.43 crores and derivative liabilities
of ¥ 537.27 crores.

Our audit procedures related to accounting of derivative and
hedging transactions included the following:

Understanding and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of controls over accounting of derivative
and hedging transactions;

Testing qualifying criteria for hedge accounting in
accordance with Ind AS 109, including:

v Understanding the risk management objectives
and strategies for different types of hedging
programs;

v Evaluating that the hedging relationship consists
only of eligible hedging instruments and hedged
items;
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

Derivative and hedge accounting is considered a
key audit matter, because of its significance to the
financial statements, the volume, nature and types of
hedging relationships,including complexity involved
in the application of hedge accounting principles in
accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments.

Vv Using auditor’s expert for assistance in verifying
hedge effectiveness requirements of Ind AS 109,
including the economic relationship between the
hedged item and the hedging instrument.

e  Evaluating competence and capabilities of the auditor’s
experts;

e Testing appropriateness of hedge accounting to
qualified hedge relationships i.e. cash flow and fair
value hedges;

e Testing related presentation and disclosures in the
standalone financial statements.

Based on the above procedures performed, we did not
identify any material exceptions in the amounts, presentation
and disclosures made in the standalone financial statements
relating to accounting of derivatives and hedging
transactions.

Assessment of indication of impairment and the
recoverable amount (RA)of certain Cash Generating
Units (CGUs)within the Aluminium segment

Refer Notes1D (a), 2, 4 and 41 to stand alone financial
statements.

External sources of information such as changes in
the market and economic environment, including
increase in the cost of input materials and decline
in the Aluminium metal prices, required Company’s
management to assess whether there is any indication
of impairment and therefore make an estimate of RA
of certain CGUs within Aluminium segment having
carrying value of net assets of ¥ 29,413 crores as at
March 31, 2019.

Based on such indications, impairment testing
was performed by the Company’s management in
accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 36,
Impairment of Assets. Management has calculated the
RA of the CGUs using value in use method.

This is a key audit matter,pbecause of the significant
carrying value of these CGUs and the estimation
uncertainty in assumptions used for calculating the
RA of these CGUs such as future metal prices, foreign
exchange rates, discount rate, input costs and rate of
growth over the estimation period.

Our audit procedures related to assessment of indication of
impairment and RA of these CGUs included the following:

e Understanding and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of controls over identification
and assessment of any potential impairment, including
determining the carrying amount and RA of the CGUs;

e Using auditor's experts for testing appropriateness
of the method and model used for determining RA,
mathematical accuracy of the models’ calculations and
evaluating reasonableness of key assumptions used in
future cash flow projections such as future metal prices,
foreign exchange rates, discount rate, input costs and
rate of growth over the estimation period;

e  Evaluating competence and capabilities of the auditor’s
experts;

e  Performing sensitivity analysis over key assumptions to
corroborate that RA is within a reasonable range; and

e Testing related presentation and disclosures in the
standalone financial statements.

Based on the above procedures performed, we did not note
any material exceptions in the management’s assessment of
the indication of impairment and conclusion that the RA of
these CGUs within the Aluminium segment were not lower
than their respective carrying amounts.

Other information

5.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
other information. The other information comprise the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon. The annual report is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the standalone financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that
there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance and take appropriate action as applicable
under the relevant laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with
governance for the standalone financial statements

6.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible
for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the standalone financial statement that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements,
management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board
of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the standalone
financial statements

8.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
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to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e  Obtainanunderstanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances.
Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in
place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

e  Concludeonthe appropriateness of management’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
pased on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.



10.

11.

12.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance
with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

13.

14.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of
section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the
“‘Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those
books;

(c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and
loss, the statement of changes in equity and the
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statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations
received from the directors as on March 31, 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of
the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019
from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in “Annexure B”;

With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position in
its standalone financial statements — Refer
Notes 45 and 46 to the standalone financial
statements;

i.  TheCompanyhasmade provision, asrequired
under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses,
if any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts — Refer Notes 20 and 46
to the standalone financial statements;

ii. There has been no delay in transferring
amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company except amount of % 0.07 crore;
and

iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to
Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2019.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/ E-300009

Sumit Seth
Partner
Membership Number: 105869

Mumbai
May 16, 2019
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Hindalco Industries
Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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(@) The Company is maintaining proper records
showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets are physically verified by the
Management according to a phased programme
designed to cover all the items over a period of2 to
3 years, which, in our, is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion of
the fixed assets has been physically verified by
the Management during the year, and no material
discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties, as
disclosed in Note 2 on Property, Plant and
Equipment and Note 3 on Investment Property
to the standalone financial statements, are held
in the name of the Company, except for the
following:

i. in respect of freehold land (Birla Copper
and Muri unit) having gross block of ¥ 0.32
crore and building (Birla copper unit, Delhi
and Mumbai branch) having gross block of
¥ 11.43 crores, the title deeds of which are
held in the name of erstwhile companies
which have subsequently been amalgamated
with the Company;

i. in respect of freehold land (Mahan and
Kathotia unit) having gross block of
¥ 30.87crores, the title deeds of which are yet
to be transferred in the name of the Company;
and

iii. inrespect of freehold land (Birla copper unit)
and building (Birla copper unit, Mumbai and
Delhi branch) having gross block of ¥ 0.50
crore and ¥ 15.73 crores, respectively,the
title deeds of which are presently not readily
available with the Company.

The physical verification of inventory, excluding
stocks with third parties,have been conducted at
reasonable intervals by the Management during the
year. In respect of inventory lying with third parties,
these have substantially been confirmed by them.
The discrepancies noticed on physical verification
of inventory as compared to book records were not
material.
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Vi.

Vii.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured
or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the
register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.
Therefore, the provisions of Clauses3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b)
and (iii)(c) of the said Order are not applicable to the
Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186
of the Companies Act, 2013,in respect of the loans
and investments made, and guarantees and security
provided by it.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the
public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and
76 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder to the
extent notified.

Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government
of India, the Company is required to maintain cost
records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act
in respect of its products. We have broadly reviewed
the same, and are of the opinion that, primafacie, the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed
examination of the records with a view to determine
whether they are accurate or complete.

(a) According to the information and explanations
given to us, and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company
is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues in respect of provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, sales tax, income
tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax, cess, goods and service tax,and
other material statutory dues, as applicable, with
the appropriate authorities. Also refer Note 31 to
the standalone financial statements regarding
management’s assessment on certain matters
relating to provident fund.

(b) According to the information and explanations
given to us, and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no dues of income
tax which have not been deposited on account
of any dispute. The particulars of dues of sales
tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax and goods and service tax as at
March 31, 2019, which have not been deposited
on account of a dispute, are as follows:
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Name of the Statute

Nature of Dues

Zin crores* Period to which the amount relates Forum where the disputes are pending

Central Sales Tax Act  Sales tax 26.77 1995-2009, 2014-2016 Assistant Commissioner/Commissioner/
and Local Sales Tax Deputy Commissioner/ Revisionary
(including VAT) Act Authorities Level/Joint Commissioner/
Additional Commissioner (A)
0.46 2005-2006, 2009-2011 Tribunal
32.51 1986-1987,1989-1991, High Court
1999-2007, 2012-2013
The Central Excise Excise duty  7.13 2000-2004, 2006-2009, Assistant Commissioner/ Commissioner/
Act, 1944 2012-2018 Revisionary Authorities Level
723.41 2001-2018 Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate
Tribunal (CESTAT)
The Customs Act, 1962 Custom Duty 0.05 2004-2005 Commissioner (Appeal)
23.36 2009-2014, 2016-2017 Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate
Tribunal (CESTAT)
The Service Tax under ~ Service Tax  4.24 2001-2002, 2007-2017 Assistant Commissioner/ Commissioner/
the Finance Act, 1994 Revisionary Authorities Level
332.79 2004-2018 Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate
Tribunal (CESTAT)
The Central Goods and Goods and ~ 27.12 2017-2018 High Court
Service Tax Act, 2017  service tax

* Exclude matters in respect of which favourable order has been received at various appellate authorities.

viii.

Xi.

Xii.

According to the records of the Company examined by
us, and the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or
borrowings to any banks, financial institutions,or dues
to debenture holders as at the balance sheet date. The
Company does not have any loans or borrowings from
Government as at the balance sheet date, therefore the
provisions of Clause 3(viii) of the Order, to the extent,
are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the moneys raised by way
of term loans have been applied for the purposes for
which they were obtained. The Company has not raised
any moneys during the year by way of initial public offer
and further public offer (including debt instruments).

During the course of our examination of the books and
records of the Company, carried out in accordance with
the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and
according to the information and explanations given
to us, we have neither come across any instance of
material fraud by the Company or on the Company by
its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the
year, nor have we been informed of any such case by
the Management.

The Company has paid/ provided for managerial
remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company, and the Nidhi
Rules, 2014, are not applicable to it, the provisions

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with
related parties in compliance with the provisions of
Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such
related party transactions have been disclosed in the
standalone financial statements as required under
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party
Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment
or private placement of shares, or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review.
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected
with them to which Section 192 of the Act applies.
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under
Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/ E-300009

Sumit Seth
Partner
Membership Number: 105869

Mumbai
May 16, 2019
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HINDALCO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 14 (f) of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Hindalco Industries
Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Report on the internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements under
clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements of
Hindalco Industries Limited (“the Company”) as of
March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management’s responsibility for internal financial controls

2.

The Company’s management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These
responsibilities include the design,implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s responsibility

3.

62

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company’s internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the“Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the
ICAIl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to standalone
financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls
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with reference to standalone financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial
controls system with reference to standalone financial
statements.

Meaning of internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements

6.

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
standalone financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. Acompany’s internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail,accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of standalone
financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company'’s assets that could have a material effect on
the standalone financial statements.

Inherent limitations of internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls  with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.



Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects,
an adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to standalone financial statements and such
internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal

CORPORATE STATUTORY FINANCIAL
OVERVIEW REPORTS STATEMENTS

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/ E-300009

Sumit Seth
Partner
Membership Number: 105869

Mumbai
May 16, 2019
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HINDALCO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

ABRIDGED STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET

as at March 31, 2019

% in Crore
As At As At
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 33,168.95 33,999.58
Capital Work in Progress 947.00 736.25
Investment Property 8.80 9.03
Intangible Assets 345.03 355.55
Intangible Assets Under Development 34.82 0.48
Financial Assets
Investment in Subsidiaries 16,777.87 16,596.93
Investment in Associates 28.51 14.27
Other Investments 4,916.20 6,638.47
Loans 17.63 5.88
Other Financial Assets 276.73 311.54
Non Current Tax Assets (Net) 281.80 1,242.79
Other Non-Current Assets 1,161.98 861.49
57,965.32 60,772.26
Current Assets
Inventories 11,394.46 10,738.38
Financial Assets
Other Investments 3,772.32 3,775.59
Trade Receivables 2,124.88 1,737.25
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,514.68 1,809.45
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 65.19 11.90
Loans 58.05 54.57
Other Financial Assets 1,134.65 1,373.24
Current Tax Assets 1,423.38 316.55
Other Current Assets 1,954.97 2,064.73
23,442.58 21,881.66
Non-current Assets or Disposal Groups Classified as Held For Sale or as Held For
Distribution to Owners 94.33 74.99
23,536.91 21,956.65
81,502.23 82,728.91
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 222.39 222.89
Other Equity 48,335.30 49,227.85
48,557.69 49,450.74
Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 15,633.88 17,198.94
Trade Payables
(I) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and - -
(I total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small

. 1.55 24.04

enterprises
Other Financial Liabilities 70.32 138.91
Provisions 409.86 404.10
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 2,179.68 1,922.18
Other Non-current Liabilities 642.13 640.31
18,937.42 20,328.48
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Zin Crore
As At As At
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 3,895.10 3,092.96
Trade Payables
(I) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and 14.32 4.66
(1 tGOr:?eIrc;L;itss;zndmg dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 5.719.35 5.519.39
Other Current financial Liabilities 1,885.19 2,079.63
Provisions 709.82 658.31
Other Current Liabilities 684.66 77817
Contract Liabilities 126.38 -
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 972.27 816.54
14,007.09 12,949.66
Liabilities Associated with Non-current Assets or Disposal Group classified as Held For
Sale or as Held For Distribution to Owners 0.03 0.08
14,007.12 12,949.69
32,944.54 33,278.17
81,502.23 82,728.91

Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Refer Note 1 of Audited Standalone Financial Statements)

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Abridged Standalone Financial Statements
This is the Abridged Standalone Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Hindalco Industries Limited
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/ E-300009

Sumit Seth Praveen Kumar Maheshwari Satish Pai
Partner Whole-time Director & Managing Director
Membership Number: 105869 Chief Financial Officer DIN-06646758
DIN-00174361
Anil Malik M M Bhagat
Company Secretary Director

DIN-00006245
Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 16, 2019
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HINDALCO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

ABRIDGED STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

for the year ended March 31, 2019

% in Crore
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
INCOME
Revenue from Operations 45,749.16 43,446.04
Other Income 940.03 947.82
Total Income 46,689.19 44,393.86
EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 27,246.84 25,414.04
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 235.03 4.92
Changes in inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-Trade (381.60) (419.23)
Excise Duty on Sales - 636.89
Employee Benefits Expense 1,981.71 1,894.65
Power and Fuel 6,936.94 6,030.11
Finance Cost 1,683.04 1,900.54
Depreciation and Amortization 1,693.16 1,617.32
Other Expense 5,483.63 4,760.59
Total Expenses 44,878.75 41,839.83
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax 1,810.44 2,5654.08
Exceptional income (expense) - (325.21)
Profit/(Loss) before tax 1,810.44 2,228.82
Tax Expenses
Current tax 374.80 412.44
Deferred tax 230.21 379.89
605.01 792.33
Profit/(Loss) for the year 1,205.43 1,436.49
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Defined Benefit Obligation (3.51) 62.08
Change in fair value of equity instruments designated as FVTOCI (1,736.19) 380.83
Income tax effect 2.41 (21.84)
Items that will be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
Change in fair value of debt instruments designated as FVTOCI 2.37 (1.56)
Cash flow hedges 83.82 826.42
Income tax effect (30.12) (288.78)
Other Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the year (1,681.22) 957.15
Total comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the year (475.79) 2,393.64
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% in Crore

Year ended Year ended

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Earnings Per Share
Earnings per equity share

Basic (%) 5.41 6.45
Diluted (%) 5.41 6.45

Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Refer Note 1 of Audited Standalone Financial Statements)

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Abridged Standalone Financial Statements
This is the Abridged Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss referred in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Hindalco Industries Limited

Firm Registration Number: 304026E/ E-300009

Sumit Seth Praveen Kumar Maheshwari
Partner Whole-time Director &
Membership Number: 105869 Chief Financial Officer
DIN-00174361
Anil Malik

Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 16, 2019

Satish Pai
Managing Director
DIN-06646758

M M Bhagat
Director
DIN-00006245

Greener. Stronger. Smarter 67



HINDALCO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

. . R R R E (000sl) - - - 00°051 - - - - - aMasay Uolidulapay ainjuageq o} Jajsues]
(9e208) - - - - - (98208) - - - - - - - - - Xe} PUSpIAIP PUB Saseys Ainb3 uo spuspinig
00 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 00 Jeaf ay} Bulinp panjadal Asuop uoifedlddy areys
(6Lsv)  (G689T) (€€'GKT) 98'66T vST (z0seL'T) 9Te0LT - - - - - - - - - 1eak 8y} 10§ (SS07)/8WO0OU| BAISUBYBIAWOY [e10)
(22189 (56'89'1) (ee'Svl) 98°661 vo'L (zoses't) (lea) - - - - - - - - - (3507)/eW00u| BAISUBYRIdW0D Jai)
ereet - - - - - ersoct - - - - - - - - - 1eak 8y} 1o} 10id
S8LTZ6y  0TTELY TEL9 (ST 66T 776809 S'890y  9T'SE'Te €8'aT 00°006 LTL6T8  LLWTLL LSTOT ySyvT - 910 8T0C YIB\ TE 1 Se dduejeg
10811 98998 vL'T€C  SE'WOE (2071) 8L'6T¢ 79960'T - (L811) 00057 §eLe - . . 910 sabueyo ejoL
96+ - - - - - - - - S6't - - - - - - sasuadx3 suond aleyg sakojdu
erel - - - - - - - - (eget) - e - - - - S0S3 Japun panss| saieys Ainb3
. . R : . : (ooog) - - - 00051 - - - - - aMasay uoduiapey aInjuageq o} Jajsues]
(Ll16e) - - - - - (Lh162) - - - - - - - - - Xe] puspIAp pue saseys Ainb3 uo spusping
- G019 - - - (50'19) ol - - - - - - - - - Aunb3 ur peusisuell 190 LA4 Anb3 uo ssojjuied pesiesy
910 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 910 Jeak ay) Bulinp panadal Asuop uoiedddy areys
v9e6ET 06916 viT€r  Sevoe  (207) €8'08¢ YUY - - - - - - - - - 1eak 3y} 10§ aWO0U BAISUBYRIAWOY el0)
GH'/96 0696 vLeEc  SEW0E (z01) £8'08¢ GOy - - - - - - - - - BUIOOUI BAISUBYBIAWOD Jayl)
(A - - - - 6r9evt - - - - - - - - - 1eak oy Joj 1joid
v860T'Ly  SE'G/8G  LSPTy  (68°G0E)  T0°E 99'€9L'G €8'7/6'C 9TVSE'TC - 0L'Le 00062 66918 LLVTLL LST0T YT - LTOZ YOIB|N TE Te se auefeg
o A ) St Sty s oy S SO S g S S | vmory
[eoL 101500 %,“Mwnmn_ Am%m%cﬁ__mow AMM_M_WH“_“M POURISY IO oo s funseal,  oako/dwI  eimjuageq ssauisng fenden rended :w_ano_. d Q<z sIe|noiled
SOM3SaY JAUIO sn|ding pue saniasay s
31010 U 3
Aunb3 Jeuio .8,
6e'zee 6102 YOreIA T€ Je s [eyde areys Ainb3
(05°0) 61-81.0¢ Bulnp fedea aseys Anb3 u sabuey)
68'72C 810z YoIe TE e se [ended areys Ainb3
L0 81-£10z Bupnp feyded ereys Ainb3 uf sebuey)
e LT02 YIeiN T€ Je Se [elided areys Aunb3
Junowy SIe[naled
(sl ury)

ende aieys Aunb3

6T0Z ‘TE Yose\ papua Jeak ay) 1o}

ALINO3 NI SIONVHO 40 LININTLVLS INOTVANVIS a3oalygyv

Abridged Annual Report 2018-19

68



STATUTORY FINANCIAL

REPORTS

CORPORATE
OVERVIEW

STATEMENTS

S¥¢90000-NId
Joyana

rebeyg N N

8G/9%7990-NId
J1010041Q Buibeuey

fed ysies

Arelai0as Auedwo)
AlleN Uy

T9EY.TO0-NIA
19210 [eldueUIS JOIYD
9 1010941Q SWN-3]0YAM
llemMysayeA Jewn) usaneld

paliWiT SalIsNpu| 02[epUIH JO pieogd ay) Jo J[eyaq uo pue Jo4

6102 ‘9t Aepy
requiniy

pareg
208|d

69850T :JoqunN diysiaquiaiy
lauyed
yies yuwns

60000€-3 /392070€ :JaquinN uonensifay w4
d77 S1UBIUNOD2Y palalieyd 0D ® 9SNOYIalep 891id 104

a1ep uans Jo 1odal Ino ul pallajel Ainb3 ul sebBuey) Jo JusWalelS auojepuels pabipligy ayl si siyL
SjusWalelg [BloUBUIH duoepurlS pabpLqy ayl jo led [eibaiul ue ale sajoN BulAuedwoooe ay |

(S1uBWale]S [e1aUBUI4 BUO[EPURIS PaYIPNY JO T B10N Jajay) S8191|0d Bununoday Jueayiubis pue uonesedald Jo Siseg

08GeE'sy  SPTS0S 86T0S  CGL6T €9 were'y SISy 9TYSE'Te (S0'EzT) A 000807 879028 LLYTLL 1ST0T vSPPT 010 6T0Z YoJeN TE I Se 30uefeg
(G5z68)  (62'629'T) (€€'SvT) 90°%66T  ¥ST (20'eL'T) 08sr. - (soez) or's 00057 6 - - - (90°0) sabueyd ol
(080) (0g0) - (08°0) - - - - - : : . } . . i $15S8 [BIOUBUI-UOU
080 080 080 0} pauajsue} BuiBpay Jo 1500 pue ssoj /(urel) BuiBpaH
(soee) - - - - - - - (soeet) - - - - - - - 1sni 8y} Aq paunboe sareys
06 . . - . - - - - 0/'6 - - - - - - sasuadx3 suoidQ aleug safojdws
597 - - - - - - - - (et) - 116 - - - (9r0) 5033 sepun panssi saseys Anb3
afpsH D04 100LAd
el Mnﬂmmwm MO|4 yse) sjuswnisul syuawnnsul  sbuluey  aniasay E\Nﬁ 5 mm“__u%smwﬂvo :om_ﬁmww wniwald co_wp__wmmwom :om_\%ww aNasay  Iuswio|ly
feloL RO .mﬂ_._ jouonlod 1geguo  Aunb3uo  paurelsy  [eIeURY mwn__mmm_aﬂmﬁ mw.woogm: N SL ua w ¥ sanunoas .mecﬁ_mz ¥ .M_%u % feudey Bupuad fouop SIe[naNIed
109590 ey (sso) ues  (ss0)) ureo US MNSEalL - safojdld - simuagsa sng [ded uopeayddy !

SOAIBSAY I1BYI0

aleys
snjding pue sanasay

8l0IQ Ul 2

69

Greener. Stronger. Smarter



HINDALCO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

ABRIDGED STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the Year ended March 31, 2019

% in Crore
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Cash Generated Grom/(Used in) Operating Activities 2,918.36 4,414.39
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net Cash Generated from/(Used in) Investing Activities (554.05) 2,282.65
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net Cash Generated from/(Used in) Financing Activities (2,657.20) (9,187.57)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (292.89) (2,490.53)
Add: Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents before Fair Value Gain/Loss on Liquid Investments 1,805.44 4,295.96
Cash and cash equivalents before fair value gain/(loss) on liquid investments 1,512.55 1,805.43
Add: Fair Value Gain/(Loss) on Liquid Investments 213 4.02
Cash and Cash Equivalents as reported in Balance Sheet 1,514.68 1,809.45

Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Refer Note 1 of Audited Standalone Financial Statements)

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Abridged Standalone Financial Statements
This is the Abridged Standalone Statement of Cash Flows referred in our report of even date

Satish Pai
Managing Director
DIN-06646758

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Hindalco Industries Limited
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/ E-300009

Sumit Seth Praveen Kumar Maheshwari

Partner Whole-time Director &

Membership Number: 105869 Chief Financial Officer

DIN-00174361

Anil Malik
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 16, 2019
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ABRIDGED STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

1A.

Note 1 of Audited Standalone Financial
Statement

Company Overview

Hindalco Industries Limited (‘the Company”) was
incorporated in India in the year 1958 having its
registered office at Ahura Centre, 1st Floor, B Wing,
Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai -
400098.

The Company has two main streams of business
Aluminium and Copper. In Aluminium, the Company
caters to the entire value chain starting from mining of
bauxite and coal through production of value added
products for various applications.

The Company also has one of the largest single location
Copper smelting facility in India.

The equity shares of the Company are listed on the
Indian Stock Exchanges (National Stock Exchange &
Bombay Stock Exchange) and GDRs are listed on the
Luxemburg Stock Exchange.

Note 1A of Audited Standalone Financial Statements

Basis of preparation

The separate financial statements of Hindalco
Industries Limited (“the Company”) comply in all
material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards
(“Ind-AS”) as prescribed under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), as notified under
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (including subsequent amendments) and
other accounting principles generally accepted in
India.

The financial statements for the year ended 31st March
2019 have been approved by the Board of Directors of
the Company in their meeting held on 16th May, 2019.

The financial statements have been prepared on
historical cost convention on accrual basis except
for following assets and liabilities which have been
measured at fair value:

o Financial instruments - measured at fair value;

° Assets held for sale - measured at fair value less
cost to sell;

e Plan assets under defined benefit plans -
measured at fair value; and

e  Employee share-based payments - measured at
fair value

In addition, the carrying values of recognised assets
and liabilities designated as hedged items in fair value
hedges that would otherwise be carried at cost are

adjusted torecord changes in the fair values attributable
to the risks that are being hedged in effective hedge
relationship.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
assetor paid to transfer aliability inan orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Company take into account the characteristics of
the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for employee share-based payment, leasing
transactions, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in Inventories or value in use
in Impairment of Assets. The basis of fair valuation
of these items are given as part of their respective
accounting policies.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the Company can access at the measurement
date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e |level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

Adoption of new Accounting Standards

The Company has applied the following
Accounting Standards and its amendments for the first
time for annual reporting period commencing April
1,2018:

° Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

e Amendment to Ind AS 20, Accounting for
Government Grant and Disclosure of Government
Assistance.
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e  Appendix B, Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration to Ind AS 21, The Effects
of Change in Foreign Exchange Rate

° Amendment to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes
e Amendment to Ind AS 40, Investment Property

° Amendment to Ind AS 28, Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures and Ind AS
112,Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities

The Company had to change its accounting policies
following the adoption of Ind AS 115. Most of the other
amendments listed above did not have any impact on
the amounts recognized in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current and future
periods.

The Financial Statements have been presented in
Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in INR has
been rounded off to the nearest two decimals of Crore
unless otherwise stated.

Note 1B of Audited Standalone Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies
applied in the preparation of the financial statements
are as given below. These accounting policies have
been applied consistently to all the periods presented
in the financial statements.

A. Investment in Subsidiaries and joint ventures
The investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures
are carried in the financial statements at historical
cost except when the investment, or a portion
thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which
case it is accounted for as Non-current assets
held for sale and discontinued operations. When
the Company is committed to a sale plan involving
disposal of an investment, or a portion of an
investment, in any subsidiary or joint venture, the
investment or the portion of the investment that
will be disposed of is classified as held for sale
when the criteria described above are met. Any
retained portion of an investment in a subsidiary or
a joint venture that has not been classified as held
for sale continues to be accounted for at historical
cost.

B. Investment in Associates
The investments in associates are carried in these
financial statements at fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI) except when the
investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as
held for sale, in which case it is presented as
Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
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operations. When the Company is committed to
a sale plan involving disposal of an investment,
or a portion of an investment in an associate the
investment or the portion of the investment that will
be disposed of is classified as held for sale when
the criteria described above are met. Any retained
portion of an investment in an associate that has
not been classified as held for sale continues to be
accounted for at fair value through OCI.

Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate and the fair value of retained investment
and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit
or loss.

Investment in joint operation

Ajoint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the assets, and obligations for the
liabilities, relating to the arrangement. Joint control
is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

When the Company undertakes its activities under
joint operations, the Company as a joint operator
recognises in relation to its interest in a joint
operation:

e jts assets, including its share of any assets
held jointly;

o its liabilities, including its share of any
liabilities incurred jointly;

o its revenue from the sale of its share of the
output arising from the joint operation;

° its share of the revenue from the sale of the
output by the joint operation; and

e jts expenses, including its share of any
expenses incurred jointly

The Company accounts for the assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses relating to its interest in
a joint operation in accordance with the standard
applicable to the particular assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses.

When the Company transacts with a joint operation
in which the Company is a joint operator (such as
a sale or contribution of assets), the Company
is considered to be conducting the transaction
with the other parties to the joint operation, and
gains and losses resulting from the transactions
are recognised in the financial statements only
to the extent of other parties’ interests in the joint
operation.



When the Company transacts with a joint operation
in which the Company is a joint operator (such as
a purchase of assets), the Company does not
recognise its share of the gains and losses until it
resells those assets to a third party.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the
production or/fand supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes, are stated in the
balance sheet at cost, less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

The initial cost at cash price equivalence
of property, plant and equipment acquired
comprises its purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes,
any directly attributable costs of bringing the
assets to its working condition and location and
present value of any obligatory decommissioning
costs for its intended use. Cost may also include
effective portion on qualifying cash flow hedges
of foreign currency purchases of property, plant
and equipment transferred from hedge reserve as
basis adjustment.

In case of self-constructed assets, cost includes
the costs of all materials used in construction,
direct labour, allocation of overheads, directly
attributable borrowing costs and effective portion
of cash flow hedges of foreign currency transferred
from the hedge reserve as basis adjustment.

Subsequent expenditure on major maintenance
or repairs includes the cost of the replacement
of parts of assets and overhaul costs. Where
an asset or part of an asset is replaced and it is
probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will be available to the Company,
the expenditure is capitalised and the carrying
amount of the item replaced is derecognised.
Similarly, overhaul costs associated with major
maintenance are capitalised and depreciated
over their useful lives where it is probable that
future economic benefits will be available and any
remaining carrying amounts of the cost of previous
overhauls are derecognised. All other costs are
expensed as incurred.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress comprises of assets in
the course of construction for production or/and
supply of goods or services or administrative
purposes, or for purposes not yet determined, are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss. At the point when an asset is operating

CORPORATE STATUTORY FINANCIAL
OVERVIEW REPORTS STATEMENTS

at management’s intended use, the cost of
construction is transferred to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment. Costs
associated with the commissioning of an asset are
capitalised where the asset is available for use
but incapable of operating at normal levels until
a period of commissioning has been completed.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost
or value of assets, over their estimated useful
lives or, in the case of leased assets (including
leasehold improvements), over the lease term
if shorter. The lease period is considered by
excluding any lease renewals options, unless the
renewals are reasonably certain. Depreciation
is recorded using the straight line basis. The
estimated useful lives and residual values are
reviewed at each year end, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis. Each component of an item of
property, plant and equipment with a cost that is
significant in relation to the total cost of that item is
depreciated separately if its useful life differs from
the others components of the asset.

Depreciation commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use. Depreciated assets
in Property, Plant & Equipment and accumulated
depreciation amounts are retained fully until they
are removed from service.

The useful life of the items of PPE estimated by
the management for the current and comparative
period are in line with the useful life as per
Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

Disposal of assets

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss.

Investment property

Investment properties held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation or both are stated in
the balance sheet at cost, less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation
is charged on a straight line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Any gain or loss on disposal
of investment property is determined as the
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difference between net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the property and is recognized
in the statement of profit and loss. Transfer to, or
from, investment property is done at the carrying
amount of the property.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately
Intangible assets acquired are reported at cost
less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortization is charged on a
straight line basis over their estimated useful lives
other than Mining rights. The estimated useful life
and amortization method are reviewed at the end
of each annual reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Internally-generated intangible assets
Expenditure on research activities is recognized
as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising
from development (or from the development
phase of an internal project) is recognized if, and
only if all of the following can be demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for
use or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it;

° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate
probable future economic benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical,
financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the intangible
asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognized for internally-
generated intangible assets is the sum of
the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset is recognised. Where no
internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognized, development expenditure is charged
to the statement of profit and loss in the period in
which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-
generated intangible assets are reported at cost
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less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets acquired separately.

Mineral Reserves, Resources and Rights
(Mining Rights)

Mineral reserves, resources and rights (together
mining rights) which can be reasonably valued,
are recognised in the assessment of fair values
on acquisition. Exploitable mineral rights are
amortised using the unit of production basis over
the commercially recoverable reserves. Mineral
resources are included in amortisation calculations
where there is a high degree of confidence that
they will be extracted in an economic manner.
Commercially recoverable reserves are proved
and probable reserves. Changes in the commercial
recoverable reserves affecting unit of production
calculations are dealt with prospectively over the
revised remaining reserves.

De-recognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss
when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are
tested for impairment annually, and whenever
there is an indication that the asset may be
impaired.

Stripping cost

Stripping costs incurred during the mining
production phase are allocated between cost of
inventory produced and the existing mine asset.
The stripping ratio, as approved by the regulatory
authority, for the life of the mine is obtained by
dividing the estimated quantity of overburden by
the estimated quantity of mineable coal / bauxite
reserve to be extracted over the life of the mine.
This ratio is periodically reviewed and changes, if
any, are accounted for prospectively.

Stripping costs are allocated and included as a
component of the mine asset when they represent
significantly improved access to ore, provided all
the following conditions are met:

e itis probable that the future economic benefit
associated with the stripping activity will be
realised;



e the component of the ore body for which
access has been improved can be identified;
and

e the costs relating to the stripping activity
associated with the improved access can be
reliably measured.

The overburden removal costs are included
in Mining Rights under Intangible assets and
amortised based on stripping ratio on the quantity
of coal / bauxite excavated.

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held
for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are
classified as held for sale if their carrying amount
will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the
asset (or disposal Group) is available forimmediate
sale in its present condition subject only to terms
that are usual and customary for sales of such
asset (or disposal Group) and its sale is highly
probable. Management must be committed to
the sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year
from the date of classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups)
classified as held for sale are measured at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible,
intangible and other non-financial assets to
determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset/cash generating unit is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of
fair value less cost to sell and Value in use. Where it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
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value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the statement of profit
and loss.

Non-financial assets (other than Goodwill) that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Where an impairment loss
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the statement of profit
and loss.

Foreign currency Transactions

In preparing the financial statements, transactions
in currencies other than the Company’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items are measured at historical
cost.

Exchange differences on monetary items are
recognised in the separate statement of profit and
loss in the period in which they arise, except for:

e eligible exchange differences on foreign
currency borrowings relating to qualifying
assets under construction are included in the
cost of those assets when they are regarded
as an adjustment to interest; and

e exchange differences on transactions
entered into in order to hedge certain
foreign currency risks (see below for hedge
accounting policies).

Changes in the fair value of financial asset
denominated in foreign currency classified as
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Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
are analysed between differences resulting from
exchange differences related to changes in the
amortised cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. Exchange
differences related to changes in amortised cost
are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss, and other changes in carrying amount are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Changes in the fair value of non-monetary equity
instruments irrevocably classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income includes
gain or loss on account of exchange differences.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated
in a foreign currency is translated at the spot rate
at the end of the reporting period. The foreign
exchange component forms part of its fair value
gain or loss.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognized when there is a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event and it is probable (“more likely than
not”) that it is required to settle the obligation, and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the balance sheet date,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the estimated cash flows to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows. The discount
rate used is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
in that jurisdiction and the risks specific to the
liability.

Onerous contracts

Presentobligations arising under onerous contracts
are recognised and measured as provisions. An
onerous contract is considered to exist when a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of
meeting the obligations exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from it.

Restructurings

A restructuring provision is recognised when there
is a detailed formal plan for the restructuring which
has raised a valid expectation in those affected.
The measurement of a restructuring provision
includes only the direct expenditures arising from
the restructuring.
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Restoration (including Mine closure),
rehabilitation and decommissioning
Close-down and restoration costs are provided
for in the accounting period when the obligation
arising from the related disturbance occurs,
based on the net present value of the estimated
future costs of restoration to be incurred
during the life of the mining operation and
post closure. Provisions for close-down and
restoration costs do not include any additional
obligations which are expected to arise from future
disturbance.

The initial close-down and restoration provision
is capitalised. Subsequent movements in the
close-down and restoration provisions for ongoing
operations, including those resulting from new
disturbance related to expansions or other
activities qualifying for capitalisation, updated
cost estimates, changes to the estimated lives
of operations, changes to the timing of closure
activities and revisions to discount rates are also
capitalised within “Property, plant and equipment”.

Environmental liabilities
Environment liabilities are recognised when
the Company becomes obliged, legally or
constructively, to rectify environmental damage or
perform remediation work.

Litigation

Provision relating to legal, tax and other matters
is recognised once it has been established that
the Company has a present obligation based on
consideration of the information which becomes
available up to the date on which the Company’s
financial statements are approved and may
in some cases entail seeking expert advice in
making the determination on whether there is a
present obligation.

Contingent Liabilities and Assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from a past event, with the resolution of
the contingency dependent on uncertain future
events, or a present obligation where no outflow
is probable. Material contingent liabilities are
disclosed in the financial statements unless the
possibility of an outflow of economic resources is
remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in
the financial statements.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases wherever
the terms of the lease transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.



The Company as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases
are recorded as receivables at the amount of net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is
allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the Company’s
net investment outstanding in respect of the
leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease unless the receipts are structured to increase
in line with an inflation price index or another
systematic basis which is more representative
of the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased asset is diminished. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Company as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised at their fair value at the inception of
the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding
liability to the lessor is included in the balance
sheet as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease obligation so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges
are charged directly to the statement of profit
and loss, unless they are directly attributable
to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalised in accordance with the Company’s
general policy on borrowing costs. Contingent
rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods
in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term, unless the payments are structured
to increase in line with an inflation price index or
another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals
arising under operating leases are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis, except where
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another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. The cost of finished goods and
work in progress includes raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads. Costs of inventories include
the transfer from equity any gains/losses on
qualifying cash flow hedges for purchases of raw
materials.

The Inventories are measured at Fair Value only in
those cases where the Inventories are designated
into a fair value hedge relationship.

Cost is determined using the weighted average
cost basis. However, the same cost basis is
applied to all inventories of a particular class.
Inventories of stores and spare parts are valued
at weighted average cost basis after providing
for cost of obsolescence and other anticipated
losses, wherever considered necessary.

Net realizable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale.

Materials and other supplies held for use in the
production of inventories (finished goods, work-in-
progress) are not written down below the cost if
the finished products in which they will be used
are expected to sell at or above the cost.

Trade receivable

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for goods sold or services performed in
the ordinary course of business. If the receivable
is expected to be collected within a period of 12
months or less from the reporting date (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business, if longer),
they are classified as Current Assets otherwise as
Non-Current Assets.

Trade receivables are measured at their
transaction price on initial recognition, unless it
contains a significant financing component or
pricing adjustments embedded in the contract.

Trade receivables which are subject to a factoring
arrangement without recourse are de-recognized
from the Balance Sheet in its entirety. Under this
arrangement, the Company transfers relevant
receivables to the factor in exchange for cash and
does not retain late payment and credit risk.

Greener. Stronger. Smarter 77



HINDALCO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE
ABRIDGED STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

78

Trade receivables which arise from contracts where
the sale price is provisional and revenue model
have the character of a commodity derivative are
measured at fair value. The fair value is measured
at forward rate and subsequent changes are
recognised as Other Operating Revenue.

Financial Instruments

All financial assets are recognised on trade date
when the purchase of a financial asset is under
a contract whose term requires delivery of the
financial asset within the timeframe established
by the market concerned. Financial assets are
initially measured at fair value, plus transaction
costs, except for those financial assets which are
classified as at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL) at inception. All recognised financial
assets are subsequently measured in their entirety
at either amortised cost or fair value.

Classification of financial assets

Financial assets are classified as ‘equity
instrument’ if it is a non-derivative and meets the
definition of ‘equity’ for the issuer. All other non-
derivative financial assets are ‘debt instruments’.

Financial assets at amortised cost and the
effective interest method

Debt instruments are measured at amortised cost
if both of the following conditions are met:

° the asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the instrument give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments meeting these criteria are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less any impairment,
with interest recognised on an effective yield basis
in investment income.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees on points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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The Company may irrevocably elect at initial
recognition to classify a debt instrument that meets
the amortised cost criteria above as at FVTPL if that
designation eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch had the financial asset been
measured at amortised cost.

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
Debt instruments are measured at FVTOCI if both
of the following conditions are met:

e the asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows and selling
assets; and

e the contractual terms of the instrument give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding

Debt instruments meeting these criteria are
subsequently measured at fair value with any gains
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in other comprehensive income, except for
impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange
gains or losses. Interest calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss in investment income.
When the debt instrument is derecognised the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to the statement of profit and loss account as a
reclassification adjustment.

At initial recognition, an irrevocable election is
made (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to
designate investments in equity instruments (other
than held for trading purpose) at FVTOCI.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the
Company manages together and has
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-
term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated in an
effective hedge relationship as a hedging
instrument or not a financial guarantee.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changesin fair value recognised



in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the ‘Gain/ (Loss) on Equity Instruments FVTOCI'.
Where the asset is disposed of, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the ‘Gain/
(Loss) on Equity Instruments FVTOCI is directly
reclassified to retained earnings.

For equity instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income, no
impairments are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

Dividends on these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss in investment income when
the Company’s right to receive the dividends
is established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the entity; and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Financial assets at Fair Value through Profit
and Loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria of
classifying as amortised cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income described above,
or that meet the criteria but the entity has chosen
to designate as at FVTPL at initial recognition, are
measured at FVTPL.

Investments in equity instruments are classified
as at FVTPL, unless the Company designates an
investment that is not held for trading at FVTOCI at
initial recognition.

Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently
measured at fair value, with any gains or losses
arising on remeasurement recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

Dividend income on investments in equity
instruments at FVTPL is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss in investment income
when the Company’s right to receive the dividends
is established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the entity; and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Impairment of financial assets

On initial recognition of the financial assets, a loss
allowance for expected credit loss is recognised
for debt instruments carried at amortised cost and
FVTOCI. For debt instruments that are measured
at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

Expected credit losses of a financial instrument is
measured in a way that reflects:
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e an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined by evaluating a
range of possible outcomes;

e the time value of money; and

e reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort at
the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses
whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition.

When making the assessment, the Company
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
consider reasonable and supportable information,
that is available without undue cost or effort, that
is indicative of significant increases in credit risk
since initial recognition.

If, at the reporting date, the credit risk on a financial
instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Company measures the
loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.
If, the credit risk on that financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Company measures the loss allowance for
a financial instrument at an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses.

For Trade Receivables and Contract Assets, the
Company applies the simplified approach required
by Ind AS 109, which requires expected life time
losses to be recognized from initial recognition of
the receivables.

The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal)
that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the
reporting date is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset on
trade date only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Company recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
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amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Company
continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than
in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an
optiontorepurchase part of atransferred asset), the
Company allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues
to recognise under continuing involvement, and
the part it no longer recognises on the basis of
the relative fair values of those parts on the date of
the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and
any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
Cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised
and the part that is no longer recognised on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
issued by the Company

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Compound instruments

The component parts of compound instruments
(convertible instruments) issued by the Company
are classified separately as financial liabilities
and equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangement. At the date of
issue, the fair value of the liability component is
estimated using the prevailing market interest
rate for a similar non-convertible instrument. This
amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised
cost basis using the effective interest method until
extinguished upon conversion or atthe instrument’s
maturity date. The equity component is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component
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from the fair value of the compound instrument as
awhole. This is recognised and included in equity,
net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently
remeasured.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are initially
measured at their fair values and, if not designated
as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the
higher of:

the amount of loss allowance is determined by
using expected credit loss model ; and

the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the revenue
recognition policies.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial
liabilities ‘at FVTPL or ‘other financial liabilities’.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when
the financial liability is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading
if:
e it has been acquired or incurred principally

for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near
term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the
Company manages together and for which
there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability
held for trading may also be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

e the financial liability forms part of a group
of financial assets or financial liabilities or
both, which is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Company’s documented
risk management or investment strategy,
and information about the Companying is
provided internally on that basis; or



e it forms part of a contract containing one
or more embedded derivatives, and Ind-AS
109 Financial Instruments permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in the statement of profit and loss,
except for the amount of change in the fair value of
the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability which is recognised
in other comprehensive income.

The net gain or loss recognised in the statement
of profit and loss incorporates any interest paid on
the financial liability.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are
initially measured at fair value, net of transaction
costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, with interest expense recognised
on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial
liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the
counterparty.

Derivatives and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value
on the date a derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently re-measured at their fair
value. The method of recognising the resulting
gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is
designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the
nature of the item being hedged.

CORPORATE STATUTORY FINANCIAL
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The Company has a policy to designate certain
derivatives as either:

(a) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets
or liabilities or a firm commitment (fair value
hedge);

(b) hedges of a particular risk associated with
a recognised asset or liability or a highly
probable forecast transaction (cash flow
hedge); or

(c) hedges of a net investment in a foreign
operation (net investment hedge).

The Company documents at the inception of the
transaction the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its
risk management objectives and strategy for
undertaking various hedging transactions. The
Company also documents the nature of the risk
being hedged and how the Company will assess
whether the hedging relationship meets the hedge
effectiveness requirements (including its analysis
of the sources of hedge ineffectiveness and how it
determines the hedge ratio).

The full fair value of a hedging derivative is
classified as a non-current asset or liability when
the residual maturity of the derivative is more than
12 months and as a current asset or liability when
the residual maturity of the derivative is less than
12 months.

Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualify as fair value hedges
are recorded in the statement of profit and loss,
together with any changes in the fair value of the
hedged item that are attributable to the hedged
risk.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the
Company revokes the hedging relationship,
when the hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer
qualifies for hedge accounting. The fair value
adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged
item arising from the hedged risk is amortised to
the statement of profit and loss from that date.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash
flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading cash
flow hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to
the ineffective portion is recognised immediately
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in the statement of profit and loss, and is included
in the ‘(Gain) / Loss in Fair Value of Derivatives’
line item.

Amounts  previously recognised in  other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity are reclassified to the statement of profit
and loss in the periods when the hedged item
affects the statement of profit and loss, in the same
line as the recognised hedged item. However,
when the hedged forecast transaction results in
the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-
financial liability, the gains and losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity are transferred from equity
and included in the initial measurement of the cost
of the non-financial asset or non-financial liability
as a basis adjustment.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the
hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated,
or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for
hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity at that time remains in equity and is
recognised when the forecast transaction is
ultimately recognised in the statement of profit
and loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer
expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in
equity is recognised immediately in the statement
of profit and loss.

Hedges of netinvestmentsinforeign operations
Hedges of net investments in foreign operations
are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges.
Any gain or loss on the hedging instrument relating
to the effective portion of the hedge is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of ‘Foreign Currency Translation
Reserve’. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the statement
of profit and loss.

Gains and losses on the hedging instrument
relating to the effective portion of the hedge
accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve are reclassified to the statement of profit
and loss on the disposal of the foreign operation.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and in hand, short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less and short
term highly liquid investments.

For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash
and cash equivalents is as defined above, net of
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outstanding bank overdrafts. In the balance sheet,
bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. The Company
considers a period of twelve months or more as a
substantial period of time.

Transaction costs in respect of long-term
borrowings are amortised over the tenor of
respective loans using effective interest method.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

Accounting for government grants

Government grants are recognized when there is
reasonable assurance that we will comply with the
conditions attached to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Company recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Government grants
whose primary condition is that the Company
should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognized in the balance
sheet by setting up the grant as deferred income
and its amortization is recognized in ‘Other
Income’.

Other government grants (grants related to
income) are recognized as income over the periods
necessary to match them with the costs for which
they are intended to compensate, on a systematic
basis. Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of providing immediate
financial support with no future related costs are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

Grants related to income are presented under
‘Other Income’ or ‘Other Operating Revenue’ in
the statement of profit and loss, except for grants
received in the form of rebate or exemptions which
are deducted in reporting the related expense.



The benefit of a governmentloan at a below-market
rate of interest is treated as a government grant,
measured as the difference between proceeds
received and the fair value of the loan based on
prevailing market interest rates.

Employee Benefits

Retirement benefit and termination benefits

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Company pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Company has no
legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods.
Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement and medical plans,
the cost of providing benefits is determined using
the projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of each
annual reporting period. The present value of
the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows
using interest rates of government bonds.

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and
losses, the effect of the changes to the asset
ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets
(excluding interest), is reflected in the balance
sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other
comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other
comprehensive income is reflected immediately in
retained earnings and will not be reclassified to
the statement of profit and loss. Past service cost
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest
is calculated by applying the discount rate at
the beginning of the period to the net defined
benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are
categorised as follows:

° service cost (including current service cost,
past service cost, as well as gains and losses
on curtailments and settlements);

e netinterest expense or income; and
e remeasurements

The Company presents the first two components of
defined benefit costs in the statement of profit and
loss in the line item employee benefits expense.
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Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as
past service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in
the balance sheet represents the actual deficit
or surplus in the Company’s defined benefit
plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation
is limited to the present value of any economic
benefits available in the form of refunds from the
plans or reductions in future contributions to the
plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at
the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw
the offer of the termination benefit and when
the entity recognises any related restructuring
costs. In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are
measured based on the number of employees
expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to their present value.

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees in respect of wages and salaries in
the period the related service is rendered at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to
be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-
term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to
be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-
term employee benefits such as annual leave and
sick leave are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to
be made by the Company in respect of services
provided by employees up to the reporting date.
The expected costs of these benefits are accrued
over the period of employment using the same
accounting methodology as used for defined
benefit retirement plans. Actuarial gains and
losses arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are charged
or credited to the statement of profit and loss in
the period in which they arise. These obligations
are valued annually by independent qualified
actuaries.

Employee Share-based Payments
Equity-settled share-based payments  to
employees are measured at the fair value of the
options at the grant date.
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The fair value of option at the grant date is
expensed over the respective vesting period
in which all of the specified vesting are to be
satisfied with a corresponding increase in equity
as “Employee Stock Options Account”. In case
of forfeiture of unvested option, portion of amount
already expensed is reversed. In a situation where
the vested option forfeited or expires unexercised,
the related balance standing to the credit of the
“Employee Stock Options Account” are transferred
to the “Retained Earnings”.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new equity shares of the Company of % 1/-
each fully paid-up. The proceeds received and the
related balance standing to credit of the Employee
Stock Options Account, are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and Securities Premium
Account.

Share appreciation rights which are cash settled,
are recognised as employee benefit expense
over the relevant service period. The liability is fair
valued at each reporting date and are presented
as employee benefit obligations in the balance
sheet.

Income Taxes
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit
before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit
and loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The
current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date.

Management periodically evaluates contingencies
and positions taken in uncertain tax positions
in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
balance sheet and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences.
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Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from initial recognition
of goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date. The measurement of
deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Company expects, at the reporting
date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Company intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) is recognized
as an asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay
normal income tax during the specified period. In
the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible
to be recognized as an asset, the said asset is
created by way of credit to the statement of profit
and loss and included in deferred tax assets.
The Company reviews the same at each balance
sheet date and writes down the carrying amount
of MAT entitlement to the extent there is no longer
convincing evidence to the effect that Company
will pay normal income tax during the specified
period.

Current and deferred tax for the period

Current and deferred tax are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other



comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in
the accounting for the business combination.

Revenue recognition

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has
adopted Ind AS 115, Revenue from contracts
with customers using the modified retrospective
transition approach, which is applied to contracts
that were not completed as of April 1, 2018.
Accordingly, the comparatives have not been
retrospectively adjusted.

The Company derives revenue principally from
sale of hydrate, speciality alumina, aluminium and
aluminium value added products, di-ammonium
phosphate, copper, precious metals (gold and
silver) and other materials.

The Company recognizes revenue when it
satisfies a performance obligation in accordance
with the provisions of contract with the customer.
This is achieved when control of the product
has been transferred to the customer, which is
generally determined when title, ownership, risk of
obsolescence and loss pass to the customer and
the Company has the present right to payment, all
of which occurs at a point in time upon shipment
or delivery of the product. The Company considers
shipping and handling activities as costs to fulfil
the promise to transfer the related products and
the customer payments for shipping and handling
costs are recorded as a component of revenue.

In certain customer contracts, shipping and
handling services are treated as a distinct separate
performance obligation and the Company
recognises revenue for such services when the
performance obligation is completed.

The Company considers the terms of the
contract in determining the transaction price. The
transaction price is based upon the amount the
Company expects to be entitled to in exchange
for transferring of promised goods and services to
the customer after deducting incentive programs,
included but not limited to discounts, volume
rebates etc.

For incentives offered to customers, the Company
makes estimates related to customer performance
and sales volume to determine the total amounts
earned and to be recorded as deductions from
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“‘Revenue from contracts with customers”. In
making these estimates, the Company considers
historical results that have a predictive value
of the amount that the Company expects to be
entitled to for the transferred goods and services.
If historical results have limited predictive
value or the Company has limited experience
with similar types of incentives, the estimate is
made in such a manner, which ensures that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur. The actual amounts may differ from these
estimates and are accounted for prospectively. No
element of significant financing is deemed present
as the sales are made with a credit term, which
is consistent with market practice. The Company’s
obligation to repair or replace faulty products
under the standard warranty terms is recognised
as a cost with a corresponding provision.

For certain customer contracts, final prices are
determined based on the underlying market index
of commodity prices at a future date, for example
prices on the London Metal Exchange Limited
(LME) or London Bullion Markets Association
(LBMA). In such contracts, the Company records
revenue on a provisional basis considering
current market price when control is transferred
to the customer. At the end of each period, prior
to final settlement date, adjustments are made to
the provisional sale price based on movements in
the underlying market index of commodity prices
up to the date of final price determination. Such
variable price movement is accounted as ‘Other
Operating Revenue’.

Revenue from irrevocable bill and hold/ holding
certificate contracts is recognised when it is
probable that delivery will be made, goods have
been identified and kept separately, are ready for
delivery in the present condition and the Company
does not have the ability to use the product or
to direct it to another customer. Under these
arrangements, revenue is recognised once legal
titte has passed and control of the asset sold is
transferred to the customer.

Export incentives and subsidies are recognized
when there is reasonable assurance that the
Group will comply with the conditions and the
incentive will be received.

Claim on insurance companies, railway authorities
and others, where quantum of accrual cannot
be ascertained with reasonable certainty, are
accounted for on acceptance basis.
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Revenue excludes any taxes and duties collected
on behalf of the government.

X. Dividend and Interest Income
Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment
has been established.

Interestincome from afinancial assetis recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Y. Exceptional items

Exceptional items include income or expense that
are considered to be part of ordinary activities,
however are of such significance and nature
that separate disclosure enables the user of the
financial statements to understand the impact in
a more meaningful manner. Exceptional items are
identified by virtue of either their size or nature
so as to facilitate comparison with prior periods
and to assess underlying trends in the financial
performance of the Company.

1C. Note 1C of Audited Standalone Financial Statements
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Measurement of fair value

a. Financial instruments

The estimated fair value of the Company’s
financial instruments is based on market prices
and valuation techniques. Valuations are made
with the objective to include relevant factors that
market participants would consider in setting
a price, and to apply accepted economic and
financial methodologies for the pricing of financial
instruments. References for less active markets
are carefully reviewed to establish relevant and
comparable data.

b. Marketable and
securities
Fair value for listed shares is based on quoted
market prices as of the reporting date. Fair
value for unlisted shares is calculated based on
commonly accepted valuation techniques utilizing
significant unobservable data, primarily cash flow
based models.

non-marketable  equity

c. Derivatives
Fair value of financial derivatives is estimated as
the present value of future cash flows, calculated
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by reference to quoted price curves and exchange
rates as of the balance sheet date. Options are
valued using appropriate option pricing models
and credit spreads are applied where deemed to
be significant.

d. Embedded derivatives

Embedded derivatives that are separated from the
host contract are valued by comparing the forward
curve at contract inception to the forward curve as
of the balance sheet date. Changes in the present
value of the cash flows related to the embedded
derivative are recognized in the balance sheet
and in the income statement.

1D. Note 1D of Audited Standalone Financial Statements

Critical accounting judgment and key sources of
estimation uncertainty

In preparing the financial statements in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in
India, management is required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities as
at the date of the financial statements and the amounts
of revenue and expenses during the reported period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any
revision to such estimates is recognised in the period in
which the same is determined.

The following paragraphs explains areas that are
considered more critical, involving a higher degree of
judgment and complexity.

a. Impairment of non-current assets

IndAS 36 requires that the Company assesses
conditions that could cause an asset or a Cash
Generating Unit (CGU) to become impaired
and to test recoverability of potentially impaired
assets. These conditions include changes
resulting from market and economic environment,
including internal and external factors such as
the Company’s market capitalization, significant
changes in the Company’s planned use of the
assets or a significant adverse change in the
expected prices, sales volumes or raw material
cost. The identification of CGUs involves
judgment, including assessment of where active
markets exist, and the level of interdependency of
cash inflows. CGU is usually the individual plant,
unless the asset or asset group is an integral part
of a value chain where no independent prices for
the intermediate products exist, a group of plants
is combined and managed to serve a common
market, or where circumstances otherwise indicate
significant interdependencies.



In accordance with Ind-AS 36, certain intangible
assets are reviewed at least annually for
impairment. If a loss in value is indicated, the
recoverable amount is estimated as the higher of
the CGUr’s fair value less cost to sell, or its value
in use. Directly observable market prices rarely
exist for the Company’s assets, however, fair value
may be estimated based on recent transactions
on comparable assets, internal models used
by the Company for transactions involving the
same type of assets or other relevant information.
Calculation of value in use is a discounted cash
flow calculation based on continued use of the
assets in its present condition, excluding potential
exploitation of improvement or expansion potential.

Determination of the recoverable amount involves
management estimates on highly uncertain
matters, such as commaodity prices and theirimpact
on markets and prices for upgraded products,
development in demand, inflation, currency
rate movements, input cost prices, operating
expenses and tax and legal environment. The
Company uses internal business plans, quoted
market prices and the Company’s best estimate of
commodity prices, currency rates, discount rates
and other relevant information. A detailed forecast
is developed for a period of three to five years with
projections thereafter.

Employee retirement plans

The Company provides both defined benefit
employee retirement plans and defined
contribution plans. Measurement of pension and
other superannuation costs and obligations under
such plans require numerous assumptions and
estimates that can have a significant impact on
the recognized costs and obligation, such as
future salary level, discount rate, attrition rate and
mortality.

The Company provides defined benefit plans
to its employees. The discount rate is based on
Government bond yield. Assumptions for salary
increase in the remaining service period for active
plan participants are based on expected salary
increase in India. Changes in these assumptions
can influence the net asset or liability for the plan
as well as the pension cost. (Refer Note 43 of
Audited Standalone Financial Statements)

Environmental liabilities and Asset Retirement
Obligation (ARO)

Estimation of environmental liabilities and ARO
require interpretation of scientific and legal data,
in addition to assumptions about probability and
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future costs. (Refer Note 46 of Audited Standalone
Financial Statements)

Taxes

The Company calculates income tax expense
based on reported income. Deferred income tax
expense is calculated based on the differences
between the carrying value of assets and liabilities
forfinancial reporting purposes and their respective
tax basis that are considered temporary in nature.
Valuation of deferred tax assets is dependent on
management’s assessment of future recoverability
of the deferred benefit. Expected recoverability
may result from expected taxable income in
the future, planned transactions or planned
tax optimizing measures. Economic conditions
may change and lead to a different conclusion
regarding recoverability. (Refer Notes 25 and 37
of Audited Standalone Financial Statements)

Classification of leases

The Company enters into leasing arrangements
for various assets. The classification of the leasing
arrangement as a finance lease or operating lease
is based on an assessment of several factors,
including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership
of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s
option to purchase and estimated certainty of
exercise of such option, proportion of lease term
to the asset’s economic life, proportion of present
value of minimum lease payments to fair value of
leased asset and extent of specialized nature of
the leased asset. (Refer Notes 2 and 47 of Audited
Standalone Financial Statements)

Useful lives of depreciable/ amortisable assets
(tangible and intangible)

Management reviews its estimate of the useful
lives of depreciable/ amortisable assets at each
reporting date, based on the expected utility of the
assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to
technical and economic obsolescence that may
change the utility of certain software, IT equipment
and other plant and equipment.

Recoverability of advances/ receivables

At each balance sheet date, based on discussions
with the respective counter-parties and internal
assessment of their credit worthiness, the
management assesses the recoverability of
outstanding receivables and advances. Such
assessment requires significant management
judgement based on financial position of the
counter-parties, market information and other
relevant factors.
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Fair value measurements

The Company applies valuation techniques to
determine the fair value of financial instruments
(where active market quotes are not available)
and non-financial assets. This involves developing
estimates and assumptions consistent with the
market participants to price the instrument. The
Company’s assumptions are based on observable
data as far as possible, otherwise on the best
information available. Estimated fair values may
vary from the actual prices that would be achieved
in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.
(Refer Note 49 of Audited Standalone Financial
Statements)

Contingent assets and liabilities, provisions
and uncertain tax positions

There are various legal, direct and indirect
tax matters and other obligations including
environmental, mining, local and state levies,
income tax holiday, availing input tax credits
etc., which may impact the Company. Evaluation
of uncertain liabilities and contingent liabilities
and assets arising out of above matters require
management  judgment and  assumptions,
regarding the probability outflow or realization
of economic resources and the timing and
amount, or range of amounts, that may ultimately
be determined. Such estimates may vary from
the ultimate outcome as a result of differing
interpretations of laws and facts, or application
of relevant judicial precedents. (Refer Notes
25,45 and 46 of Audited Standalone Financial
Statements)

Inventory Measurement

Measurement of bulk inventory quantities (such
as coal, bauxite, etc.) lying at yards and work in
progress of precious metals at smelter and refinery
is material, complex and involves significant
judgement and estimate resulting from measuring
the surface area, dip measurement of materials
in tanks/silos, etc. (Refer Note 11 of Audited
Standalone Financial Statements)

The Company performs physical counts of above
inventory on a periodic basis using internal /
external experts to perform volumetric surveys
and assessments, basis which the estimate of
quantity for these inventories is determined. The
variations noted between book records and
physical quantities of above inventories are
evaluated and appropriately accounted in the
books of accounts.
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1E. Note 1E of Audited Standalone Financial Statements

Recent Accounting Pronouncements:

Amendments to Standards issued but not yet
effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has issued
certain amendments in existing Accounting Standards
during the year ended 31 March, 2019 which are
effective from 01 April, 2019. The Company has
assessed all these amendments and its impact on
financial statement is explained below:

Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments, to Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes’

The appendix explains how to recognize and measure
deferred and current income tax assets and liabilities
where there is uncertainty over a tax treatment. In
particular, it discusses:

e how to determine the appropriate unit of account,
and that each uncertain tax treatment should be
considered separately or together as a group,
depending on which approach better predicts the
resolution of the uncertainty;

e that the entity should assume a tax authority will
examine the uncertain tax treatments and have
full knowledge of all related information, i.e. that
detection risk should be ignored;

e that the entity should reflect the effect of the
uncertainty in its income tax accounting when it is
not probable that the tax authorities will accept the
treatment;

e that the impact of the uncertainty should be
measured using either the most likely amount
or the expected value method, depending on
which method better predicts the resolution of the
uncertainty; and

e that the judgement and estimates made must
be reassessed whenever circumstances have
changed or there is new information that affects
the judgement.

The Company is assessing its existing models and
processes which it has developed to account for tax
uncertainties against the specific guidance in appendix
C to Ind AS 12 to consider the impact on income tax
accounting in respect of its tax jurisdiction which is
India.

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures — Amendments to Ind AS 28, ‘Investment
in Associates and Joint Ventures’

The amendment clarify the accounting for long-
term interests in an associate or joint venture, which



in substance form part of the net investment in
the associate or joint venture, but to which equity
accounting is not applied. Entities must account for
such interests under Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’
before applying the loss allocation and impairment
requirements in Ind AS 28. Since the Company do not
have such long-term interests in its associates or joint
ventures, the amendments will not have any impact on
its financial statements.

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
—Amendments to Ind AS 109, ‘Financial Instruments’
The amendment made to Ind AS 109 enable entities
to measure certain pre-payable financial assets (e.g.
loans and debt securities which otherwise have to
be measured as FVTPL) with negative compensation
at amortised cost. To qualify for amortised cost
measurement, the negative compensation must be
‘reasonable compensation for early termination of the
contract’ and the asset must be held within a ‘held to
collect’ business model. Since the Company do not
have such financial instruments, the amendments will
not have any impact on its financial statements.

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement —
Amendments to Ind AS 19, ‘Employee Benefits’

The amendments to Ind AS 19 clarify the accounting
for defined benefit plan amendments, curtailments and
settlements. It confirms that entities must:

° calculate the current service cost and net interest
for the remainder of the reporting period after a
plan amendment, curtailment or settlement by
using the updated assumptions from the date of
the change;

° any reduction in a surplus should be recognised
immediately in profit or loss either as part of past
service cost, or as a gain or loss on settlement.
In other words, a reduction in a surplus must be
recognised in profit or loss even if that surplus was
not previously recognised because of the impact
of the asset ceiling; and

e  gseparately recognise any changes in the asset
ceiling through other comprehensive income.

These amendments will apply to any future plan
amendments, curtailments, or settlements of the
Company on or after 1 April 2019.

Ind AS 103, ‘Business Combinations’

The amendment clarifies that obtaining control of
a business that is a joint operation, is a business
combination achieved in stages. The acquirer should
re-measure its previously held interest in the joint
operation at fair value at the acquisition date.
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These amendments will apply to future business
combinations of the Company for which acquisition
date is on or after 1 April 2019.

Ind AS 111, ‘Joint Arrangements’

The amendment clarifies that the party obtaining joint
control of a business that is a joint operation should
not re-measure its previously held interest in the joint
operation.

These amendments will apply to future transactions
of the Company in which it obtains joint control of a
business on or after 1 April 2019.

Ind AS 23, ‘Borrowing Costs’

The amendments clarifies that if a specific borrowing
remains outstanding after the related qualifying asset
is ready for its intended use or sale, it becomes part of
general borrowings.

The Company’s current practice is in line with this
amendment and accordingly this amendment is not
expected to have any material impact on its financial
statements.

Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes’

The amendment clarifies that the income tax
consequences of dividends on financial instruments
classified as equity should be recognised according
to where the past transactions or events that
generated distributable profits were recognised. These
requirements apply to all income tax consequences
of dividends. Previously, it was unclear whether the
income tax consequences of dividends should be
recognised in profit or loss, or in equity, and the scope
of the existing guidance was ambiguous.

This amendment is not expected to have any material
impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Ind AS 116, Leases

On 30 March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA) notified Ind AS 116, ‘Leases’ as part of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS))
Amendment Rules, 2019. Ind AS 116 replaces existing
standard Ind AS 17, Leases with effect from accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019

The new standard introduces a single model of lease
accounting and eliminates the classification of leases
as either finance leases or operating leases for a lessee
as was required under Ind AS 17. Ind AS 116 requires
a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all
leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the
underlying asset is of low value. For all leases except as
noted above, a lessee is required to recognise a right-
of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying
leased asset and a lease liability representing its
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obligation to make lease payments in its financial
statement. Lessee will recognise depreciation of right
of use assets and interest on lease liabilities in the
statement of profit or loss. In the Cash Flow statement,
operating cash flows will be higher as payment of the
lease liability and related interest are to be classified
within financing activities.

Requirements with regard to lessor accounting are
substantially similar to accounting requirements
contained in Ind AS 17. Accordingly, a lessor will
continue to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and account for those two types of
leases differently.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is financial
year beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The standard
permits two possible methods of transition:

e  Fully retrospective- Retrospectively to each prior
period presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors.

° Modified retrospective- Retrospectively, with the
cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard
recognized at the date of initial application.

Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee
records the lease liability as the present value of
the remaining lease payments, discounted at the
incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset
either as:

° Its carrying amount as if the standard had been
applied since the commencement date, but
discounted at lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
at the date of initial application or

e An amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted
by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
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payments related to that lease recognized under
Ind AS 17 immediately before the date of initial
application.

The Company is in the process of reviewing all
its leasing arrangements in light of the new lease
accounting rules. The Company will utilise the practical
expedient available under Ind AS 116 and not reassess
whether a contract is or contains a lease at the date
of initial application. The Company also intends to use
the exemptions provided by Ind AS 116 for short-term
leases (less than a year) and leases for low value assets.
The transition to the new lease accounting from the
existing rules will be accomplished using the modified
retrospective transition approach with no restatement
of comparative information. The Company will elect
certain available practical expedients on transition.

The Company is currently evaluating the impact this
standard will have on its financial statements.

This Abridged Standalone Financial Statements have
been compiled from Audited Standalone Financial
Statements of the Company and contains the salient
features of the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and
Loss, Statement of Change in Equity and Cash Flow
Statement as per the first proviso to sub-section (1)
of Section 136 of the Act and Rule 10 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Complete set of
Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement
of Change in Equity, Cash Flow Statement and notes
thereto, prepared as per the requirements of Division
Il to the Schedule Il to the Act, are available at the
Company’s website at link www.hindalco.com. Copy
of financial statements is also available for inspection
at the registered office of the Company during working
hours for a period of 21 days before the date of Annual
General Meeting.
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3. Note 2 of Audited Standalone Financial Statements
Property, Plant and Equipment
(% in Crore)
ORIGINAL COST DEPRECIATION IMPAIRMENT CARRYING VALUE
Particulars Asat dditions Disposall As at Asat dditions Disposal Asat Asat Recognised/  Deduction/ As at Asat Asat
01.04.2017 Adjustments ~ 31.03.2018  01.04.2017 Adjustments  31.03.2018  01.04.2017 (Reversed) Adjustments 31.03.2018 31.03.2018 01.04.2017
Freehold Land 514.50 28.49 (1.15) 54184 0.28 - - 0.28 - - - - 54156 51422
Buildings 758401 15639 200 774140 105798  286.82 (0.04) 1,344.76 59.26 - - 50.26 6,337.38 6,466.77
Plant and Machinery 36,891.32 132127 (105.05) 3810754 988366 1,17053  (65.49) 10988.70  667.38 - - 0667.38 26,451.46 26,340.28
Office Equipment 164.39 12.55 (498) 17196 11867 14.94 (4790 12882 0.52 - - 0.52 42.62 45.19
Vehicles and Aircraft 391.61 21.21 (8.71) 40411 16757 21.03 (301) 18559 0.23 - - 023 21829 22381
Railway Sidings 488.79 488.79 93.37 27.83 - 12120 16.65 - - 16.65  350.94 37877
Furniture and Fittings 119.00 8.77 (1.56)  126.21 87.07 6.07 (1.33) 91.81 0.64 - - 0.64 33.76 31.29
Leased Plant & Machinery 49.98 4998 3261 247 - 35.08 - - - - 14.90 17.37
Leased Furniture & Fixture 997 - 997 - 1.30 - 1.30 - - - - 8.67
Total 46,203.60 1557.65 (119.45) 47,641.80 1144121 153099  (74.66) 12,897.54  T744.68 - - 74468 33,999.58 34,017.71
% in Crore
ORIGINAL COST DEPRECIATION IMPAIRMENT CARRYING VALUE
Particulars Asal e Disposall As at Asal ) ione Disposal As at As al Recognised/  Deduction/ As at As at As at
0./04.2018 Adjustments  31.03.2019 01/04/2018 Adjustments  31.032019 01.04.2018 (Reversed) Adjustments 31.03.2019 31.03.2019 01.04.2018
Freehold Land 541.84 37.14 - 57898 0.28 3.47 - 3.75 - - - - 575623 54156
Buildings 774140 13850 936 788926 134476 29461 (0.28) 1,639.09 59.26 - - 59.26 6,190.91 6,337.38
Plant and Machinery 3810754 56888 (245.08) 38,431.34 1098870 120702 (16363) 1203209  667.38 - (3327) 63411 2576514 2645146
Office Equipment 171.96 13.14 (5.96) 179.14 12882 15.83 (6.47)  139.18 0.52 - - 0.52 39.44 42,62
\lehicles and Aircraft 404.11 2662  (10.28) 42045 18559 22.25 (6.89)  200.95 0.23 - - 023 21927 21829
Railway Sidings 488.79 0.34 (0.11)  489.02 12120 27.82 (0.07) 14895 16.65 - - 16.65 32342 35094
Furniture and Fittings 126.21 10.24 (8.66)  127.79 91.81 6.68 (7.72) 90.77 0.64 - - 0.64 36.38 33.76
Leased Plant & Machinery 49.93 49.98 35.08 2.47 - 37.55 - - - - 1243 14.90
Leased Furniture & Fixture 9.97 9.97 1.30 1.94 - 324 - - - - 6.73 8.67
Total 4764180 79486 (260.73) 48,175.93 12,897.54 1582.09 (184.06) 14,295.57  T744.68 - (3327) 71141 33168.95 33,999.58

(a) Assets for which registration is pending

Freehold Land -

Original Cost % 30.87 Crore (as at 31/03/2018 % 3.66 Crore). Carrying Value % 29.99 Crore (as at
31/03/2018 % 3.66 Crore).

(b) The Company'’s share in Jointly owned assets has been grouped together with the relevant class of Property, Plant and
Equipment. The proportion of the Original Cost and Carrying value included in relevant class of assets are given below:

Freehold Land -

Buildings -

Original Cost ¥ 51.56 Crore (as at 31/03/2018 % 51.56 Crore). Carrying Value % 51.56 Crore (as
at 31/03/2018 ¥ 51.56 Crore).

)
Original Cost ¥ 40.83 Crore (as at 31/03/2018 ¥ 41.29 Crore). Carrying Value ¥ 29.77 Crore (as
at 31/03/2018 ¥ 30.78 Crore).
(

Plant and Machinery - Original Cost % 41.24 Crore (as at 31/03/2018 % 41.24 Crore ). Carrying Value ¥ 1.71 Crore (as

at 31/03/2018 % 1.90 Crore).

Furniture and Fittings - Original Cost % 3.87 Crore (as at 31/03/2018 % 11.01 Crore). Carrying Value ¥ 0.26 Crore ( as at

31/03/2018 ¥ 1.13 Crore).
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Vehicles and Aircraft - Original Cost ¥ 0.16 Crore (as at 31/03/2018 % 0.16 Crore). Carrying Value % 0.07 Crore ( as at
31/03/2018 % 0.08 Crore).

Office Equipment - Original Cost ¥ 6.39 Crore (as at 31/03/2018 % 9.75 Crore). Carrying Value % 0.71 Crore ( as at
31/03/2018 ¥ 1.02 Crore).

Assets pledged and Hypothecated against borrowings:

i All the moveable and immoveable Property, Plant and Equipment of Mahan Aluminium, both present and future,
carrying value % 12,401.82 Crore (as at 31/03/2018 % 12,798.52 Crore) are given as security towards first ranking
charge against the rupee term loans from banks of ¥ 2,947.87 Crore (gross) (as at 31/03/2018 ¥ 2,947.87 Crore).
All the moveable Property, Plant and Equipment of Mahan Aluminium, both present and future are given as first
pari passu charge against the foreign currency term loan from bank of ¥ 434.42 Crore (gross) (as at 31/03/2018
% 408.86 Crore).

i All the moveable and immovable Property, Plant and Equipment of Aditya Aluminium both present and future,
carrying value of ¥ 12,833.65 Crore (as at 31/03/2018 % 13,226.12 Crore) are given as security towards charge
against the term loan of ¥ 6,299.25 Crore (gross) (as at 31/03/2018 ¥ 7,874.06 Crore).

i All moveable items of Property, Plant and Equipment (except moveable items of Mahan Aluminium, Aditya
Aluminium, Kalwa Plant, Silvassa Plant, current assets of the Company) and certain immoveable properties of the
Company are given as security towards Non-convertible debentures of ¥ 6,000 Crore (as at 31/03/2018 % 6,000
Crore).

For capital expenditures contracted but not incurred, Refer Note 45B of Audited Standalone Financial Statements.

In respect of Property, Plant and Equipment taken under finance lease, refer to Note - 18A (d) of Audited Standalone
Financial Statements for disclosure of future minimum lease payments and their present value.

The carrying value of Capital Work in Progress (CWIP) as at 31/03/2019 is % 947.00 Crore. This comprise of
various routine projects and expansion spread over all units. Out of which major amounts are in Renukoot
% 185.45 Crore, Hirakud % 125.37 Crore, Aditya ¥ 121.23 Crore, Dahej ¥ 97.85 Crore, Mouda % 77.74 Crore and
Mahan % 64.39 Crore. Most of these routine projects will be capitalized during the year ending March 31, 2020.
The carrying value of Capital Work in Progress (CWIP) as at 31/03/2018 was % 736.25 Crore. This comprised
of various routine projects and expansion spread over all units. Out of which major amounts were in Aditya
¥ 165.22 Crore, Mahan % 56.42 Crore and Dahej % 41.12 Crore.

During the current year, ¥ 8.93 Crore has been classified to held for sale from the CWIP.

Iltems of Property, Plant and Equipment Useful Life
(Years)
Buildings 30-60
Plant and Machinery 15-40
Office Equipment 3-6
Vehicles and Aircraft 8-20
Railway Sidings 15
Furniture and Fittings 8-10
Leased Plant and Machinery 5-25 (Over lease period)
Leased Furniture and Fixture 5 (Over lease period)
Freehold land used for mining 28 (Over mining lease period)

Additions under various class of assets include grant related to Export Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG) of % Nil
(31/03/2018 ¥ 678.02 Crore).

Note on sale of Kollur unit.

The Company has sold its Aluminium Foil manufacturing unit at Kollur, Telangana on slump sale basis through
a Business Transfer Agreement dated 26th April, 2019 at a gross consideration of ¥ 28 Crore, subject to
certain adjustments, basis the closing audited accounts of the unit. This transaction does not have any material impact
on the financial statement of the Company.
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The Property, Plant and Equipments residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

4. Note 3 of Audited Standalone Financial Statements

Investment Property

Zin Crore

ORIGINAL COST DEPRECIATION IMPAIRMENT CARRYING VALUE
Particulars As at Addition Disposall As at As at Addition Disposal/ As at As atRecognised/  Deduction/ As at As at As at
01.04.2017 Adjustments  31.03.2018  01.04.2017 Adjustments  31.03.2018  01.04.2017 (Reversed) Adjustments 31.03.2018 31.03.2018 01.04.2017
Freehold Land 0.57 - - 0.57 - - - - - - - - 0.57 0.57
Buildings 12.37 12.37 3.69 0.23 - 3.91 - - - - 8.46 8.69
Total 12.94 12.94 3.69 0.23 - 391 - - - - 9.03 9.26
T in Crore

ORIGINAL COST DEPRECIATION IMPAIRMENT CARRYING VALUE
Particulars As at Addition Disposal/ As at Asat Addition Disposal/ As at As at Recognised/  Deduction/ As at As at As at
01.04.2018 Adjustments  31.03.2019  01.04.2018 Adjustments  31.03.2019  01.04.2018 (Reversed) Adjustments 31.03.2019 31.03.2019 01.04.2018
Freehold Land 0.57 - - 057 - - - - - - - - 0.57 0.57
Buildings 12.37 12.37 3.91 0.23 - 4.14 - - - - 8.23 8.46
Total 12.94 12.94 391 0.23 - 414 - - - - 8.80 9.03

Items of Investment Property

Useful Life (Years)

Freehold Land NA

Buildings 60
(% in Crore)
Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018

(a) Income and expenditure of Investment property:

Rental income from investment property 5.86 1.90
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) on properties generating (0.68) (0.48)

rental income

Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) on properties not generating
rental income

The Company has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment properties or for repairs, maintenance and
enhancements.

The fair value of the Company’s Investment properties as at March 31, 2019 and as at March 31, 2018, have been arrived at on
the basis of valuation carried out at the respective dates by an external, independent valuer registered with the authority which
governs the valuer in India. The fair value measurement for all the investments properties has been categorised as Level 2
based on the inputs to the valuation technique used. Considering the type of the assets, market approach (sales comparable
method) to estimate the fair value of the subject properties is adopted.

% in Crore

As at As at

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Fair Value of Investment Properties: Level 2 Level 2
Freehold Land 39.81 39.81
Buildings 48.29 51.75
88.10 91.56
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Intangible Assets

Zin Crore
ORIGINAL COST AMORTIZATION IMPAIRMENT CARRYING VALUE

Particulars As at Addition Disposal/ As at As at Addition Disposal/ As at As at Recognised/ Deduction/ As at As at As at

01.04.2017 Adjustments 31.03.2018 01.04.2017 Adjustments 31.03.2018 01.04.2017 (Reversed) Adjustments 31.03.2018 31.03.2018 01.04.2017

m‘;cg) fights (refer 44173 7950 2132 3038 7502 105.40 31592 31135

Computer Software 64.04 475 (0.77) 68.02 51.78 7.16 (0.77) 58.17 9.85 12.26

Technological 3881 3881 3645 1.8 37.73 108 236
Licenses

Rights to use assets 80.97 80.97 49.63 2.64 52.27 28.70 31.34

Total 525.55 84.34 (0.77)  609.12 168.24  86.10 (0.77) 25357 355,55  357.31

Zin Crore

ORIGINAL COST AMORTIZATION IMPAIRMENT CARRYING VALUE

Particulars As at Addition Disposal/ As at As at Addition Disposal/ As at As at Recognised/ Deduction/ As at As at As at

01.04.2018 Adjustments 31.03.2019 01.04.2018 Adjustments 31.03.2019 01.04.2018 (Reversed) Adjustments 31.03.2019 31.03.2019 01.04.2018

mncg) ighis (efer 4135 96,06 51828 10540 100.70 206.10 31218 31592

Computer Software 68.02 359 (023) 7138 5817  6.42 64.59 6.79 9.85

Technological 38.61 3881 3773 1.08 38.81 108
Licenses

Rights to use assets 80.97 80.97 5227 264 54.91 - 26.06  28.70

Total 609.12 100.55 (0.23) 709.44 25357 110.84 364.41 - 34503 35555

(a) Items of Intangible Assets Useful Life (Years)

Mining rights 11-41

Computer Software 3-6

Technological Licenses 4-5

Rights to use assets 5-35

Remaining amortisation period of mining rights ranges between 5-37 years.

(Addition in Mining Rights includes % 91.18 crore and amortization expense includes ¥ 87.52 Crore (31/03/2018,
addition included % 64.18 Crore, and amortization expense included % 61.59 Crore) stripping activity assets.

The carrying value of Intangible Asset under Development as at 31/03/2019 is % 34.82 Crore. This includes % 34.39
crore pertaining to Enterprise Resource Planning System implementation. The carrying value of Intangible Asset under

Development as at 31/03/2018 was % 0.48 Crore.

(e)

6. Note 7A of Audited Standalone Financial Statements

Other Investments, Non-Current

The Intangible assets useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

% in Crore
Face Value Numbers Value As at

Per Unit As at As at As at As at
31.03.2019 31.03.2018 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Equity instruments (Fully Paid-Up) at FVTOCI - (a)

Quoted

National Aluminium Company Limited %5 18,385,327 18,385,327 101.94 12217
Grasim Industries Limited 32 28,222,468 28,222,468 2,421.35 2,965.90
Ultra Tech Cement Limited 10 1,258,515 1,258,515 503.20 497 11
Aditya Birla Fashion & Retail Limited 10 44,982,142 44,982,142 991.18 678.56
Vodafone Idea Limited 10 228,340,226 228,340,226 416.72 1,733.10
Aditya Birla Capital Limited 10 39,511,455 39,511,455 384.05 576.67
4,818.44 6,573.51
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% in Crore
Face Value Numbers Value As at
Per Unit As at As at As at As at
31.03.2019 31.03.2018 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Unquoted
Sai Wardha Power Generation Limited %10 2,830,352 2,830,352 2.83 2.83
Birla International Limited CHF 100 2,500 2,500 5.97 3.43
Bharuch Dahej Railway Company Limited %10 13,530,000 13,530,000 25.75 17.90
34.55 24.16
Debt instruments at FVTOCI - (a)
Unquoted
Government Securities
6.83% Government of India Bond, 2039 2,000,000 2,000,000 18.36 18.14
Debt instruments at FVTPL - (a)
Unquoted
Preference Shares
5.25% Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares of
Aditya Birla Health Services Limited ¥1oo - 2500000 - 22.66
Investments in Mutual Funds
Investments in Debt Schemes of Mutual Funds 44.85 -
4,916.20 6,638.47
(a) Aggregate amount of investments and market value are given below:
Aggregate cost of quoted investments 500.65 500.65
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 4,818.44 6,573.51
Aggregate cost of unquoted investments 80.09 62.02
7. Note 9A. of Audited Standalone Financial Statements
Other Financial Assets, Non-current
T in Crore
As at As at
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
(Unsecured, Considered Good unless otherwise stated)
Derivative assets (Refer Note-52 of Audited Standalone Financial Statements) 95.99 107.41
Security Deposits - (a) 139.20 136.84
Deposit with Others - (a) (b) 41.54 67.29
276.73 311.54

(a) Include balance of ¥ 0.24 Crore (31/03/2018 - % 0.18 Crore) with Related parties. Refer Note 24 (I).
(b) Include balance of ¥ 16.26 Crore (31/03/2018 - ¥ 44.71 Crore) with Related parties. Refer Note 24 (V).

8. Note 9B. of Audited Standalone Financial Statements

Other Financial Assets, Current

T in Crore
As at As at
31.03.2019 31.03.2018

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Derivative assets (Refer Note - 52 of Audited Standalone Financial Statements) 821.65 885.35
Derivatives matured pending realisation 17.79 -

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Amounts recoverable from Related Parties (a) - 0.02
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Zin Crore
As at As at
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Security deposits
Unsecured, considered good 21.93 35.13
Considered doubtful 0.35 0.35
Allowance for doubtful amount (0.35) (0.35)
Deposits with Non Banking Financial Company (NBFC) with initial maturity more than 3 months 215.00 370.00
Accrued interest 27.94 40.00
Project expenses recoverable - 11.32
Others
Unsecured, considered good 30.34 31.42
Unsecured, considered doubtful 64.73 40.13
Allowance for doubtful amount (64.73) (40.13)
1,134.65 1,373.24
(a) Related parties. Refer Note 24.
9. Note 10A. of Audited Standalone Financial Statements
Other Non-Current Assets
Zin Crore
As at As at
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
(Unsecured, Considered Good unless otherwise stated)
Capital advances 116.21 86.22
Advance to supplier for goods and services 6.95 6.29
Prepaid expenses 6.48 6.98
Prepaid lease rent for leasehold lands 586.06 589.92
Others - (a)
Unsecured considered good 446.28 172.08
Unsecured, considered doubtful 9.98 9.98
Allowance for doubtful advances (9.98) (9.98)
1,161.98 861.49
(a) Mainly includes under protest payment made to various Statutory Authorities
10. Note 10B. of Audited Standalone Financial Statements
Other Current Assets
% in Crore
As at As at
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
(Unsecured, Considered Good unless otherwise stated)
Deposits with Government and Other Authorities 33.58 45.56
Advances to employees 9.98 12.08
Advance to supplier for goods and services 979.37 825.99
Prepaid expenses 32.40 33.15
Prepaid rent - leasehold land 14.41 13.95
Others
Unsecured considered good - (a) 885.23 1,134.00
Unsecured considered doubtful 112.73 106.31
Allowance for doubtful advances (112.73) (106.31)
1,954.97 2,064.73

(a) Mainly includes credit and claims receivable with indirect tax authorities.
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Inventories

Zin Crore
As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018
In Hand In Transit Total In Hand In Transit Total

Raw Materials 1,310.15 3,011.00 4,321.15 1,479.46 2,636.78 4,116.24
Finished Goods 517.80 201.38 719.18 487.26 4.62 491.88
Work-in-Progress 5,262.02 77.78 5,339.80 5,136.21 49.29 5,185.50
Stores and Spares 519.76 26.11 545.87 520.37 33.14 553.51
Coal and Fuel 362.26 106.20 468.46 259.46 131.79 391.25
7,971.99 3,422.47 11,394.46 7,882.76 2,855.62 10,738.38

(a) Fair value hedges are mainly used to hedge the exposure to change in fair value of commodity price risks. The fair
value adjustment remains part of the carrying value of inventory and taken to profit and loss when the inventory is sold.

(b) Inventories are hypothecated to secure short-term borrowings, Refer Note - 18B (a) of Audited Standalone Financial

Statements.

(c) Write downs of inventories (net of reversal) to net realizable value related to raw materials, work-in-progress and
finished goods amounted to ¥ 184.14 Crore (31/03/2018 % 19.93 Crore). These were recognized as expense during
the year and included in ‘cost of raw material consumed’ and ‘change in value of inventories of work-in-progress and

finished goods’ in statement of Profit and Loss.

(d) Inventories include bulk materials of coal and bauxite lying at yards and precious metals of gold and silver lying at
smelter and refinery aggregating to ¥ 1,730 Crore (as at 31/03/2018 % 1,870 Crore).

12. Note 13. of Audited Standalone Financial Statements

Cash and Cash Equivalents

% in Crore

As at As at

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Cash on hand 0.33 0.37

Cheques and drafts on hand - (a) 7.49 16.36
Balances with bank

Current accounts 344.41 218.95

Deposit with Banks with less than 3 months initial maturity 0.05 8.13

Short term liquid investments in mutual funds 1,162.40 1,565.64

1,514.68 1,809.45

(a) Includes ¥ 0.04 Crore (as at 31/03/2018 % 9.4 Crore) remittance in transit.

(b) There is no repatriation restriction with regard to cash and cash equivalents at the end of reporting period and prior

periods.

13. Note 20A of Audited Standalone Financial Statements

Other Financial Liabilities, Non-current

T in Crore

As at As at

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Derivative liabilities (Refer Note 52 of Audited Standalone Financial Statements) 63.04 65.38
Financial Guarantee Contract liability - (a) - 61.60
Liability for Capital Expenditure 3.79 7.33
Retention Amount Payable 3.46 4.57
Security and Other deposits 0.03 0.03
70.32 138.91
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(a) Due to improvement in financial performance and credit rating of Utkal Alumina International Limited (“Utkal”), the
requirement of providing the Company'’s financial guarantee towards Utkal’s borrowing, has been withdrawn, leading
to reversal of Financials Guarantee Contract Liability and recognition of other Income.

(Refer Note - 27 of Audited Standalone Financial Statements)

14. Note 20B of Audited Standalone Financial Statements

Other Financial Liabilities, Current

Zin Crore

As at As at

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Derivative liabilities (Refer Note - 52 of Audited Standalone Financial Statements) 474.23 620.88
Application/Call money due for refund - 0.31
Current maturities of finance lease obligations 5.35 5.36
Derivatives matured but not yet settled 1.41 4.34
Financial Guarantee Contract liabilities - (a) - 1.45
Interest Accrued but not due 565.67 542.40
Liability for Capital Expenditure 715.63 792.16
Retention Amount Payable 85.24 79.38
Security and Other deposits 25.96 26.74
Unclaimed Dividends - (b) 4.73 4.87
Unclaimed matured debentures - 0.02
Deferred operating lease obligations 2.30 1.72
Temporary book overdraft 4.67 -
1,885.19 2,079.63

(a) Refer Note - 13 (a)

(b) This amount do not include any due and outstanding, to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund except
% 0.07 crore (as at 31/03/2018 % 0.07 crore) which is held in abeyance due to legal cases pending.

15. Note 21A. of Audited Standalone Financial Statements

Provisions, Non-current

% in Crore
As at As at
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Provision for employee benefits 183.95 178.03
Provision for asset retirement obligations - (a) 91.65 86.61
Provision for environmental liability - (a) 5.13 6.13
Provision for enterprise social commitment - (a) 129.13 133.33
409.86 404.10
(a) Refer Note - 26 - Provisions
16. Note 21B. of Audited Standalone Financial Statements
Provisions, Current
T in Crore
As at As at
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Provision for employee benefits 233.86 216.83
Provision for environmental liabilities - (a) 66.91 12.80
Provision for enterprise social commitment - (a) 26.12 12.54
Provision for renewable power obligation - (a) 81.73 140.80
Provision for Legal cases - (a) 287.69 263.56
Other provisions - (a) 13.51 11.78
709.82 658.31

(a) Refer Note - 26 - Provisions
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17. Note 25. of Audited Standalone Financial Statements

Income Tax Assets and Liabilities

% in Crore

As at As at

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Non Current Tax Assets (Net) 281.80 1,242.79
Current Tax Assets 1,423.38 316.55
1,705.18 1,559.34

Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 972.27 816.54
972.27 816.54

The Company is subject to tax assessments and ongoing proceedings, which are pending before various Tax Appellate
Authorities. Management periodically evaluates the positions taken in tax returns with respect to such matters, including
unresolved tax disputes, which involves interpretation of applicable tax regulations and judicial precedents. Current tax
liability and tax asset balances are presented, after recognising as appropriate, provision for taxes payable and contingencies
basis management’s assessment of outcome of such ongoing proceedings and amounts that may become payable to the
tax authorities. Considering the nature of such estimates and uncertainties involved, the amount of such provisions may
change upon final resolution of the matters with tax authorities. Also Refer Note 1D

18. Note 26 of Audited Standalone Financial Statements

Revenue from Operations

T in Crore
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Revenue from contracts with customers
Sale of products - (a)
Domestic sales - (b) (c) 31,658.78 24,288.41
Export sales 13,393.45 18,724.75
45,052.23 43,013.16
Sale of services - (d) 155.00 -
45,207.23 43,013.16
Other operating revenues - (a) and (e) 541.93 432.88
45,749.16 43,446.04
Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price:
Contract Price 45,915.08 -
Adjustments for:
Refund Liabilities and discounts (538.05) -
Hedging gain/ (loss) (127.12) -
Others - Provisionally priced contracts (42.68) -
Revenue from Contracts with Customers 45,207.23 -

(a) Salesof Copper products and precious metals are accounted for provisionally, pending finalization of price and quantity.
Variations are accounted for in the period of settlement. Final price receivable on sale of above products for which
provisional price was not finalized are realigned at year end forward LME/LMBA rate and is being presented as part
of other operating revenue (previous year presented under revenue from sale of products). Revenue from subsequent
variation in price movement for year ended 31/03/2019 is ¥ 42.67 Crore (previous year ended 31/03/2018 % 9.60 Crore),
including subsequent variation in price movement from trading sales of ¥ 20.00 Crore (previous year ended 31/03/2018
T Nil).

(b) Includes sale of Di ammonium phosphate (DAP) including nutrient based subsidy of Phosphorus (P) & Potassium (K)
¥ 311.17 Crore (year ended 31/03/2018 ¥ 186.98 Crore).

(c) Includes Excise duty % Nil (year ended 31/03/2018 % 636.89 Crore till 30/06/2017). Subsequent to introduction of Goods
and Service Tax (GST) with effect from 1st July 2017, revenue is being reported excluding GST.
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(d)

(e)

(f)

Sale of services represents freight and insurance on exports which are identified as separate performance obligation
under Ind AS 115.

Includes Government Grant in the nature of sales related export Incentives and other benefits of ¥ 381.11 Crore (year
ended 31/03/2018 ¥ 315.93 Crore).

Impact on adoption of Ind AS 115:

The Company applied Ind AS 115 for the first time by using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the
date of initial application of 1st April 2018. Under this method, the cumulative effect of initially applying Ind AS 115
is recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as at 1st April 2018. Comparative prior
period has not been adjusted.

Entities applying the modified retrospective method can elect to apply the revenue standard only to the contracts that
are not completed as at the date of initial application (that is, they would ignore the effects of applying the revenue
standard to contracts that were completed prior to the date of initial application).

The adoption of the new standard did not have a material impact as at 1st April 2018 for the revenue contracts that are
not completed as at that date.

The following table presents the amounts by which each financial statement line item is affected in the current
year ended 31st March 2019 by the application of Ind AS 115 as compared with the previous revenue recognition
requirements. Advance from customer has been included as part of contractual liabilities and provision for discount
payable to customer has been separately presented as refund liabilities under other current liabilities. Line items that
were not affected by the changes have not been included.

T in Crore

st
31 March 2019 Increase/ 31 March 2019

Balance Sheet With;)fultnzd:gtil(ir; (decrease) as reported
Current Liabilities
Trade Payables 5,823.05 (89.38) 5,733.67
Other Current Liabilties 721.67 (37.00) 684.67
Contract Liabilities - 126.38 126.38

Sale from services have been presented seperately under Revenue from operations. These pertain to shipping and
handling services identified as separate performance obligation.

Refer Note 41 of Audited Standalone Financial Statements for disaggregated revenue information.

Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the remaining performance
obligations related disclosures for contracts where revenue recognized corresponds directly with value to the customer
of the entity’s performance completed to date.

19. Note 28 of Audited Standalone Financial Statements

Cost of Materials Consumed

% in Crore

Year ended Year ended

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Copper Concentrate - (a) 17,692.34 18,104.67
Alumina 4,264.38 2,957.96
Bauxite 452.54 322.39
Caustic Soda 738.87 716.10
Calcined Petroleum Coke 1,758.40 1,398.80
Rock Phosphate 324.13 227.35
Anode 33.19 446.72
Others 1,982.99 1,240.05

27,246.84 25,414.04

100

Abridged Annual Report 2018-19



CORPORATE STATUTORY FINANCIAL
OVERVIEW REPORTS STATEMENTS

(a) Purchase of copper concentrate is accounted for provisionally pending finalization of contents in the concentrate and
price. Variations are accounted for in the period of settlement. Final price payable on purchase of copper concentrate
for which provisional price and quantity were not finalized during the year are realigned based on forward LME and
LBMA rate. Impact on cost from subsequent variation in price movement for year ended 31/03/2019 was % (157.64)
Crore (previous year ended 31/03/2018 % 89.36 Crore).

20. Note 31. of Audited Standalone Financial Statements

Employee Benefits Expenses

% in Crore
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Salaries Wages and Bonus 1,614.06 1,5652.24
Post-Employment Benefits
Contribution to Provident Fund and other defined contribution funds (Refer Note - 43 of Audited 116.08 112.66
Standalone Financial Statements)
Gratuity and other defined benefit plans (Refer Note - 43 of Audited Standalone Financial Statements) 67.61 66.14
Employee Share-based Payments (Refer Note - 42 of Audited Standalone Financial Statements)
Equity-settled Share-based Payment Transactions 9.52 1.95
Cash-settled Share-based Payment Expenses (Stock Appreciation Rights) 10.43 -
Employee Welfare 170.27 162.94
1,987.97 1,895.93
Less: Transferred to Capital Work-in-Progress/ Intangible Assets under development 6.26 1.28
1,981.71 1,894.65

Note on impact of Hon’ble Supreme Court judgment on computation of provident fund contribution.

The Hon’ble Supreme Court of India (“SC”) by their order dated February 28, 2019, in the case of Surya Roshani Limited v/s
EPFO, set out the principles based on which allowances paid to the employees should be identified for inclusion in basic
wages for the purposes of computation of Provident Fund contribution. Subsequently, a review petition against this decision
has been filed and is pending before the SC for disposal.

The Company is awaiting the outcome of the review petition, and also directions from EPFQO, if any, to assess any potential
impact on the Company. Considering the above and uncertainity involved in the above matter, the Company has not made
any adjustments in these Financial Statements and will continue to monitor the same.

21. Note 36 of Audited Standalone Financial Statements
Exceptional Income / (Expenses)

T in Crore

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Exceptional Income - 61.25
Exceptional (Expenses) - (386.46)
- (325.21)
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Details of Exceptional Income /(Expenses) as follows:

% in Crore
] . Year ended Year ended
Nature Brief Details 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Legal Basis a Hon'ble Supreme Court judgment dated 13th October, 2017 and considering the - 61.25
Cases prospective contribution required to be made to the District Mineral Fund (DMF) by the holder
of a mining lease or a prospecting license-cum-mining lease in addition to the payment of
royalty, an amount of ¥ 61.25 Crore had been written back during financial year 2017-18
, which was provided/ paid in earlier years relating to period for which such levy was held
invalid or not applicable.
Based on the Hon'ble Supreme Court judgement dated 2nd August, 2017, in the matter - (219.69)
of Common Cause V/s Union of India (to which the Company was not a party), provisional
demands were raised on the Company for its bauxite mines. The Company had challenged
the purported demand and obtained stay on the demands. As the matter was pending
final determination and considering the implication of existing litigation, the Company had
provided ¥ 219.69 Crore during the financial year 2017-18.
Based on the Hon’ble Supreme Court judgment dated 15th September, 2017, in the matter of - (139.35)
Transit Fee on forest produce (as applicable, amongst others, in the States of Uttar Pradesh
and Madhya Pradesh), an amount of ¥ 139.35 Crore had been provided during the financial
year 2017-18.
Based on the Hon’ble Supreme Court judgment dated 22nd September, 2017, in the matter - (27.42)
of proportionate reduction in input tax credit in case of sale in course of inter-state trade,
commerce and branch transfer under the Gujarat Value Added Tax Act, 2003 to which the
Company was not a party, an amount of ¥ 27.42 Crore related to earlier periods had been
provided during the financial year 2017-18.
- (325.21)
22. Note 40 of Audited Standalone Financial Statements
Earnings per Share (EPS)
Zin Crore
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Basic EPS (%) 5.41 6.45
Diluted EPS (%) 5.41 6.45
Reconciliation of earnings used in calculating earnings per share
Profit/(loss) for the period attributable to Equity Shareholders 1,205.43 1,436.49

Weighted average numbers of equity shares used as a denominator in the calculation of EPS:

Weighted-average numbers of equity shares used as a denominator in the calculation of Basic EPS  2,227,573,655

2,227,789,728

Dilutive impact of Employee Stock Option Scheme 1,126,728 1,292,718
Weighted-average numbers of equity shares and potential equity shares

used in the calculation of Diluted EPS 2,228,700,383 2,229,082,446
Face Value per Equity Share (%) 1.00 1.00

Treasury shares are excluded from weighted-average numbers of equity shares used as a denominator in the calculation

of EPS.

Stock options granted to the employees under various ESOP schemes are considered to be potential equity shares. They
have been included in the determination of diluted earnings per share to the extent to which they are dilutive. The stock
options have not been included in the determination of basic earnings per share. The details relating to stock options are

under note 42 of Audited Standalone Financial Statements.
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23. Note 41 of Audited Standalone Financial Statements
Segment Reporting

The Company has identified Aluminium and Copper as its reportable segment basis how the chief operating decision maker
(CODM) allocates resources and assess performance of the Company. No operating segments have been aggregated to
form these reportable segments. Description of each of the reporting segments is as under:

i.  Aluminium Segment: This part of business manufactures and sells Hydrate and Alumina, and Aluminium and Aluminium
Products.

Copper Segment: This part of business manufactures and sells Copper Cathode, Continuous Cast Copper Rods,
Sulphuric Acid, DAP & Complexes, Gold, Silver and other precious metals.

The (CODM) primarily uses earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) as performance measure
to assess the performance of the operating segments. However, the CODM also receives information about the segment’s
revenues, segment assets and segment liabilities on regular basis.

A. Segment Profit or Loss:

(i) Segment’s performance are measured based on Segment EBITDA. Segment EBITDA is defined as “Earnings
from Continuing Operations before Finance Costs, Exceptional Items, Tax Expenses, Depreciation and
Amortization, Impairment of Non-Current Assets, Investment income and Fair value Gains or Losses on
Financial Assets but after allocation of Corporate Expenses”. Segment EBITDA are as follows:

Zin Crore
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Segment Profit or Loss:
Aluminium 2,884.54 3,708.01
Copper 1,469.22 1,538.69
Total Segment EBITDA 4,353.76 5,246.70
Segment EBITDA reconciles to Profit/ (Loss) before Tax as follows:
Total Segment EBIDTA 4,353.76 5,246.70
Finance Costs (1,683.04) (1,900.54)
Depreciation and Amortization (1,693.16) (1,617.32)
Exceptional Items (Net) - (325.21)
Interest and Dividend Income 434.19 357.58
Fair value gain/ (loss) on financial assets/liabilities 281.78 409.54
Other Unallocated Income/(Expense) (Net) 116.91 58.07
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax 1,810.44 2,228.82

(i) Following amount are either included in the measure of segment profit or loss reviewed by the CODM or are
regularly provided to the CODM:

in Crore
Year ended 31.03.2019 Year ended 31.03.2018
Aluminium Copper Aluminium Copper
Interest Income - (a) 18.11 63.45 27.66 47.46
Depreciation and Amortization - (b) 1,503.29 167.92 1,444.81 152.63

(a) Represents interest income from customers/ security deposits etc which are included in the measure of
segment profit or loss.

(b) Does not include in the measure of segment profit or loss but provided to the CODM.
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B. Segment Revenue:

(i) The segment revenue is measured in the same way as in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Sales between
operating segments are eliminated on consolidation. Segment Revenue and reconciliation of the same with
total revenue as follows:

T in Crore

Year ended 31.03.2019 Year ended 31.03.2018
Total Segment Inter-segment Revenue from Total Segment Inter-segment  Revenue from
Revenue Revenue Operations Revenue Revenue Operations
Aluminium 23,616.28 5.40 23,610.88 21,072.59 1.18 21,071.41
Copper 22,155.41 17.13 22,138.28 22,382.38 7.75 22,374.63
Total 45,771.69 22.53 45,749.16 43,454.97 8.93 43,446.04

(i) During the year, there is no revenue from a single customer which is more than 10% of the Company’s total
revenue.

(i) The amount of its revenue from external customers analysed by the country, in which customers are located,
are given below:

T in Crore

Year ended Year ended

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

India 31,877.64 24,437.44
Outside India

China 1,645.90 4,358.75

Korea 2,450.64 3,639.53

USA 1,124.15 2,058.96

Others 8,650.83 8,951.36

45,749.16 43,446.04

(iv) The Company recognises revenue at a point in time.
C. Segment Assets:

Segment assets are measured in the same way as in the financial statements. These assets are allocated
based on the operations of the segment and the physical location of the asset. However, certain assets like
investments, loans, assets classified as held for sale, current and deferred tax assets etc. are not considered to be
segment assets as they are managed at corporate level. Further, corporate administrative assets are not allocated
to individual segments as they are also managed at corporate level and these are not linked to any specific
segment.

(i) Segment Assets and Reconciliation of the same with Total Assets are as under:

T in Crore

Year ended Year ended

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Aluminium 42,204.53 42,312.75
Copper 9,847.93 9,224.86
Total Segment Assets 52,052.46 51,5637.61
Investments (Non-current and Current) 26,657.30 28,590.90
Investment Property 8.80 9.03
Loans 75.68 60.45
Assets classified as Held for Sale 94.33 74.99
Other Corporate Assets 2,613.66 2,455.93
Total Assets 81,502.23 82,728.91

During the year ended 31/03/2019, capital expenditure relating to Aluminium and Copper segments are ¥ 911.75 Crore and ¥ 205.98 Crore,
respectively (year ended 31/03/2018 ¥ 1,388.07 Crore and % 236.50 Crore, respectively).
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(i) The total of non-current assets excluding financial assets and deferred tax assets analysed by
which assets are located are given below:
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the country in

% in Crore

Year ended Year ended

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

India 35,948.38 37,205.17
Outside India - -
35,948.38 37,205.17

Segment Liabilities:

Segment liabilities are measured in the same way as in the financial statements. These liabilities

are allocated

based on the operations of the segment. In measurement of Aluminium and Copper segment’s liabilities, items like
borrowings, current and deferred tax liabilities, liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale etc. are
not considered to be segment liabilities as they are managed at corporate level. Further, corporate administrative
liabilities are not allocated to individual segments as they also managed at corporate levels and does not linked

to any specific segment.

Segment liabilities and reconciliation of the same with Total Liabilities are as under:

% in Crore
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Aluminium 5,361.71 5,680.49
Copper 4,389.01 3,979.93
Total Segment Liabilities 9,750.72 9,660.42
Borrowings (Non-Current and Current, including Current Maturity) 19,534.33 20,297.26
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 2,179.68 1,922.18
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 972.27 816.54
Liabilities classified as Held for Sale 0.03 0.03
Other Corporate Liabilities 507.51 581.74
Total Liabilities 32,944.54 33,278.17
24. Note 44 of Audited Standalone Financial Statements
Related Party Transactions
The following transactions were carried out with the Related Parties in the ordinary course of business:
Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures
T in Crore
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Subsidiaries Associates* Joint Ventures Subsidiaries Associates* Joint Ventures
1 Sales and Conversion 35.36 - - 30.32 - -
(a) Hindalco - AlImex Aerospace Limited 34.49 - - 30.03 - -
(b) Novelis Inc. and its Subsidiaries 0.87 - - 0.19 - -
(c) Utkal Alumina International Limited - - - 0.10 - -
2 Services rendered 0.47 - - 0.95 0.03 -

(a) Vodafone Idea Limited
( Formerly, Idea Cellular Limited)

- - - - 0.03 -

(b) Dahej Harbour & Infrastructure Limited 0.39 - - 0.33

(c) Utkal Alumina International Limited 0.08 - - 0.62
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Zin Crore

31.03.2019

31.03.2018

Subsidiaries Associates* Joint Ventures

Subsidiaries Associates* Joint Ventures

3 Interest and Dividend received during the year

Interest received 0.24 3.52 - 1.82 4.37 -
(a) Vodafonelld_ea Limited ( Formerly, Idea ) i i i 0.92 )
Cellular Limited)
) Company Privte Limitea - e : - e :
(c) Hindalco - Almex Aerospace Limited 0.10 - - 0.19 - -
(d) Suvas Holdings Limited 0.14 - - - - -
(e) Utkal Alumina International Limited - - - 1.63 - -
Dividend received 75.46 - - 20.00 - -
(a) Dahej Harbour & Infrastructure Limited 35.00 - - 20.00 - -
(b) Lucknow Finance Company Limited 3.96 - - - - -
(c) Renuka Investments & Finance Limited 24.51 - - - - -
(d) Rlen_ukeshwar Investments & Finance 11.99 i i i ) )
Limited
4 Interest paid 19.17 - - - - -
(a) Utkal Alumina International Limited 19.17 - - - - -
5 gl:r:(::sase of Materials, Capital Equipment and 4.114.14 526 ) 3,010.87 ) _
(a) Hindalco - Almex Aerospace Limited 1.16 - - 1.85 - -
(b) Minerals & Minerals Limited 44.48 - - 43.20 - -
(c) Novelis Inc. and its Subsidiaries 4.56 - - 3.80 - -
(d) Utkal Alumina International Limited 4,063.94 - - 2,962.02 - -
(e) A.olit_ya Birla Renewables Subsidiary ) 596 i i ) )
Limited
6 Services received 41.43 14.50 - 41.71 17.12 -
(a) Vodafonelld_ea Limited ( Formerly, Idea ) i i i 3.89 i
Cellular Limited)
©) Gt s Soenee & el - wm - ea
(c) DahejHarbour & Infrastructure Limited 40.16 - - 39.04 - -
(d) Lucknow Finance Company Limited 0.57 - - 0.56 - -
(e) Novelis Inc. and its Subsidiaries 0.26 - - 1.74 - -
(f)  Renuka Investments & Finance Limited 0.44 - - 0.33 - -
(g) Utkal Alumina International Limited - - - 0.04 - -
7 Investments, Deposits, Loans and Advances
made during the year
S]eep$;trs, Loans and Advances made during 10.51 i i 100.00 ) )
(a) Suvas Holdings Limited 10.51 - - - - -
(b) Utkal Alumina International Limited - - 100.00 - -
Investments Made during the Year 180.94 5.75 - 2,474.63 - -
(a) AV Minerals (Netherlands) N.V. 166.08 - - 192.35 - -
(b) Suvas Holdings Limited 14.86 - - 2.56 - -
(c) Utkal Alumina International Limited - - - 2,279.72 - -
(d) Aditya Birla Renewables Subsidiary ) 575 i i ) )

Limited
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Zin Crore

31.03.2019

31.03.2018

Subsidiaries Associates* Joint Ventures

Subsidiaries Associates* Joint Ventures

8 Investments, Deposits, Loans and Advances
made returned back during the year by
Deposits, Loans and Advances Returned
back during the Year ) ) ) 100.00 490 i
(a) Aditya Birla Science & Technology ) i i i 490 )
Company Private Limited '
(b) Utkal Alumina International Limited - - - 100.00 - -
9 Investments, Deposits, Loans and Advances
obtained during the year from
Deposits, Loans and Advances obtained
dufing the year from 800.00 i i i i i
(a) Utkal Alumina International Limited 800.00 - - - - -
10 Investments, Deposits, Loans and Advances
repaid during the year to
Deposits, Loans and Advances repaid durin
th epyear to P ’ 800.00 i i ) ) )
(a) Utkal Alumina International Limited 800.00 - - - - -
11 Guarantees and Collateral Securities given - - - 2.71 - -
(a) Suvas Holdings Limited - - - 2.71 - -
12 Gua}rantees and Collateral Securities released 4,865.12 i i 178.37 i i
during the year
(a) Suvas Holdings Limited 12.62 - - - - -
(b) Utkal Alumina International Limited 4,852.50 - - - - -
(c) Hindalcg Do Brasil Industria e Comercio ) ) ) 178.37 ) )
de Alumina Ltda.
13 Licence and Lease agreements 0.01 - - 0.01 - -
(a) DahejHarbour & Infrastructure Limited 0.01 - - 0.01 -
14 Recovery of ESOP Expenses 0.18 - - - - -
(a) Hindalco - AlImex Aerospace Limited 0.00 - - - -
(b) Utkal Alumina International Limited 0.18 - - - - -
15 Outstanding balances #
(i) Receivables 8.61 - 0.03 10.15 - 0.03
(a) Hydromine Global Minerals GMBH
Limited (Consolidated) ) i 0.03 i ) 0.03
(b) East Coast Bauxite Mining
Company Pvt. Limited 0.02 i i 0.02 i i
(c) HanaIco - Almex Aerospace 001 i i 238 i )
Limited
(d) Minerals & Minerals Limited 8.41 - - 7.29 - -
(e) Novelis Inc. and its Subsidiaries - - - 0.09 - -
(f)  Tubed Coal Mines Limited - - - 0.15 - -
(g) Utkal Alumina International Limited 0.17 - - 0.22 - -
(i) Payables 325.73 1.33 - 406.87 0.26 -
(a) Aditya Birla Science & Technology ) i i i 0.26 )
Company Private Limited '
(b) Dahej Harbour & Infrastructure Limited 6.51 - - 0.34 - -
(c) Novelis Inc. and its Subsidiaries 2.58 - - 1.47 - -
(d) Utkal Alumina International Limited 316.64 - - 405.06 - -
(e) Aditya Birla Renewables Subsidiary
Limited 133 i i i i
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Zin Crore
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Subsidiaries Associates* Joint Ventures Subsidiaries Associates* Joint Ventures
(iii) Deposits, Loans and Advances (Given) 10.70 50.59 - 0.18 50.59 -
e R .
(b) Lucknow Finance Company Limited 0.18 - - 0.18 - -
(c) Suvas Holdings Limited 10.52 - - - - -
(iv) gGitjlz:]antees and Collateral Securities 450 i . 4869.62 i i
(a) DahejHarbour & Infrastructure Limited 4.50 - - 4.50 - -
(b) Suvas Holdings Limited - - - 12.62 - -
(c) Utkal Alumina International Limited - - - 4,852.50 - -
(v) Investments

For details of investment in Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates. (Refer Notes 5, 6 and 15A of Audited

Standalone Financial Statements)

#all outstanding balances are unsecured and are payable in cash.

* The Company discontinued the accounting of its investment in Vodafone Idea Limited (Formerly, Idea Cellular Limited) as “Investment in
Associates”effective 31 March, 2018 as it no longer has significant influence over Vodafone Idea Limited ( Formerly, Idea Cellular Limited).

(i) Trusts
Contribution to Trusts:
(a) Hindalco Employee’s Gratuity Fund, Kolkata
(b) Hindalco Employee’s Gratuity Fund, Renukoot
(c) Hindalco Employee’s Provident Fund Institution, Renukoot
(d) Hindalco Superannuation Scheme, Renukoot
(e) Hindalco Industries Limited Employees’ Provident Fund I
() Hindalco Industries Limited Senior Management Staff Pension Fund |l
For details of contributions to the above Trusts and schemes, Refer Note 43 of Audited Standalone Financial Statements
(g) Hindalco Jan Seva Trust % 0.75 Crore ( as on 31/03/2018 % 0.75 Crore).
(h) Copper Jan Seva Trust % 5.77 Crore ( as on 31/03/2018 % 5.26 Crore).
Outstanding balances:
Receivable
(a) Hindalco Jan Seva Trust % 1.42 Crore (as on 31/03/2018 ¥ 0.99 Crore).
Payable
(a) Copper Jan Seva Trust % 4.05 Crore (as on 31/03/2018 % 3.65 Crore).
% in Crore
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
(1) Key Managerial Personnel
Managerial Remuneration
(@)  Mr. D. Bhattacharya - Vice Chairman* 4.04 6.93
(b)  Mr. Satish Pai - Managing Director ** 28.72 20.97
(c)  Mr. Praveen Maheshwari -Whole time Director & Chief Financial Officer ** 4.27 4.08
* Includes Pension of % 4.02 Crore (Year ended 31/03/2018 % 4.02 Crore), and reimbursement for medical expenses of ¥ 0.02 Crore (Year ended
31/03/2018 % 0.02 Crore) for past services.
** Excludes amortisation of fair value of employee share based payments under IndAS 102 and provision for gratuity and leave encashment
recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation as separate figures are not available.
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(a) Mr. Kumar Mangalam Birla 3.64 5.19
(b) Smt. Rajashree Birla 0.14 0.08
(c) Mr D Bhattacharya 0.13 0.12
(d) Mr. AK.Agarwala 0.15 0.14
(e) Mr. M.M. Bhagat 0.20 0.20
() Mr. K.N. Bhandari 0.22 0.20
(g) Mr. Y.P. Dandiwala 0.15 0.15
(h) Mr. Ram Charan 0.07 0.09
(i)  Mr Girish Dave 0.10 0.10
(j)  Mr. Jagdish Khattar (Resigned w.e.f. May 2018) - 0.07
(k)  Ms. Alka Bharucha 0.07 -

4.87 6.34

(V) The Company is one of the promoter members of Aditya Birla Management Corporation Private Limited (ABMCPL), a
Company limited by guarantee which has been formed to provide common facilities and resources to its members,
with a view to optimize the benefits of specialization and minimize cost for each member. The Company is one of
the participants in the common pool and shares the expenses incurred by ABMCPL, which is accounted for under
appropriate heads. The share of expenses charged by ABMCPL during the year is ¥ 399.55 Crore (year ended
31/03/2018 % 326.66 Crore) and net outstanding payable balance as at 31/03/2019 is ¥ 32.11 Crore (as at 31/03/2018
% 71.58 Crore). The oustanding deposit with ABMCPL as at 31/03/2019 is ¥ 16.26 Crore (as at 31/03/2018 % 44.71
Crore).

25. Note 45 of Audited Standalone Financial Statements

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

A. Contingent Liabilities

% in Crore

As at
31.03.2019

As at
31.03.2018

@

Claims against Company not acknowledged as Debt:

Following demands are disputed by the Company and are not provided for:

(i)

Demand for Stamp Duty by Collector (Stamp), Kanpur, Uttar Pradesh (U.P.) on
merger of Copper Business of IndoGulf Corporation with the Company.

20.00

20.00

The matter is pending before the Hon'ble High Court of Allahabad. The Company
believes that there is no substantive/computation provision for levy/calculation
of stamp duty within the provisions of Uttar Pradesh Stamp Act on scheme of
arrangement under the Companies Act, 1956, approved by the Court. Moreover,
the properties in question are located in the State of Gujarat and, thus, the Collector
(Stamp), Kanpur, has no territorial jurisdiction to make such a demand. Further,
the Company has already paid the stamp duty for the same in 2003-04 which has
been accepted as per the provisions of the Bombay Stamp Act, 1958. Previously,
the enforcement of demand of ¥ 252.96 Crore was disclosed as contingent liability,
instead of disclosing the amount for which the company believed to be contingently
liable.

(i)

Demand towards drawal of energy during peak hours by Uttar Pradesh Power
Corporation Limited (UPPCL)/ Purvanchal Vidyut Vitran Nigam Limited (PVVNL).

80.81

80.81

The dispute relates to the agreement entered with UPPCL for the period 2009-14.
Demand was raised by UPPCL for drawl of banked energy during peak hours. The
Hon’ble Supreme Court has stayed the demand and the matter is pending with
Appellate Tribunal for Electricity (APTEL).
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Zin Crore
As at As at
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
(iii)  Retrospective Revision of Water Rates by UP Jal Vidyut Nigam Limited. 4.08 4.08
Writ petition pending with Lucknow Bench of Allahabad High Court. The demand
for arrears stayed.
(iv) Demand for Entry Tax relating to valuation dispute. 28.05 28.05
Appeals have been filed with Additional CCT, Sambalpur.
(v) Interest demand on witholding of 50% payment of Entry tax. 27.56 27.56
Appeal is pending before Hon’ble High Court of Odisha and stay has been granted.
(vi) Transit Fees on Coal (U.P. and M.P). - 68.65
Contingency is w.r.t. transit fee on coal through BPC and Railway (other than through
road transport) and bauxite. On the basis of Supreme Court order Transit fess on
Coal transport through road has been provided for.
(vii) Cess on Coal by Shaktinagar Special Area Development Authority. - 3.98
The matter is pending before Nine Judges Bench of the Hon’ble Supreme Court.
(viii) Revision of surface rent on land by Government of Jharkhand. - 41.30
The matter is pending before the Hon’ble Supreme Court.
(xi) Demand for environment tax on royalty and development tax by the Collector, - 11.29
Chhatisgarh.
The matter is pending before the Hon’ble Supreme Court.
(x) Demand from State and Central Sales Tax authorities for various years. 19.96 19.96
At different levels of appeal.
(xi) Disallowances of Cenvat Credit on inputs & Capital goods & short payment of excise 25.80 25.77
on additional consideration received from recipient of deemed exporter.
Matters are pending with CESTAT.
(xii) Disallowances of Service Tax credit on Input services at Various locations. 131.58 110.73
These matters are pending with CESTAT authorities.
(xiii) Demand for recovery of cenvat credit availed on service tax paid on Goods Transport 7.22 7.22
Agency (outward charges).
The matter is pending with Commissioner (Appeals), Vadodara & Commissioner,
Bharuch.
(xiv) Water Tariff revision demand for previous years. 8.14 8.14
The matter is pending in the Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka.
(xv) Green Cess Provision Under Electricity Act Year-2012-13 to Year 2017-18. 10.52 9.12
The matter is Pending at Hon’ble Supreme Court.
(xvi) Other Contingent Liabilities in respect of Excise, Customs, Sales Tax etc. each being 13.49 13.54
for less than ¥ 1 Crore.
The demands are in dispute at various legal forums .
(xvii) Transitional Credit of cess. 2711 -
Writ Petition filed before Odisha and MP High Court.
(xviii) Penalty For Unauthorised Disposal Of Anode Butts. 13.77 -
The matter is pending with Odisha High Court.
418.04 480.20

It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above matters,
pending resolution of the respective proceedings.

(b) Other money for which Company is contingently liable

(i)

Customs Duty on Raw Materials imported under Advance License, against which
export obligation is to be fulfilled.

10.09

10.28
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B. Commitments

(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 615.30 339.59
provided for (net of advances)
(b)  The Company has given the following undertakings in connection with the loan of Utkal
Aluminium International Limited (UAIL), a wholly owned subsidiary:
(i) To hold minimum 51% equity shares in UAIL.
(i) To ensure to meet the Financial Covenants, except Fixed Asset Coverage Ratio, as
provided in the loan agreements.
(c)  Other Commitment for purchase of goods and Services (Net of Advance) 1,354.61 989.04

26. Note 46 of Audited Standalone Financial Statements
Provisions

The details of other provisions and its movement included in Note 15 and Note 16 are as under:

T in Crore

Assets  Environmental Enterprise Renewable
Particulars Retirement Social Legal Cases Power Others Total

Obligations Liability commitment Obligation
Balance as at 31 March 2017 82.14 18.29 142.49 - 394.27 34.56 671.75
Provision made during the year - 0.42 - 337.67 149.88 - 487.97
Reclassified - - - - - - -
Provision utilised during the year (0.19) (0.42) (56.17) (74.11)  (403.35) (22.78)  (506.02)
Provision reversed during the year - - - - - - -
Unwinding of discount 4.66 0.64 8.55 - - - 13.85
Balance as at 31 March 2018 86.61 18.93 145.87 263.56 140.80 11.78 667.55
Provision made during the year 3.00 59.86 5.27 - 159.20 9.29 236.62
Reclassified - - - 24.13 1.38 - 25.51
Provision utilised during the year (2.24) (7.37) (4.65) - (219.63) (0.09) (233.98)
Provision reversed during the year - - - - (0.02) (7.47) (7.49)
Unwinding of discount 4.28 0.62 8.76 - - - 13.66
Balance as at 31 March 2019 91.65 72.04 155.25 287.69 81.73 13.51 701.87
As at As at
31.03.2019  31.03.2018
Non-current Portion 225.91 226.07
Current Portion 475.96 441.48
701.87 667.55

The Company has made provisions towards asset retirement, environmental, social, legal and other obligations at various
locations involving considerable uncertainties towards amount and timing of outflow of economic resources. The provisions
are discounted over the management expected timing of related cash flows.

27. Note 51 of Audited Standalone Financial Statements
Capital Management

The Company'’s objective to manage its capital is to ensure continuity of business while at the same time provide reasonable
returns to its various stakeholders, but keep associated costs under control. In order to achieve this, requirement of capital
is reviewed periodically with reference to operating and business plans that take into account capital expenditure and
strategic investments. Apart from internal accrual, sourcing of capital is done through judicious combination of equity and
borrowing, both short term and long term. Net debt (total borrowings less current investments and cash & cash equivalents)
to equity ratio is used to monitor capital. No changes were made to the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018.

As at As at
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Debt Equity Ratio 0.40 0.41

As at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018, the Company was in compliance with all of its debt covenants for borrowings.
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28. Note 52 of Audited Standalone Financial Statements

Derivative Financial Instruments:

The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forwards, futures, swaps, options etc. to hedge its risks associated
with foreign exchange fluctuation. Risks associated with fluctuation in the price of the products (copper, aluminium, coal,
furnace oil and precious metals) are minimized by undertaking appropriate derivative instruments. Derivatives embedded
in other contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to their host
contracts. In some cases, the embedded derivatives may be designated in a hedge relationship. The fair values of all such
derivative financial instruments are recognized as assets or liabilities at the balance sheet date.

The Company also applies hedge accounting using certain foreign currency non-derivative monetary items which are used

as hedging instruments for hedging foreign exchange risk.

(A) The Asset and Liability position of various outstanding derivative financial instruments is given below:

Zin Crore
As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018
Nat f Risk being Hedged i i
ature oT Riskebeing Hedge Liability Asset Net Fair Liability Asset Net Fair
Value Value
Current
Cash flow hedges
Commodity contracts Price Risk Component (4.67) 43995 43528 (317.55) 64.86 (252.69)
Foreign currency Exchange rate movement risk (410.52) 340.71 (69.81) (192.79) 812.31 619.52
contracts
Fair Value Hedge
Embedded Derivatives* 19K Of change in Fair Value of (248.60) 611 (242.49)  (4.64) 15452 149.88
unpriced inventory
Non-designated hedges
Commaodity contracts (54.91) 40.30 (14.61) (110.12) 3.09 (107.03)
Foreign currency contracts (4.13) 0.69 (3.44) (0.42) 5.09 4.67
Total (722.83) 827.76 104.93 (625.52) 1,039.87 414.35
Non - current
Cash flow hedges
Commodity contracts Price Risk Component - 30.23 30.23 (32.62) 65.06 32.44
Foreign currency Exchange rate movement risk (62.60) 65.76 3.16 (32.76) 42.31 9.55
contracts
Non-designated hedges
Commodity contracts - - -
Foreign currency (0.44) - (0.44) - 0.04 0.04
contracts
Total (63.04) 95.99 32.95 (65.38) 107.41 42.03
Grand Total (785.87) 923.75 137.88 (690.90) 1,147.28 456.38

* Fair Value of ¥ (242.49) Crore (31/03/2018 % 149.88 Crore) is classified as part of Trade Payables.

The maturity profile for Commodity and Forex Exchange Forwards and Swaps ranges from April 2019 to March 2021.

Hedge Ratio of 1:1 is used by the Company.

Derivative assets are part of other financial assets included in note 9A & 9B of Audited Standalone Financial Statements.
Derivative liabilities are part of other financial liabilities included in note 20A & 20B of Audited Standalone Financial

Statements.
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(B) Outstanding position and fair value of various foreign exchange derivative financial instruments:
As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018
Currency Pair Average Notional Eair Value Average Notional Fair Value
exchange Value Gain/ (Loss) exchange Value Gain/ (Loss)
rate (in Million) (X Crore) rate (in Million) (X Crore)
Foreign currency forwards
Cash flow hedges
Sell USD_INR 74.18 656.78 88.49 71.30 866.07 360.00
Buy USD_INR 71.65 124.57 (24.36) - - -
Buy EUR_INR 82.72 9.75 (1.15) - - -
Total 62.98 360.00
Non-Designated
Buy AUD_INR - - - 50.40 0.03 -
Buy EUR_INR 84.86 6.13 (1.45) 80.06 10.63 1.48
Buy GBP_INR 95.49 0.01 (0.02) 90.00 0.11 0.05
Buy USD_INR 69.25 30.62 1.07 65.43 122.80 0.86
Sell USD_INR 69.92 129.65 (3.48) 65.98 120.11 2.32
Total (3.88) 4.71
Foreign currency swaps
Cash flow hedges
Sell USD_INR 63.69 588.81 (129.63) 63.96 938.04 269.07
Total (129.63) 269.07

©

Outstanding position and fair value of various foreign exchange non-derivative financial instruments used as

heding instruments:

% in Crore
As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018
Currency Average Notional Fair Value Average Notional Fair Value
Pair exchange _ y;lue Gain/ (Loss) exchange . y§1lue Gain/ (Loss)
rate (in Million) (X Crore) rate (in Million) (X Crore)
Foreign currency
monetary items
Cash flow hedges
Debt USD_INR 71.87 433.83 113.99 64.52 468.77 (30.86)
Liability for
Copper USD_INR 69.91 350.17 24.58 64.75 413.08 (14.49)
Concentrate
Total 138.57 (45.35)

(D) Outstanding position and fair value of various commodity derivative financial instruments

(i) Outstanding position and fair value of various commodity derivative financial instruments as at 31st March, 2019:

in Crore
Average _ _ Notional F_air Value
Currency Price/ Unit Quantity Unit ' ' \(alue Gain/(Loss)
(in millions) (X Crore)

Commodity Futures/Forwards/Swaps

Cash Flow Hedge

Aluminium Sell usD 2,224.09 208,600 MT 463.95 382.92
Copper Sell UsD 6,493.34 800 MT 5.19 0.03
Gold Sell INR 3,279,046 6,843 KGS 22,438.51 65.64
Silver Sell usbD 16.06 1,513,065 TOZ 24.30 8.25
Furnace Oil Buy usSD 341.20 50,000 MT 17.06 12.46
Coal Buy usbD 81.00 90,000 MT 7.29 (3.79)
Total 465.51
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(ii)

< in Crore
Average _ _ Notional F_air Value
Currency Price/ Unit Quantity Unit . . Yalue Gain/(Loss)
(in millions) (X Crore)
Non Designated hedges
Aluminium Buy usD 1,881.27 33,725  MT 63.45 4.42
Aluminium Sell usD 1,987.75 33,725 MT 67.04 20.39
Copper Buy usD 6,358.94 7,075  MT 44.99 6.33
Copper Sell usSD 6,510.95 12,625  MT 82.20 1.96
Gold Buy INR 3,288,031 4,474 KGS 14,710.65 (51.23)
Silver Buy usSD 15.43 217,134 T0OZ 3.35 (0.33)
Silver Sell usD 15.55 69,015 TOZ 1.07 0.13
Furnace Oil Buy usb 363.67 9,998 MT 3.64 3.66
Furnace Oil Sell usSD 417.39 9,998 MT 417 0.06
Total (14.61)
Embedded derivatives
Fair Value Hedge
Copper Sell usD 6,105.30 121,896  MT 755.00 (245.71)
Gold Sell usSD 1,306.69 33,123 TOZ 43.28 2.32
Silver Sell usSD 15.56 351,099 TOZ 5.46 0.90
Total (242.49)
Outstanding position and fair value of various commodity derivative financial instruments as at 31st
March, 2018:
Zin Crore
Average . . Notional ngr Value
Currency Price/ Unit Quantity Unit . . \_/alue Gain/(Loss)
(in millions) (X Crore)
Commodity
Futures/Forwards/Swaps
Cash Flow Hedge
Aluminium Sell usD 1,966.54 524,000 MT 1,030.47 (212.36)
Copper Sell Uusb 7,269.67 2,700 MT 19.63 8.86
Gold Sell Uusb 1,3038.21 126,148 TOZ 164.40 (24.07)
Silver Sell usD 17.083 2,713,922 TOZ 46.21 7.32
Total (220.25)
Non Designated hedges
Aluminium Buy Uusb 2,074.44 60,550 MT 125.61 (32.81)
Aluminium Sell usb 1,853.83 60,450 MT 112.06 (54.01)
Copper Buy usD 6,776.31 22,150 MT 150.10 (12.37)
Copper Sell usSD 6,575.51 4,175 MT 27.45 (3.05)
Gold Buy Uusb 1,328.29 101,194 TOZ 134.42 (1.84)
Gold Sell Uusb 1,314.30 81,373 TOZ 106.95 (5.71)
Silver Buy usD 16.40 553,630 TOZ 9.08 (0.14)
Silver Sell usD 16.72 553,630 TOZ 9.25 1.25
Furnace Oil Buy Uusb 277.33 3,000 MT 0.83 1.83
Furnace Oil Sell Uusb 361.51 3,000 MT 1.08 (0.18)
Total (107.03)
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Zin Crore
Average . ‘ Notional Flair Value
Currency Price/ Unit Quantity Unit . . \_/alue Gain/(Loss)
(in millions) (X Crore)

Embedded derivatives

Fair Value Hedge

Copper Sell usD 6,916.84 110,063 MT 761.29 150.14
Gold Sell Uusb 1,326.24 57,285 TOZ 75.97 (0.74)
Silver Sell usb 16.56 466,348 TOZ 7.72 0.48
Total 149.88

(E) Details of amount held in OCl and the period during which these are going to be released and affecting Statement
of Profit & Loss:

T in Crore
As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018
. Release i Release
Closing Value I Closing Value |
in Hedging L” ei; After 12 in Hedging :1” ei; After 12
Cash Flow Hedges Reserve than Months  Reserve than Months
Months Months

Gain/ (Loss) Gain/ (Loss) Gain/(Loss) Gain/(Loss) Gain/(Loss) Gain/(Loss)

Commodity Forwards/Futures/Swaps

Aluminium 382.76 357.06 25.70 (210.83) (270.25) 59.42
Copper 0.03 0.03 - 8.85 8.85 -
Gold 0.18 0.18 - (23.88) (23.88) -
Silver 8.23 8.23 - 7.33 7.47 (0.14)
Furnace Oil 12.26 12.26 - - - -
Coal (3.78) (3.78) - - - -
399.68 373.98 25.70 (218.53) (277.81) 59.28
Non-Derivative Financial Instruments
Debt 113.99 113.99 - (30.86) (30.86) -
Liability for Copper Concentrate 19.54 19.54 - (9.58) (9.58) -
Foreign currency Forwards
USD_INR 89.01 23.26 65.75 360.53 317.69 42.84
EUR_INR (1.15) (0.24) (0.91) - - -
Foreign currency Swaps
USD_INR (317.46) (252.44) (65.02) (103.94) (23.59) (80.35)
(96.07) (95.89) (0.18) 216.15 253.66 (37.51)
303.61 278.09 2552 (2.38) (24.15) 21.77
Deferred Tax on above (106.09) (97.18) (8.91) 0.84 8.44 (7.60)
Total 197.52 180.91 16.61 (1.54) (15.71) 14.17
T in Crore
As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018
Release Release
CostorHedgingReserie - GUONe e s g e e
Reserve Months Reserve Months

Gain/(Loss) Gain/ (Loss) Gain/(Loss) Gain/(Loss) Gain/(Loss) Gain/ (Loss)

Foreign currency Swaps

USD_INR 771.61 615.19 156.42 994.99 360.97 634.02
Deferred Tax on above (269.63) (214.97) (54.66) (347.68) (126.14) (221.54)
Total 501.98 400.22 101.76 647.31 234.83 412.48
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(F) Gain/(loss) recognized in OCIl and recycled:

i.  Amount of gain/(loss) recognized in Hedging Reserve and recycled during the year 2018-19:

Zin Crore
Recycled
. Net Net Amount Total Closing
Cash Flow Hed
s ownedges cé‘;f;r:r;g recoAr?:i)suen(; Amount added to Non- Amount Balance
9 to P&L Financial Assets recycled before tax
Commodity (218.53) 781.13 161.71 1.21 162.92 399.68
Forex 216.15 (983.70) (671.48) - (671.48) (96.07)
Total (2.38) (202.57) (509.77) 1.21 (508.56) 303.61
Deferred Tax on above 0.84 70.78 178.12 (0.41) 177.71 (106.09)
Zin Crore
Recycled
; . Net Net Amount Total Closing
Cost of Hed R
ostotriedging reserve (;F;Tanr:r;g recoAn::i)su:(; Amount added to Non- Amount Balance
9 to P&L Financial Assets recycled before tax
Commodity - (41.15) (41.15) - (41.15) -
Forex 994.99 200.42 423.80 - 423.80 771.61
Total 994.99 159.27 382.65 - 382.65 771.61
Deferred Tax on above (347.68) (55.67) (133.72) - (133.72) (269.63)
ii. Amount of gain/(loss) recognized in Hedging Reserve and recycled during the year 2017-18:
% in Crore
Recycled
. Net Net Amount Total Closing
Cash Flow Hed
ash Howredges ?;;T;:r;ge recg\n:i)su:(; Amount added to Non- Amount Balance
9 to P&L Financial Assets recycled before tax
Commaodity (1,190.74) (312.30) (1,284.51) - (1,284.51) (218.53)
Forex 722.95 294.34 801.14 - 801.14 216.15
Total (467.79) (17.96) (483.37) - (483.37) (2.38)
Deferred Tax on above 161.90 6.23 167.29 - 167.29 0.84
Zin Crore
Recycled
; . Net Net Amount Total Closing
Cost of Hed
ostotredamng Cé;;(le;:r;g recg\n;](i)su:(; Amount added to Non- Amount Balance
9 to P&L Financial Assets recycled before tax
Forex 633.97 361.02 - - - 994.99
Deferred Tax on above (219.40) (128.28) - - - (347.68)

(G) Amount of gain/ (loss) recycled from Hedging Reserve and reference of the line item in Statement of Profit and Loss

where those amounts are included:

% in Crore

Note No.  Note Description Nature of Products Y;f;gggig Ygfrogg(j)ig
18 Revenue From Operations Aluminium Products 231.85 (617.49)
18 Revenue From Operations Copper and Copper Products (399.56) 200.44
18 Revenue From Operations Precious Metals 40.59 (66.32)
(127.12) (483.37)
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(H) The adjustment as part of the carrying value of inventories arising on account of fair value hedges is as follows:

Zin Crore

Inventory Type Year Ended Year Ended

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Copper 251.79 (148.61)
Gold (2.41) 0.89
Silver (0.92) (0.49)
248.46 (148.21)

The Company’s hedging policy only allows for effective hedge relationships to be established. The effectiveness
portion of hedge is recognised in OCI, while ineffective portion of hedge is recognised immediately in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. The Company uses hypothetical derivative method to assess effectiveness. Ineffectiveness may arise
on account of differences in critical terms and credit risk of the hedging instrument and the hedged item.

The amount of gain/ (loss) recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on account of hedge ineffectiveness for
cash flow hedges for the period ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 is % (35.82) Crore and % (20.78) Crore,
respectively which forms part of Gain/Loss on fair value of derivatives under note 35 of Audited Standalone Financial
Statements.

29. Note 53 of Audited Standalone Financial Statements

Additional Information

A.

As per Section 135 of Companies Act 2015, a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee has been formed. As per the
provisions of Companies Act 2013, amount not less than ¥ 29.97Crore (Year ended 31/03/2018 % 26.7 Crore) should
have been incurred during the year under CSR. The Company has incurred expenses amounting to ¥ 34.14 Crore
(Year ended 31/03/2018 ¥ 31.09 Crore), in line with the CSR policy which is in conformity with the activities specified in
Schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013.

Details of loans given, investment made and guarantee given covered under section 186(4) of the Companies Act.
2013:

i. Details of investments made have been given as part of Note ‘5’ Investments in Subsidiary, Note ‘6’ Investments
in Associates and Note ‘7A and 7B’ Other Investments of Audited Standalone Financial Statements.

i. Loans and Financial Guarantees given below:

% in Crore
. . . As at As at
Name of the Company Relationship ~ Nature of Transaction 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Details of Loans
Aditya Birla Smencg gnd Technology Associate  Loan 50.59 50.59
Company Private Limited
Suvas Holding Limited Subsidiary Loan 10.51 -
Details of Guarantee
Suvas Holdings Limited Subsidiary  Financial Guarantee - 12.62
Utkal Alumina International Limited Subsidiary  Financial Guarantee - 4,852.50
Dahej Harbour and Infrastructure Limited ~ Subsidiary  Performance Guarantee 4.50 4.50

iii. Disclosure relating to amount outstanding at year end and maximum outstanding during the year of loans and
advances, in nature of loan, required under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, are given below:

T in Crore
As at Maximym As at Maxim_um

Associate:
Aditya Birla Science and Technology Company Private Limited 50.59 50.59 50.59 55.49
Suvas Holding Limited 10.51 10.51 - -
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C. Note on acquisition of Aleris Corporation (Aleris).

On 26th July, 2018, Novelis Inc.(Novelis), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, has signed a definitive agreement
to acquire Aleris Corporation (Aleris), a global supplier of rolled aluminum products, for approximately US$ 2.58 billion
including assumption of debt. As part of the acquisition, the Company, through its subsidiary Novelis, will acquire
13 manufacturing facilities of Aleris across North America, Asia and Europe. The acquisition is subject to customary
closing conditions and regulatory approvals.

D. There was an incident in Red Mud (Bauxite Residue) storage area connected to the Alumina plant situated at Muri,
Jharkhand, on April 9, 2019. The incident involved a spillage in the red mud cake storage area. The operations of
the plant remain suspended following the incident. The unit is in the business of producing and supplying Aluminium
Hydrate primarily to Aluminium smelters of the Company for captive consumption. The incident is not expected to have
any material impact on the company’s financial performance.

30. Note 54 of Audited Standalone Financial Statements

During the financial year ended March 31, 2019, the Company has reclassified/ regrouped certain comparatives in order
to conform with current year’s presentation. The following reclassification/ regrouping do not have material impact in the
Financial Statements.

The key reclassification / regrouping included the following :

(i)  Consumption of Furnance oil amounting to ¥ 29.18 Crore has been reclassified from Raw Material Consumption to
Power and Fuel.

(i) Certain gains /losses on account of foreign exchange fluctuations are reclassified from various heads to Other expense
in Gain/(loss) on Exchange Fluctuation amounting to ¥ 22.25 Crore.

As per our report annexed.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Hindalco Industries Limited
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/ E-300009

Sumit Seth Praveen Kumar Maheshwari Satish Pai
Partner Whole-time Director & Managing Director
Membership Number: 105869 Chief Financial Officer DIN-06646758
DIN-00174361
Anil Malik M M Bhagat
Company Secretary Director

DIN-00006245
Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 16, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT ON THE
ABRIDGED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Members of Hindalco Industries Limited

Reportontheabridged consolidated financial statements

1.

Management's

The accompanying abridged consolidated financial statements
of Hindalco Industries Limited (“hereinafter referred to as the
Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company
and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), its
joint ventures and associate companies,which comprise the
abridged consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2019,
the abridged consolidated statement of profit and loss, the
abridged consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
abridged consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, together with the related notes, which we have
signed under reference to this report.

These abridged consolidated financial statements are derived
from the statutory audited consolidated financial statements
of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019 prepared
by the Company’s Management in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including
the Indian Accounting Standards specified in the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended)
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”),
covered by our attached report of even date to the Members
of the Company pursuant to Section 143 of the Act, in which
we have expressed an unmodified audit opinion.

The abridged consolidated financial statements do not
contain all the disclosures required by the Indian Accounting
Standards specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) under section 133 of the
Act and Schedule 1l to the Act, applied in the preparation and
presentation of the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Company. Reading the abridged consolidated financial
statements, therefore, is not a substitute for reading the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company.

responsibility  for the abridged

consolidated financial statements

4.

The Company's Management is responsible for the
preparation of the abridged consolidated financial statements

in accordance with Section 136 of the Act. The Company’s
Management (including Directors) are ultimately responsible
for the designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
abridged consolidated financial statements that are consistent
with the audited consolidated financial statements and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
and also includes appropriate interpretation and application of
the relevant provisions of the Act.

The Company’s Management (including Directors) are also
responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with the
requirements of Section 136 of the Act.

Auditor’s responsibility

6.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the abridged
consolidated financial statements based on our procedures,
which were conducted in accordance with Standard on
Auditing (SA) 810, ‘Engagements to Report on Summary
Financial Statements’, issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Opinion

7.

In our opinion, the accompanying abridged consolidated
financial statements are consistent, in all material respects,
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019
prepared in accordance with Division Il to Schedule Il to
the Act,covered by our attached report of even date to the
Members of the Company pursuant to Section 143 of the Act,
in accordance with Section 136 of the Act.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/ E-300009

Sumit Seth
Partner
Membership Number: 105869

Mumbai
May 16, 2019
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To the Members of Hindalco Industries Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Opinion

1.

120

We have audited the accompanying consolidated
financial statements of Hindalco Industries Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”)
and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), its
joint ventures and associate companies (refer Note
57 to the attached consolidated financial statements),
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as
at March 31, 2019 and the consolidated statement of
profit and loss, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information
prepared based on the relevant records (hereinafter
referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state
of affairs of the Group, its joint ventures and associate
companies as at March 31, 2019, of consolidated total
comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other
comprehensive loss), consolidated changes in equity
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for opinion

3.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group, its joint ventures and associate companies
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in India in terms of the Code of Ethics
issued by ICAI and the relevant provisions of the Act,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit
evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of
their reports referred to in sub-paragraphs16 and 18
of the Other matters paragraph below, other than the
unaudited financial statements/ financial information
as certified by the management and referred to in sub-
paragraph 17 of the Other matters paragraph below,
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key audit matters

4.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

A. Measurement of inventory quantities of coal,
bauxite and work in progress consisting of
precious metals

Refer Notes 4(g) and 16 (e) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Of the Holding Company’s * 11,394.46 crores of
inventory as at March 31, 2019, * 1,730 crores of
inventory comprised of coal, bauxite and work in
progress consisting of precious metals.

This was determined a key audit matter, as the
measurement of these inventory quantities lying at
the Holding Company’s yards, smelter and refinery
is complex and involves significant judgement and
estimate resulting from measuring the surface area,
dip measurement of materials in tanks/silos, etc.

Abridged Annual Report 2018-19

Our audit procedures relating to the measurement of inventory
quantities of coal, bauxite and work in progress of precious
metals included the following:

Understanding and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of controls over physical count and
measurement of such inventory;

Evaluation of competency
management’s experts;

and capabilities of
Physically observing inventory measurement and count
procedures carried out by management using experts,
to ensure its appropriateness and completeness; and

Obtaining and inspecting, inventory measurement and
physical count results for such inventories, including
assessing and evaluating the results of analysis
performed by management in respect of differences
between book and physical quantities.
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

The Holding Company uses internal and external
experts, as applicable to perform volumetric
surveys and assessments, basis which the quantity
for these inventories is estimated.

Based on the above procedures performed, we did not identify
any material exceptions in the measurement of inventory
quantities of coal, bauxite and work in progress inventories
consisting of precious metals.

B. Provisions recognised and contingencies
disclosed with regard to certain legal and tax
matters

Refer Notes 4(f), 13, 15, 28, 51, and 52 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at March 31, 2019, the Holding Company has
paid deposits under protest, recognised provisions
and disclosed contingent liabilities towards various
legal and tax matters. There are number of legal,
direct and indirect tax cases against the Holding
Company, including environmental, mining, local
and state levies, income tax holidays, availing of
input tax credits etc.

This is a key audit matter, as evaluation of these
matters requires management judgement and
estimation, interpretation of laws and regulations
and application of relevant judicial precedents to
determine the probability of outflow of economic
resources for recognising provisions and making
related disclosures in the financial statements.

Our audit procedures relating to provisions recognised and
contingencies disclosed regarding certain legal and tax
matters included the following:

o Understanding and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of controls over the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosures made in the
financial statements in respect of these matters;

. Obtaining details of legal and tax matters, inspecting
the supporting documents to evaluate management'’s
assessment of probability of outcome and the magnitude
of potential loss, and testing related provisions and
disclosures in the financial statements;

° Reviewing orders and other communication fromregulatory
authorities and management responses thereto;

. Reviewing management expert’s legal advice and opinion
as applicable, obtained by the Holding Company’s
management for evaluating certain legal matters and
evaluating competence and capabilities of the experts;
and

o Using auditor’s experts for assistance in evaluating
certain significant and complex direct and indirect tax
matters.

Based on the above procedures performed, we did not
identify any material exceptions in the provision recognised
and contingent liabilities disclosed in the financial statements
with regard to such legal and tax matters.

C. Accounting of derivatives
transactions

Refer Notes 211(Q), 12, 26 and 55 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Holding Company’s financial performance is
significantly impacted by fluctuations in prices of
aluminium, copper, gold, silver, furnace oil, coal,
foreign exchange rates and interest rates. The
Holding Company takes a structured approach to
the identification, quantification and hedging of such
risks by using various derivatives (e.g. forwards,
swaps, futures and embedded derivatives) in
commodities and/or foreign currencies. These
hedges are designated as either cash flow or fair
value hedges, and in certain cases remains non-
designated.

and hedging

Our audit procedures related to accounting of derivative and

hedging transactions included the following:

° Understanding and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of controls over accounting of derivative
and hedging transactions;

° Testing qualifying criteria for hedge accounting in
accordance with Ind AS 109, including:

Vv Understanding the risk management objectives and
strategies for different types of hedging programs;

v Evaluating that the hedging relationship consists
only of eligible hedging instruments and hedged
items;
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

As at March 31, 2019, the carrying value of the
Holding Company’s derivatives included derivative
assets amounting to * 935.43 crores and derivative
liabilities of * 537.27 crores.

Derivative and hedge accounting is considered a
key audit matter, because of its significance to the
financial statements, the volume, nature and types
of hedging relationships, including complexity
involved in the application of hedge accounting
principles in accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial
Instruments.

\J  Using auditor's expert for assistance in verifying
hedge effectiveness requirements of Ind AS 109,
including the economic relationship between the
hedged item and the hedging instrument.

Evaluating competence and capabilities of the auditor’s
experts;

Testing appropriateness of hedge accounting to qualified
hedge relationships i.e. cash flow and fair value hedges;

Testing related presentation and disclosures in the
financial statements.

Based on the above procedures performed, we did not
identify any material exceptions in the amounts, presentation
and disclosures made in the financial statements relating to
accounting of derivatives and hedging transactions.

D. Assessment of indication of impairment and
the recoverable amount (RA) of certain Cash
Generating Units (CGUs) within the Aluminium
segment

Refer Notes 4(c), 6, 9 and 48 to the consolidated
financial statements.

External sources of information such as changes in
the market and economic environment, including
increase in the cost of input materials and decline
in the Aluminium metal prices, required Holding
Company’s management to assess whether there
is any indication of impairment and therefore make
an estimate of RA of certain CGUs within Aluminium
segment having carrying value of net assets of *
29,413 crores as at March 31, 2019.

Based on such indications, impairment testing was
performed by the Holding Company’s management
in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 36,
Impairment of Assets. Management has calculated
the RA of the CGUs using value in use method.

This is a key audit matter, because of the
significant carrying value of these CGUs and the
estimation uncertainty in assumptions used for
calculating the RA of these CGUs such as future
metal prices, foreign exchange rates, discount
rate, input costs and rate of growth over the
estimation period.

Our audit procedures related to assessment of indication of
impairment and RA of these CGUs included the following:

Understanding and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of controls over identification
and assessment of any potential impairment, including
determining the carrying amount and RA of the CGUs;

Using auditor's experts for testing appropriateness
of the method and model used for determining RA,
mathematical accuracy of the models’ calculations and
evaluating reasonableness of key assumptions used in
future cash flow projections such as future metal prices,
foreign exchange rates, discount rate, input costs and
rate of growth over the estimation period;

Evaluating competence and capabilities of the auditor’s
experts;

Performing sensitivity analysis over key assumptions
to corroborate that RA is within a reasonable range; and

Testing related presentation and disclosures in the
financial statements.

Based on the above procedures performed, we did
not note any material exceptions in the management’s
assessment of the indication of impairment and conclusion
that the RA of these CGUs within the Aluminium segment

were not lower than their respective carrying amounts.

5. The following information related to Key Audit Matter was included in the Memorandum of Work Performed dated
May 15, 2019 issued by other auditor,whose audit report contained an unmodified audit opinion on the consolidated
financial information of Novelis Inc. (“Novelis”), a subsidiary of the Holding Company, which has been reproduced by
us as under:
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Key audit matter

How the other auditor addressed the key audit matter

Goodwill impairment assessment

The Company’s consolidated goodwill balance was INR
18,579 crores(USD 2.6 Billion) at March 31, 2019. The
Company conducts an impairment test as of the last
day of March each year, or more frequently if events or
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of goodwill
may be impaired. Potential impairment is identified by
comparing the recoverable value of a cash generating units
toits carrying value. The Company estimates the recoverable
value based on fair value less cost to sell approach. The
determination of recoverable value using the income and
market approaches requires the use of estimates and
assumptions related to selection of multiples and control
premium for the market approach and sales volumes and
prices, costs to produce, capital spending and discount rate
for the income approach.

Significant judgment is required by management when
developing the fair value measurement of the cash
generating units, which in turn led to significant auditor
judgment, significant audit effort, and a high degree of
auditor subjectivity in performing procedures to evaluate
management’s significant assumptions, including multiples,
control premium for the market approach and sales volumes and
prices, costs to produce, capital spending, and the discount
rate for the income approach. Also, we involved professionals
with specialized skill and knowledge to assist them.

Refer Notes 13 and 40 in the consolidated financial information of Novelis.*

Our procedures included, among others:

We tested the effectiveness of controls relating tomanagement’s
goodwill impairment assessment, including controls over the
valuation of the Company’s cash generating units.

Testing management’s process for developing the fair value
of the cash generating unit, evaluating the appropriateness
of the discounted cash flow model used in the income
approach, and evaluating the reasonableness of significant
assumptions used by management in the income and
market approaches.

We evaluated the assumptions related to sales volumes
and prices, costs to produce, and capital spending by
considering the past performance of the cash generating
units to forecasts, and whether they were consistent with
evidence obtained both from external sources and in other
areas of the audit.

We utilised professionals with specialized skill and
knowledge to assist in evaluating the appropriateness of
the Company’s discounted cash flow models, assessing
the reasonableness of the discount rate and selection of
multiples, developing an independent estimate of the control
premium and comparing our independent estimate of the
control premium to management’s estimate.

As a result of our procedures performed, no misstatements were noted.

* These notes are included in Note 4(b) and 8 of the consolidated financial statements.

6. The following information related to Key audit matter was included in the Memorandum of Work Performed dated May
2, 2019 along with audit report dated April 30, 2019 containing an unmodified audit opinion on the financial statements
of Utkal Alumina International Limited (“Utkal”), a subsidiary of the Holding Company, issued by an independent firm
of Chartered Accountants, which has been reproduced by us as under:

Key audit matter

How the other auditor addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of deferred
recognised MAT credit

tax assets, including

The Company has significant amount of deferred tax assets,
mainly resulting fromnetbroughtforwardlossesas perIncome
Tax Act. The valuation of deferred tax assets is significant to
the audit because the risk exists that future taxable profits
will not be sufficient to fully recover the deferred tax assets.
Management supports the recoverability of the deferred
tax assets mainly with income projections which contain
estimates of and tax strategies for future taxable income.

Refer Notes 7 & 33* of Utkal’s financial statements.

Our audit procedures included:

e evaluating the Management’ determination of the
estimated manner in which the deferred tax asset
would be utilised by comparing the Management’s
assessment to business plans and profit forecasts
based on our knowledge of the business and the
industry in which company operates;

e critically assessing whether profit forecasts are
reasonable in relation to historical trends, current year
performance and future plans; and

e using our own tax team to assist us in assessing
the appropriateness of the level of deferred taxes
recognised in the balance sheet.

We assessed the adequacy of the income tax disclosures in
the financial statements, setting out the basis of the deferred
tax balance and the level of estimation involved.

We found that the assumptions and estimates were within the
acceptable range and that the disclosures are proportionate.

* These notes are included in Notes 14 and 44 of the consolidated financial statements.
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Other information

7.

The Holding Company’'s Board of Directors is
responsible for the other information. The other
information comprise the information included in the
annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report there on.
The annual report is expected to be made available to
us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that
there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance and take appropriate action as applicable
under the relevant laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with
governance for the consolidated financial statements

8.

124

The Holding Company’'s Board of Directors is
responsible for the preparation and presentation of
these consolidated financial statements in term of the
requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance and consolidated cash flows,
and changes in equity of the Group including its joint
ventures and associate companies in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board
of Directors of the companies included in the Group
and of its joint ventures and associate companies are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
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10.

preparation of the consolidated financial statements by
the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group and of its joint ventures and associate
companies are responsible for assessing the ability
of the Group and of its joint ventures and associate
companies to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its joint ventures and
associate companies are responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of the Group and of its
joint ventures and associate companies.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

11.

12.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e  Obtainanunderstanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible



13.

for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding
Company has adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

e  Concludeonthe appropriateness of management’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the ability of the Group and its joint ventures
and associate companies to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group and its joint ventures and associate
companies to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures,and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group and
its joint ventures and associate companies to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the
financial statements of such entities included in
the consolidated financial statements of which we
are the independent auditors. For the other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements,
which have been audited by other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried
out by them. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of
which we are the independent auditors regarding,

14.

15.
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among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance
with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Other matters

16.

We did not audit the financial statements of eight
subsidiaries and consolidated financial information of
one subsidiary whose financial statements/ financial
information reflect total assets of ¥ 87,870.03 crores and
net assets of ¥ 25,550.71 crores as at March 31, 2019,
total revenue of ¥ 88,404.76 crores, total comprehensive
income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive
loss) of ¥ 3,692.05 crores and net cash inflows
amounting to ¥ 1,379.75 crores for the year ended on
that date, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements. The consolidated financial statements
also include the Group’s share of total comprehensive
income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive
income) of ¥ 0.60 crore for the year ended March
31, 2019 as considered in the consolidated financial
statements, in respect of one joint venture and two
associate companies, whose financial statements have
not been audited by us. These financial statements/
financial information have been audited by other
auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
insofar as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these subsidiaries, joint venture
and associate companies and our report in terms of
sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act including
report on Other Information insofar as it relates to the
aforesaid subsidiaries, joint venture and associate
companies, is based solely on the reports of the other
auditors.
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17.

18.

19.
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We did not audit the financial statements of one
subsidiary, whose financial information reflect total
assets of ¥ and net assets of ¥*as at March 31, 2019,
total revenue of T Nil, total comprehensive income
(comprising of profit and other comprehensive income)
of ¥*and net cash outflows amounting to ¥ for the year
ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements. This financial information is
unaudited and has been furnished to us by the
Management, and our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements insofar as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary
and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143
of the Act including report on Other Information insofar
as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary is based solely
on such unaudited financial information. In our opinion
and according to the information and explanations
given to us by the Holding Company’s Management,
these financial statements are not material to the Group.

*represents figures below the rounding convention used in this
report

The financial statements of one subsidiary located
outside India, included in the consolidated financial
statements, whichconstitutetotalassetsof' 319.62crores
and net assets of ¥ 144.86 crores as at March 31, 2019,
total revenue of ¥ 342.39 crores, total comprehensive
loss (comprising of loss and other comprehensive loss)
of ¥ 192,43crores and net cash outflows amounting
to % 7.54 crores for the year then ended, have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in its respective country and
have been audited by other auditor under generally
accepted auditing standards applicable in its country.
The Holding Company’s management has converted
the financial statements of such subsidiary located
outside India from the accounting principles generally
accepted in their respective country to the accounting
principles generally accepted in India. We have audited
these conversion adjustments made by the Holding
Company’s management. Our opinion in so far as it
relates to the balances and affairs of such subsidiary
located outside India, including other information, is
based on the report of other auditor and the conversion
adjustments prepared by the management of the
Holding Company and audited by us.

In case of one joint venture, the financial information
for the year ended March 31, 2019 is not available.
The investment in this company is carried at ¥ 0.70
crore. In the absence of aforementioned financial
information, the Group’s share of total comprehensive
income of this joint venture for the year ended March
31, 2019 has not been provided in the consolidated
financial statements.
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and
our report on other legal and regulatory requirements below,
is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect
to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the
other auditors and the financial information certified by the
Management.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

20.

(a)

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to
the extent applicable, that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by
law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears
from our examination of those books and the reports of
the other auditors.

The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated
statement of profit and loss, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the relevant books of account and
records maintained for the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received
from the directors of the Holding Company as on March
31, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors of
the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory
auditors of its subsidiary companies, joint venture and
associate companies incorporated in India, none of
the directors of the Group companies, its joint venture
and associate companies incorporated in India is
disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the
Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014,
in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose
the impact, if any, of pending litigations on the



consolidated financial position of the Group, its
joint venture and associate companies— Refer
Notes 51 and 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Provision has been made in the consolidated
financial statements, as required under the
applicable law or accounting standards, for
material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts as at
March 31, 2019 — Refer Notes 26, 27 and 28 to
the consolidated financial statements in respect
of such items as it relates to the Group, its joint
venture and associate companies.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts,
required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding

CORPORATE
OVERVIEW

STATUTORY
REPORTS

FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Company and its subsidiary companies,joint
venture and associate companies incorporated in
India, except amount of ¥ 0.07 crore.

The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified
Bank Notes is not applicable to the Group for the
year ended March 31, 2019.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/ E-300009

Sumit Seth

Partner

Membership Number: 105869

Mumbai

May 16, 2019
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 20 (f) of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Hindalco Industries
Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Report on the internal financial controls under
clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1.

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the Holding Company as of and
for the year ended March 31, 2019, we have audited
the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of Hindalco Industries Limited (hereinafter
referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary
companies, its joint ventures and associate companies,
which are companies incorporated in India, as of that
date.

Management’s responsibility for internal financial controls

2.

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding
company, its subsidiary companies, its joint ventures
and associate companies, to whom reporting under
clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in
respect of the adequacy of the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements is applicable,
which are companies incorporated in India, are
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on, “internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Holding
Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI)”. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the respective
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s responsibility

3.

128

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding
Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the“Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAl and
the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial
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statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement , including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
in terms of their reports referred to in the Other matters
paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Holding
Company’s internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements.

Meaning of internal financial controls over financial
reporting

6.

A company'’s internal financial control with reference
to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation off inancial
statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control with reference
to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail,accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2)provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent limitations of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements, including



the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary
companies, its joint venture and associate companies,
which are companies incorporated in India, have, in
all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system with reference to financial statements
and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Holding
Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
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of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

India.
Other matters

9. Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of

the

Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls over financial reporting

insofar as it relates to six subsidiary companies,

one

joint venture and two associate companies, which

are companies incorporated in India, is based

on

the corresponding reports of the auditors of such

companies incorporated in India. Our opinion is
modified in respect of this matter.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/ E-300009

Sumit Seth
Partner
Membership Number: 105869

Mumbai
May 16, 2019
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ABRIDGED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

as at March 31, 2019

T in Crore
As At As At
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 64,184.93 63,886.59
Capital Work-in-Progress 3,974.63 1,982.98
Investment Property 23.15 23.72
Goodwill 18,574.61 17,829.44
Other Intangible Assets 3,076.53 3,348.68
Intangible Assets under Development 122.48 79.96
Investments Accounted for using Equity Method 21.04 14.69
Financial Assets:
Non-Current Investments 5,135.66 6,863.14
Loans 72.53 77.48
Other Financial Assets 360.88 408.18
Non-Current Tax Assets (Net) 284.51 1,246.04
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 802.94 813.45
Other Non-Current Assets 2,004.30 1,289.67

98,638.19 97,864.02

Current Assets

Inventories 22,193.79 21,631.39
Financial Assets:
Current Investments 3,855.31 3,903.48
Trade Receivables 11,459.76 9,959.81
Cash and Cash Equivalents 9,118.74 8,044.94
Bank balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 667.82 12.82
Loans 57.74 57.95
Other Financial Assets 1,994.69 2,857.50
Current Tax Assets (Net) 1,440.84 331.21
Other Current Assets 3,075.61 3,055.27
53,864.30 49,854.37
Assets or Disposal Group Classified as Held for Sale or Held for Distribution to Owners 129.20 108.88

53,993.50 49,963.25
152,631.69 147,827.27

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Equity Share Capital 222.39 222.89

Other Equity 57,279.34 54,628.88
57,501.73 54,851.77

Non-Controlling Interest 9.48 8.64

57,511.21 54,860.41
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% in Crore
As At As At
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities:
Non-Current Borrowings 48,031.61 47,874.26
Trade Payables
(I) Total Outstanding Dues of Micro and Small Enterprises - -
(II) Total Outstanding Dues other than Micro and Small Enterprises 1.55 24.04
Other Non-Current Financial Liabilities 179.46 183.39
Provisions 7,440.11 7,081.05
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 4,453.47 3,867.21
Other Non-Current Liabilities 1,275.35 1,176.24
61,381.55 60,206.19
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities:
Current Borrowings 4,225.73 3,398.16
Trade Payables
(I) Total Outstanding Dues of Micro and Small Enterprises 15.12 5.16
(I) Total Outstanding Dues other than Micro and Small Enterprises 20,707.73 20,399.64
Other Current Financial Liabilities 4,092.14 4,5670.63
Provisions 1,978.08 1,872.44
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 1,312.71 1,193.24
Contract Liabilities 176.62 -
Other Current Liabilities 1,230.77 1,321.37
33,738.90 32,760.64
Liability Associated with Disposal Group Classified as Held for Sale or Held for Distribution to Owners 0.03 0.03
33,738.93 32,760.67
95,120.48 92,966.86
152,631.69 147,827.27

Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (refer Note 2 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements)

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Abridged Consolidated Financial Statements.
This is the Abridged Consolidated Balance Sheet referred in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/ E-300009

Sumit Seth
Partner
Membership Number: 105869

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 16, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Hindalco Industries Limited

Satish Pai
Managing Director
DIN-06646758

Praveen Kumar Maheshwari
Whole-time Director &

Chief Financial Officer
DIN-00174361

Anil Malik
Company Secretary

M M Bhagat
Director
DIN-00006245
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ABRIDGED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

for the year ended March 31, 2019

% in Crore
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
INCOME
Revenue from Operations 130,542.25 115,819.70
Other Income 1,127.11 1,104.57
Total Income 131,669.36 116,924.27
EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 78,068.62 70,872.29
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 235.03 4.92
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-in-Progress 385.65 (1,991.42)
Excise Duty on Sales - 636.90
Employee Benefits Expenses 9,043.09 8,644.78
Power and Fuel 9,618.20 8,614.11
Finance Costs 3,778.04 3,910.73
Depreciation and Amortization 4,776.98 4,506.24
Impairment Loss/(Reversal), (Net) (10.75) 100.25
Other Expenses 17,691.89 15,117.50
Total Expenses 123,586.75 110,416.30
Profit/ (Loss) before Share in Profit/ (Loss) in Equity Accounted Investments, Exceptional ltems and Tax 8,082.61 6,507.97
Share in Profit/ (Loss) in Equity Accounted Investments (Net of Tax) 0.49 (125.09)
Profit/ (Loss) before Exceptional Iltems and Tax 8,083.10 6,382.88
Exceptional ltems (Net) - 1,774.16
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax 8,083.10 8,157.04
Income Tax Expenses:
Current Tax 1,910.41 1,664.17
Deferred Tax 677.68 410.00
Profit/ (Loss) for the year 5,495.01 6,082.87
Other Comprehensive Income:
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss
Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) on Defined Benefit Obligations (160.86) 105.79
Change in Fair Value of Financial Instruments designated as FVTOCI (1,776.01) 580.60
Share in Equity Accounted Investments 0.15 0.06
Income Tax effect 50.46 (96.77)
Items that will be reclassified to Profit and Loss
Change in Fair Value of Debt Instruments designated as FVTOCI 2.37 (1.56)
Cash Flow Hedges (349.46) 1,471.17
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (325.05) 1,427.04
Income Tax effect 92.48 (494.91)
Other Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the year (Net of Tax) (2,465.92) 2,991.42
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 3,029.09 9,074.29
Profit/ (Loss) attributable to:
Owners of the Company 5,495.67 6,082.92
Non-Controlling Interests (0.66) (0.05)
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% in Crore
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Other Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) attributable to:
Owners of the Company (2,465.92) 2,991.42
Non-Controlling Interests - -
Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) attributable to:
Owners of the Company 3,029.75 9,074.34
Non-Controlling Interests (0.66) (0.05)
Earnings/ (Loss) per Share:
Basic (%) 24.67 27.30
Diluted (%) 24.66 27.29

Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (refer Note 2 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements)

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Abridged Consolidated Financial Statements.
This is the Abridged Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss referred in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/ E-300009

Sumit Seth
Partner
Membership Number: 105869

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 16, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Hindalco Industries Limited

Praveen Kumar Maheshwari Satish Pai
Whole-time Director & Managing Director
Chief Financial Officer DIN-06646758
DIN-00174361

Anil Malik M M Bhagat
Company Secretary Director

DIN-00006245
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HINDALCO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

ABRIDGED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended March 31, 2019

T in Crore
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Cash Generated/ (Used) - Operating Activities 11,979.52 10,897.68
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
Net Cash Generated/ (Used) - Investing Activities (5,651.65) 5,025.75
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net Cash Generated/ (Used) - Financing Activities (5,461.32) (16,412.40)
Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 866.55 (488.97)
Add : Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 8,040.50 8,221.95
Add : Effect of exchange variation on Cash and Cash Equivalents 192.46 307.52
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents 9,099.51 8,040.50
Reconciliation of Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents with Balance Sheet:
Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Balance Sheet 9,118.74 8,044.94
Less: Fair Value adjustments in Liquid Investments (19.23) (4.44)
Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Cash Flow Statement 9,099.51 8,040.50
Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (refer Note 2 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements)
The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Abridged Consolidated Financial Statements.
This is the Abridged Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow referred in our report of even date.
For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Hindalco Industries Limited
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/ E-300009
Sumit Seth Praveen Kumar Maheshwari Satish Pai
Partner Whole-time Director & Managing Director
Membership Number: 105869 Chief Financial Officer DIN-06646758

DIN-00174361

Anil Malik
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 16, 2019
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE

CORPORATE
OVERVIEW

STATUTORY
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FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

ABRIDGED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

Note 1 of Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements

Company Overview

Hindalco Industries Limited (“the Company/ Parent”)
was incorporated in India in the year 1958 having its
registered office at Ahura Centre, 1st Floor, B Wing,
Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400093.

The Company has two main stream of business
Aluminium and Copper.

In Aluminium, the Company caters to the entire value
chain starting from mining of bauxite and coal through
production of value added products for various
application.

The Company along with its subsidiaries has
manufacturing operations in eleven countries including
India spread over four continents North America, South
America, Asia and Europe. Apart from primary aluminium,
the Company produces aluminium sheet, extrusion and
light gauge products for use in packaging market which
includes beverage and food, can and foil products as
well as for use in automotive, electronics, architecture,
transportation and industrial product markets.

The Company also has one of the largest single location
Copper smelting facility in India.

The equity shares of the Company are listed on he
Indian Stock Exchanges (National Stock Exchange &
Bombay Stock Exchange) and GDRs are listed on the
Luxemburg Stock Exchange.

Note 2 of Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements

Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting
Policies

Basis of Preparation

The Consolidated Financial Statements (“the financial
statements”) relate to the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively “the Group”) and certain unstructured
entities consolidated by the Group and its interest
in associates and joint ventures. The consolidated
financial statements comply in all material aspects
with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind-AS”) as
prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act
2013 (“the Act”), as notified under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, (including
subsequent ammendments) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India.

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
year ended March 31, 2019 have been approved by
the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting
held on May 16, 2019.

The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention on accrual basis except
for following assets and liabilities which have been
measured at fair value:

° Financial instruments - Measured at fair value;

° Assets held for sale - Measured at fair value less
cost to sell;

e Plan assets under defined benefit plans -
Measured at fair value; and

e Employee share-based payments - Measured at
fair value

In addition, the carrying values of recognised assets
and liabilities designated as hedged items in fair value
hedges that would otherwise be carried at cost are
adjusted to record changes in the fair values attributable
to the risks that are being hedged in effective hedge
relationship.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group take into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the
financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for employee share-based payment, leasing
transactions and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in Inventories or value in use
in Impairment of Assets. The basis of fair valuation
of these items are given as part of their respective
accounting policies.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Group can access at the measurement
date;
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° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The Group has applied the following Accounting
Standards and its amendments for the first time for
annual reporting period commencing April 1, 2018:

i Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

i. Amendment to Ind AS 20, Accounting for
Government Grant and Disclosure of Government
Assistance

ii. Appendix B, Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration to Ind AS 21, The Effects
of Change in Foreign Exchange Rates

iv. ~ Amendment to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes
v.  Amendment to Ind AS 40, Investment Property

vi. Amendment to Ind AS 28, Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures and Ind AS 112,
Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities

The Group had to change its accounting
policies and accounting following the adoption
of Ind AS 115. Most of the other amendments
listed above did not have any impact on the amounts
recognized in prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current and future period.

In preparing the financial statements in conformity with
Ind-AS requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities as
at the date of the financial statements and the amounts
of revenue and expenses during the reported period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any
revision to such estimates is recognised in the period in
which the same is determined.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Indian Rupees (INR/Z) which is also the Parent’s
Functional Currency and all values are rounded to
nearest crore with two decimal except when otherwise
stated.

Significant Accounting Policies:
Principles of Consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are the entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the group is exposed to or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with

Abridged Annual Report 2018-19

the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power to direct the relevant activities of
the entity. Consolidation of subsidiary begins when
the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated financial statements from the date the
Group gains the control until the date the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.

The Group combines the financial statements of the
parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding together
like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and
expenses. Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised profits on transactions between group
companies are eliminated in full. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred assets.
Appropriate adjustments for deferred taxes are made
for temporary differences that arise from the elimination
of unrealised profits and losses from intra-group
transactions or undistributed earnings of Group’s entity
included in consolidated profit and loss, if any.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared
using uniform accounting policies for like transactions
and other events in similar circumstances. If a member
of the Group uses accounting policies other than those
adopted in the consolidated financial statements for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances,
appropriate adjustments are made to that group
member’s financial statements to ensure conformity
with the Group’s accounting policies. The financial
statements of all entities used for the purpose of
consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date
as that of the parent company. When the end of the
reporting period of the parent is different from that of a
subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares additional financial
information as of the same date as the financial
statements of the parent to enable the parent to
consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary,
unless it is impractical to do so.

Non-controlling interest in the profit / loss and equity
of the subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss and the
consolidated balance sheet, respectively.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. This results in an adjustment between the
carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests toreflecttheir relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount of the adjustment
to non-controlling interests and any consideration paid
or received is recognised within equity.



In case the Group ceases to consolidate a subsidiary
because of a loss of control, any retained interest in
the entity is remeasured to its fair value. This fair value
becomes the initial carrying amount for the purpose
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial assets.
When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises the assets, including goodwill, and
liabilities of the subsidiary, carrying amount of any non-
controlling interests, cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity and recognise resulting difference
between the fair value of the investment retained
and the consideration received and total of amount
derecognised as gain or loss attributable to the Parent.
In addition, amounts, if any, previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that entity
are reclassified to profit or loss as would be required if
the parent had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

Interest in Associates and Joint Ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies, generally accompanying a shareholding
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s interest in its associates or joint ventures
are accounted for using the equity method from the
date on which the investee becomes an associate or
a joint venture. Under equity method, the investment in
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the changes
in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate or
joint venture since the acquisition date. On acquisition
of the investment in an associate or a joint venture, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as Goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment is recognised in equity as
Capital Reserve in the period in which the investment
is acquired.

The consolidated statement of profit and loss reflects the
Group’s share of the results of operations of the associate

CORPORATE STATUTORY FINANCIAL
OVERVIEW REPORTS STATEMENTS

or joint venture. Any change in other comprehensive
income (OCI) is presented as part of the Group’s OCI.
In addition, when there has been a change recognised
directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture,
the Group recognises its share of that changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains or losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and the associate or
joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest
in the associate or joint venture.

When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or
a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in that
associate or joint venture (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint
venture. If the associate or joint venture subsequently
reports profits, the group resumes recognising its share
of those profits only after its share of the profit equals
the share of losses not recognised.

At each reporting date, the Group determines whether
there is objective evidence that the investment in
the associate or joint venture is impaired. If there is
such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate or joint venture and its
carrying value, and then recognises the impairment
loss in statement of profit and loss. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases. Goodwill relating to associate or joint venture
is included in the carrying amount of the investment
and is not tested for impairment individually.

The Group continues to use the equity method when
an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or an investment in a joint venture
becomes an investment in an associate.

If ownership interest in an associate or a joint venture
is reduced but significant influence or joint control
is retained, the Group continues to use the equity
method, and only proportionate share of the amount
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to consolidated statement of profit and
loss where appropriate.

When the Group classified its investments, or a portion
thereof, in associate or joint venture as held for sale, it
discontinues the use of the equity method in relation
to the portion that is classified as held for sale. Any
retained portion of an investment in an associate or a
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joint venture that has not been classified as held for sale
continues to be accounted for using the equity method.
The Group discontinues the use of the equity method
at the time of disposal when the disposal results in the
Group losing significant influence over the associate or
joint venture.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate
or joint venture, the group measures and recognises
any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture and the fair value of retained investment
and proceeds from disposal is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Business Combination

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in
a business combination comprises the fair values of
the assets transferred, liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquired business, equity interests issued
by the Group and fair value of any assets or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured at their fair
values. However, certain assets and liabilities i.e.
deferred tax assets or liabilities, assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements, liabilities
or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements and assets or disposal groups that
are classified as held for sale, acquired or assumed
in a business combination are measured as per the
applicable Ind-AS.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s
net identifiable assets.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquired entity and the acquisition-date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquired entity over
the acquisition-date fair value of the net identifiable
assets acquired is recognised as goodwill. Any
gain on a bargain purchase is recognised is in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
as Capital Reserve if there exists clear evidence of
the underlying reasons for classifying the business
combination as resulting in a bargain purchase,
otherwise the gain is recognised directly in equity as
Capital Reserve.

Abridged Annual Report 2018-19

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair
value at the date of acquisition. If an obligation to pay
contingent consideration that meets the definition of a
financial instrument is classified as equity, then it is not
remeasured subsequently and settlement is accounted
for within equity. Other contingent consideration is
remeasured at fair value at each reporting date and
changes in the fair value of contingent consideration
are recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages,
any previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and
the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate.

Where it is not possible to complete the determination
of fair values by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, a provisional assessment
of fair values is made and any adjustments required
to those provisional values, and the corresponding
adjustments to goodwill, are finalised within 12 months
of the acquisition date.

Interest in Joint Operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the assets, and obligations for the
liabilities, relating to the arrangement. Joint control
is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

When a Group entity undertakes its activities under joint
operations, the Group as a joint operator recognises in
relation to its interest in a joint operation:

e its assets, including its share of any assets held
jointly;

e ts liabilities, including its share of any liabilities
incurred jointly;

e jts revenue from the sale of its share of the output
arising from the joint operation;

e jts share of the revenue from the sale of the output
by the joint operation; and

e jts expenses, including its share of any expenses
incurred jointly.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation
in accordance with the Ind-ASs applicable to the
particular assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

When a Group entity transacts with a joint operation in
which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale



or contribution of assets), the Group is considered to
be conducting the transaction with the other parties
to the joint operation, and gains and losses resulting
from the transactions are recognised in the financial
statements only to the extent of other parties’ interests
in the joint operation.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation
in which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a
purchase of assets), the Group does not recognise
its share of the gains and losses until it resells those
assets to a third party.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the
production or/and supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
balance sheetatcost, lessany subsequentaccumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses.

The initial cost at cash price equivalence of property,
plant and equipment acquired comprises its purchase
price, including import duties and non-refundable
purchase taxes, any directly attributable costs of
bringing the assets to its working condition and location
and present value of any obligatory decommissioning
costs for its intended use. Cost may also include
effective portion on qualifying cash flow hedges of
foreign currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment recycled from hedge reserve as basis
adjustment.

In case of self-constructed assets, cost includes the
costs of all materials used in construction, direct labour,
allocation of overheads, directly attributable borrowing
costs and effective portion of cash flow hedges of
foreign currency recycled from the hedge reserve as
basis adjustment.

Subsequent expenditure on major maintenance or
repairs includes the cost of the replacement of parts of
assets and overhaul costs. Where an asset or part of an
assetisreplaced and itis probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will be available to the
Group, the expenditure is capitalised and the carrying
amount of the item replaced is derecognised. Similarly,
overhaul costs associated with major maintenance
are capitalised and depreciated over their useful lives
where it is probable that future economic benefits will
be available and any remaining carrying amounts of the
cost of previous overhauls are derecognised. All other
costs are expensed as incurred.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress assets in the course of
construction for production or/and supply of goods or
services or administrative purposes, or for purposes
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not yet determined, are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. At the point when an asset
is operating at management’s intended use, the cost of
construction is transferred to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment. Costs associated with
the commissioning of an asset are capitalised where
the asset is available for use but incapable of operating
at normal levels until a period of commissioning has
been completed.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost
or value of assets, over their estimated useful lives
or, in the case of leased assets (including leasehold
improvements), over the lease term if shorter. The
lease period is considered by excluding any lease
renewals options, unless the renewals are reasonably
certain. Depreciation is recorded using the straight line
basis. The estimated useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis. Each component of an item of property, plant
and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation
to the total cost of that item is depreciated separately
if its useful life differs from the others components of
the asset.

The useful life of the items of Property, Plant and
Equipment estimated by the management for the
current and comparative period are in line with the
useful life as per Schedule 1l of the Companies
Act, 2013.

Depreciation commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use. Depreciated assets in property
and accumulated depreciation accounts are retained
fully until they are removed from service.

Disposal of assets

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit and loss.

Investment Property

Investment properties held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both are stated in the consolidated
balance sheetatcost, lessany subsequentaccumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses. Any gain or loss on disposal of investment
property is determined as the difference between
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
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the property and is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss. Transfer to, or from,
investment property is at the carrying amount of the
property.

Intangible Assets (Other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired are reported at cost
less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortization is charged on a
straight line basis over their estimated useful lives
other than Mining Rights. The estimated useful life and
amortization method are reviewed at the end of each
annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Internally-generated intangible assets
Expenditure on research activities is recognized as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognized if, and only if all of the
following have been demonstrated:

e thetechnicalfeasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial
and other resources to complete the development
and to use or sell the intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognized for internally-generated
intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset is recognised.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can
be recognized, development expenditure is charged
to the consolidated statement of profit and loss in the
period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses,
on the same basis as intangible assets acquired
separately.
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Intangible assets business
combination

Identified intangible assets acquired in a business
combination and recognised separately from goodwiill
are initially recognised at their fair values at the

acquisition date.

acquired in a

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination are reported at
cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets acquired separately.

Mining Reserves, Resources and Rights

Mineral reserves, resources and rights (together
mining rights) which can be reasonably valued,
are recognised in the assessment of fair values on
acquisition. Exploitable mineral rights are amortised
using the unit of production basis over the commercially
recoverable reserves. Mineral resources are included
in amortisation calculations where there is a high
degree of confidence that they will be extracted in
an economic manner. Commercially recoverable
reserves are proved and probable reserves. Changes
in the commercial recoverable reserves affecting unit
of production calculations are dealt with prospectively
over the revised remaining reserves.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss when the
asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the asset may be impaired.

Stripping cost

Stripping costs incurred during the mining production
phase are allocated between cost of inventory
produced and the existing mine asset. The stripping
ratio, as approved by the regulatory authority, for the
life of the mine is obtained by dividing the estimated
quantity of overburden by the estimated quantity of
mineable coal / bauxite reserve to be extracted over
the life of the mine. This ratio is periodically reviewed
and changes, if any, are accounted for prospectively.

Stripping costs are allocated and included as a
component of the mine asset when they represent
significantly improved access to ore provided all the
following conditions are met:



e it is probable that the future economic benefit
associated with the stripping activity will be
realised,;

e the component of the ore body for which access
has been improved can be identified; and

e the costs relating to the stripping activity
associated with the improved access can be
reliably measured.

The overburden removal costs are included in Mining
Rights under Intangible assets and amortised based
on stripping ratio on the quantity of coal / bauxite
excavated.

Non-Current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale
Non-Current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the asset (or disposal group) is available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject only
to terms that are usual and customary for sales of
such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly
probable. Management must be committed to the sale,
which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

Non-Current assets (and disposal groups) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may
be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the
unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on
the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

On disposal of a subsidiary the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or
loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition
of an associate is described above.
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Impairment

Impairment of tangible and
excluding Goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible, intangible and
other non-financial assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

intangible assets

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Non-financial assets (other than Goodwill) that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Refer accounting policy on “Goodwill” for impairment
of goodwiill.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded by the
group entities at their respective functional currency
at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the
transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary
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assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency
are translated to the functional currency at the exchange
rates prevailing at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss with the
exception of the following:

e exchange differences on foreign currency
borrowings relating to qualifying assets under
construction are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment
to interest costs on those foreign currency
borrowings;

e  exchange differences on transactions entered into
in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks
(see below for hedge accounting policies); and

e exchange differences on monetary items
receivable from or payable to a foreign operation
for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to
occur (therefore forming part of the net investment
in the foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to the consolidated
statement of profit and loss on repayment of the
monetary items.

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date of initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measures at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising
on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair
value is treated in line with the recognition of gain or
loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e. translation
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised
in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets, liabilities and equity (except
retained earnings) of foreign operations are translated
into Indian Rupees at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the reporting date and their income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the date
of transactions. For practical reason, the Group uses an
average rate to translate income and expense items, if
the average rate approximates the exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences
arising on translation for consolidation are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity. Accumulated exchange differences arising from
translation and attributable to non-controlling interests
are allocated to, and recognised as part of, non-
controlling interests in the consolidated balance sheet.

Abridged Annual Report 2018-19

On the disposal of a foreign operation all of the
exchange differences accumulated in OCI relating
to that particular foreign operation attributable to the
owners of the Group is recognised the consolidated
statement of profit and loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation that does
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests
and are not recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit and loss. For partial disposals of investment in
associates or joint arrangements that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence or joint control,
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit and loss.

Any goodwilland fair value adjustments arising in business
combinations or acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the
reporting date and resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when there is a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event and it is probable (“more likely than not”) that it is
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the
estimated cash flows to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows. The discount rate used is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money in that jurisdiction and the risks specific to
the liability.

Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are
recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous
contract is considered to exist when a contract under
which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations
exceed the economic benefits expected to be received
from it.

Restructurings

A restructuring provision is recognised when
there is a detailed formal plan for the restructuring
which has raised a valid expectation in those affected.
The measurement of a restructuring provision



includes only the direct expenditures arising from the
restructuring.

Contingent liabilities acquired in a business
combination

Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination
are initially measured at fair value at the acquisition
date. At the end of subsequent reporting periods, such
contingent liabilities are measured at the higher of the
amount that would be recognised in accordance with
Ind-AS 37 and the amount initially recognised less
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customers.

Restoration, rehabilitation and decommissioning
Close-down and restoration costs are provided for in the
accounting period when the obligation arising from the
related disturbance occurs, based on the net present
value of the estimated future costs of restoration to be
incurred during the life of the mining operation and
post closure. Provisions for close-down and restoration
costs do not include any additional obligations which
are expected to arise from future disturbance.

The initial close-down and restoration provision is
capitalised. Subsequent movements in the close-down
and restoration provisions for ongoing operations,
including those resulting from new disturbance
related to expansions or other activities qualifying for
capitalisation, updated cost estimates, changes to the
estimated lives of operations, changes to the timing of
closure activities and revisions to discount rates are
also capitalised within “Property, plant and equipment”.

Environmental liabilities

Environment liabilities are recognised when the group
becomes obliged, legally or constructively to rectify
environmental damage or perform remediation work.

Litigation

Provision relating to legal, tax and other matters is
recognised once it has been established that the group
has a present obligation based on consideration of
the information which becomes available up to the
date on which the consolidated financial statements of
the Group are finalised and may in some cases entail
seeking expert advice in making the determination on
whether there is a present obligation.

Contingent Liabilities and Assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that rises
from a past event, with the resolution of the contingency
dependent on uncertain future events, or a present
obligation where no outflow is probable. Material
contingent liabilities are disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow
of economic resources is remote. Contingent assets are
not recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE STATUTORY FINANCIAL
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Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lesser

Amounts due from lessee under finance leases are
recorded as receivables at the amount of net investment
in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding
in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease,
unless the receipts are structured to increase in line
with an inflation price index or another systematic basis
which is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset is diminished.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised
at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lesser is included
in the consolidated balance sheet as a finance lease
obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged
directly to the consolidated statement of profit and loss,
unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets,
in which case they are capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs.
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
unless the payments are structured to increase in line
with an inflation price index or another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
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straight-line basis, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress includes raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads. Costs
of inventories include the transfer from equity any
gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges for foreign
currency purchases of raw materials.

The Inventories are measured at Fair Value only in those
cases where the Inventories are designated into a fair
value hedge relationship.

Cost is determined using the weighted average cost
basis. However, the same cost basis is applied to all
inventories of a particular class. Inventories of stores
and spare parts are valued at weighted average cost
basis after providing for cost of obsolescence and other
anticipated losses, wherever considered necessary.

Materials and other supplies held for use in the
production of inventories (finished goods, work-
in-progress) are not written down below the cost if
the finished products in which they will be used are
expected to sell at or above cost.

Net realizable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Trade Receivable

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection is expected to be
collected within a period of 12 months or less from the
reporting date (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets
otherwise as Non-Current assets.

Trade receivables which are subject to a factoring
arrangement without recourse are derecognized
from the consolidated balance sheet. Under this
arrangement, the Group transfers relevant receivables
to the factor in exchange for cash and does not retain
late payment and credit risk. The Group therefore de-
recognise the transferred assets in their entirety in its
consolidated balance sheet. The Group considers
the held to collect and sell business model to remain
appropriate for such trade receivables and hence
measures such trade receivables at fair value through
other comprehensive income.

Trade receivables are measured at their transaction price
unless it contains a significant financing component
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(or when the entity applies the practical expedient) or
pricing adjustments embedded in the contract.

Trade receivables which arise from contracts where the
sale price is provisional and revenue model have the
character of a commodity derivative are measured at
fair value. The fair value is measured at forward rate
and subsequent changes are recognised as other
operating revenue.

Financial Instruments

All financial assets are recognised on trade date when
the purchase of a financial asset is under a contract
whose term requires delivery of the financial asset within
the timeframe established by the market concerned.
Financial assets are initially measured at fair value,
plus transaction costs, except for those financial assets
which are classified as at fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL) at inception. All recognised financial
assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value.

Classification of financial assets

Financial assets are classified as ‘equity instrument’ if
it is a non-derivative and meets the definition of ‘equity’
for the issuer (under Ind-AS 32 - Financial Instruments:
Presentation). All other non-derivative financial assets
are ‘debt instruments’.

Financial assets at amortised cost and the effective
interest method

Debt instruments are measured at amortised cost if
both of the following conditions are met:

° the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the instrument give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Debt instruments meeting these criteria are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any impairment, with
interest recognised on an effective yield basis in
investment income.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.



The Group may irrevocably elect at initial recognition
to classify a debt instrument that meets the amortised
cost criteria above as at FVTPL if that designation
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch had the financial asset been measured at
amortised cost.

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments are measured at FVTOCI if both of the
following conditions are met:

° the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and selling assets; and

e the contractual terms of the instrument give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Debt instruments meeting these criteria are
subsequently measured at fair value with any gains
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
other comprehensive income, except for impairment
gains or losses and foreign exchange gains or losses.
Interest calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in the Consolidated statement of profit
and loss as investment income. When the debt
instrument is derecognised the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to the Consolidated statement of profit
and loss as a reclassification adjustment.

At initial recognition, an irrevocable election is made
(on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate
investments in equity instruments other than held for
trading purpose at FVTOCI.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has evidence of a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e jtisaderivative thatis not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with
gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income. Where
the asset is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is directly reclassified to retained earnings.
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For equity instruments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income no impairments are
recognised in the Consolidated statement of profit and
loss.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in the Consolidated statement of profit
and loss in investment income when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the entity; and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
(FVTPL)

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria of
classifying as amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income described above, or that meet
the criteria but the entity has chosen to designate as
at FVTPL at initial recognition, are measured at FVTPL.

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at
FVTPL, unless the Group designates an investment that
is not held for trading at FVTOCI at initial recognition.

Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measured
at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in the Consolidated
statement of profit and loss.

Dividend income on investments in equity instruments
at FVTPL is recognised in the Consolidated statement
of profit and loss in investment income when the
Group’s right to receive the dividends is established, it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the entity, and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Impairment of financial assets

On initial recognition of the financial assets, a loss
allowance for expected credit loss is recognised for
debt instruments at amortised cost and FVTOCI. For
debt instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, the loss
allowance is recognised in the Consolidated statement
of profit and loss.

Expected credit losses of a financial instrument is
measured in a way that reflects:

e anunbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes;

e the time value of money; and

e reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort at
the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.
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At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

When making the assessment, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and consider reasonable and supportable
information, that is available without undue cost or
effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit
risk since initial recognition.

If, at the reporting date, the credit risk on a financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance
for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
12-month expected credit losses. If, the credit risk on
that financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal
to the lifetime expected credit losses.

For Trade Receivables and Contract Assets, the Group
applies the simplified approach required by Ind AS
109, which requires expected life time losses to be
recognized from initial recognition of the receivables.

The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that
is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting
date is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the
Consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset on trade
date only when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in
its entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an option
to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the
Group allocates the previous carrying amount of
the financial asset between the part it continues to
recognise under continuing involvement, and the part
it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated
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to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum
of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated
to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in the Consolidated statement of
profit and loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and
the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by the Group

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangement.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.

Compound instruments

The component parts of compound instruments
(convertible instruments) issued by the Group are
classified separately as financial liabilities and equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangement. At the date of issue, the fair value of the
liability component is estimated using the prevailing
market interest rate for a similar non-convertible
instrument. This amount is recorded as a liability on an
amortised cost basis using the effective interest method
until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s
maturity date. The equity component is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component
from the fair value of the compound instrument as a
whole. This is recognised and included in equity,
net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently
remeasured.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are initially
measured at their fair values and, if not designated as
at FVTPL, are

o the amount of the obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilites and Contingent Assets;
and

e the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with the revenue recognition
policies.



Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial
liabilities ‘at FVTPL’ or ‘other financial liabilities’.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when
the financial liability is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

e ithas been acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and for which there is evidence
of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

e jtisaderivative thatis not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for
trading may also be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

e the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and Ind-AS 109 Financial
Instruments permits the entire combined contract
to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in the Consolidated statement of profit and
loss, except for the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability which is recognised in
other comprehensive income.

The net gain or loss recognised in the Consolidated
statement of profit and loss incorporates any interest
paid on the financial liability.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are
initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, with
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interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments through the expected
life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the Consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group
or the counterparty.

Derivatives and Hedge Accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured at their fair value.
The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item
being hedged.

The Group designates certain derivatives as either:

e  hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or
liabilities or a firm commitment (fair value hedge);

e hedges of a particular risk associated with a
recognised asset or liability or a highly probable
forecast transaction (cash flow hedge); or

e  hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation
(net investment hedge).

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction
the relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, as well as its risk management
objectives and strategy for undertaking various
hedging transactions. The Group also documents the
nature of the risk being hedged and how the Group
will assess whether the hedging relationship meets
the hedge effectiveness requirements (including its
analysis of the sources of hedge ineffectiveness and
how it determines the hedge ratio).

The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified
as a Non-Current asset or liability when the residual
maturity of the derivative is more than 12 months and
as a current asset or liability when the residual maturity
of the derivative is less than 12 months.
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Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualify as fair value hedges are
recorded in the Consolidated statement of profit and
loss, together with any changes in the fair value of the
hedged item that are attributable to the hedged risk.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group
revokes the hedging relationship, when the hedging
instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised,
or when it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting.
The fair value adjustment to the carrying amount of the
hedged item arising from the hedged risk is amortised
to the Consolidated statement of profit and loss from
that date.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading cash flow hedging
reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the Consolidated
statement of profit and loss, and is included in the ‘other
gains and losses’ line item.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to
the Consolidated statement of profit and loss in the
periods when the hedged item affects the Consolidated
statement of profit and loss, in the same line as the
recognised hedged item. However, when the hedged
forecast transaction results in the recognition of a non-
financial asset or a non-financial liability, the gains and
losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are transferred
from equity and included in the initial measurement
of the cost of the non-financial asset or non-financial
liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging
instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised,
or when it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any
gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity at that time remains in
equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction
is ultimately recognised in the Consolidated statement
of profit and loss. When a forecast transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated
in equity is recognised immediately in the Consolidated
statement of profit and loss.

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are
accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges. Any
gain or loss on the hedging instrument relating to the
effective portion of the hedge is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under
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the heading of foreign currency translation reserve.
The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the Consolidated statement
of profit and loss.

Gains and losses on the hedging instrument relating to
the effective portion of the hedge accumulated in the
foreign currency translation reserve are reclassified to
the Consolidated statement of profit and loss on the
disposal of the foreign operation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and in hand, short-term deposits and highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or
less which are readily convertible in cash and subject
to insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flow, cash and cash equivalents is as defined above,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts. In the consolidated
balance sheet, bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. The Group considers a period of twelve months or
more as a substantial period of time.

Transaction cost in respect of long-term borrowings
are amortised over the tenure of respective loans using
effective interest method. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalization.

Accounting for Government Grants

Government grants are recognized when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognises as
expenses the related costs for which the grants are
intended to compensate. Government grants whose
primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire Non-Current assets are
recognized in the consolidated balance sheet by setting
up the grant as deferred income and its amortization is
recognised in other income.



Other government grants (grants related to income) are
recognized as income over the periods necessary to
match them with the costs for which they are intended to
compensate, on a systematic basis. Government grants
that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of providing
immediate financial support with no future related
costs are recognized in the Consolidated statement of
profit and loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Grants related to income are presented under other
income or other operating revenue in the Consolidated
statement of profit and loss except for grants received
in the form of rebate or exemptions which are deducted
in reporting the related expense.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate
of interest is treated as a government grant, measured
as the difference between proceeds received and
the fair value of the loan based on prevailing market
interest rates.

Emission allowances are initially recognised as an
intangible asset measured at fair value when the
Group is granted the allowances and able to exercise
control with a corresponding recognition of a grant at
the same amount under deferred income. As carbon
dioxide is emitted, the corresponding tons of emission
allowances initially recognised under deferred income
is reclassified and recognized in the Consolidated
statement of profit and loss.

Emission allowances are not amortised as their
carrying value equals their residual value and therefore
the depreciable basis zero, as their value is constant
until delivery to the authorities. Emission allowances are
subject to impairment test.

The provision for the liability to deliver allowances is
recognised based on actual emission. The provision
is measured at the carrying amount of allowances
to the extent that the provision will be settled using
allowances on hand with any excess emission being
measured at the market value of the allowances at
the period end. The group records the expense in the
Consolidated statement of profit and loss under other
expenses.

When the emission allowances for the carbon dioxide
emitted are delivered to the authorities, the intangible
asset as well as the corresponding provision are
derecognized from the Consolidated balance sheet
without any effect on the Consolidated statement of
profit and loss.
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Employee Benefits

Retirement benefit, medical costs and termination
benefits

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods. Payments to defined contribution
retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement and medical plans, the
cost of providing benefits is determined using the
projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations
being carried out at the end of each annual reporting
period. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates of government
bonds. In countries where there is a deep market in
high-quality corporate bonds, the market rate on
those bonds that are denominated in the currency in
which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms
to maturity approximating to the terms of the related
pension obligation are used.

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and
losses, the effect of the changes to the asset
ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets
(excluding interest), is reflected in the Consolidated
balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in
other comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other
comprehensive income is reflected immediately in
retained earnings and will not be reclassified to the
Consolidated statement of profit and loss. Past service
cost is recognised in the Consolidated statement of
profit and loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net
interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at
the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit
liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised
as follows:

e  service cost (including current service cost, past
service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements);

e netinterest expense or income; and
e  remeasurement.

The Group presents the first two components of defined
benefit costs in the Consolidated statement of profit
and loss in the line item employee benefits expense.
Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past
service costs.
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The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the
Consolidated balance sheet represents the actual
deficit or surplus in the Group’s defined benefit plans.
Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to
the present value of any economic benefits available
in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in
future contributions to the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of the termination benefit and when the entity
recognises any related restructuring costs. In the case
of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy,
the termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end
of the reporting period are discounted to their present
value.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees in respect of wages and salaries in
the period the related service is rendered at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee
benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of
the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits such as annual leave and sick leave
are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group
in respect of services provided by employees up to the
reporting date. The expected costs of these benefits
are accrued over the period of employment using the
same accounting methodology as used for defined
benefit retirement plans. Actuarial gains and losses
arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to the
Consolidated statement of profit and loss in the period
in which they arise. These obligations are valued
annually by independent qualified actuaries.

Employee Share-based Payments
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are
measured at the fair value of options at the grant date.

The fair value of options at the grant is expensed
over the respective vesting period in which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied with a
corresponding increase in equity as “Employee Stock
Options Outstanding”. In case of forfeiture of unvested
option, portion of amount already expensed is reversed.
In a situation where the vested options are forfeited or
expires unexercised, the related balance standing to
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the credit of the “Employee Stock Options Outstanding”
are transferred to the “Retained Earnings”.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new equity shares of the Company of ¥ 1/- each fully
paid-up. The proceeds received and the related
balance standing to credit of the Employee Stock
Options Account is credited to share capital (nominal
value) and Securities Premium Account.

Share appreciation rights which are cash settled, are
recognised as employee benefit expense over the
relevant service period. The liability is fair valued at
each reporting date and are presented as employee
benefit obligations in the consolidated balance sheet.

Income Taxes
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before
tax’ as reported in the Consolidated statement of profit
and loss because of items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The current income
tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Group’s entities operate
and generate taxable income using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Management periodically evaluates contingencies and
positions taken on uncertain positions in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheet and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Where the local currency is not the functional currency,
deferred tax is recognised on temporary difference
arising from exchange rate changes between the
closing rate and the historical purchase price of non-
monetary assets translated at the exchange rate at the
date of purchase if those non-monetary assets have tax
consequences.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it



is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from initial recognition
of goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
arrangements, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future. Generally, the group is unable
to control the reversal of the temporary difference for
associates.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting
date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) is recognized as an
asset only when and to the extent there is convincing
evidence that the Group will pay normal income tax
during the specified period. In the year in which the
MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an
asset, the said asset is created by way of credit to the
consolidated statement of profit and loss and included
in deferred tax assets. The Group reviews the same at
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each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying
amount of MAT entitlement to the extent there is no
longer convincing evidence to the effect that Group will
pay normal income tax during the specified period.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the
Consolidated statement of profit and loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination,
the tax effect is included in the accounting for the
business combination.

Revenue Recognition

Effective April 1, 2018, the Group has adopted Ind AS
115, Revenue from contracts with customers using the
modified retrospective transition approach, which is
applied to contracts that were not completed as of April
1, 2018. Accordingly, the comparatives have not been
retrospectively adjusted.

The Group derives revenue principally from sale of
hydrate, speciality alumina, aluminium and aluminium
value added products, di-ammonium phosphate,
copper, precious metals (gold & silver) and other
materials.

The Group recognizes revenue when it satisfies
a performance obligation in accordance with the
provisions of contract with the customer. This is achieved
when control of the product has been transferred to
the customer, which is generally determined when
title, ownership, risk of obsolescence and loss pass
to the customer and the Group has the present right
to payment, all of which occurs at a point in time
upon shipment or delivery of the product. The Group
considers shipping and handling activities as costs to
fulfil the promise to transfer the related products and
the customer payments for shipping and handling
costs are recorded as a component of revenue.

In certain customer contracts, shipping and handling
services are treated as a distinct separate performance
obligation and the Group recognises revenue for such
services when the performance obligation is completed.

The Group considers the terms of the contract in
determining the transaction price. The transaction
price is based upon the amount the Group expects to
be entitled to in exchange for transferring of promised
goods and services to the customer after deducting
incentive programs, included but not limited to
discounts, volume rebates etc.
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For incentives offered to customers, the Group makes
estimates related to customer performance and sales
volume to determine the total amounts earned and to be
recorded as deductions from “Revenue from contracts
with customers”. In making these estimates, the Group
considers historical results that have a predictive value
of the amount that the Group expects to be entitled to for
the transferred goods and services. If historical results
have limited predictive value or the Group has limited
experience with similar types of incentives, the estimate
is made in such a manner, which ensures that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur. The
actual amounts may differ from these estimates and are
accounted for prospectively. No element of significant
financing is deemed present as the sales are made
with a credit term, which is consistent with market
practice. The Group’s obligation to repair or replace
faulty products under the standard warranty terms is
recognised as a cost with a corresponding provision.

For certain customer contracts, final prices are
determined based on the underlying market index of
commodity prices at a future date, for example prices
on the London Metal Exchange Limited (LME) or
London Bullion Markets Association (LBMA). In such
contracts, the Group records revenue on a provisional
basis considering current market price when control
is transferred to the customer. At the end of each
period, prior to final settlement date, adjustments are
made to the provisional sale price based on movements
in the underlying market index of commodity prices up
to the date of final price determination. Such variable
price movement is accounted as other operating
revenue.

Revenue from irrevocable bill and hold/ holding
certificate contracts is recognised when it is probable
that delivery will be made, goods have been identified
and kept separately, are ready for delivery in the
present condition and usual payment terms for such
contracts applies. Under these arrangements, revenue
is recognised once legal title has passed and all
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
sold are transferred to the customer.

Export incentives and subsidies are recognized when
there is reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the conditions and the incentive will be
received.

Claim on insurance companies, railway authorities
and others, where quantum of accrual cannot be
ascertained with reasonable certainty, are accounted
for on acceptance basis.

Revenue excludes any taxes and duties collected on
behalf of the government.
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Dividend and Interest Income

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the Group’s right to receive payment has been
established.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Exceptional Items

Exceptional items include income or expense that are
considered to be part of ordinary activities, however
are of such significance and nature that separate
disclosure enables the user of the financial statements
to understand the impact in a more meaningful manner.
Exceptional items are identified by virtue of either their
size or nature so as to facilitate comparison with prior
periods and to assess underlying trends in the financial
performance of the Group.

Note 3 of Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements

Measurement of fair value

A. Financial Instruments

The estimated fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments is based on market prices and
valuation techniques. Valuations are made with
the objective to include relevant factors that
market participants would consider in setting
a price, and to apply accepted economic and
financial methodologies for the pricing of financial
instruments. References for less active markets
are carefully reviewed to establish relevant and
comparable data.

B. Marketable and non-marketable Equity Securities
Fair value for listed shares is based on quoted
market prices as of the reporting date. Fair
value for unlisted shares is calculated based on
commonly accepted valuation techniques utilizing
significant unobservable data, primarily cash flow
based models.

C. Derivatives

Fair value of financial derivatives is estimated as
the present value of future cash flows, calculated
by reference to quoted price curves and exchange
rates as of the balance sheet date. Options are
valued using appropriate option pricing models
and credit spreads are applied where deemed to
be significant.



D. Embedded Derivatives

Embedded derivatives that are separated from the
host contract are valued by comparing the forward
curve at contract inception to the forward curve as
of the balance sheet date. Changes in the present
value of the cash flows related to the embedded
derivative are recognized in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet and in the Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Note 4 of Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements

Critical accounting judgment and key sources of
estimation uncertainty

In preparing the financial statements in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in
India, management is required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities as
at the date of the financial statements and the amounts
of revenue and expenses during the reported period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any
revision to such estimates is recognised in the period in
which the same is determined.

The following paragraphs explains areas that are
considered more critical, involving a higher degree of
judgment and complexity.

(@) Joint Arrangements

We invest in certain joint ventures and consortiums
which are accounted for as joint arrangements. A
joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the assets, and obligations for the
liabilities, relating to the arrangement. Joint control
is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control. When a
group entity undertakes its activities under joint
operations, the Group as ajointoperator recognizes
assets, liabilities, income and expenses in relation
to its interest in a joint operation. (refer Note 57 of
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements)

(b) Impairment of Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase
price over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
of acquired companies. Goodwill is not amortized,;
instead, it is tested for impairment at least
annually. The recoverable amount is determined
based on value in use or fair value less cost to sell
calculations which require the use of assumptions
as directly observable market prices are generally
not exist for the Group’s assets. However, fair value
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may be estimated based on recent transactions on
comparable assets, internal models used by the
Group for transactions involving the same type of
assets or other relevant information. Calculation of
value in use is a discounted cash flow calculation
based on continued use of the assets in its
present condition, excluding potential exploitation
of improvement or expansion potential. (refer Note
8 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements)

Impairment of Non-Current Assets

Ind AS 36 requires that the Group assesses
conditions that could cause an asset or a Cash
Generating Unit (CGU) to become impaired and
to test recoverability of potentially impaired assets.
These conditions include changes resulting from
market and economic environment, including
internal and external factors such as the Group’s
market capitalization, significant changes in the
Group’s planned use of the assets or a significant
adverse change in the expected prices, sales
volumes or raw material cost. The identification of
CGUs involves judgment, including assessment
of where active markets exist, and the level of
interdependency of cash inflows. CGU is usually
the individual plant, unless the asset or asset
group is an integral part of a value chain where
no independent prices for the intermediate
products exist, a group of plants is combined and
managed to serve a common market, or where
circumstances otherwise indicate significant
interdependencies.

In accordance with Ind-AS 36, certain intangible
assets are reviewed at least annually for
impairment. If a loss in value is indicated, the
recoverable amount is estimated as the higher of
the CGU'’s fair value less cost to sell, or its value in
use. Directly observable market prices rarely exist
for the Group’s assets, however, fair value may
be estimated based on recent transactions on
comparable assets, internal models used by the
Group for transactions involving the same type of
assets or other relevant information. Calculation of
value in use is a discounted cash flow calculation
based on continued use of the assets in its
present condition, excluding potential exploitation
of improvement or expansion potential.

Determination of the recoverable amount involves
management estimates on highly uncertain
matters, such as commodity prices and their
impact on markets and prices for upgraded
products, development in demand, inflation,
operating expenses and tax and legal environment.
The Group uses internal business plans, quoted
market prices and the Group’s best estimate of
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(d)

(€)

(f)

(@)

commodity prices, currency rates, discount rates
and other relevant information. A detailed forecast
is developed for a period of three to five years with
projections thereafter.

Taxes

The Group calculates income tax expense based
on reported income. Deferred income tax expense
is calculated based on the differences between
the carrying value of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their respective
tax basis that are considered temporary in nature.
Valuation of deferred tax assets is dependent on
management’s assessment of future recoverability
of the deferred benefit. Expected recoverability
may result from expected taxable income in
the future, planned transactions or planned
tax optimizing measures. Economic conditions
may change and lead to a different conclusion
regarding recoverability. (refer Note 13 and 14 of
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements)

Fair Value Measurements

The Group applies valuation techniques to
determine the fair value of financial instruments
(where active market quotes are not available)
and non-financial assets. This involves developing
estimates and assumptions consistent with the
market participants to price the instrument. The
Group’s assumptions are based on observable
data as far as possible, otherwise on the best
information available. Estimated fair values may
vary from the actual prices that would be achieved
in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting
date.

Contingent Assets and Liabilities, Provisions
and Uncertain Tax Positions

There are various legal, direct and indirect
tax matters and other obligations including
environmental, mining, local and state levies,
income tax holiday, availing input tax credits
etc., which may impact the Group. Evaluation
of uncertain liabilities and contingent liabilities
and assets arising out of above matters require
management  judgment and  assumptions,
regarding the probability of outflow or realization
of economic resources and the timing and
amount, or range of amounts, that may ultimately
be determined. Such estimates may vary from
the ultimate outcome as a result of differing
interpretations of laws and facts, or application of
relevant judicial precedents.

Inventory Measurement
Measurement of bulk inventory quantities (such
as coal, bauxite, etc.) lying at yards and work in
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progress of precious metals at smelter and refinery
is material, complex and involves significant
judgement and estimate resulting from measuring
the surface area, dip measurement of materials in
tanks/silos, etc.

The Group performs physical counts of above
inventory on a periodic basis using internal /
external experts to perform volumetric surveys
and assessments, basis which the estimate of
quantity for these inventories is determined.
The variations noted between book records
and physical quantities of above inventories are
evaluated and appropriately accounted in the
books of accounts.

Note 5of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has issued
certain amendments in existing Accounting Standards
during the year ended March 31, 2019 which are
effective from April 01, 2019. The Group has assessed
all these amendments and its impact on financial
statement is explained below:

(@) Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments, to Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes’
The appendix explains how to recognize and
measure deferred and current income tax assets
and liabilities where there is uncertainty over a tax
treatment. In particular, it discusses:

o how to determine the appropriate unit
of account, and that each uncertain tax
treatment should be considered separately
or together as a group, depending on which
approach better predicts the resolution of the
uncertainty;

e that the entity should assume a tax authority
will examine the uncertain tax treatments and
have full knowledge of all related information,
i.e. that detection risk should be ignored;

e that the entity should reflect the effect of
the uncertainty in its income tax accounting
when it is not probable that the tax authorities
will accept the treatment;

e that the impact of the uncertainty should be
measured using either the most likely amount
or the expected value method, depending on
which method better predicts the resolution
of the uncertainty; and

e that the judgment and estimates made must
be reassessed whenever circumstances
have changed or there is new information
that affects the judgment.



(b)

()

(d)

The Group is assessing its existing models and
processes which it has developed to account for
tax uncertainties against the specific guidance in
appendix C to Ind AS 12 to consider the impact
on income tax accounting in respect of its various
tax jurisdictions.

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures — Amendments to Ind AS 28,
‘Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures’
The amendment clarify the accounting for long-
term interests in an associate or joint venture,
which in substance form part of the net investment
in the associate or joint venture, but to which
equity accounting is not applied. Entities must
account for such interests under Ind AS 109
‘Financial Instruments’ before applying the loss
allocation and impairment requirements in Ind
AS 28. Since the Group do not have such long-
term interests in its associates or joint ventures,
the amendments will not have any impact on its
financial statements.

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation — Amendments to Ind AS 109,
‘Financial Instruments’

The amendment made to Ind AS 109 enable
entities to measure certain prepayable financial
assets (e.g. loans and debt securities which
otherwise have to be measured as FVTPL) with
negative compensation at amortised cost. To
qualify for amortised cost measurement, the
negative compensation must be ‘reasonable
compensation for early termination of the contract’
and the asset must be held within a ‘held to collect’
business model. Since the Group do not have
such financial instruments, the amendments will
not have any impact on its financial statements.

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement —
Amendments to Ind AS 19, ‘Employee Benefits’
The amendments to Ind AS 19 clarify the
accounting for defined benefit plan amendments,
curtailments and settlements. It confirms that
entities must:

e calculate the current service cost and net
interest for the remainder of the reporting
period after a plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement by using the updated assumptions
from the date of the change;

e any reduction in a surplus should be
recognised immediately in profit or loss
either as part of past service cost, or as a
gain or loss on settlement. In other words, a
reduction in a surplus must be recognised

(e)

®
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in profit or loss even if that surplus was not
previously recognised because of the impact
of the asset ceiling; and

®  separately recognise any changes in the asset
ceiling through other comprehensive income.

These amendments will apply to any future plan
amendments, curtailments, or settlements of the
Group on or after April 1, 2019.

Ind AS 103, ‘Business Combinations’

The amendment clarifies that obtaining control of
a business that is a joint operation, is a business
combination achieved in stages. The acquirer
should re-measure its previously held interest in the
joint operation at fair value at the acquisition date.

These amendments will apply to future business
combinations of the Group for which acquisition
date is on or after April 1, 2019.

Ind AS 111, ‘Joint Arrangements’

The amendment clarifies that the party obtaining
joint control of a business that is a joint operation
should not remeasure its previously held interest in
the joint operation.

These amendments will apply to future transactions
of the Group in which it obtains joint control of a
business on or after April 1, 2019.

Ind AS 23, ‘Borrowing Costs’

The amendments clarifies that if a specific
borrowing remains outstanding after the related
qualifying asset is ready for its intended use or
sale, it becomes part of general borrowings.

The Group’s current practice is in line with this
amendment and accordingly this amendment is
not expected to have any material impact on its
consolidated financial statements.

Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes’

The amendment clarifies that the income
tax consequences of dividends on financial
instruments classified as equity should be
recognised according to where the past
transactions or events that generated distributable
profits were recognised. These requirements apply
to all income tax consequences of dividends.
Previously, it was unclear whether the income tax
consequences of dividends should be recognised
in profit or loss, or in equity, and the scope of the
existing guidance was ambiguous.

This amendment is not expected to have any
material impact on its consolidated financial
statements.
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Ind AS 116, ‘Leases’

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (MCA) notified Ind AS 116, ‘Leases’ as part
of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS)) Amendment Rules, 2019. Ind AS 116
replaces existing standard Ind AS 17, Leases with
effect from accounting periods beginning on or
after April 1, 2019.

The new standard introduces a single model of
lease accounting and eliminates the classification
of leases as either finance leases or operating
leases for a lessee as was required under Ind
AS 17. Ind AS 116 requires a lessee to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with a term
of more than 12 months, unless the underlying
asset is of low value. For all leases except as
noted above, a lessee is required to recognise
a right-of-use asset representing its right to use
the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments
in its consolidated financial statement. Lessee
will recognise depreciation of right of use assets
and interest on lease liabilities in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss. In the consolidated
cash flow statement, operating cash flows will
be higher as payment of the lease liability and
related interest are to be classified within financing
activities.

Requirements with regard to lessor accounting are
substantially similar to accounting requirements
contained in Ind AS 17. Accordingly, a lessor will
continue to classify its leases as operating leases
or finance leases, and to account for those two
types of leases differently.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is
financial year beginning on or after April 1, 2019.
The standard permits two possible methods of
transition:

e Fully retrospective- Retrospectively to each
prior period presented applying Ind AS 8
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors.

° Modified retrospective- Retrospectively, with
the cumulative effect of initially applying the
Standard recognized at the date of initial
application.
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Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee
records the lease liability as the present value of
the remaining lease payments, discounted at the
incremental borrowing rate and the right of use
asset either as:

e |ts carrying amount as if the standard had
been applied since the commencement
date, but discounted at lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application,
or

e An amount equal to the lease liability,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments related to that lease
recognized under Ind AS 17 immediately
before the date of initial application.

The Group is in the process of reviewing all its leasing
arrangements in light of the new lease accounting rules in
Ind AS 116. The Group will utilise the practical expedient
available under Ind AS 116 and not reassess whether
a contract is or contains a lease at the date of initial
application. The Group also intends to use the exemptions
provided by Ind AS 116 for short-term leases (less than 12
months) and leases for low value assets. The transition to
the new lease accounting from the existing rules will be
accomplished using the modified retrospective transition
approach with no restatement of comparative information.
The Group will elect certain available practical expedients
on transition.

The Group is currently evaluating the impact this standard
will have on its consolidated financial statements.

6. This Abridged Consolidated Financial Statements has
been compiled from Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Group and containing the salient
features of Consolidated Balance Sheet, Statement of
Profit and Loss, Statement of Cash Flow and Statement
of Changes in Equity as per first proviso to sub-section
1 of section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 10 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as
ammended). Complete set of Consolidated Balance
Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of
Cash Flow, Statement of Changes in Equity and Notes
thereto prepared as per the requirements of Division
Il to the Schedule Ill to the Act are available at the
Company’s website at link www.hindalco.com. Copy
of Consolidated Financial Statements is also available
for inspection at the registered office of the Company
during working hours for a period of 21 days before the
date of Annual General Meeting.



CORPORATE STATUTORY FINANCIAL

OVERVIEW REPORTS STATEMENTS
7.Note 6 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
Property, Plant and Equipment and Capital Work-in-Progress
Zin Crore
As at As at
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Cost 103,240.45 99,422.29
Less: Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment (39,055.52) (35,535.70)
Net carrying amount 64,184.93 63,886.59
Capital Work-in-Progress - (j) 3,974.63 1,982.98

68,159.56 65,869.57

(X Crore)
Freehold Leasehold Buildings PIanF and Vehi(;l:z Furnit;r:g Rai‘IV\./ay _ Office Total
Land Improvements Machinery Aircraft Fixtures Siding Equipments

Cost
As at April 01, 2017 1,879.38 311.74 18,091.35 73,697.22 584.17 1,026.35 488.86 555.19 96,634.26
Additions 823.52 0.06 572.40 3,352.77 52.40 94.98 - 40.64 4,936.77
Deduction/ Adjustments (318.97) - (699.00) (2,863.42) (16.98) (105.39) - (9.60) (4,013.36)
Exchange differences 82.90 2.36 350.33  1,326.43 7.91 81.03 - 13.66 1,864.62
As at April 01, 2018 2,466.83 314.16 18,315.08 75,513.00 627.50 1,096.97 488.86 599.89 99,422.29
Additions 158.02 - 627.03 3,135.27 44.47 87.11 0.34 37.88 4,090.12
Deduction/ Adjustments (30.03) - (82.37) (1,163.31) (27.77)  (29.34) (0.11) (30.37) (1,363.30)
Exchange differences 10.60 8.73 271.40 784.90 6.73 (7.73) - 16.71  1,091.34
As at March 31, 2019 2,605.42 322.89 19,131.14 78,269.86 650.93 1,147.01 489.09 624.11 103,240.45
Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
As at April 01, 2017 157.01 87.81 4,497.55 26,401.78 292.86 711.72 110.09 424.29 32,683.11
Depreciation for the year - 8.80 727.75  3,018.20 46.20 7420 27.82 56.70  3,959.67
Impairment - - - 64.58 - - - - 64.58
Deduction/ Adjustments - - (280.32) (1,760.39) (8.67)  (89.23) - (8.89) (2,097.50)
Exchange differences (4.57) 0.95 162.39 696.34 4.94 55.30 - 10.49 925.84
As at April 01, 2018 152.44 97.56 5,157.37 28,420.51 335.33 751.99 137.91 482.59 35,535.70
Depreciation for the year 3.47 2.92 794.45  3,194.48 48.81 7896 27.82 50.06  4,200.97
Impairment /(Reversal) - - - (10.75) - - - - (10.75)
Deduction/ Adjustments (0.80) - (85.92) (1,008.81) (22.80) (27.71) (0.06) (28.26) (1,174.36)
Exchange differences 6.63 4.43 97.77 382.28 5.15 (6.56) - 14.26 503.96
As at March 31, 2019 161.74 10491 5,963.67 30,977.71 366.49 796.68 165.67 518.65 39,055.52
Net carrying amount
As at March 31, 2018 2,314.39 216.60 13,157.71 47,092.49 29217 344.98 350.95 117.30 63,886.59
As at March 31, 2019 2,443.68 217.98 13,167.47 47,292.15 284.44  350.33 323.42 105.46 64,184.93
Useful life (Years) Indefinite* 7-99 3-60 2-40 2-25 3-10 15 2-25

* Freehold land used for mining is depreciated over 28 years.
(a) Additions include grant related to Export Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG) of % Nil (31/03/2018: % 678.02 crore).

(b) Cost, accumulated depreciation and impairment and net carrying amount of assets under finance lease included
above in respective class of assets are given below. These assets are depreciated over their respective lease period
or the useful life of the asset, whichever is lower.
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Zin Crore

Building Plant and Machinery Furniture and Fixtures Vehicles
31.03.2019 31.03.2018 31.03.2019 31.03.2018 31.03.2019 31.03.2018 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Cost 412 75.55 108.37 538.55 39.42 9.98 1.85 -
Accumulated Depreciation (0.80) (61.97) (93.74) (461.32) (16.91) (1.30) (1.58) -
Net carrying amount 3.32 13.58 14.63 77.23 22.51 8.68 0.27 -

During the year ended March 31, 2019, Novelis Inc, a subsidiary of the Company, has acquired real and personal
property that was initially leased from Constellium for ¥ 1,722.71 crore at their Sierre rolling facility, Switzerland. As a
result of aforementioned transaction, Novelis de-recognized assets held under finance lease worth gross block and
accumulated depreciation of ¥ 481.88 crore and X 396.91 crore respectively. Acquisition of said assets resulted in net
increase to the gross block of fixed assets by % 1,240.84 crore.

Group’s share in jointly owned assets has been grouped together with the relevant class of property, plant and
equipment. The cost and net carrying amounts included in relevant class of assets are given below:

Zin Crore
Cost Net carrying amount
31.03.2019 31.03.2018 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Freehold Land 51.56 51.56 51.56 51.56
Buildings 40.83 41.29 29.77 30.78
Plant and Machinery 41.24 41.24 1.71 1.90
Furniture and Fixtures 3.87 11.01 0.50 1.13
Vehicles and Aircraft 0.16 0.16 0.07 0.08
Office Equipment 6.39 9.75 0.71 1.02

The Company has sold its Aluminium Foil manufacturing unit at Kollur, Telangana on slump sale basis to Mundhra
Alufoil Private Limited through a Business Transfer Agreement dated April 26, 2019 at a Gross consideration of
% 28 Crores, subject to certain adjustments basis the closing audited accounts of the unit. This transaction does not
have any material impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

For assets pledged and Hypothecated against borrowings, refer Note 24 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements.
For impairment charges or reversal, refer Note 41 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements.
For capital expenditures contracted but not incurred, refer Note 52 (a) of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements.

In respect of future minimum lease payments and their present value of Property, Plant and Equipment taken under

finance lease, refer Note - 24 (g) of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements.

(j) Capital Work in Progress (CWIP) comprise of various routine projects and expansion spread over across the Group.

8. Note 7 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

Investment Property

T in Crore

As at As at

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Cost 34.29 34.29
Less: Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment (11.14) (10.57)
Net carrying amount 23.15 23.72
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Zin Crore
Freehold Land Buildings Total
Cost
As at April 01, 2017 0.59 33.70 34.29
Additions - - -
Deduction/ Adjustments - - -
As at April 01, 2018 0.59 33.70 34.29
Additions - - -
Deduction/ Adjustments - - -
As at March 31, 2019 0.59 33.70 34.29
Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
As at April 01, 2017 - 10.00 10.00
Depreciation for the year - 0.57 0.57
As at April 01, 2018 - 10.57 10.57
Depreciation for the year - 0.57 0.57
As at March 31, 2019 - 11.14 11.14
Net carrying amount
As at March 31, 2018 0.59 23.13 23.72
As at March 31, 2019 0.59 22.56 23.15
Useful life (Years) Indefinite 60
(a) Amount recognised in profit and loss for investment properties are as under:
% in Crore
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Rental Income 5.86 5.84
Less: Direct operating expenses, including repair and maintenance, on properties generating (0.68) (0.84)
rental income
Profit or loss from investment properties before depreciation 518 5.00
Less: Depreciation (0.57) (0.57)
Profit/(Loss) from Investment Properties 4.61 4.43

(b) All of the Investment Properties of the Group are held under freehold interest.

(c) The Group has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment properties or for repairs,

maintenance and enhancements.

(d) The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 have been arrived on the
basis of valuation carried out at the respective dates by an external, independent valuer registered with the authority
which governs the valuers in India. The fair value measurement for all the investments properties has been categorised
as level 2 fair value based on the inputs to the valuation technique used. Considering the type of the assets, market
approach (sales comparable method) to estimate the fair value of the subject properties is adopted.

i Fair value of investment properties given below:

Zin Crore

As at As at

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Freehold Land 42.08 42.03
Buildings 95.98 99.44
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ii.  Fair value hierarchy of Investment properties given below:

As at 31.03.2019

As at 31.03.2018

Level 1 Level 2 Level 1 Level 2
Freehold land - 42.08 - 42.03
Buildings - 95.98 - 99.44

9. Note 8 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

Goodwill

% in Crore
As at As at
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Cost 18,574.61 17,829.44
Less: Accumulated Impairment - -
Net carrying amount 18,574.61 17,829.44
% in Crore

As at 31.03.2019

As at 31.03.2018

Cost  Accumulated Net carrying Cost  Accumulated Net carrying

Impairment amount Impairment amount

Opening - As at April 01 17,829.44 - 17,829.44 17,134.96 - 17,134.96
Additions - (a) - - - 382.43 - 382.43
Deduction/ Adjustments - (a) - - - (274.17) - (274.17)
Exchange differences 74517 - 74517 586.22 - 586.22
Closing - As at March 31 18,574.61 - 18,574.61 17,829.44 - 17,829.44

(@) During the year ended March 31, 2018 Goodwill attributable to 100% of Ulsan Aluminium Limited’s (UAL) assets was
derecognized due to loss of control of subsidiary. For remaining 50.1% of stake retained in UAL, which is accounted
as business combination, additional goodwill was recognized as ‘Additions’ as shown above. (refer Note 58 of Audited

Consolidated Financial Statements).

(b) Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired in business combinations has been allocated to following cash generating units (CGU) of Aluminium
and Novelis segment. However, there were no goodwill acquired with regard to Copper segment.

T in Crore
As at As at
31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Aluminium segment
Utkal Alumina International Limited (Utkal) 110.27 110.27
Minerals and Minerals Limited (M&M) 0.12 0.12

Novelis segment

Novelis - North America 7,389.84 6,955.10
Novelis - Europe 7,277.11 7,127.99
Novelis - South America 2,531.65 2,382.72
Novelis - North Asia 1,265.62 1,253.24
18,574.61 17,829.44
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Goodwill is not amortized, instead, it is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if indicators of impairment
exist. The recoverable amount of a cash generating unit (CGU) is determined based on value-in-use or fair value less
cost to sell calculations which require the use of certain assumptions. The calculations use cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering three to five years period depending upon segment/ CGU’s
financial budgeting process. Cash flow beyond these financial budget period are extrapolated using the estimated
growth rates.

The key assumptions used in the estimation of the recoverable amount of CGU’s are set out below. The values assigned
to the key assumptions represent management’s assessment of future trends in the relevant industries and have been
based on historical data from both external and internal sources.

Aluminium segment Novelis segment

31.03.2019 31.03.2018 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Discount rate (i) 11.22% 12.75% 9.00% 9.00%
Terminal growth rate (ii) 3.73% 5.00% 2.25% 2.00%

i. For Novelis segment, the recoverable amount is determined based on fair value less cost to sell and the projected
cash flows are discounted to the present value using a post tax weighted average cost of capital (discount
rate). For Aluminium segment, the recoverable amount is determined based on value in use and the projected
cash flows are discounted to the present value using pre tax weighted average cost of capital (discount rate).
The discount rate commensurate with the risk inherent in the projected cash flows and reflects the rate of return
required by an investor in the current economic conditions.

i. The Group use’s specific revenue growth assumptions for each cash generating unit based on history and
economic conditions.

As a result of goodwill impairment test for the year ended March 31, 2019 and year ended March 31, 2018,
no goodwill impairment was identified as the recoverable value of the CGUs to whom goodwill was allocated
exceeded their respective carrying amounts at all the periods reported above.

Impact of possible changes in key assumptions

Goodwill in the Consolidated Financial Stastements primarily consists of goodwill in Novelis segment, wherein goodwill
has been allocated in four CGUs. The recoverable amount of each of these four CGU would equal its carrying amount
if the key assumptions were to change as follows:

T in Crore
As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018

From To From To

i Long-term growth rate (%)
Novelis - North America 2.25% * 2.00% *
Novelis - Europe 2.25% 0.98% 2.00% 1.50%
Novelis - South America 2.25% * 2.00% *
Novelis - North Asia 2.25% * 2.00% *

ii.  Post-tax discount rate

Novelis - North America 9.00% * 9.00% *
Novelis - Europe 9.00% 9.93% 9.00% 9.37%
Novelis - South America 9.00% * 9.00% *
Novelis - North Asia 9.00% * 9.00% *

* Management believes that no reasonably possible change in any of the above key assumptions (including assumptions related to Goodwill
of Utkal) would cause the recoverable amount to fall below the carrying value of any of the CGU having allocated goodwill.

Greener. Stronger. Smarter 163



HINDALCO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE
ABRIDGED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. Note 9 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

Other Intangible Assets and Intangible Assets under Development

Zin Crore
As at As at
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Cost 8,292.37 7,808.07
Less: Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment (5,215.84) (4,459.39)
Net carrying amount 3,076.53 3,348.68
Intangible Assets under Development 122.48 79.96
3,199.01 3,428.64
Zin Crore
Technology CU?;?;?:(; . . ) C_arpon
Trade name and software intangible Mining rights Right to use Em|§S|on Total
assets nghts
Cost
As at April 01, 2017 949.97 2,863.39 2,868.55 458.77 80.98 160.77 7,382.43
Additions - 47.97 - 124.03 - 63.43 235.43
Deduction/ Adjustments - (12.65) - - - - (12.65)
Exchange differences 3.65 103.06 98.03 (3.16) - 1.28 202.86
As at April 01, 2018 953.62 3,001.77 2,966.58 579.64 80.98 225.48 7,808.07
Additions - 124.51 - 97.41 - 154.28 376.20
Deduction/ Adjustments - (18.91) - - - (168.91) (187.82)
Exchange differences 57.87 108.83 121.14 (6.16) - 14.24 295.92
As at March 31, 2019 1,011.49 3,216.20 3,087.72 670.89 80.98 225.09 8,292.37
Accumulated Amortisation
and Impairment
As at April 01, 2017 482.77 1,780.83 1,410.68 82.11 49.64 - 3,806.03
Amortisation for the year 45.89 259.36 145.71 92.39 2.65 - 546.00
Deduction/ Adjustments - (12.41) - - - - (12.41)
Exchange differences 2.28 68.58 51.14 (2.23) - - 119.77
As at April 01, 2018 530.94 2,096.36 1,607.53 172.27 52.29 - 4,459.39
Amortisation for the year 49.76 262.45 157.01 103.58 2.64 - 575.44
Deduction/ Adjustments - - - - - - -
Exchange differences 30.94 92.49 63.07 (5.49) - - 181.01
As at March 31, 2019 611.64 2,451.30 1,827.61 270.36 54.93 - 5,215.84
Net carrying amount
As at March 31, 2018 422.68 905.41 1,359.05 407.37 28.69 225.48 3,348.68
As at March 31, 2019 399.85 764.90 1,260.11 400.53 26.05 225.09 3,076.53
Useful life (Years) 3-20 3-10.6 20 11-50 5-35 -
Remaining useful life (Years) 8.05 2.91 8.05 5-37 -

(a) Trademarks and customer related intangible assets were established in purchase accounting during acquisition of
Novelis Inc. by the Company, whereas Technology and software mainly related to products we license and internally

developed software.

(b) For impairment charges or reversal on above Intangible assets and intangible assets under development, refer Note

41 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements.
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11. Note 10 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
Non-Current Investments
(Fully paid-up unless otherwise stated)
Zin Crore
Face value per Numbers - As at Value - As at
Unit 31.03.2019 31.03.2018 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Quoted Investments
Investment in Equity Instruments at FVTOCI
National Aluminium Company Limited 5 47,618,555 47,618,555 264.04 316.42
Grasim Industries Limited g2 28,464,653 28,464,653 2,442.12 2,991.35
Ultra Tech Cement Limited 210 1,258,515 1,258,515 503.20 49711
Vodafone Idea Limited - (b) 10 228,340,226 228,340,226 416.72 1,733.10
Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited 10 44,982,142 44,982,142 991.18 678.56
(Laiumjig[ Narmada Valley Fertilizers & Chemicals 210 100 100 N N
Gujarat State Fertilizers & Chemicals Limited 32 500 500 0.01 0.01
Southern Petrochemical Industries Limited 210 100 100 * *
Madras Fertilizer Limited 210 100 100 * *
Rashtriya Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited 210 100 100 * *
Aditya Birla Capital Limited 10 39,850,514 39,850,514 387.35 581.62
5,004.62 6,798.17
Unquoted Investments
Investment in Equity Instruments at FVTOCI
Sai Wardha Power Generation Limited 210 2,830,352 2,830,352 2.83 2.83
Birla International Limited CHF 100 2,500 2,500 5.97 3.43
Bharuch-Dahej Railway Company Limited 10 13,530,000 13,530,000 25.75 17.90
Birla Management Centre Services Limited 210 9,500 7,000 9.72 0.01
44.27 24.17
Investment in Preference Shares at FVTPL
égggﬁgg:g'ﬂu?&eﬂr\‘/’i;es Limited - 5.25% z100 2,500,000 2,500,000 2357 22,66
: :
23.57 22.66
Investment in Government Securities at FVTOCI
6.83% Government of India Bond, 2039 - 2,000,000 2,000,000 18.36 18.14
18.36 18.14
Investment in Mutual Funds at FVTPL
Investments in Debt Schemes of Mutual Funds 44.84 -
44.84 -
131.04 64.97
5,135.66 6,863.14

*Amounts below ¥ 50,000
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(a) Aggregate amount of quoted and unquoted investments, market value of quoted investments and aggregate amount

of impairment in value of Investments are given below:

% in Crore

As at As at

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Aggregate cost of quoted investments 564.42 539.42
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 5,004.62 6,798.17
Aggregate cost of unquoted investments 82.66 62.02

(b) Effective March 31, 2018, the Company has discontinued the accounting of its investment in Vodafone Idea Limited
(“VIL") [formerly known as Idea Celluar Limited (“ICL")] as ‘Investment in Associates’ as it no longer has significant
influence over VIL. Accordingly, the Company has designated its investment in VIL as ‘Fair Value through Other

Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI).

12. Note 12 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

Other Financial Assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Zin Crore
As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018
Non-Current Current Non-Current Current
Derivative Assets - (refer Note 55 of Audited 107.41 1,307.32 118.23 1,923.16
Consolidated Financial Statements)
Security Deposits
Unsecured, considered good 141.93 22.37 139.43 35.56
Unsecured, considered doubtful - 0.35 - 0.35
Less : Allowance for doubtful amount - (0.35) - (0.35)
Other Deposits* 111.54 215.00 150.52 370.00
Accrued Interests - 43.99 - 40.87
Project expenditure recoverable from the Government - - - 11.32
Other Receivables
Unsecured, considered good - 406.01 - 476.59
Unsecured, considered doubtful - 64.73 - 40.13
Less : Allowance for doubtful amount - (64.73) - (40.13)
360.88 1,994.69 408.18 2,857.50
*Non-current portion includes restricted earmarked balances with banks of ¥ 68.35 crore (31/03/2018: ¥ 82.55 crore)
13. Note 13 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
Current Tax
% in Crore
As at As at
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
A. Current Tax Assets (Net)
Non-Current Tax Assets (Net) 284.51 1,246.04
Current Tax Assets (Net) 1,440.84 331.21
1,725.35 1,577.25
B. Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
Current Tax Liabilities 1,312.71 1,193.24
1,312.71 1,193.24
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The Group is subject to tax assessments and ongoing proceedings, which are pending before various Tax Authorities.
Management periodically evaluates the positions taken in tax returns with respect to such matters, including unresolved
tax disputes, which involves interpretation of applicable tax regulations and judicial precedents. Current tax liability and
tax asset balances are presented, after recognising as appropriate, provision for taxes payable and contingencies basis
Management’s assessment of outcome of such ongoing proceedings and amounts that may become payable to the tax
authorities. Considering the nature of such estimates and uncertainties involved, the amount of such provisions may change
upon final resolution of the matters with tax authorities. Also refer Note 4 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements.

14. Note 14 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
Deferred Tax Balances
A. Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Zin Crore

As at As at

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Deferred Tax Assets 2,935.66 1,810.39
Deferred Tax Liabilities 2,132.72 996.94
802.94 813.45

Major components of Deferred Tax Assets (Net) arising on account of temporary timing differences and movement

thereof are given below:

Zin Crore
As at Rgi;)?er;iqsei(: g; Recognised Recognised Exchange As at
01.04.2017 R in OCI directly in Equity Differences 31.03.2018
Profit and Loss
Deferred Tax Assets
Provisions not currently 973.76 20553 (79.96) - 6.51 1,105.84
deductible for tax purposes
Depreciation and 85.5 (15.32) ; ; 9.40 79.58
Amortization Expenses
Tax (losses)/benefit carry 348.07 (21.15) ; - 55.59 382.51
forwards, net
Inventory valuation reserves 24.10 51.09 - - (16.27) 58.92
Cash flow hedges 147.02 - (146.11) - (0.91) -
MAT Credit entitlement - 0.01 - - - 0.01
Ea|r vglug measurements of ) (0.67) 399 ) i 330
financial instruments
Trade name 96.71 (6.37) - - 0.31 90.65
Other temporary differences 73.45 14.89 - - 1.22 89.56
1,748.61 228.01 (222.08) - 55.85 1,810.39
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Depreciation and 376.62 (14.97) ; ; 51.84 413.49
Amortization Expenses
Inventory valuation reserves 188.47 43.30 - - 1.18 232.95
Cash Flow Hedges - - 60.01 - 0.61 60.62
Other temporary differences 237.02 40.00 - - 12.86 289.88
802.11 68.33 60.01 - 66.49 996.94
946.50 159.68 (282.09) - (10.64) 813.45
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% in Crore
As at R‘;ZS;T';?:: g} Recognised chi:)gcrl:se_d Exchange As at
01.04.2018 ) in OCl Y pitferences 31.03.2019
Profit and Loss Equity
Deferred Tax Assets
Provisions not currently 1,105.84 (107.03) 46.34 - 11.93 1,057.08
deductible for tax purposes
Depreciation and Amortization 79,58 (28.72) i ) 015 5101
Expenses
Tax (losses)/benefit carry 382.51 777.64 - - 9.66 1,169.81
forwards, net
Inventory valuation reserves 58.92 (25.87) - - - 33.05
Cash Flow Hedges - - 57.53 - (0.56) 56.97
Retirement Benefits and
Compensated Absences ) 145 (0.13) ) ) 132
MAT Credit entitlement 0.01 402.14 - - - 402.15
Ea|r vglug measurements of 330 053 188 ) ) 573
financial instruments
Trade name 90.65 7.59 - - 5.59 103.83
Other temporary differences 89.56 (40.33) - - 5.48 54.71
1,810.39 987.40 105.62 - 32.25 2,935.66
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Depreciation and Amortization 413.49 1250911 i ) 10.54 1683.14
Expenses
Inventory valuation reserves 232.95 (45.09) - - (82.13) 1565.73
Ea|r vglug measurements of ) 537 i ) ) 537
financial instruments
Cash Flow Hedges 60.62 - (65.04) - 4.42 -
Other temporary differences 289.88 5.60 - - (7.00) 288.48
996.94 1,224.99 (65.04) - (24.17) 2,132.72
813.45 (237.59) 170.66 - 56.42 802.94

Net deferred tax assets incudes % 34.45 crore pertaining to Utkal Alumina International Limited including MAT Credit

entitlement of ¥ 401.75 Crore.
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

% in Crore

As at As at

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Deferred Tax Liabilities 9,849.41 9,408.66
Deferred Tax Assets 5,395.94 5,541.45
4,453.47 3,867.21

Major components of Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) arising on account of temporary timing differences and movement

therein are given below:

Zin Crore
As at Rggg;::ei? :; Recognised Rec%%:e'iﬁd Exchange As at
01.04.2017 ) in OCI . . Y Differences 31.03.2018
Profit and Loss in Equity
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Depreciation and Amortization
7,562.05 339.74 - - 512 7,906.91
Expenses
Inventory Valuation Reserves 355.24 (50.82) - - 0.87 305.29
Exch Diffi Forei
XC ange ifferences on Foreign 609 13 20.30 ) i 260 63203
Operations
Fair val f
air value measurements o 180.07 (76.35) (1.66) _ ) 102.06

financial instruments
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% in Crore
As at Rt;:otgmse(i ”; Recognised Rectijgnisteld Exchange As at
01.04.2017 atement o in ocl _directly  pifferences 31.03.2018
Profit and Loss in Equity
MAT Credit Entitlement (0.01) 0.01 - - - -
Def —
e e.rred tax on Undistributed 97 01 (97.01) ) i i )
earnings
Cash Flow Hedges 57.54 - 289.34 - - 346.88
Other Temporary Differences 100.23 14.88 - - 0.38 115.49
8,961.26 150.75 287.68 - 8.97 9,408.66
Deferred Tax Assets
Tax (losses)/ benefits carry
3,325.88 (695.53) - - 0.42 2,630.77
forward
Retirement Benefits and
Compensated Absences 90.82 (0.73) (21.91) - 0.07 68.25
Provisi tl t
rovisions currently no 1,406.02 (422.73) - - (0.73) 98256
deductable
MAT credit entitlement 1,140.46 487.07 - - - 1,627.53
D iati d Amortizati
epreciation and Amortization 19.44 (16.60) i i (0.09) 575
Expenses
Other Temporary Differences - 229.59 - - - 229.59
5,982.62 (418.93) (21.91) - (0.33) 5,541.45
2,978.64 569.68 309.59 - 9.30 3,867.21
T in Crore
As at Rggg:f;? g; Recognised Recodg::;zﬁd Exchange As at
01.04.2018 " in OCI . . y Differences 31.03.2019
Profit and Loss in Equity
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Depreciation and Amortization 7.906.91 2705 ) i 192 67 8.056.63
Expenses
Inventory Valuation Reserves 305.29 97.83 - - 18.10 421.22
Exchanlge Differences on Foreign 63203 129 97 ) i 3819 800.19
Operations
Fair val f
alr value measurements o 102.06 (73.22) (0.34) . 0.01 28,51
financial instruments
Defe.rred tax on Undistributed i 6.36 ) i i 6.36
earnings
Cash Flow Hedges 346.88 - 28.87 - - 375.75
Other Temporary Differences 115.49 39.33 - - 5.93 160.75
9,408.66 227.32 28.53 - 184.90 9,849.41
Deferred Tax Assets
Tax (losses)/ benefits carry 2630.77 (777.67) ; ; 28.10 1,881.20
forward
Retirement Benefits and 68.95 183 0.81 i i 70.89
Compensated Absences
Cash Flow Hedges - - - 0.42 - 0.42
Provisions currently not 982,56 196.18 : - 3775 1,216.49
deductable
MAT credit entitlement 1,627.53 374.80 - - - 2,002.33
Depreciation and Amortization 575 (0.57) ) i 017 235
Expenses
Other Temporary Differences 229.59 (7.34) - - 0.01 222.26
5,541.45 (212.77) 0.81 0.42 66.03 5,395.94
3,867.21 440.09 27.72 (0.42) 118.87 4,453.47
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C. Unrecognised Deferred Taxes

(a) As at March 31, 2019 the Group had cumulative earnings in respect of certain subsidiaries of approximately
¥19,462.39 crore (31/03/2018: ¥ 19,870.93 crore) for which the Group has not provided deferred tax liability as the
Group believe that the reversal of such temporary difference is not probable in the foreseeable future.

(b) The following Deferred Tax Assets have not been recognised at the reporting date as it is not probable of recovery.

T in Crore
As at As at
31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Unexpiring
i. Unabsorbed Depreciation and other expenses not deductible for tax 519.94 4,342.07
ii. Taxlosses carry forwards 55.64 4215
iii. Unused tax credits 495.45 444.41

Expiring

i. Carried forward Tax losses 3,691.03 4,077.50
Period of expiry FY 2027 - 2039 FY 2018 - 2037
ii. Unused tax credits 388.18 332.52
Period of expiry FY 2020 - 2033 FY 2018 - 2033
iii. Tax losses on long term capital gains carry forward 258.71 264.57
Period of expiry FY 2019 - 2025 FY 2018 - 2026

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset wherever the Group has a legally enforceable
right to set-off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and where the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income tax levied by the same taxation authority. The Company has not recognised deferred
tax on temporary differences relating to depreciation which originate and reverse during the tax holiday period.

15. Note 15 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

Other Assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Zin Crore
As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018

Non-Current Current Non-Current Current

Capital Advance 549.81 - 208.85 -

Trade Advances and Deposits 21.89 1,038.61 26.64 877.66

Prepaid Expenses 109.15 473.97 108.30 421.60

Prepaid lease rent for leasehold lands 682.11 15.83 687.16 15.59

Deposits with Government authorities - 33.58 - 45.56
Others - (a)

Unsecured, considered good 641.34 1,5613.62 258.72 1,694.86

Unsecured, considered doubtful 9.98 112.73 9.98 106.31

Less : Allowance for doubtful amount (9.98) (112.73) (9.98) (106.31)

2,004.30 3,075.61 1,289.67 3,055.27

(a) Primarily include unutilised tax credits and claims with indirect tax authorities.
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16. Note 16 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
Inventories
% in Crore
As at As at
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Raw Materials 5,855.88 5,529.94
Work-in-Process 10,748.12 10,620.22
Finished Goods 3,303.67 3,326.77
Stores and Spares 1,749.67 1,702.13
Coal and Fuel 536.35 45213
Packing Materials 0.10 0.20
22,193.79 21,631.39

(a) Above inventories include goods in transit of ¥ 3,682.06 crore (31/03/2018: % 3,057.55 crore).

(b) For Inventories hypothecated against secure short-term borrowings, refer Note 31 of Audited Consolidated Financial

Statements.

(c) Fair value hedges are mainly used to hedge the exposure to change in fair value of commodity price risks. The fair
value adjustment remains part of the carrying value of inventory and taken to profit and loss when the inventory is sold.

(d) The Group write downs inventories (net of reversal) to net realizable value amounted to ¥ 155.35 crore (31/03/2018:
% 24.56 crore). These were recognized as expense and included in ‘Cost of Material Consumed’ and ‘Changes in
Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-Trade’ in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

(e) Inventories of the Company includes bulk material of coal and bauxite lying at yards and precious metals of gold and

silver lying at smelter and refinery aggregating to ¥ 1,730 Crore (31/03/2018: ¥ 1,870 Crore).

17. Note 19 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Zin Crore
As at As at
31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Balance with Banks:
Deposits with initial maturity of less than three months 1,764.09 1,185.92
Current Accounts 5,170.24 5,183.68
Cheques and drafts on hand - (a) 7.49 16.36
Cash on hand 0.35 0.39
Short term liquid investments in mutual funds 2,176.57 1,658.59
9,118.74 8,044.94

(a) Includes X 0.04 crore (31/03/2018: % 9.4 crore ) remittance in transit.

(b) There is no repatriation restriction with regard to cash and cash equivalents as the end of reporting period and prior periods.

18. Note 26 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

Other Non-Current Financial Liabilities

% in Crore

As at As at

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Derivative liabilities 110.38 119.96
Capital creditors 3.79 7.33
Security and other deposits 2.28 2.28
Others 63.01 53.82
179.46 183.39
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19. Note 27 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

Other Current Financial Liabilities

Zin Crore
As at As at
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Current maturities of Long-term Debts 145.52 743.10
Current maturities of Finance Lease obligations 12.15 58.50
Interest accrued but not due on Borrowings 887.96 846.83
Investor Education and Protection Fund
Unpaid Dividends - (a) 4.93 5.08
Application/call money due for refund - 0.31
Unpaid matured debentures and interest accrued thereon - 0.02
Derivative Liabilities 1,080.89 1,308.99
Derivative matured, pending settlement 86.14 269.17
Capital Creditors 1,740.65 1,217.69
Security and other Deposits 27.24 28.04
Debentures - (b) 3.00 3.00
Others 103.66 89.90
4,092.14 4,570.63

(a) These figures do not include any amount, due and outstanding, to be credited to “Investor Education and Protection
Fund” except % 0.07 crore (31/03/2018: ¥ 0.07 crore) which is held in abeyance due to legal cases pending.

(b) In terms of Debenture Subscription Agreement between Utkal Alumina International Limited (‘UAIL’), subsidiary of
the Group, and Orissa Mining Corporation Limited (‘OMCL’), UAIL issued during the year, a Zero Coupon Unsecured
Redeemable Non-convertible Debentures of ¥ 3.00 core to OMCL towards its obligation to pay OMCL an amount
equivalent to 15% per annum on % 20.00 crore as return up to March 31, 2019 which is due for redemption at par on
September 30, 2019.

20. Note 28 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

Provisions

% in Crore

As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018
Non-Current Current Total Non-Current Current Total
Employee Benefits 6,451.80 1,030.87 7,482.67 6,130.64 832.14 6,962.78
Environmental Contingencies 7.74 84.38 92.12 20.04 29.95 49.99
Assets Retirement Obligation 410.30 4.06 414.36 416.10 - 416.10
Enterprise Social Responsibility 219.62 38.27 257.89 133.33 12.54 145.87
Renewable Power Obligation - 98.63 98.63 - 151.77 151.77
Legal Matters - 475.29 475.29 - 473.07 473.07
Others 350.65 246.58 597.23 380.94 372.97 753.91
988.31 947.21 1,935.52 950.41 1,040.30 1,990.71
7,440.11 1,978.08 9,418.19 7,081.05 1,872.44 8,953.49

(a) The Group have made provisions towards environmental, asset retirement, social responsibility, renewable power,
restructuring, rehabilitation, carbon emission, legal and other obligations at various locations involving considerable
uncertainties towards amount and timing of outflow of economic resources. The provisions are discounted over the
management expected timing of related cash flows.
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(b) Movements in each class of provisions are set out below:
% in Crore
Environmental .ASSEtS Ente;?)zis:I Renewable
Contingencies Retlrem_ent Responsi- _Pov_ver Legal Matters Others * Total
Obligation bility Obligation
As at April 01, 2017 43.42 272.64 142.49 402.36 143.50 771.82 1,776.23
Recognised/Reversed 11.72 114.08 - 152.76 420.11 249.75 948.42
Used/Paid (5.52) (4.59) (5.17) (403.35) (82.97) (120.79) (622.39)
Unwinding of discounts 0.87 18.38 8.55 - - 0.85 28.65
Exchange adjustment (0.50) 15.59 - - (7.57) (142.55) (135.03)
Other - - - - - (5.17) (5.17)
As at April 01, 2018 49.99 416.10 145.87 151.77 473.07 753.91 1,990.71
Recognised/Reversed 64.26 (6.91) 107.91 165.10 25.95 167.46 523.77
Used/Paid (22.06) (4.94) (4.65) (219.63) (30.79) (293.65) (575.72)
Unwinding of discounts 0.83 25.50 8.76 - - - 35.09
Exchange adjustment (0.13) (16.16) - - (12.71) (34.56) (63.56)
Other (0.77) 0.77 - 1.39 19.77 4.07 25.23
As at March 31, 2019 92.12 414.36 257.89 98.63 475.29 597.23 1,935.52
* Primarily includes provisions towards restructuring, rehabilitation, tax matters, etc.
21. Note 32 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
Revenue from Operations
T in Crore
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Revenue from contract with customers
Sale of Products - (a), (b) & (c) 128,723.22 115,151.27
Sale of Services - (d) 1,022.35 44.36
129,745.57 115,195.63
Other Operating Revenues - (e) & (c) 796.68 624.07
130,542.25 115,819.70
Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price: (% Crore)
Contract Price 130,828.92
Adjustments for:
Refund Liabilities and discounts (1,282.86)
Hedging gain/ (loss) 242.18
Others - Provisionally priced contracts (42.67)
Revenue from Contracts with Customers 129,745.57

(a)

Includes Excise duty ¥ Nil (Previois year: ¥ 636.89 crore - till June 30, 2017). Subsequent to introduction of Goods and
Service Tax (GST) with effect from July 01, 2017, revenue is reported excluding GST.

Includes sale of Di ammonium phosphate (DAP) including nutrient based subsidy of Phosphorus (P) & Potassium (K)
% 311.17 crore (year ended 31/03/2018 ¥ 186.98 crore).

Sales of Copper products and precious metals are accounted for provisionally, pending finalization of price and quantity.
Variations are accounted for in the period of settlement. Final price receivable on sale of above products for which
provisional price was not finalized are realigned at year end forward LME/LMBA rate and is being presented as part
of other operating revenue (previous year presented under revenue from sale of products). Revenue from subsequent
variation in price movement for year ended 31/03/2019 is ¥ 42.67 crore (previous year ended 31/03/2018 % 9.60 crore),
including subsequent variation in price movement from trading sales of ¥ 20.00 crore (previous year ended 31/03/2018
T Nil).
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(d)
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Sale of Services represents Freight and Insurance on certain Export contracts as well as shipping and handling charges
related to FOB shipping point, which are identified as separate performance obligation and have been accounted for
as service revenue.

Includes Government Grant in the nature of sales related export incentives and other benefits of ¥ 393.33 crore
(31/03/2018: ¥ 315.93 crore).

Impact on the adoption of Ind AS 115:

The Group has applied Ind AS 115 for the first time by using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the
date of initial application of April 1, 2018. Under this method, the cumulative effect of initially applying Ind AS 115 is
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as at April 1, 2018. Comparative prior period
has not been adjusted.

Entities applying the modified retrospective method can elect to apply the revenue standard only to the contracts that
are not completed as at the date of initial application (that is, they would ignore the effect of applying the revenue
standard to contracts that were completed prior to the date of initial application).

The adoption of the new standard did not have a material impact as at 1st April 2018 for the revenue contracts that are
not completed as at that date.

Disaggregated information in respect of revenue is analysed by the country, in which customers are located and is
given below:

% in Crore

Year ended Year ended

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

India 31,961.16 24,484.91
Outside India

Germany 19,209.82 18,381.87

Korea 12,363.17 9,264.57

China 1,645.90 4,358.75

Brazil 14,346.60 11,928.02

USA 34,148.21 26,050.30

Others 16,867.39 21,351.28

130,542.25 115,819.70

The following table presents the amounts by which each financial statement line item is affected in the current year ended
March 31, 2019 by the application of Ind AS 115 as compared with the previous revenue recognition requirements.
Advance from customer has been included as part of contract liabilities and provision for discount payable to customer
has been separately presented as refund liabilities under other current liabilities. Line items that were not affected by
the changes have not been included.

Zin Crore
March

) March
Balance Sheet 31, 201.9 without Increase/ 31, 2019
adoption of Ind (decrease) as reported

AS 115 P

Current Liabilities

Trade Payables 20,812.23 (89.38) 20,722.85
Other Current Liabilties 1,318.01 (87.24) 1,230.77
Contract Liabilities - 176.62 176.62

Sale from services have been presented seperately under Revenue from operations These pertain to shipping and
handling services identified as separate performance obligation.

(i)  Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Group has not disclosed the remaining performance
obligations related disclosures for contracts where revenue recognized corresponds directly with value to the
customer of the entity’s performance completed to date.
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22. Note 34 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

Cost of Materials Consumed

Zin Crore

Year ended Year ended

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Raw Materials 78,066.58 70,871.12
Packing Materials 2.04 1.17

78,068.62 70,872.29

23. Note 41 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

Impairment Loss/ (Reversal) (Net)

% in Crore

Year ended Year ended

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Impairment Loss - 100.25
Impairment Reversal (10.75) -
Impairment Loss/ (Reversal) (Net) (10.75) 100.25

The Group assess the recoverability of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that we may not be able to recover the asset’s carrying amount. Such events or circumstances
include, but are not limited to, a significant decrease in the fair value of the underlying business, change in utilization of
property and equipment and intangible assets, or market factors such as metal price and input costs.

If any indication exists and an impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable
amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount and it will be its new cost basis. For a depreciable asset, the new cost basis will be depreciated over the remaining
useful life of that asset. For an amortizable intangible asset, the new cost basis will be amortized over the remaining useful
life of the asset.

Impairment loss calculations require management to apply judgments in estimating future cash flows to determine asset
fair values, including forecasting useful lives of the assets and selecting the discount rate that represents the risk inherent
in future cash flows. Impairment charges are recorded in “Impairment Loss/(Reversal) (Net)” in the consolidated statement
of profit and loss. For the year ended March 31, 2019, Novelis Inc. reversed impairment loss of ¥ 10.75 crore related to its
property, plant & equipment in Gottingen, Germany facility.

For the year ended March 31, 2018, Novelis Inc., a subsidiary of the Company, had recorded % 100.25 crore as impairment
charges as under:

(a) ¥ 64.58 crore related to plant and equipment in the Gottingen, Germany facility. This was related to the production litho
material line that was shut down.

(b) ¥ 30.50 crore related to intangible asset under development in Europe. This is related to the SAP software that would
no longer be developed.

(c) ®5.17 crore in CWIP items within projects related to Research and Development facility.

The recoverable value of all the impaired assets discussed above was nil.
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24. Note 43 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
Exceptional Items (Net)

Exceptional ltems consist of the followings:
Zin Crore

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Exceptional Income - (a), (b) & (c) - 2,160.62
Exceptional Expenses - (d), (e) & (f) - (386.46)
1,774.16

Details of Exceptional ltems are given below:

(a) During the year ended March 31, 2018, Novelis Korea Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, sold 49.9% of its shares
resulting in the Group recognizing a net gain of ¥ 1,782.46 crore on the transaction. (refer Note 58 of Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements)

(b) The Group has discontinued the accounting of its Investment in Vodafone Idea Limited (“VIL") [formerly known as Idea
Cellular Limited (“ICL")] as ‘Investment in Associates’ effective March 31, 2018 and designated the investment in VIL
as “Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)”. This change has resulted into a gain of ¥ 305.10 crore.
(refer Note 57-D of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements)

(c) Based on Honorable Supreme Court judgment dated October 13, 2017 and considering the prospective contribution
required to be made to the DMF by the holder of a mining lease or a prospecting license-cum-mining lease in addition
to the payment of royalty, an amount of % 73.06 crore had been written back during financial year 2017-18, which was
provided/ paid in earlier years relating to period for which such levy was held invalid or not applicable.

(d) Based on the Honorable Supreme Court judgment dated September 22, 2017, in the matter of proportionate reduction
in input tax credit in case of sale in course of inter-state trade, commerce and branch transfer under the Gujarat Value
Added Tax Act, 2003 to which the Company is not a party, an amount of ¥ 27.42 crore related to earlier periods has
been provided during the financial year 2017-18.

(e) Based on the Honorable Supreme Court judgment dated September 15, 2017, in the matter of Transit Fee on forest
produce (as applicable, amongst others, in the States of Uttar Pradesh and Madhya Pradesh), an amount of ¥ 139.35
crore has been provided during the financial year 2017-18 towards probable obligation that may arise.

() Based on the Honorable Supreme Court judgment dated August 2, 2017, in the matter of Common Cause V/s Union of
India (to which the Company is not a party), provisional demands are raised on the Company for its bauxite mines. The
Company has challenged the purported demand and obtained stay on the demands. As the matter is pending final
determination and considering the implication of existing litigation, the Company has provided ¥ 219.69 crore during
the financial year 2017-18.

25. Note 44 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
Income Tax Expenses
The Group’s income tax expenses and effective tax rate reconciliation given below:

(@ Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Zin Crore
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Current Tax

Current Tax Expenses for the year 1,910.45 1,742.42
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods (Net) (0.04) (78.25)
1,910.41 1,664.17

Deferred Tax
Deferred Income Tax Expenses - (ii) 1,454.62 900.36
MAT Credit Entitlement (776.94) (490.36)
677.68 410.00
Total Income Tax Expenses 2,588.09 2,074.17
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Applicable Indian Statutory Income Tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 is 34.944%
and 34.608%, respectively.

Deferred income tax expenses during the year ended March 31, 2019, includes the effect of change
in tax rates in Novelis Inc. which is primarily related to a state legislative change in the United States.
During the year ended March 31, 2018, the effect of change In tax rates was attributable to the Tax Cuts and Jobs
Act (the “Act”), which was enacted on December 22, 2017. Among its numerous changes, the Act reduces the
U.S. corporate rate from 35% to 21% effective January 1, 2018 for Novelis. The result is a blended U.S. corporate
rate of 31.55% for fiscal year 2018. The impact of the lower statutory rate applied to year-to-date earnings has
been recorded in the year ended March 31, 2018. Also recorded in the same year is an estimated non-cash
income tax benefit of ¥ 306.64 crore for the remeasurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities to reflect the
anticipated rate at which the deferred items will be realized.

MAT Credit entitlement includes ¥ 401.75 crore pertains to Utkal Alumina International Lmited.

(b) Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate
% in Crore
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax 8,083.10 8,157.04
Indian Statutory Income Tax Rate (%) 34.944% 34.608%
Tax expenses using the Company’s domestic tax rate 2,824.56 2,822.99
Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile reported income tax expense:
Tax credits and other concessions (110.00) (145.93)
Income exempt from tax (32.00) (88.05)
Expenses not deductible in determining taxable profit 58.60 158.18
Tax on income (domestic and foreign) at rates different from statutory income tax rate (192.88) (564.84)
Adjustments pertaining to prior years 11.91 (71.83)
Change in previously unrecognised tax loss, tax credit or temporary difference of a prior period (300.98) (206.62)
Uncertain tax positions 24.22 21.05
Tax on Undistributed Earnings 6.36 -
Share of profit of equity accounted investees - (97.01)
Deferred tax not recognised on carry forward losses and benefits 164.05 193.62
Foreign exchange translation & remeasurement 162.18 62.32
Others (27.93) (9.71)
Total Tax expenses recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 2,588.09 2,074.17
26. Note 46 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
Earnings/ (Loss) per Share (EPS)
Zin Crore
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Profit/ (Loss) for the year
As per Statement of Profit and Loss 5,495.01 6,082.87
Less: Non-Controlling Interests share in Profit/ (Loss) (0.66) (0.05)
Profit/ (Loss) attributable to Owners of the Company 5,495.67 6,082.92
Weighted average number of shares used in the calculation of EPS:
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS 2,227,573,655 2,227,789,728
Dilutive impact of Employee Stock Options Scheme 1,126,728 1,292,718
Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted EPS 2,228,700,383 2,229,082,446
Face value of per equity share (%) 1.00 1.00
Earnings/ (Loss) per share
Basic (3) 24.67 27.30
Diluted (%) 24.66 27.29

Treasury shares are excluded from weighted average numbers of shares used in the calculation of EPS.
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27. Note 48 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
Segment Information:

The Group has identified three reportable segments viz. Aluminium, Copper and Novelis as its reportable segments basis
how the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) allocates resources and assess performance of the Group. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form these reportable segments. Description of each of the reporting segments is as
under:

i.  Aluminium Segment: This part of business manufactures and sells Hydrate and Alumina, Aluminium and Aluminium
Products.

i. Copper Segment: This part of business manufactures and sells Copper Cathode, Continuous Cast Copper Rods,
Sulphuric Acid, DAP & Complexes, Gold, Silver and other precious metals.

iii.  Novelis Segment: This represents Novelis Inc, a wholly owned foreign subsidiary, engaged in producing and selling
aluminium sheet and light gauge products and operating in all four major industrialized continents: North America,
South America, Europe and Asia, identified as separate reportable segment based on its geographical area and
regulatory environment.

The chief operating decision maker (CODM) primarily uses earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
(EBITDA) as performance measure to assess the performance of the operating segments. However, the CODM also receives
information about the segment’s revenues, segment assets and segment liabilities on regular basis.

A. Segment Profit or Loss:

Segment’s performance are measured based on Segment EBITDA. Segment EBITDA is defined as “Earnings from
Continuing Operations before Finance Costs, Exceptional ltems, Tax Expenses, Depreciation and Amortization,
Impairment of Non-Current Assets, Investment income, Fair value gains or losses on financial assets and share in
profit/ loss in equity accounted entities but after allocation of Corporate Expenses”. Segment EBITDA are as follows:

Zin Crore

Year ended Year ended

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Aluminium 5,107.15 4,692.12

Copper 1,516.23 1,594.36

Novelis 9,193.76 7,902.55

Total Segment EBIDTA 15,817.14 14,189.03
Segment EBITDA reconciles to Profit/ (Loss) before Tax from Continuing Operations as follows:

% in Crore

Year ended Year ended

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Total Segment EBIDTA 15,817.14 14,189.03

Finance Costs (3,778.04) (3,910.73)

Depreciation and Amortization (4,776.98) (4,506.24)

Impairment Loss/ (Reversal) (Net) 10.75 (100.25)

Exceptional Items (Net) - 1,774.16

Share in Profit/ (Loss) in Equity Accounted Investments (Net of Tax) 0.49 (125.09)

Interest and Dividend Income 405.88 348.63

Gains/ (losses) on Financial Assets Measured at fair value through Profit and Loss (Net) 323.26 414.89

Other Unallocated Income/ (Expenses) (Net) 80.60 72.64

Profit/ (Loss) before Tax from Continuing Operations 8,083.10 8,157.04
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Following amount are either included in the measure of segment profit or loss reviewed by the CODM or are regularly
provided to the CODM:

% in Crore

Year ended 31.03.2019 Year ended 31.03.2018
Aluminium Copper Novelis Aluminium Copper Novelis
Interest Income - (a) 21.49 63.67 97.26 31.53 47 .46 55.26
([Ejprec'a“o” and Amortization - 1,818.65 172.36 2,762.79 1,770.47 159.26 2,556.30
Impairment Loss/ (Reversal) of Non- ) i (10.75) ) ) 10024

Current Assets (Net) - (b)

(a) Represents interest income from customers/ security deposits etc which are included in the measure of segment
profit or loss.

(b) Does not included in the measure of segment profit or loss but provided to the CODM.
Segment Revenue:

The segment revenue is measured in the same way as in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Sales between
operating segments are eliminated on consolidation. Segment Revenue and reconciliation of the same with total
revenue as follows:

% in Crore
Year ended 31.03.2019 Year ended 31.03.2018

Segment Inter-segment  Revenue from Segment Inter-segment  Revenue from

Revenue Revenue operations Revenue Revenue operations

Aluminium 24,160.22 6.51 24,153.71 21,395.95 1.38 21,394.57
Copper 22,197.60 19.65 22,177.95 22,426.74 7.75 22,418.99
Novelis 84,210.59 - 84,210.59 72,006.14 - 72,006.14
Total 130,568.41 26.16 130,542.25 115,828.83 9.13 115,819.70

During the year ended March 31, 2019, there is no revenue from a single customer which is more than 10% of the
Company’s total revenue, whereas during previous year Revenue of approximately ¥ 2,619.47 crore included in revenue
from Copper Segment arose from a single external customer which was more than 10% of the copper segment’s total
revenue during that reported period.

Novelis’s ten largest customers accounted for approximately 66% and 65% of Novelis segment’s total “Revenue from
operations” for the year ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, out of which two major customer contributes
to 22% (% 18,877.86 crore) (31/03/2018: 22% (% 15,959.92 crore)) and 11% (X 9,012.63 crore) (31/03/2018: 11% (X
7,657.96 crore)) of the Novelis segment’s total “Revenue from Operations”, respectively.

The Group’s operations are located in India and outside India. The amount of its revenue from external customers
analysed by the country in which customers are located irrespective of origin of the goods or services are given below:

T in Crore

Year ended Year ended

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

India 31,961.16 24,484.91
Outside India 98,581.09 91,334.79

130,542.25  115,819.70|

The Group recognises revenue at a point in time.
Segment Assets:

Segment assets are measured in the same way as in the consolidated financial statements. These assets are allocated
based on the operations of the segment and the physical location of the asset. However, certain assets like investments,
investment accounted for using equity method, loans, assets classified as held for sale, current and deferred tax assets
are not considered to be segment assets as they are managed at corporate level. Further, corporate administrative
assets of an entity having operation which are part of more than one reporting segments are not allocated to individual
segments as they also managed at corporate levels and does not linked to any specific segment.

In case of Novelis segment, all the assets of Novelis Inc. are considered as part of segment assets as it solely represents
Novelis Inc. a separate legal entity as separate segment.
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Segment assets and reconciliation of the same with total assets as follows:

Zin Crore

As at As at

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Aluminium 52,222.04 50,574.80
Copper 9,897.92 9,282.55
Novelis 77,454.78 72,938.11
Total Segment Assets 139,574.74 132,795.46
Investment Property 23.15 23.72
Investments (Non-Current and Current) 8,990.97 10,766.62
Investments Accounted for using Equity Method 21.04 14.69
Other Corporate Assets 4,021.79 4,226.78
Total Assets 152,631.69 147,827.27

During the year ended 31/03/2019, capital expenditure relating to Aluminium, Copper and Novelis segments are
¥ 1,410.55 crore, ¥ 205.98 crore and % 2,468.3 crore respectively (31/03/2018: Aluminium, Copper and Novelis segments
% 1,516.29 crore, % 236.50 crore and % 1,919.10 crore respectively).

The total of Non-Current assets excluding financial assets, investments accounted for using equity method and deferred
tax assets analysed by the country in which assets are located are given below.

T in Crore

As at As at

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

India 43,656.51 43,543.24
Qutside India 48,588.63 44,897.80

92,245.14 88,441.04

Segment Liabilities:

Segment liabilities are measured in the same way as in the financial statements. These liabilities are allocated based on
the operations of the segment. In measurement of Aluminium and Copper segment’s liabilities, items like borrowings,
current and deferred tax liabilities, liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale etc. are no considered
to be segment liabilities as they are managed at corporate level. Further, corporate administrative liabilities of an entity
having operation which are part of more than one reporting segments are not allocated to individual segments as they
also managed at corporate levels and does not linked to any specific segment.

In case of Novelis segment, all the liabilities of Novelis Inc. except borrowings, are considered as part of segment
liabilities as it solely represents Novelis Inc. a separate legal entity as separate segment.

Segment liabilities and reconciliation of the same with total liabilities as follows:

T in Crore

As at As at

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Aluminium 5,763.66 5,864.64
Copper 4,393.94 3,986.23
Novelis 28,848.56 27,774.02
Total Segment Liabilities 39,006.16 37,624.89
Borrowings (Non-Current and Current, including current Maturity) 52,415.01 52,074.02
Other Corporate Liabilities 3,699.31 3,267.95
Total Liabilities 95,120.48 92,966.86

28. Note 51 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

Contingent Liabilities

The Group are party to, and may in the future be involved in, or subject to, disputes, claims and proceedings arising in
the ordinary course of our business, including some we assert against others, such as environmental, health and safety,
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product liability, employee, tax, personal injury and other matters. The Group have established a liability with respect to
contingencies for which a loss is probable and estimable. While the ultimate resolution of and liability and costs related
to these matters cannot be determined with certainty, the Management does not believe any of these pending actions,
individually or in the aggregate, will materially impact our operations or materially affect our financial condition or liquidity.

The Group’s estimates involve significant judgment, and therefore, the estimate will change from time to time and actual
losses may differ from the current estimate. Management review the status of, and estimated liability related to, pending
claims and civil actions on a quarterly basis. The evaluation model includes all asserted and unasserted claims that can
be reasonably identified including claims relating to our responsibility for compliance with environmental, health and safety
laws and regulations in the jurisdictions in which we operate or formerly operated. The estimated costs in respect of such
reported liabilities are not offset by amounts related to insurance or indemnification arrangements unless otherwise noted.

The amount for which the Group is contingently liable are given below:

% in Crore

As at As at

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

(a) Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debt 1,065.78 1,496.12

(Disputed demands for excise duty, custom duty, sales tax, income tax, stamp duty, entry tax,

transit fees, cess, green cess etc. and other matters not acknowledged as debts, pending at

various appellate authorities)

(b) Other money for which the Company is contingently liable:

i. Customs Duty on Raw Materials imported under Advance License, against which export 10.09 10.28
obligation is to be fulfilled.

ii.  For contingent liabilities relating to associates and joint ventures, if any, are given in Note
57 D and 57 E of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements.

29. Note 52 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

Commitments

% in Crore
As at As at
31.03.2019 31.03.2018

The Group’s commitments with regard to various items in respect of:
(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for 1,587.91 442.41
(b) Purchase commitments in relation to Materials and Services (net of advances) 54,008.29 35,947.70

(c) The Company has given the following undertakings in connection with the loan of Utkal
Aluminium International Limited (UAIL), a wholly owned subsidiary:
i. To hold minimum 51% equity shares in UAIL.
i. To ensure to meet the Financial Covenants, except Fixed Asset Coverage Ratio, as
provided in the loan agreements.

30. Note 53 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

Capital Management

The Group’s objective to manage its capital is to ensure continuity of business while at the same time provide reasonable
returns to its various stakeholders but keep associated costs under control. In order to achieve this, requirement of capital
is reviewed periodically with reference to operating and business plans that take into account capital expenditure and
strategic investments. Apart from internal accrual, sourcing of capital is done through judicious combination of equity and
borrowing, both short term and long term. Net debt (total borrowings less current investment and cash & cash equivalents)
to equity ratio is used to monitor capital. No changes were made to the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018.

As at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018, the Group was in compliance with all of its debt covenants for borrowings.
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31. Note 55 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Risk Management and Derivative Financial Instruments

A.

182

Financial Risk Management
The Group’s activities exposes it to various risks such as market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. This section explains
the risks which the Group is exposed to and how it manages the risks.

(a) Credit Risk
Credit risks is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligation, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers.

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, contractual cash flows of debt investments, favourable derivative
financial instruments and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to customers
including outstanding receivables.

Credit risk is managed on an group basis.The Group has adopted a policy of dealing only with creditworthy
counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating risk of financial loss
from defaults. The Group invests only in those instruments issued by high rated banks/ institutions and government
agencies. The Group assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past
experience and other factors. The Group’s investments in debt instruments and certain loans are considered are
considered to have low credit risk. The credit ratings of the investments are monitored for credit deterioration.

For some trade receivables the Group obtains security in the form of guarantees, deed of undertaking or letters of
credit which can be called upon if the counterparty is in default under the terms of the agreement.

The Group periodically monitors the recoverability and credit risks of its other financials assets including security
deposits and other receivables. The Group evaluates 12 month expected credit losses for all the financial assets
for which credit risk has not increased. In case credit risk has increased significantly, the Group considers life time
expected credit losses for the purpose of impairment provisioning.

The Group has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables
based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted
for forward-looking information.

(b) Market Risk

i.  Commodity Price Risk

Hindalco’s India Operations consist of two businesses — Copper Business and Aluminium Business. The
Copper Business works under a “Custom Smelting” model wherein the focus is to improve the processing
margin. The timing mis-match risk between the input and output price, which is linked to the same international
pricing benchmark, is eliminated through use of derivatives. This off-set hedge model (through use of
derivatives) is used to manage the timing mis-match risk for both Commodity (Copper and Precious Metals)
and Currency Risk (primarily, USD/INR). The Copper Business also has a portion of View Based exposure
for both Commodity and Currency, beyond the above timing mis-match risk. Lower Copper Prices, Stronger
USD/INR exchange rate and Higher “Other Input” Prices (eg Coal, furnace oil, natural gas etc) are the major
price risks that adversely impact the business. Here, the Company may use derivative instruments, wherever
available, to manage these pricing risks. A variety of factors, including the risk appetite of the business and
price view, are considered while taking Hedging Decisions. Such View based hedges are usually done for
the next 1-8 quarters.

The Aluminium Business is a vertically integrated business model wherein the input and output pricing risks
are independent of each other, i.e. — are on different pricing benchmarks, if any. Here, the Company may use
derivative instruments, wherever available, to manage its pricing risks for both input and output products.
Lower Aluminium Prices, Stronger USD/INR exchange rate and Higher Input Prices (e.g. Alumina, Furnance
Qil) are the major price risks that adversely impact the Business. Hedging decisions are based on a variety
of factors, including risk appetite of the business and price View. Such Hedge decisions are usually done for
the next 1-12 quarters.
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Embedded Derivatives

Copper concentrate is purchased on future pricing model based on month’s average LME (in case of copper)/
LBMA (in case of gold and silver). Since, the value of the concentrate changes with response to change in
commodity pricing indices, embedded derivatives (ED) is identified and segregated in the contract. The ED
SO segregated, is treated like commodity derivative and qualify for hedge accounting. These derivatives are
put into a Fair Value hedge relationship with respect to inventory.

Novelis business model is conducted under a conversion model which allows us to pass through increases or
decreases in the price of aluminium to our customers . Derivative instruments are used to preserve conversion
margins and manage timing differences associated with metal price lag related to base aluminium price.
Novelis also uses several sources of energy such as natural gas, electricity, fuel oil and transport oil in
manufacturing and delivery of its products.

The table below summarises the gain/(loss) impact on account of increase/decrease in the commodity prices
on the Group’s equity and profit for the period.

Zin Crore

Year ended 31.03.2019 Year ended 31.03.2018
Increase in Change in Change in Other Change in Change in Other
Rate/Price Statement of Components of Statement of Components of
Profit & Loss Equity Profit & Loss Equity
Aluminium 10% 18.50 (646.79) (64.13) (971.23)
Copper 10% (379.36) (2.30) (261.76) (7.62)
Gold 10% 154.02 (222.03) (21.18) (70.74)
Silver 10% (1.82) (10.31) (3.27) (18.81)
Coal 10% 0.01 2.99 - -
Furnace Oil 10% 1.54 6.84 - -
Electricity 10% - 20.57 - 23.63
Natural Gas 10% 0.75 25.78 0.78 33.50
Diesel Fuel 10% - 16.85 9.49 -

Decrease in prices by 10% will have equal and opposite impact in financial statements.

Foreign Currency Risk

Exchange rate movements, particularly the United States Dollar (USD) and Euro (EUR) against Indian Rupee
(INR)have an impact on our operating results. In addition to the foreign exchange inflow from exports, the
commodity prices in the domestic market are derived based on the landed cost of imports in India where
LME prices and USD/INR exchange rate are the main factors. In case of conversion business, the objective
is to match the exchange rate of outflows and related inflows through derivative financial instruments. With
respect to Aluminium business where costs are predominantly in INR, the strengthening of INR against USD
adversely affects the profitability of the business and benefits when INR depreciates against USD. The Group
enters into various foreign exchange contracts to protect profitability. The Group also enters into various
foreign exchange contracts to mitigate the risk arising out of foreign currency exchange rate movement in
foreign currency contracts executed with foreign suppliers to procure capital items for its project activities.

Exchange rate movements, particularly the Euro, the Swiss franc, the Brazilian real and the Korean won
against the U.S. dollar, have an impact on our operating results. In Europe, where we have predominantly
local currency selling prices and operating costs, we benefit as the Euro strengthens, but are adversely
affected as the Euro weakens. For our Swiss operations, where operating costs are incurred primarily
in the Swiss franc and a large portion of revenues are denominated in the Euro, we benefit as the franc
weakens but are adversely affected as the franc strengthens. In South Korea, where we have local currency
operating costs and U.S. dollar denominated selling prices for exports, we benefit as the won weakens but
are adversely affected as the won strengthens. In Brazil, where we have predominately U.S. dollar selling
prices and local currency manufacturing costs, we benefit as the real weakens, but are adversely affected
as the real strengthens.
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The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR , is as

follows:

Zin Crore

Currency [Payable/(Receivable)] 31_03233 31‘032(5)162
UusbD 377.52 679.51

EUR (43.41) 39.10

GBP 2.11 2.50

SEK 0.12 0.12

NOK 0.99 1.03

SGD - 0.14

CAD 18.87 21.61

AUD 0.88 0.56

CHF 0.90 0.98

JPY 0.40 0.55

AED 0.01 0.01

ZAR - 0.36

DKK (0.05) -

BRL 111.74 86.74

Total 470.08 833.21

The table below summarises the gain/(loss) impact on account of increase/decrease in the exchange rates
on the Group’s equity and profit for the period.

T in Crore

Year ended 31.03.2019

Year ended 31.03.2018

Currency Pair Increas_e in Change in Changti;r: Change in Change in Other
Rate/Price Statement of Components Statement of Components of
Profit & Loss h Profit & Loss Equity

of Equity
USD_INR 10% 14.16 (920.73) (41.26) (1,147.37)
EUR_INR 10% 6.88 9.71 1.86 -
GBP_INR 10% (0.20) - (0.23) -
NOK_INR 10% (0.06) - (0.07) -
SGD_INR 10% - - (0.01) -
CAD_INR 10% (0.03) - (0.04) -
AUD_INR 10% (0.06) - (0.02) -
CHF_INR 10% (0.06) - (0.06) -
JPY_INR 10% (0.03) - (0.04) -
ZAR_INR 10% - - 0.03 -
EUR_USD 10% (95.78) (23.30) 160.96 27.59
BRL_USD 10% 4.72 187.73 12.84 87.46
KRW_USD 10% 115.32 1568.07 107.86 145.28
CAD_USD 10% 7.36 18.22 6.58 18.13
GBP_USD 10% (10.58) - (12.20) -
CHF_USD 10% (0.15) (0.14) (16.88) (1.76)
CNY_USD 10% (17.63) - (69.15) -
GBP_CHF 10% 0.46 - 1.50 -
EUR_CHF 10% 103.93 40.72 304.73 76.96
EUR_GBP 10% 64.91 - 137.10 -
EUR_CNY 10% 0.89 - 0.01 -
SEK_USD 10% (0.01) - - -
JPY_KRW 10% - - 0.59 -
DKK_USD 10% 0.01 - (0.01) -

Decrease in prices by 10% will have equal and opposite impact in financial statements.
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iii. Interest Rate Risk
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk on financial liabilities such as borrowings, both short-term and long-
term. It maintains a balance of fixed and floating interest rate borrowings and the proportion is determined
by current market interest rates, projected debt servicing capability and view on future interest rates. Such
interest rate risk is actively evaluated and interest rate swap is taken whenever considered necessary.

The Group is also exposed to interest rate risk on its financial assets that include fixed deposits, bonds ,
debentures, commerical papaer, mutual funds and liquid investments comprising mainly mutual funds (which
are part of cash and cash equivalents). Since, all these are generally for short durations, the Company
believes it has manageable and limited interest rate risk.

The table below summarises the (gain)/loss impact on account of decrease/increase in the benchmark
interest rates on the Group’s equity and profit for the period.

T in Crore
Year ended 31.03.2019 Year ended 31.03.2018
Increasg in Change in Change in Other Change in Change in Other
Rate/Price Statement of Components of Statement of Components of
Profit & Loss Equity Profit & Loss Equity
Interest Rate Borrowings in India 50 bps (49.50) - (50.84) -
Interest Rate Borrowings in Novelis 100 bps (122.97) - (114.57) -

Decrease in prices by 50 bps and 100 bps, respectively, on above borrowings will have equal and opposite
impact in financial statements.

iv. Other price risk
The Group’s exposure to equity securities price risk arises from movement in market price of related securities
classified either as fair value through OCI or as fair value through profit and loss. The Group manages the
price risk through diversified portfolio.

The table below summarises the gain/(loss) impact on account of increase/decrease in the equity share
prices on the Group’s equity and profit for the period.

T in Crore
Year ended 31.03.2019 Year ended 31.03.2018
Increasg in Change in Change in Other Change in Change in Other
Rate/Price Statement of Components of  Statement of Components of
Profit & Loss Equity Profit & Loss Equity
Investment in Equity securities 10% - 500.47 - 679.82

Decrease in prices by 10% will have equal and opposite impact in financial statements.

(c) Liquidity Risk
The Group determines its liquidity requirements in the short, medium and long term. This is done by drawing up
cash forecast for short and medium term requirements and strategic financing plans for long term needs.

The Group manages its liquidity risk in a manner so as to meet its normal financial obligations without any
significant delay or stress. Such risk is managed through ensuring operational cash flow while at the same time
maintaining adequate cash and cash equivalent position. The management has arranged for diversified funding
sources and adopted a policy of managing assets with liquidity in mind and monitoring future cash flows and
liquidity on a regular basis. Surplus funds not immediately required are invested in certain investments (including
mutual fund) which provide flexibility to liquidate at short notice and are included in current investments and cash
and cash equivalents. Besides, it generally has certain undrawn credit facilities which can be accessed as and
when required; such credit facilities are reviewed periodically.

The Group has developed appropriate internal control systems and contingency plans for managing liquidity
risk. This incorporates an assessment of expected cash flows and availability of alternative sources for additional
funding, if required.
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Maturity Analysis

The table below shows the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual
maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilities and net settled derivative financial instruments. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

% in Crore
Contractual maturities of Less than 12 25 More
.on re?c u-a m_a_u” les o Than 5 Total Carrying Value
financial liabilities as at 1 Year Years Years Years
March 31, 2019
Non Derivatives
Borrowings* 6,433.83 3,119.78 26,121.72 34,696.19 70,371.52 52,364.19
Obligations under finance 16.32 16.77 19.83 10.13 63.05 50.82
lease
Trade payables 20,722.85 0.79 0.76 - 20,724.40 20,724.20
Other financial liabilities 2,853.58 3.79 - 65.29 2,922.66 2,922.66
IZL?L:‘;’S Derivative 30,026.58 3,141.13  26,14231 3477161  94,081.63  76,061.87
Derivatives 1,080.89 92.40 17.98 - 1,191.27 1,191.27
Total Derivative liabilities 1,080.89 92.40 17.98 - 1,191.27 1,191.27
% in Crore
iti Less than 1-2 2-5 More
COﬂtféCtU_a| r.n-a.turltles of ess tha Than 5 Total Carrying Value
financial liabilities as at 1 vear Years Years Years
March 31, 2018
Non Derivatives
Borrowings* 7,347.83 3,278.59 25,813.18 34,750.97 71,190.57 56,164.59
Obligations under finance 66.33 50.90 21.84 16.14 155.21 135.16
lease
Trade payables 20,404.80 0.59 1.06 22.39 20,428.84 20,428.84
Other financial liabilities 2,460.04 11.60 0.32 51.51 2,523.47 2523.47
Total Non Derivative liabilities 30,279.00 3,341.68 25,836.40 34,841.01 94,298.09 79,252.06
Derivatives 1,308.99 89.16 30.80 - 1,428.95 1,428.95
Total Derivative liabilities 1,308.99 89.16 30.80 - 1,428.95 1,428.95

*Includes Principal and interest payments, short term borrowings, current portion of debt and excludes unamortised fees.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forwards, futures, swaps, options etc. to hedge its risks
associated with foreign exchange fluctuation. Risks associated with fluctuation in the price of the products (copper,
aluminium, coal, furnace oil, natural gas, electricity, diesel and precious metals) are minimized by undertaking
appropriate derivative instruments. Derivatives embedded in other contracts are treated as separate derivatives when
their risks and characteristics are not closely related to their host contracts. In some cases, the embedded derivatives
may be designated in a hedge relationship. The fair values of all such derivative financial instruments are recognized
as assets or liabilities at the balance sheet date.

The Group also applies hedge accounting using certain foreign currency non-derivative monetary items which are
used as hedging instruments for hedging foreign exchange risk.
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The Asset and Liability position of various outstanding derivative financial instruments is given below:

Zin Crore

Nature of Risk being Hedged

As at 31.03.2019

As at 31.03.2018

Liability Asset Liability Asset
Current
Cash flow hedges
- Commodity contracts Price Risk (79.04) 484.28 (338.08) 477.21
- Interest rate contracts Interest rate movement risk - - (0.05) -
- Foreign currency contracts Exchange rate movement risk (518.19) 370.36 (235.60) 843.05
Fair value Hedges
_Embedded derivatives 19k Of change in Fair Value of (248.60) 6.11 (4.64) 154,52

unpriced inventory

Non-designated hedges
- Commodity contracts Price Risk (292.60) 300.89 (524.26) 499.02
- Foreign currency contracts Exchange rate movement risk (191.06) 151.79 (211.00) 103.88
Total (1,329.49) 1,313.43 (1,313.63) 2,077.68
Non - current
Cash flow hedges
- Commodity contracts Price Risk (28.60) 30.98 (76.65) 72.45
- Foreign currency contracts Exchange rate movement risk (72.54) 67.46 (35.75) 43.79
Non-designated hedges
- Commodity contracts (2.07) 2.24 (2.83) 1.95
- Foreign currency contracts (7.17) 6.73 (4.73) 0.04
Total (110.38) 107.41 (119.96) 118.23
Grand Total (1,439.87) 1,420.84 (1,433.59) 2,195.91

Fair Value of Embeded Derivatives of ¥ (242.29) crore previous year ¥ 149.88 crore accounted for as part of Trade

Payables

Derivative assets are part of other financial assets included in note 12 of Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements. Derivative liabilities are part of other financial liabilities included in note 26 and 27 of Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Outstanding position and fair value of various foreign exchange derivative financial instruments:

As at 31.03.2019

As at 31.03.2018

Currency Average Notional Fair Value Average Notional Fair Value
Pair exchange Value Gain/ (Loss) exchange Value Gain/ (Loss)
rate (in Million) (X Crore)) rate (in Million) (X Crore)
Foreign currency forwards
Cash flow hedges
Buy CHF_EUR 0.88 76.05 9.44 0.88 97.00 (18.58)
Buy USD_CHF 0.98 2.79 (0.07) 0.94 3.00 (0.15)
Buy BRL_USD 0.26 316.32 (35.64) 0.30 157.00 (5.75)
Buy EUR_USD 1.15 15.75 1.47 1.22 11.00 (1.39)
Buy USD_CAD 1.30 29.46 (4.27) 1.28 31.00 (1.21)
Buy USD_KRW 1,099.02 262.40 (50.54) 1,070.72 200.00 13.50
Buy EUR_INR 82.72 19.28 (7.06) - - -
Buy USD_INR 71.65 127.70 (25.10) - - -
Sell USD_INR 74.18 656.78 88.49 71.30 866.07 360.00
Total (23.28) 346.42
Foreign currency swaps
Cash flow hedges
Sell USD_INR 63.69 588.81 (129.63) 63.96 938.04 269.07
Total (129.63) 269.07
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As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018
Currency Average Notional Fair Value Average Notional Fair Value
Pair exchange Value Gain/ (Loss) exchange Value  Gain/ (Loss)
rate (in Million) (X Crore)) rate (in Million) (X Crore)

Non-Designated

Buy AUD_INR - - - 50.40 0.03 -
Buy EUR_INR 84.86 7.45 (2.57) 80.06 10.63 1.48
Buy GBP_INR 95.49 0.01 (0.02) 90.00 0.11 0.04
Buy USD_INR 69.25 31.01 0.99 65.43 126.47 0.35
Buy GBP_EUR 1.33 185.56 0.01 1.12 212.00 12.72
Buy USD_KRW 1,117.96 191.44 (20.05) 1,070.38 150.00 4.53
Buy USD_EUR 0.98 67.67 (1.25) 0.82 64.00 (8.02)
Buy GBP_USD 0.79 19.76 (0.01) 0.72 19.00 (2.84)
Buy USD_CHF 1.05 3.02 (0.82) 1.03 29.00 (1.39)
Buy CAD_USD 0.78 14.90 (4.82) 0.74 15.00 4.75
Buy USD_BRL 3.13 26.77 (42.16) 3.13 39.00 (21.36)
Buy JPY_KRW - - - 0.10 1.00 0.03
Buy CHF_GBP 0.75 0.66 (0.15) 0.74 2.00 (0.07)
Buy CHF_EUR 0.78 190.99 20.28 0.87 399.00 (63.20)
Buy CNY_USD 0.15 34.73 14.99 0.15 90.00 (40.87)
Buy CNY_EUR 0.12 1.28 (0.65) 0.13 4.00 (0.28)
Sell USD_INR 69.92 129.65 (3.48) 65.98 120.11 2.32
Total (39.71) (111.81)

(c) Outstanding position and fair value of various foreign exchange non-derivative financial instruments used

as heding instruments:

As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018
Currency Average Notional Fair Value Average Notional Fair Value
Pair exchange Value Gain/ (Loss) exchange Value Gain/ (Loss)
rate (in Million) (R Crore) rate (in Million) (X Crore)
Foreign currency monetary
items
Cash flow hedges
Debt USD_INR 71.87 433.83 113.99 64.52 468.77 (30.86)
é‘ab"'ty for Copper USD_INR 69.91 350.17 24.58 64.75 413.08 (14.49)
oncentrate
138.57 (45.35)

(d) Outstanding position and fair value of various commodity derivative financial instruments

(i) Outstanding position and fair value of various commodity derivative financial instruments as at 31st

March, 2019:
Currency (—\veragg Quantity Unit ’\IOt\;caJlInua:eI GZ;S::;(\L/(?ISUSG;
Price/ Unit (in millions)  (Z Crore)
Commodity Futures/Forwards/Swaps
Cash Flow Hedge
Aluminium Sell UsD 2,0156.99 561,594 MT  1,132.17 361.23
Gold Sell INR 3,279,046 6,843 KGS 22,438.51 65.64
Silver Sell usD 16.06 1,513,065 TOZ 24.30 8.25
Copper Sell UusSD 6,487.50 800 MT 5.19 0.03
Furnace Oil Buy uSsD 341.20 50,000 MT 17.06 12.46
Coal Buy UusSD 81.00 90,000 MT 7.29 (3.79)
Diesel Fuel Buy USD 3.22 8,064,000 Gallons 25.96 (4.19)
Natural gas Buy usD 2.87 15,160,000 MMBtu 43.45 (12.22)
Electricity Buy usD 46.85 769,828 Mwh 36.07 (19.79)
Total 407.62
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Currency Averagg Quantity Unit NOt\:(;Fuael GZS:;(\L/(?ISUS
Price/ Unit (in millions) (% Crore)
Non-Designated
Aluminium Buy UsD 1,890.11 136,315 MT 257.65 (34.63)
Aluminium Sell UshD 191153 122,755 MT 234.65 78.70
Copper Buy UsbD 6,377.04 8,275 MT 52.77 10.60
Copper Sell UshD 6,510.89 12,625 MT 82.20 1.96
Gold Buy INR 3,288,031 4,474 KGS 14,710.65 (51.23)
Silver Buy usD 15.43 217,134 TOZ 3.35 (0.33)
Silver Sell UshD 15.55 69,015 TOZ 1.07 0.13
Furnace Oil Buy UshD 363.67 9,998 MT 3.64 3.66
Furnace Oil Sell uSsD 417.39 9,998 MT 417 0.06
Natural Gas Buy UshD 2.86 440,000 MMBtu 1.26 (0.46)
Total 8.46
Embedded derivatives
Fair Value Hedge
Copper Sell UshD 6,105.30 121,896 MT 755.00 (245.71)
Gold Sell UsbD 1,306.69 33,123 TOZ 43.28 2.32
Silver Sell UshD 156.56 351,099 TOZ 5.46 0.90
Total (242.49)
Outstanding position and fair value of various commodity derivative financial instruments as at 31st
March, 2018
Currency (—\veragg Quantity Unit ’\ky[\i(;llnuaeI GZ?:;(\L/(?ISUS(;
Price/ Unit (in millions) (% Crore))
Commodity Futures/Forwards/Swaps
Cash Flow Hedge
Aluminium Sell UshD 1,975.80 966,666 MT 1,909.94 196.73
Gold Sell UshD 1,303.23 126,148 TOZ 164.40 (24.07)
Silver Sell UsbD 17.03 2,713,922 TOZ 46.21 7.32
Copper Sell UsbD 7,270.37 2,700 MT 19.63 8.85
Natural gas Buy usD 2.90 20,280,000 MMBtu 58.73 (8.69)
Electricity Buy Usb 46.85 747,186 Mwh 35.01 (45.21)
Total 134.93
Non-Designated
Aluminium Buy UsbD 2,027.21 131,299 MT 266.17 (29.16)
Aluminium Sell UsD 1,630.37 185,144 MT 301.85 14.03
Copper Buy UshD 6,776.52 22,150 MT 150.10 (12.37)
Copper Sell UsD 6,574.85 4,175 MT 27.45 (3.05)
Gold Buy UshD 1,328.29 101,194 TOZ 134.42 (1.84)
Gold Sell UsbD 1,314.30 81,373 TOZ 106.95 (5.71)
Silver Buy UshD 16.40 553,630 TOZ 9.08 (0.14)
Silver Sell UsbD 16.72 553,630 TOZ 9.25 1.26
Diesel Fuel Buy UsbD 2.71 4,956,000 Gallons 13.44 9.88
Natural Gas Buy UshD 294 480,000 MMBtu 1.41 (0.67)
Furnace Oil Buy UsD 277.33 3,000 MT 0.83 1.83
Furnace Oil Sell UshD 361.51 3,000 MT 1.08 (0.18)
Total (26.12)
Embedded derivatives
Fair Value Hedge
Copper Sell UsD 6,916.84 110,063 MT 761.29 150.14
Gold Sell UshD 1,326.24 57,2856 TOZ 75.97 (0.74)
Silver Sell UsD 16.56 466,348 TOZ 7.72 0.48
Total 149.88
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(e) The following table presents the outstanding position and fair value of various interest rate derivative

(f)

financial instruments:

As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018
Interest rate swaps ] Average Notional Fair Value Average Notional Fair Value
Fixed leg exchange Value Gain/ (Loss)  exchange Value Gain/ (Loss)
rate  (in Million) (X Crore) rate  (in Million) (X Crore)
Cash flow hedges
3M-CD-3200 Pay fixed - - 3.35% 28.13 (0.05)
Total - (0.05)

The following table presents details of amount held in Effective portion of Cash Flow Hedge and the period
during which these are going to be released and affecting Statement of Profit and Loss.

T in Crore
As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018
Release Release
Cash Flow Hedges Fg;‘:gs:;/ As e;th;;ig In less than After As a;lM;gig In less than After
’ 12 Months 12 Months 12 Months 12 Months
Hedge Instrument Type Pair Gain/ (Loss)  Gain/(Loss) Gain/(Loss) Gain/(Loss)  Gain/(Loss) Gain/(Loss)
Commodity Forwards Aluminium 458.66 432.99 25.67 182.83 123.11 59.72
Gold 0.18 0.18 - (23.88) (23.88) -
Silver 8.23 8.23 - 7.33 7.47 (0.14)
Copper 0.03 0.03 - 8.85 8.85 -
Furnace Oil 12.26 12.26 - - - -
Coal (3.78) (3.78) - - - -
Diesel Fuel (2.25) (1.50) (0.75) - - -
Electricity (24.35) (8.35) (16.00) (50.43) (12.87) (37.56)
Natural Gas (16.32) (2.10) (14.22) (12.96) (5.41) (7.55)
Total 432.66 437.96 (5.30) 111.74 97.27 14.47
Non derivative financial
instruments
Debt 113.99 113.99 - (30.86) (30.86) -
Liability for Copper 19.54 19.54 - (9.58) (9.58) -
Currency Forwards USD_INR 88.24 22.49 65.75 360.51 317.69 42.82
EUR_INR (7.91) (7.00) (0.91) - - -
USD_EUR 1.65 1.65 - (2.35) (5.58) 3.23
USD_BRL (36.52) (13.30) (28.22) 3.06 1.08 1.98
USD_CAD (4.27) (4.15) (0.12) (1.21) (0.97) (0.24)
EUR_KRW - - - - (0.26) 0.26
USD_KRW (51.07) (51.39) 0.32 14.79 15.44 (0.65)
EUR_CHF 10.41 10.41 - (19.97) (20.96) 0.99
USD_CHF (0.18) (0.18) - (0.06) (0.06) -
Currency Swaps USD_INR (317.46) (252.44) (65.02) (103.94) (23.59) (80.35)
Total (183.58) (160.38) (23.20) 210.39 242.35 (31.96)
Interest rate swaps 3M-CD-3200 - - - (0.08) (0.05) 0.02
Total - - - (0.03) (0.05) 0.02
Grand Total 249.08 277.58 (28.50) 322.10 339.57 (17.47)
Deferred Tax on above (49.12) (102.67) 53.54 (59.75) (82.27) 22.52
Total 199.96 174.91 25.04 262.35 257.30 5.05

Abridged Annual Report 2018-19



)

CORPORATE STATUTORY FINANCIAL
OVERVIEW REPORTS STATEMENTS
% in Crore
As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018
Products/ As at March Release As at March Release
. s at Marc s at Marc
Cost of Hedging Reserve roaucts In less than After In less than After
Currency 31, 2019 31,2018
Pair 12 Months 12 Months 12 Months 12 Months
Hedge Instrument Type Gain/(Loss) Gain/(Loss) Gain/(Loss) Gain/(Loss) Gain/(Loss) Gain/(Loss)
Currency Swaps USD_INR 771.61 615.19 156.42 994.99 360.97 634.02
Deferred Tax on above (269.63) (214.97) (54.66) (347.69) (126.14) (221.55)
501.98 400.22 101.76 647.30 234.83 412.47

The following tables presents the amount of gain/(loss) recognized in Effective portion of Cash Flow Hedge
and recycled during the year 2018-19:

% in Crore
Recycled
Net Amount
Opening Net  added to Total As at
Cash Flow Hedges Amount CTA
Balance . Amount Non- Amount 31.03.2019
recognised ) :
to P&L  Financial recycled
Assets
Commaodity 111.74 909.34 609.91 2.39 612.30 23.88 432.66
Forex 210.39 (1,297.82) (872.33) (31.11)  (903.44) 0.41 (183.58)
Interest (0.03) - (0.03) - (0.03) - -
Total 322.10 (388.48) (262.45) (28.72)  (291.17) 24.29 249.08
Deferred Tax on above (59.75) 106.74 90.38 517 95.55 (0.56) (49.12)
% in Crore
Recycled
Net Amount
; Opening Net  added to Total CTA As at
Cost of Hedging Reserve Balance Amqunt Amount Non.- Amount 31.03.2019
recognised ) ;
to P&L  Financial recycled
Assets
Commaodity - (41.15) (41.15) - (41.15) - -
Forex 994.99 200.42 423.80 - 423.80 - 771.61
Total 994.99 159.27 382.65 - 382.65 - 771.61
Deferred Tax on above (347.69) (55.66) (133.72) - (133.72) - (269.63)

The following tables presents the amount of gain/(loss) recognized in Effective portion of Cash Flow Hedge and

recycled during the year 2017-18:

T in Crore
Recycled

) Net Amount
Cash Flow Hedges Opening Amount Net added to Total CTA As at
Balance . Amount X X Amount 31.03.2018

recognised Non-Financial

to P&L Assets recycled

Commodity (1,671.43) (210.57)  (1,987.31) (0.11)  (1,987.42) 6.32 111.74
Forex 886.92 264.44 932.74 714 939.88 (1.09) 210.39
Interest (1.75) (0.43) (2.15) - (2.15) - (0.03)
Total (786.26) 53.44 (1,056.72) 7.03 (1,049.69) 5.23 322.10
Deferred Tax on 308.92 (68.07) 300.60 ; 300.60 ; (59.75)

above
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(h)

Zin Crore
Recycled
: Net Amount
Cost of Hedging Reserve Opening Amount Net added to Total CTA As at
Balance B Amount . . Amount 31.03.2018
recognised Non-Financial
to P&L recycled
Assets
Forex 633.97 361.02 - - - - 994.99
Deferred Tax on
eferred Tax o (219.40) (128.29) - - - - (347.69)
above

The following table presents the amount of gain/ (loss) recycled from Effective portion of Cash Flow Hedge
and Cost of Hedging Reserve and reference of the line item in the Statement of Profit and Loss where those
amounts are included:

% in Crore

Year ended Year ended

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Revenue from Operations 24218 (1,113.72)
Cost of Materials (102.76) 58.24
Depreciation and Amortization (7.25) (6.90)
Finance Costs (0.12) (2.08)
Other Expenses (11.85) 7.74

12020  (1,056.72)

The adjustment as part of the carrying value of inventories arising on account of fair value hedges is as follows:

Zin Crore

Year ended Year ended

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Copper 251.16 (148.61)
Gold (2.41) 0.89
Silver (0.97) (0.49)
Total 247.78 (148.21)

The Group’s hedging policy only allows for effective hedge relationships to be established. The effective portion of
hedge is recognised in OCI, while ineffective portion of hedge is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. The Group uses hypothetical derivative method to assess effectiveness. Ineffectiveness may arise on
account of differences in critical terms and credit risk of the hedging instrument and the hedged item.

32. Note 57 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

Interest in Other Entities

A. Subsidiaries:

192

The Group’s wholly-owned subsidiaries along with country of incorporation, place of operation and principal activities
are set out below.

Name of Entity Principal Activity Ingg:jprggtiogn OFE)I:::aetiEL
Minerals & Minerals Limited Mining India India
Renukeshwar Investments & Finance Limited Investment India India
Renuka Investments & Finance Limited Investment India India
Lucknow Finance Company Limited Investment India India
Dahej Harbour and Infrastructure Limited Cargo services India India
Utkal Alumina International Limited Manufacturing India India
Utkal Alumina Technical & General Services Limited # Technical Services India India
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Name of Entity Principal Activity Ingg:lp'grr:tiogn OT)I:faii?);
Mauda Energy Limited # Power Generation India India
Hindalco Guinea SARL # Dormant South Africa South Africa
AV Minerals (Netherlands) N.V. Investment Netherland Netherland
Hindalco Do Brasil Industria Comercia de Alumina Ltda Subsidiary Brazil Brazil
AV Metals Inc. Investment Canada Canada
Novelis Inc. Manufacturing Canada Canada
Novelis do Brasil Ltda. Manufacturing Brazil Brazil
Brecha Energetica Ltda. Distribution Services Brazil Brazil
4260848 Canada Inc. Management Company Canada Canada
4260856 Canada Inc. Management Company Canada Canada
8018227 Canada Inc Management Company Canada Canada
Novelis (China) Aluminum Products Co. Limited Manufacturing China China
Novelis (Shanghai) Aluminum Trading Company Import an_d export China China

aluminum
Novelis Lamines France SAS Distribution Services France France
Novelis PAE SAS Engineering France France
Novelis Aluminium Beteiligungs GmbH Manufacturing Germany Germany
Novelis Deutschland GmbH Manufacturing Germany Germany
Novelis Sheet Ingot GmbH Manufacturing Germany Germany
Novelis (India) Infotech Ltd. Dormant India India
Novelis Aluminium Holding Company Intermediate subsidiary Ireland Ireland
Novelis Italia SpA Manufacturing ltaly Italy
Novelis de Mexico SA de CV Dormant Mexico Mexico
Novelis Korea Ltd. Manufacturing South Korea  South Korea
Novelis AG Management Company Switzerland Switzerland
Novelis Switzerland SA Manufacturing Switzerland Switzerland
Novelis MEA Limited Import and export UAE UAE
aluminum

Novelis Europe Holdings Limited Intermediate subsidiary UK UK
Novelis UK Ltd. Manufacturing UK UK
Novelis Services Limited Management Company UK UK
Novelis Corporation Manufacturing USA USA
Novelis South America Holdings LLC Intermediate subsidiary USA USA
Novelis Acquisitions LLC Management Company USA USA
Novelis Holdings Inc. Intermediate subsidiary USA USA
Novelis Services (North America) Inc. Cash management Service USA USA
Novelis Global Employment Organization, Inc. Management Company USA USA
Novelis Services (Europe) Inc. Management Company USA USA
Novelis Vietham Company Limited Manufacturing Vietnam Vietnam

# De-registered/Dissolved/Liquidated, etc. during the year ended March 31, 2019.

The Company has Hindalco Jan Seva Trust and Copper Jan Seva Trust which are consolidated in these financial

statements.
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Non-Controlling Interests (NCI)

The Group has following non-wholly owned subsidiaries:

Ownership interest held

Name of Entity Principal Activity incc:glrjsct)rr);tci);n by the Group
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Suvas Holdings Limited Power Generation India 74.00% 51.00%
Hindalco-Almex Aerospace Limited Manufacturing India 97.18% 97.18%
East Coast Bauxite Mining Company Private Limited Mining India 74.00% 74.00%

None of above non-wholly owned subsidiary is material to the Group, therefore financial information about these non-
wholly owned subsidiary are not disclosed separately.

Joint Operations

The Group is engaged in various arrangements on a joint basis with other companies. In assessing whether joint control
exists for these arrangements, management evaluate the structure and legal framework and contracts governing
the arrangement combined with an assessment of which decisions that significantly influence the return from the
arrangement. The Group assesses whether joint arrangements are joint operations where the Group has rights to the
assets and obligations for the liabilities related to the arrangement, or a joint venture where the group have an interest
in the net assets of the joint arrangement. Accordingly, the Group has identified following joint arrangements as joint
operations:

Group’s proportion of ownership

Name of the joint Principal Country of interest and voting power

operations activities Incorporation 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Mahan Coal Limited Mining India 50.00% 50.00%
Tubed Coal Mines Limited Mining India 60.00% 60.00%
Aluminium Norf GmbH Rolling and recycling Germany 50.00% 50.00%
Logan Aluminium Inc. Rolling and finishing USA 40.00% 40.00%
Ulsan Aluminium Limited Rolling and recycling South Korea 50.10% 50.10%
Alulnfra Services SA Service Company Switzerland 50.00% -

(a) Mahan Coal Limited and Tubed Coal Mines Limited are classified as held for sale.

(b) Novelis Inc, a subsidiary of the Group, is engaged in following arrangements that are concluded to be joint
operations.

i Aluminium Norf GmbH (“Alunorf”), a large rolling mill in Germany, is a joint operation between Novelis and
Hydro Aluminium Deutschland GmbH (“Hydro”). Both Novelis and Hydro hold a 50% interest in equity,
profits and losses, shareholder voting and management control. Novelis shares control of the management
of Alunorf with Hydro through a jointly-controlled shareholders’ committee and supervisory board.
Management of Alunorf is led jointly by two managing executives, one nominated by Novelis and one
nominated by Hydro. The primary objective of Alunorf is to provide tolling services (output) exclusively to
Novelis and Hydro as the total output capacity is allocated between Novelis and Hydro. This indicates that
both Novelis and Hydro get substantially all of the economic benefits from the assets of the joint arrangement.
The major or sole sources of cash inflows for Alunorf are Novelis and Hydro, who are legally obliged to cover
production costs.

i. Logan Aluminium Inc (“Logan”), an aluminum rolling mill in Kentucky, is a joint operation between Novelis and
Tri-Arrows Aluminium Inc. (“Tri-Arrows”). Logan processes metal exclusively received from Novelis and Tri-
Arrows and charges the respective partner a fee to cover expenses. This indicates that both Novelis and Tri-
Arrows get substantially all of the economic benefits from the assets of the joint arrangement. Logan is thinly
capitalized and relies on the regular reimbursement of costs and expenses by Novelis and Tri-Arrows to fund
its operations, indicating that Novelis and Tri-Arrows have an obligation for the liabilities of the arrangement.
Other than these contractually required reimbursements, Novelis does not provide other material support
to Logan. Logan’s creditors do not have recourse to our general credit. Novelis has a 40% voting interest;
however, our participating interest in operations ranges from greater that 50% to approximately 55%
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depending on output. Novelis has joint ability to make decisions regarding Logan’s production operations
and take our share of production and associated costs.

In May 2017, Novelis Korea Ltd., a subsidiary of Novelis Inc., entered into definitive agreements with Kobe
Steel Ltd. (“*Kobe”), an unrelated party, under which Novelis Korea and Kobe Steel Ltd. will jointly own and
operate the Ulsan manufacturing plant currently owned by Novelis Korea. In April 2017, Novelis Korea
formed a new wholly owned subsidiary, Ulsan Aluminium, Ltd. (UAL). In September 2017, the transaction
closed and Novelis Korea sold 49.9% of its shares in UAL to Kobe. The primary objective of UAL is to provide
output exclusively to Novelis and Kobe as the total output capacity is allocated between Novelis and Kobe.
This indicates that both Novelis and Kobe get substantially all of the economic benefits from the assets of
the joint arrangement. The major or sole sources of cash inflows for UAL are Novelis and Kobe, who are
legally obliged to cover production costs. We have joint ability to make decisions regarding UAL’s production
operations and take our share of production and associated costs.

The primary objective of UAL is to provide output exclusively to Novelis and Kobe as the total output capacity
is allocated between Novelis and Kobe. This indicates that both Novelis and Kobe get substantially all of the
economic benefits from the assets of the joint arrangement. The major or sole sources of cash inflows for
UAL are Novelis and Kobe, who are legally obliged to cover production costs. We have joint ability to make
decisions regarding UAL's production operations and take our share of production and associated costs.
We have a 50.1% voting interest; however, our participating interest in operation ranges from greater that
50% to approximately 100% depending on output. We have joint ability to make decisions regarding Logan’s
production operations and take our share of production and associated costs. (refer Note 58 of Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements)

In July 2018, Novelis Switzerland SA (Novelis Switzerland), a subsidiary of Novelis, entered into definitive
agreements with Constellium Valais SA (Constellium), an unrelated party, under which Novelis Switzerland
and Constellium will jointly own and operate Alulnfra Services SA (Alulnfra), the joint arrangement. Each of
the parties to the joint arrangement hold a 50% interest in the equity, profits and losses, shareholder voting,
management control and rights to use the production capacity of the facility.

Investments in Associates:

Details of Associates of the Group are set out below. The country of incorporation is also their principal place of
business and the proportion of ownership interest is the same as the proportion of voting rights held. The Group’s
interests in these entities are accounted for using equity method in the Consolidated Financial statements.

Proportion of Ownership

Interests (%) Carrying Amount (% Crore)

Country of

Name of Entity incorporation

31.03.2019 31.03.2018 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Aditya Birla Science & Technology Company Pvt. . o .
Limited (ABSTCPL) India 49.00% 49.00% 15.16 14.69
Aditya Birla Renewable Subsidiary Limited (ABRSL) India 26.00% - 5.88 -

Vodafone Idea Limited (VIL) # India - - - B

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s associates are set out below. These information is
based on their Ind-AS financial statements after alignment of Group’s accounting policies.

Zin Crore
As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018
ABSTCL ABRSL ABSTCL VIL
Summarised Balance Sheet
Total Assets 151.29 115.87 147.76 -
Total Liabilities 120.36 93.27 117.79 -
Net Assets 30.93 22.60 29.97 -
Group’s share of Net Assets of Associates 15.16 5.88 14.69 -
Dividend Received - - - -
Carrying Amount 15.16 5.88 14.69 -
Contingent Liabilities
Share of Contingent Liabilities of the associate 3.25 - 3.25 -
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Zin Crore
Year ended 31.03.2019 Year ended 31.03.2018

ABSTCL ABRSL ABSTCL VIL
Summarised Statement of Profit and Loss
Total Revenues 53.96 5.26 56.54 28,242.00
Total Profit/ (Loss) for the year 0.74 0.50 2.22 (4,168.20)
Other comprehensive income for the year 0.23 - 0.07 28.30
Group’s share of Profit/ (Loss) of Associates 0.36 0.13 1.09 (218.33)
Group’s share of Other comprehensive income of
Associates 011 i 0.03 i
Reconciliation to carrying amounts
Opening net assets 29.97 - 27.68 24,732.24
Increase on account of acquisition during the year - 22.10 - -
Profit/(Loss) for the year 0.74 0.50 2.22 (4,168.20)
Other comprehensive income 0.23 - 0.07 -
Amounts directly recognised in equity - - - 6,698.36
Closing net assets 30.94 22.60 29.97 27,262.40
Group’s share (%) 49.00% 26.00% 49.00% 5.24%
Group’s share (Amount) 15.16 5.88 14.69 1,428.00
Dividend Received - - - -
Carrying amount 15.16 5.88 14.69 1,428.00

# During the year ended March 31, 2018, Idea Cellular Limited (ICL) issued additional shares to its investors which has resulted in
dilution of the Group’s interest ICL from 6.33% to 5.23%. This dilution of interest in ICL resulted in gain of ¥ 92.15 crore, which had been
recorded in consolidated statement of profit and loss account as part of “Share in Profit/ (Loss) in Equity Accounted Investments (Net
of Tax)”. Further, effective March 31, 2018, the Group has discontinued the equity accounting for its investment in ICL as ‘Investment in
Associates’ as it no longer has significant influence over ICL. Accordingly, the Group had designated its investment in ICL as ‘Fair Value
through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)" and recognised a gain of ¥ 305.10 crore, which had been recorded as exceptional
income (refer Note 43 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements).

Interests in Joint Ventures:

Details of Joint Ventures of the Group are set out below. The joint ventures listed below have share capital consisting
solely equity shares, which are directly held by the Group. The country of incorporation is also their principal place of
business and the proportion of ownership interest is the same as the proportion of voting rights held. No entity listed
below is listed on any public stock exchange.

T in Crore
Country of Proportion of Carrying Amount
Incorporation Ownership Interests (X Crore)
31.03.2019 31.03.2018 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
MNH Shakti Limited (MNH Shakti) India 15.00% 15.00% 12.77 12.77
Hydromine Global Minerals (GMBH) British Virgin Islands 45.00% 45.00% 0.70 0.70

Limited (Hydromine)

MNH Shakti and Hydromine have been classified as held for sale. Accordingly, equity accounting for consolidation
of MNH Shakti and Hydromine has been discontinued from said dates. The investments in both the joint ventures are
carried at fair value and presented as part of “Not-current Assets classified as held for Sale/ Distribution to Owners” in
Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Acquisition of Aleris Corporation (Aleris):

On July 26, 2018, Novelis Inc. has signed a definitive agreement to acquire Aleris Corporation (Aleris), a global
supplier of rolled aluminum products, for approximately USD 2.58 billion including assumption of debt. As part of
the acquisition, Novelis will acquire Aleris’s 13 manufacturing facilities across North America, Asia and Europe.The
acquisition is subject to customary closing conditions and regulatory approvals.
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Related party transactions
The Group’s related parties principally consist of its associates, joint ventures, trusts and its key managerial personnel.
The Group routinely enters into transactions for sale and purchase of products and rendering and receiving services with
these related parties. Transactions and balances between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of
the Company, have been eliminated on consolidation. Details of transactions and balances between the Group and other
related parties, included in the financial statements, are disclosed below.

A. Associates and Joint Ventures:

(@) Transactions

CORPORATE
OVERVIEW

STATUTORY
REPORTS

FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

% in Crore

Year ended 31.03.2019

Year ended 31.03.2018

Associates Joint Ventures

Associates Joint Ventures

Services rendered - - 0.03 -
Vodafone Idea Limited - - 0.03 -
ii. Interest and dividend received 3.52 - 4.37 -
Vodafone Idea Limited - - 0.92 -
Aditya Birla Science & Technology Company Pvt Ltd 3.52 - 3.45 -
iii. Purchase of Materials, Capital Equipment and 5.26 - - -
Others
Aditya Birla Renewables Subsidiary Ltd. 5.26 - - -
iv. Services Received 15.39 - 17.14 -
Vodafone Idea Limited - - 3.91 -
Aditya Birla Science & Technology Company Pvt Ltd 15.39 - 13.23 -
V. Investments, Deposits, Loans and Advances made 5.75 - - -
during the year
Aditya Birla Renewables Subsidiary Ltd. 5.75 - - -
Vi Deposits, Loans and Advances received back - - 4.90 -
during the year
Aditya Birla Science & Technology Company Pvt Ltd - - 4.90 -
(b) Outstanding Balances
Zin Crore
As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018
Associates Joint Ventures Associates Joint Ventures
Receivables - 0.03 - 0.03
Hydromine Global Minerals GMBH Limited - 0.03 - 0.03
i. Payables 1.33 - 0.26 -
Aditya Birla Science & Technology Company Pvt Ltd - - 0.26 -
Aditya Birla Renewables Subsidiary Ltd. 1.33 - - -
ii. Deposits, Loans and Advances 50.59 - 50.59 -
Aditya Birla Science & Technology Company Pvt Ltd 50.59 - 50.59 -

All outstanding balances are unsecured and are repayable in cash.

B. Trusts

(@) Name of Trusts
Hindalco Employee’s Gratuity Fund, Kolkata
Hindalco Employee’s Gratuity Fund, Renukoot

Hindalco Employees Provident Fund Institution, Renukoot

Hindalco Superannuation Scheme, Renukoot

Hindalco Industries Limited Employees’ Provident Fund Il

Hindalco Industries Limited Senior Management Staff Pension Fund I

Hindalco Industries Limited Office Employees’ Pension Fund

For details of transaction with the trust refer Note 49 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
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C. Key Managerial Personnel

T in Crore

Year ended Year ended

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

(a) Managerial Remuneration 37.03 31.98
Mr. D. Bhattacharya - Vice Chairman* 4.04 6.93

Mr. Satish Pai - Managing Director ** 28.72 20.97

Mr. Praveen Maheshwari -Whole time Director & Chief Financial Officer ** 4.27 4.08

* Includes Pension of ¥ 4.02 crore (31/03/2018: ¥ 4.02 crore) and reimbursement for medical expenses of ¥ 0.02 crore (31/03/2018: ¥ 0.02

crore) for past services.

** Excluding amortisation of fair value of share based payments under Ind AS 102 and provision for gratuity, leave encashment recognised on

the basis of actuarial valuation as separate figures are not available.

% in Crore
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
(b) Directors’ Remuneration 8.08 9.48
Mr. Kumar Mangalam Birla 3.64 5.19
Smt. Rajashree Birla 0.14 0.08
Mr. A.K.Agarwala 1.20 1.11
Mr. D Bhattacharya 1.21 1.15
Mr. M.M. Bhagat 0.22 0.24
Mr. K.N. Bhandari 0.22 0.21
Mr. Y.P. Dandiwala 0.16 0.17
Mr. Ram Charan 0.07 0.09
Mr. Jagdish Khattar (Resigned w.e.f. May 2018) - 0.08
Mr. Girish Dave 0.10 0.10
Ms. Alka Bharucha 0.07 -
Mr. Satish Pai (As a Director of Novelis Inc.) 1.05 1.06
Zin Crore
As at As at
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
(c) Outstanding Balances

Payables

Directors’ Remuneration payable 0.01 0.01

34. Note 60 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company is one of the promoter members of Aditya Birla Management Corporation Private Limited (ABMCPL), a
Company limited by guarantee which has been formed to provide common facilities and resources to its members,
with a view to optimize the benefits of specialization and minimize cost for each member. The Company is one of the
participants in the common pool and shares the expenses incurred by ABMCPL, which is accounted for under appropriate
heads. The share of expenses charged by ABMCPL during the year ended March 31, 2019 is ¥ 428.96 crore (31/03/2018:
¥ 341.77 crore) and net outstanding payable balance as at March 31, 2019 is ¥ 32.11 crore (31/03/2018: % 71.58 crore). The
outstanding deposit with ABMCPL as at March 31, 2019 is % 16.26 crore (31/03/2018: % 44.71 crore).

35. Note 61 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

During the financial year ended March 31, 2019 the Group has reclassified following comparatives which do not have

material impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Zin Crore
Note Nq. of A_udited Consolidated Note Description Previously Revised Change
Financial Statements reported amount amount
Consolidated Balance Sheet
Assets
Note 12 Other Financial Assets (Current) 2,982.49 2,857.50 (124.99)
Note 14 Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 643.30 813.45 170.15
Note 15 Other Current Assets 2,930.28 3,055.27 124.99
Liabilities
Note 26 Other Non Current Financial Liabilities 178.82 183.39 4.57
Note 30 Other Non Current Liabilities 1,180.81 1,176.24 (4.57)
Note 13 Current Tax Liablitiies (Net) 954.60 1,193.24 (238.64)
Note 14 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 3,776.57 3,867.21 (90.64)
Note 25 Trade Payables (Current) 20,415.11 20,404.80 10.31
Note 28 Provisions (Non-current) 7,445.69 7,081.05 364.64
Note 28 Provisions (Current) 1,656.62 1,872.44 (215.82)
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
Income
Note 32 Revenue from Operations 115,808.59 115,819.70 (11.11)
Expenses
Note 34 Cost of Materials Consumed 70,865.98 70,872.29 6.31
Note 38 Power and Fuel 8,584.12 8,614.11 29.99
Note 42 Other Expenses 15,142.69 15,117.50 (25.19)
Note 44 Income Tax Expenses (Current Tax) 1,585.46 1,664.17 78.71
Note 44 Income Tax Expenses (Deferred Tax) 488.71 410.00 (78.71)
Consolidated Statement of Cash flows
Other Non-operating (Income)/ Expenses (Net) (35.45) (25.09) (10.36)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories (Net) (2,975.72) (2,979.63) 3.91
E:\rlwé:tr)ease)/ Decrease in Trade and other Receivables (728.19) (465.02) (263.17)
I(rlllcergase/ (Decrease) in Trade and other Payables 1917.70 0.173.02 (255.32)
(Payment)/ Refund of Income Tax (Net) (1,408.13) (1,923.12) 514.99
Imp_a.c‘t on Net Cash Generated/ (Used) - Operating 10.887.73 10,897.68 (9.95)
Activities
Effect of exchange variation on Cash and Cash 317 47 307 52 995

Equivalents

36. Note 62 of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

Additional information required under Schedule Ill of the Companies Act, 2013

A.

Information regarding subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and trusts included in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2019:

Share in Other

Share in Total

Net Assets i.e. total Share in Comprehensiv Comprehensiv
Assets minus total Liabilities Profit/ (Loss) omprehensive omprenensive
Income/(Loss) Income/(Loss)
As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of Other Amount As % of Total Amount
Consolidated Q Croure) Consolidated Q Croure) Comprehensive Q Croure) Comprehensive Q Croure)
Net Assets Profit/ (Loss) Income Income
Parent:
Hindalco Industries Limited 84.43%  48,557.69 21.94% 1,205.43 68.18%  (1,681.22) -16.71% (475.79)
Subsidiaries:
Indian:
Minerals & Minerals Limited 0.01% 8.35 0.02% 1.34 0.00% 0.04% 1.34
Utkal Alumina International Limited 12.29%  7,065.88 2593%  1,425.10 0.19% (4.66) 46.89%  1,420.44
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. . Share in Other Share in Total
Net Assets i.e. total Share in ) .
. N ) Comprehensive Comprehensive
Assets minus total Liabilities Profit/ (Loss)
Income/(Loss) Income/(Loss)
As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of Other Amount As % of Total Amount
Consolidated  Crore) Consolidated @ Crore) Comprehensive @ Crore) Comprehensive @ Crore)
Net Assets Profit/ (Loss) Income Income
Suvas Holdings Limited 0.05% 27.47 -0.03% (1.59) 0.00% - -0.05% (1.59)
Renuka Investments & Finance Limited 0.25% 142.24 0.19% 10.48 0.68% (16.82) -0.21% (6.34)
Renukeshwar Investments & Finance 0.15% 87.07 0.14% 7.66 051%  (12.63) -0.16% (4.97)
Limited
Dahej Harbour and Infrastructure 0.15% 88.88 058% 3198 0.00% . 1.06% 31.98
Limited
Lucknow Finance Company Limited 0.03% 16.22 0.03% 1.82 0.00% - 0.06% 1.82
Hindalco-Almex Aerospace Limited 0.15% 83.89 0.08% 4.30 0.01% (0.16) 0.14% 414
Egst Coast Bauxite Mining Company 0.00% 0.02) 0.00% ) 0.00% ) 0.00%
Private Ltd
Foreign:
AV Minerals (Netherlands) N.V. 20.49% 11,784.18 -0.01% (0.79) 0.58% (14.36) -0.50% (15.15)
AV Metals Inc. 18.81% 10,818.19 0.00% - 0.06% (1.56) -0.05% (1.56)
Novelis Inc. (Consolidated) 3155% 18,142.22 5413% 297454 55.23%  (1,362.02) 53.23% 1,612.52
Hindalco Do Brasil Indusiria Comercia 0.25% 14486 242%  (132.72) 242%  (59.71) 6.35%  (192.43)
de Alumina Ltda
Hindalco Guinea SARL 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% -
Non-controlling Interest 0.02% 9.48 -0.01% (0.66) 0.00% - -0.02% (0.66)
Associates
Indian:
Aditya Birla Renewable Subsidiary 0.01% 5.88 0.00% 0.13 0.00% - 0.00% 0.13
Limited
Aditya Birla Science and Technology 0.03% 15.16 0.01% 0.36 0.00% 0.11 0.02% 0.47
Company Private Limited
Trusts
Indian:
Hindalco Jan Seva Trust 0.00% 1.42 0.00% (0.14) 0.00% - 0.00% (0.14)
Copper Jan Seva Trust 0.01% 3.41 0.01% 0.82 0.00% - 0.03% 0.82
168.67% 97,002.47 100.60%  5,528.06 127.86%  (3,153.03) 78.41%  2,375.03
Consolidation Adjustments -68.67% (39,491.26) -0.60% (33.05) -27.86% 687.11 21.59% 654.06

100.00% 57,511.21 100.00%  5,495.01 100.00%  (2,465.92) 100.00%  3,029.09

Information regarding subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures included in the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended March 31, 2018:

) ) Share in Other Share in Total
Net Assets i.e. total Share in ) .
. S " Comprehensive Comprehensive
Assets minus total Liabilities Profit/ (Loss)
Income/(Loss) Income/(Loss)
As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of Other Amount As % of Total Amount
Consolidated  Crore) Consolidated @ Crore) Comprehensive  Crore) Comprehensive  Crore)
Net Assets Profit/ (Loss) Income Income
Parent:
Hindalco Industries Limited 90.14%  49,450.74 23.62% 1,436.49 32.00% 957.15 26.38%  2,393.64
Subsidiaries:
Indian:
Minerals & Minerals Limited 0.01% 7.01 0.09% 5.31 0.00% - 0.06% 5.31
Utkal Alumina International Limited 10.29%  5,645.44 9.23% 561.29 0.00% 0.09 6.19% 561.38
Utkal Alumina Technical & General 0.00% - 0.00% (0.04) 0.00% - 0.00% (0.04)

Services Limited
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Net Assets i.e. total Share in Share in Oth.er Share in Tot_al
Assets minus total Liabilities Profit/ (Loss) Comprehensive Comprenensive
Income/(Loss) Income/(Loss)
A? %of Amount A.S % of Amount As % of Other Amount As % of To.tal Amount
Consolidated @ Crore) Cons.olldated  Crore) Comprehensive @ Crore) Comprehensive @ Crore)
Net Assets Profit/ (Loss) Income Income
Suvas Holdings Limited 0.02% 13.04 0.00% (0.25) 0.00% - 0.00% (0.25)
Renuka Investments & Finance Limited 0.32% 178.14 0.14% 8.26 -0.26% (7.70) 0.01% 0.56
Renukeshwar Investments & Finance 0.19% 106.50 0.11% 6.45 -0.38% (11.37) -0.05% (4.92)
Limited
Dahej Harbour and Infrastructure 0.18% 99.10 0.66% 39.93 0.00% 0.44% 39.93
Limited
Lucknow Finance Company Limited 0.03% 19.18 0.03% 1.59 0.00% - 0.02% 1.59
Hindalco-Almex Aerospace Limited 0.15% 79.76 0.04% 2.69 0.00% (0.12) 0.03% 2.57
East Coast Bauxite Mining Company 0.00% (0.02) 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
Private Ltd
Mauda Energy Limited 0.00% 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
Foreign:
AV Minerals (Netherlands) N.V. 19.94% 10,937.62 -0.01% (0.70) -0.03% (0.90) -0.02% (1.60)
AV Metals Inc. 18.56% 10,181.78 0.00% 0.01 0.00% (0.10) 0.00% (0.09)
Novelis Inc. (Consolidated) 28.87% 15,837.28 65.41% 3,978.69 60.07% 1,796.81 63.65%  5,775.50
Hindalco Do Brasil Industria Comercia 0.23% 128.29 247%  (149.96) 0.37% (11.07) -1.77%  (161.03)
de Alumina Ltda
Hindalco Guinea SARL 0.00% 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00% -
Non-controlling Interest 0.02% 8.64 0.00% (0.05) 0.00% 0.00% (0.05)
Associates
Indian:
Vodafone Idea Limited (refer Note 57 0.00% 2.07%  (126.18) 0.00% -1.39%  (126.18)
D of Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements)
Aditya Birla Science and Technology 0.03% 14.69 0.02% 1.09 0.00% 0.04 0.01% 113
Company Private Limited
168.99% 92,707.19 94.77%  5,764.62 91.02% 2,722.83 93.53%  8,487.45
Consolidation Adjustments -68.99% (37,846.78) 5.283% 318.25 8.98% 268.59 6.47% 586.84
100.00% 54,860.41 100.00%  6,082.87 100.00%  2,991.42 100.00%  9,074.29

C. MNH Shakti Limited, an Indian joint venture, and Hydromine Global Minerals (GMBH) Limited, a foreign joint venture,
of the Group have been classified as held for sale. As a result of the same, equity accounting for these joint ventures
has been discontinued and the investments in these joint ventures are carried at fair value.

As per our report annexed.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm Registration Number: 304026E/ E-300009

Sumit Seth
Partner
Membership Number: 105869

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 16, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Hindalco Industries Limited
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